
1 

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING NOTICE/AGENDA 

NOVEMBER 12, 2025, 7:00 PM 

RICHARD T. FLICKINGER MUNICIPAL CENTER, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

6101 CAPULINA AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, IL 60053 

In accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act, all Village Board and Commission meetings are 

open to the public. This meeting can be viewed remotely via the live stream link found at: 
www.mortongroveil.org/stream. (If an Executive Session is placed on the agenda, the meeting shall 

commence at 6:00 p.m. and the time between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. shall be used for the Executive 
Session per 1-5-7:A of the Village of Morton Grove Municipal Code. If the Agenda does not include an 

Executive Session, the meeting will begin at 7:00 p.m). 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

4. Approval of Minutes

a. Regular Meeting – October 28, 2025

5. Special Reports -None

6. Public Hearings – None

7. Plan Commission Reports – None

8. Residents’ Comments (agenda items only)

9. President’s Report – Administration, Council of Mayors, Northwest Municipal 
Conference, Dempster Street Corridor Steering Committee

a. Presentation of Key to the Village to Father Dennis O'Neill

http://www.mortongroveil.org/stream


2 

10. Clerk’s Report – Family & Senior Services, Advisory Commission on Aging,

Condominium Association, Maine Township Government

11. Staff Report

a. Village Administrator

1) Ordinance 25-30 (Introduced November 12, 2025, First Reading)

Amending Title 1 “Administrative, Section 1-9b-1 Entitled Sale of Surplus

Property”; Title 8 “Public Health and Safety” Sections 8-11-1 , Entitled

“Definitions And Exclusions”, and 8-11-2, Entitled “Permit Required”; and

Deleting Section 4-10-1 of Title 5 "Motor Vehicles and Traffic” of the

Village of Morton Grove Municipal Code

2) Ordinance 25-33 (Introduced November 12, 2025, First Reading)

Amending Title 4 Entitled “Business Regulations”, Chapter 6, Article D,

Entitled “Liquor Control”, and Title 1 Entitled “Administrative”, Chapter

11, Entitled “Fees”, Section 4 Entitled “Fees for Specific Permits, License,

Certificates, and Services”, of the Municipal Code of the Village of Morton

Grove

b. Corporation Counsel

12. Reports by Trustees

a. Trustee Khan – Finance Department, Appearance Commission, (Trustee Travis)

1) Ordinance 25-31 (Introduced November 12, 2025, First Reading) An

Ordinance Adopting the Budgets for all Corporate Purposes of the Village

of Morton Grove and the Morton Grove Library, Cook County, Illinois for

the Calendar Year Effective January 1, 2026, and Ending December 31, 2026

2) Ordinance 25-32 (Introduced November 12, 2025, First Reading) An

Ordinance Levying and Assessing Taxes for the Village of Morton Grove,

Cook County, Illinois for 2025 to be Collected in the Fiscal Year Beginning

January 1, 2026, and Ending December 31, 2026

b. Trustee Minx – Fire Department, Fire Pension Board, Fire and Police Commission,

Special Events Commission, RED Center, NIPSTA (Trustee Thill)

c. Trustee Shiba – Building Department, Environment & Natural Resources

Commission, Legal Department, IT Department, Sawmill Station TIF (Trustee White)

d. Trustee Thill – Public Works Department, SWANCC (Solid Waste Agency of

Northern Cook County), MG-Niles Water Commission, Traffic Safety Commission

(Trustee Minx)

1) Resolution 25-76 Authorizing a Change Order with H&H Electric

Company for the Traffic Signal and Street Lighting Maintenance Program



3 

e. Trustee Travis – Police Department, Police Pension Board, Fire & Police

Commission, Community Relations Commission, Niles Township Government

(Trustee Khan)

1) Ordinance 25-28 (Introduced October 14, 2025, Second Reading) An

Ordinance Amending Title 6, Entitled Police Regulations, Chapter 4, of the

Municipal Code Entitled “Animal Control”

2) Ordinance 25-29 (Introduced October 28, 2025, Second Reading)

Amending Title 1 Chapter 4 Section 2 Entitled “Monetary Penalties and

Fines for Specific Violations and Offenses” of the Municipal Code of the

Village of Morton Grove

f. Trustee White – Community & Economic Development Department, Economic

Development Commission, Plan Commission/ Zoning Board, Lincoln/Lehigh TIF

(Trustee Shiba)

1) Ordinance 25-34 (Introduced November 12, 2025, First Reading)

Approving a Special Use Permit for a Mixed-Use Development on

Property Commonly Known as 6222 Lincoln Avenue and 8503-09 Fernald

Avenue in Morton Grove, Illinois

2) Ordinance 25-35 (Introduced November 12, 2025, First Reading)

Approving a Minor Amendment to Ordinance 24-19 Granting a Special

Use Permit for An Automobile Minimart Station at 6335 Dempster Street

in Morton Grove, Illinois

3) Ordinance 25-36 (Introduced November 12, 2025, First Reading)

Approving a Final Plat of Subdivision and Accepting Certain

Improvements for the Park Villas Townhomes Subdivision Located on

Property Commonly Known as 8721 Narragansett, 8720-26 Ferris Avenue,

and a 1,121-Square-Foot Portion of Public Alley Right of Way Petitioned

for Vacation in Morton Grove, Illinois

13. Presentation of Warrants – $852,077.03

14. Other Business

15. Residents’ Comments

16. Adjournment



  
   

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE PRESIDENT 
AND THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 

RICHARD T. FLICKINGER MUNICIPAL CENTER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
OCTOBER 28, 2025 

 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

  

 I.  
 

 

Village President Janine Witko convened the Regular Meeting of the Village Board at 7:00 p.m.  
in the Council Chambers of Village Hall and led the assemblage in the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 

 
II. Village Clerk Eileen Harford called the roll. Present were Trustees Saba Khan, Rita Minx,  

Ashur Shiba, John Thill, Connie Travis, and Keith White.  
 

 
III. 

 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
There were three sets of Minutes to vote on this evening. Mayor Witko asked for one motion to 
approve all three. Trustee Minx moved to approve as presented the Regular Meeting of the Village 
Board of Trustees, held on October 14, 2025; the Minutes of the Budget Workshop held on 
October 21, 2025; and the Budget Workshop Minutes from October 22, 2025. Trustee Shiba 
seconded the motion.   
 
Motion passes unanimously via voice vote with one abstention (Trustee Khan). 
 

 
IV. 

 
1. 

 
 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SPECIAL REPORTS 
 
Mayor Witko asked Police Chief Mike Weitzel to come to the podium so he could acknowledge and 
commend Commander Tony Anderson, Sergeant Gus Fasos, and Sergeant Mike Johanson for 
obtaining the FBI-LEEDA Trilogy Award.  
 
Chief Weitzel said he appreciates the opportunity to recognize three top leaders in the MGPD who 
have completed what is widely regarded as one of law enforcement’s premier professional  
development milestones, the FBI Law Enforcement Executive Development Association Trilogy. The 
Trilogy Award signifies that an individual has successfully completed all three of the core leadership 
institutes offered by the FBI LEEDA program. They are the Supervisor Leadership Institute, the 
Command Leadership Institute, and the Executive Leadership Institute. Through this program, 
participants develop the knowledge and confidence required to lead effectively at every level of a 
police department, and learn to do so with purpose, balancing the needs of their personnel, the 
mission of the agency, and the expectations of the community. In short, achieving the Trilogy 
Award represents a deep commitment to professional growth and leading with integrity. 
 
Chief Weitzel then introduced the Trilogy Award winners, providing a brief background of each. 



Minutes October 28, 2025 Board Meeting

2 

IV. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

SPECIAL REPORTS (continued) 

Chief Weitzel introduced Commander Tony Anderson, a 20-year veteran of the MGPD. He can  
always be counted on to be one of the hardest workers in the room. He involves himself in work 
that meaningfully benefits both MGPD personnel and the community they serve. Commander 
Anderson takes teaching very seriously, and is currently tasked with overseeing all of the MGPD’s 
training programs to ensure our newest officers begin their careers with purpose, competence, and 
support. Chief Weitzel said Commander Anderson’s dedication to his profession extends beyond his 
official duties as a Watch Commander. He serves as a Pension Board Trustee and is also an adjunct 
professor at DePaul University, teaching Criminal Justice, preparing the next generation of public 
safety individuals.  

Next, Chief Weitzel introduced Sergeant Constantino “Gus” Fasos, who has served the MGPD for  
14 years. The chief said of Gus, “he is someone who consistently steps into responsibility. If there’s 
work that needs to be done to strengthen the department, improves a process, or supports the 
community, you’ll find him in the middle of it.” When former Police Chief Mike Simo needed  
someone to take on the critical responsibility of Accreditation Manager, someone detail-oriented, 
reliable, and trusted, he chose Gus. Gus now shares his expertise through the ILEAD accreditation 
process and is regularly called upon to assist other agencies as they work toward achieving  
accreditation themselves. He’s developed a reputation of being there when it matters the most, 
supporting officers on critical incidences, guiding newer personnel, and bringing a calm and steady 
approach to supervision. He doesn’t just do the job of “sergeant,” he adds a great deal of value to 
this organization.  

Chief Weitzel then introduced Sergeant Mike Johanson, who has been with the MGPD for 16 years. 
The chief said of Mike, “He brings a thoughtful and deliberate approach to leadership. He is steady, 
prepared, and consistent—someone whose influence comes from quite competence. When others 
need direction, he provides it clearly and confidently.” Mike was the author of the department’s 
Destination Zero submission, which earned Morton Grove the National Champion Award in the 
category of General Officer Safety—recognition that speaks directly to his commitment to officer 
well-being. When Commander Anderson was promoted to his current position, Mike assumed 
leadership of the MGPD’s Safety Committee, ensuring that work continued with purpose and  
progress. Most recently, Mike presented alongside Tony at the Intergovernmental Risk 
Management Agency’s educational summit, sharing Morton Grove’s employee-driven approach to  
meaningful and effective safety committees. He’s someone who does the work that strengthens 
the culture of the Morton Grove Police Department. 

Chief Weitzel said, “The caliber of our sergeants and commanders at the MGPD is exceptional. 
Their knowledge, professionalism, and ownership of responsibilities set this department apart.” 
The chief added, “I mean this sincerely. I am confident that I could send any one of our sergeants 
or commanders to another police department, and they could perform the duties of ranks at least 
two levels above them.” That’s the level of leadership we have here, and it’s the reason why this  
department continues to move forward with strength and purpose.  

The Board joined Chief Weitzel in congratulating Commander Anderson, Sgt. Fasos, and  
Sgt. Johanson. Mayor Witko congratulated them, and thanked them for their commitment to their 
professional growth and to the community. 



Minutes October 28, 2025 Board Meeting

3 

V. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

NONE 

VI. PLAN COMMISSION REPORTS 

NONE 

VII. RESIDENTS’ COMMENTS (AGENDA ITEMS ONLY) 

NONE 

VIII. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

Mayor Witko announced that Morton Grove will be celebrating Halloween on October 31. The 
hours for trick-or-treating this year are 3:30pm to 7:00pm. 

Mayor Witko said the Village will be closed November 11, 2025 in observance of Veterans’ Day., 
she hoped that everyone would be able to attend a ceremony honoring our veterans on  
November 9th at 1:30pm at the American Legion Post 134, located at 6144 Dempster Street. 

Mayor Witko noted that, this past week, the Village hosted Morton Grove Boy Scout Troop 228 in 
the Council Chambers, where the achievements of the scouts were recognized. The event included 
ten rank advancements, 56 merit badges, and 6 national outdoor awards. She congratulated 
Troop 228. 

IX. CLERK’S REPORT 

Clerk Harford had no formal report this evening. 

X. 

A. 

STAFF REPORTS 

Village Administrator: 

Mr. Meyer noted that, due to the Veterans’ Day holiday, the next Village Board meeting will be held 
on Wednesday, November 12, at 7:00pm. 



Minutes October 28, 2025 Board Meeting 

 4 

X. 
 

B. 
 

STAFF REPORTS (continued) 
 

Corporation Counsel: 
 
Corporation Counsel Liston had no formal report this evening. 
 

 
XI. 

 
A. 

 
 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS 
 
Trustee Khan: 
 
Trustee Khan had no formal report this evening. 
 
 

 
B. 

 
 
 

 
Trustee Minx:  
 
Trustee Minx had no formal report this evening, but noted that preparations for the 2026 
Morton Grove Days event have already begun. At the most recent Special Events Commission 
meeting, a change to next year’s event was approved. In 2026, there will be four days of carnival fun 
and three days of entertainment and beer garden. The event will start on Thursday, July 2 and 
wrap up on Sunday, July 5. Music and beer garden will be held on Thursday, Friday, and Saturday, 
and the carnival will run from Thursday to Sunday. 
 
 

 
C. 

 
 

 
Trustee Shiba: 
 
Trustee Shiba announced the third annual Morton Grove Pumpkin Smash will take place on 
Saturday, November 8, from 9am to noon at the north end of Harrer Park. The Pumpkin Smash is 
a fun way for residents and their kids to compost their pumpkins, and by composting, you’re  
helping to reduce our greenhouse emissions! 
 
 

 
D. 

 
1. 

 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Trustee Thill: 
 
Trustee Thill presented Resolution 25-74, Authorizing a Change Order for D&Z Floor Systems LLC of 
Lincolnwood, IL for the Fire Station Floor Coating Project. 
 
Resolution 25-68 authorized a contract with D&Z Floor Systems LLC for $51,300, plus a $5,000 
contingency, to install a floor coating system in the apparatus bay at Fire Station 4. During the  
grinding of the existing concrete floor as part of the preparatory work, the concrete floor surface 
around the perimeter of seven floor drains was found to be structurally deficient and began to 
spall, crack, flake, and chip away. This unexpected concrete subsurface, if left untreated, would 
affect the adhesion of the new floor coating material and could potentially compromise the long- 
term condition and warranty of the floor system. 



Minutes October 28, 2025 Board Meeting 

 5 

XI. 
 

D. 
 

b. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. 
 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS (continued) 
 

Trustee Thill: (continued) 
 
To mitigate these concrete deficiencies, D&Z Floor Systems LLC submitted a change order for an 
additional $12,000 to correct these issues using urethane cement, ensuring the project remains on 
schedule. This change order will raise the total project cost to $63,530, and due to the needs of 
the organization, the Village Administer proactively approved the change order. This contract must 
conform to the requirements of the Prevailing Wage Act. The fiscal impact of this Resolution is 
$12,000. 
 
Trustee Thill moved to approve Resolution 25-74, seconded by Trustee Minx. 
 
Motion passes: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 
Tr. Khan          aye                                    Tr. Minx           aye                Tr. Shiba            aye                
Tr. Thill            aye                                    Tr. Travis          aye               Tr. White           aye 
 
 

Trustee Thill said the Village’s Fall Leaf program has started and will continue until December 1, 
2025. This program is for leaf pick-up only. All other landscape materials, including grass clippings, 
bushes, tree branches, and flowers, will not be picked up. Leaves must be in the street by the curb, 
away from parked cars, the day before the regularly scheduled street sweeping day. 
 

 
 

E. 
 

1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b. 
 
 

 
Trustee Travis: 
 
Trustee Travis presented Ordinance 25-27, An Ordinance Amending Title 5 Entitled “Motor 
Vehicles and Traffic,” Chapter 9 Entitled “Parking Regulations,” Section 9 Entitled “Municipal 
Parking Zones,” Section 10 Entitled “Commuter Parking Lot,” and Section 11 Entitled “Municipal 
Parking Lot” of the Municipal Code of the Village of Morton Grove. 
 
This is the second reading of this Ordinance.  
 
She explained that the Village maintains a series of publicly owned municipal parking lots 
throughout the community. The Village has received reports from residents that a handful of electric  
vehicles are regularly parked at the charging station at the American Legion Civic Center parking lot 
for several hours, which is well beyond the time needed to charge the vehicle. This limits the ability 
of other, and specifically, Civic Center patrons, as intended, to use this space to charge their electric 
vehicles. Staff recommends the Municipal Code include a prohibition on overnight parking at the 
municipal parking lot at the American Legion Civic Center, similar to other publicly owned lots, and 
to add restrictions limiting electric vehicle parking in the charging station to no more than two hours 
per day per vehicle. 
 
The proposed Village Code modification would establish a two-hour limit and, if approved, the 
Village would subsequently install signage at the charging station to inform the public of the 
restriction.  



Minutes October 28, 2025 Board Meeting 

 6 

XI. 
 

E. 
 

c. 
 
 
 

 
 

d. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 
 
 
 

a. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

3. 
 
 
 

a. 
 
 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS (continued) 
 
Trustee Travis: (continued) 
 
Additionally, after receiving feedback at the October 14 Village Board meeting, the proposed  
Ordinance has been revised in that the restriction on overnight parking in the Commuter Parking Lot 
has been lifted, and overnight parking will now be permitted there.  
 

Trustee Travis moved to adopt Ordinance 25-27 as presented, seconded by Trustee White. 
 

Trustee Thill asked Mr. Meyer how a person who uses overnight parking in the Commuter Lot will 
pay for it. Mr. Meyer said he believed that the parking sticker covers a 24-hour period, so staying 
overnight would be part of that 24 hours. Trustee Thill also asked if the Village bears the liability of 
something happening to a car parked overnight in the Commuter Lot. Mr. Meyer said the Village’s 
liability would be the same as it is for a car parked there during the day. 
 
Mayor Witko called for the vote on Ordinance 25-27. 
 
Motion passes: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 
Tr. Khan          aye                                    Tr. Minx           aye                Tr. Shiba            aye                
Tr. Thill            aye                                    Tr. Travis          aye               Tr. White           aye 
 
 

Trustee Travis next presented Ordinance 25-28, An Ordinance Amending Title 6 Entitled “Police 
Regulations,” Chapter 4 Entitled “Animal Control” of the Municipal Code of the Village of  
Morton Grove. 
 
She said that Village staff is updating Ordinance 25-28, which updates our Animal Control 
ordinances to add the definition of Wild Animal, to expand the prohibited species section, prohibit 
feeding wild animals, and grant the Village authority to require the removal of bird feeders due to 
rodent activity. Based on feedback from the community, staff has asked for additional time to  
review and propose additional revisions, and as such, Trustee Travis moved to table  
Ordinance 25-28 to the November 12, 2025 Village Board meeting. Trustee Thill seconded the  
motion to table. 
 
Motion passes: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 
 
Tr. Khan          aye                                    Tr. Minx           aye                Tr. Shiba            aye                
Tr. Thill            aye                                    Tr. Travis          aye               Tr. White           aye 
 
 

Trustee Travis then introduced Ordinance 25-29, Amending Title 1, Chapter 4, Section 2, Entitled 
“Monetary Penalties and Fines for Specific Violations and Offenses” of the Municipal Code of  
the Village of Morton Grove. 
 
She explained that this will amend Title 1, Chapter 4, Section 2 of the Municipal Code to update the 
penalty schedule to include violations of Title 5, Chapter 14, entitled “Motor Driven Scooters and 
Electric Bicycles.” 



Minutes October 28, 2025 Board Meeting

7 

XI. 

E. 

b. 

4. 

5. 

TRUSTEES’ REPORTS (continued) 

Trustee Travis: (continued) 

Trustee Travis said this Ordinance will amend Title 1, Chapter 4, Section 2 of the Code to include 
specific penalties for violations of 5-14-2 and 5-14-3, which were created on August 12, 2025, 
when the Board passed Ordinance 25-23. It also removes the penalties associated with the 
obsolete Section 5-4-10-1D. 

Trustee Travis said, as this is the first reading of this Ordinance, no action will be taken this evening. 

Trustee Travis announced that, next Tuesday, starting at 4:30pm, the Police Department will be 
participating in a free throw contest at Prairie View Community Center, 6834 Dempster Street. If 
you’d like to join them, please RSVP at 87-663-3804. Space is limited so don’t wait! 

Trustee Travis, as liaison to Niles Township, shared the news that Niles Township has launched an 
“essentials” campaign. Each day, neighbors experiencing homelessness can find rest, safety, and 
community inside the doors of the respite center. The center provides those who benefit from it the 
essentials—deodorant, detergent, snacks, shower shoes, and socks are offered with many other 
essential items. The Township is looking to raise $5,000 to help with this effort. Anyone interested in 
donating to this empowering cause should visit the Township’s website: nilestownshipgov.com. 

F. Trustee White:

Trustee White announced that the Village’s Economic Development Commission (EDC) will be
hosting its Small Business Workshop series November 19 from 6:00pm to 7:30pm and November 20
from 9:00am to 10:30am in the Morton Grove Public Library at 6140 Lincoln Avenue. The event is
free and will include presentations from the Illinois Small Business Development Center at
Oakton College and the Cook County Small Business Source. Please visit the Village’s Facebook page
to learn more.

XII. WARRANTS 

Trustee Khan presented the Warrant Register for October 28, 2025 in the amount of $478,978.91. 
She moved to approve the Warrants as presented, seconded by Trustee Minx.  

Motion passes: 6 ayes, 0 nays. 

Tr. Khan  aye    Tr. Minx  aye  Tr. Shiba      aye 
Tr. Thill  aye  Tr. Travis  aye   Tr. White  aye 



Minutes October 28, 2025 Board Meeting 

 8 

XIII. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

NONE 
 
 

XIV. 
 
 

RESIDENTS’ COMMENTS 
 

NONE 
 
 

XV. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business before the Board, Trustee Khan moved to adjourn the meeting,  
seconded by Trustee Minx.  
 
Motion passes unanimously via voice vote, with 1 absent. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:18 p.m. 
 
 

 
PASSED this 12th day of November 2025. 
 
Trustee Khan        

Trustee Minx     __________  

Trustee Shiba        

Trustee Thill     __________  

Trustee Travis     __________  

Trustee White     __________  
 
 
APPROVED by me this 12th day of November 2025. 
 
 
 
  
Janine Witko, Village President 
Board of Trustees, Morton Grove, Illinois 

 
 
APPROVED and FILED in my office this 13th day of November 2025. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Eileen Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove, Cook County, Illinois 
 
  Minutes by Teresa Cousar 

 
 



Submitted by: Charles L Meyer, Village Administrator      

Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel  

Prepared by: Dennis Johnson, Deputy Police Chief 

Reviewed by Michael Weitzel, Chief of Police 

Legislative Summary 

Ordinance 25-30 

AMENDING TITLE 1 “ADMINISTRATIVE, SECTION 1-9B-1 ENTITLED SALE OF SURPLUS 

PROPERTY”; TITLE 8 “PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY” SECTIONS 8-11-1 , ENTITLED 

“DEFINITIONS AND EXCLUSIONS”, AND 8-11-2, ENTITLED “PERMIT REQUIRED”; AND 

DELETING SECTION 4-10-1 OF TITLE 5 "MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC” OF THE VILLAGE 

OF MORTON GROVE MUNICIPAL CODE 

Introduced: November 12, 2025 

Purpose: To update four sections of the Municipal Code as part of the Village’s regular review of 

its laws and regulations 

Background: In order to keep its regulations current and relevant, Village staff regularly review the 

Village’s Municipal Code. As part of this review process. the Village Administrator 

recommend Section 1-9B-1 of the Municipal Code be amended to increase the value of 

property deemed to be surplus from $1,000.00 to $3,000.00; and  Sections 8-11-1and 8-

11-2 of the Municipal Code be amended to clarify the types of events that require a

special event permit and to change the deadline for submitting an application for a

special event permit from 90 to 60 days; and further recommends that Section 4-10 of the

Municipal Code be amended to delete subparagraph 1 entitled “Prohibition of Motor

Driven Scooters” as motor driven scooters are regulated pursuant to Title 5 Chapter 14 of

the Municipal Code.

Programs, Departments 

 or Groups Affected 

Administration and Police 

Fiscal Impact: Minimal 

Source of Funds: N/A 

Workload Impact: Staff will implement these revisions as part of its normal duties. 

Administrator 

Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

Second Reading: November 25, 2025 

Special Considerations or 

Requirements: 

None 



1 

 

ORDINANCE 25-30 
 

AMENDING TITLE 1 “ADMINISTRATIVE, SECTION 1-9B-1 ENTITLED SALE OF 

SURPLUS PROPERTY”; TITLE 8 “PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY” SECTIONS 8-11-1 

, ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS AND EXCLUSIONS”, AND 8-11-2, ENTITLED “PERMIT 

REQUIRED”; AND DELETING SECTION 4-10-1 of TITLE 5 "MOTOR VEHICLES AND 

TRAFFIC” OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE MUNICIPAL CODE   

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (the Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, 

is a home rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of 

the State of Illinois, can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its 

government affairs, including but not limited to the power to tax and incur debt; and 

WHEREAS, the Village continuously reviews and, as it deems necessary, updates existing 

Municipal Codes to assure they are kept current and relevant; and  

WHEREAS, the Village Administrator has recommended Section 1-9B-1 of the Municipal 

Code be amended to increase the value of property deemed to be surplus from $1,000.00 to 

$3,000.00; and  

WHEREAS, the Village Administrator has recommended Sections 8-11-1and 8-11-2 of 

the Municipal Code be amended to clarify the types of events that require a special event permit 

and to change the deadline for submitting an application for a special event permit from 90 to 60 

days; and  

WHEREAS, the Village Administrator has recommended Section 4-10 of the Municipal 

Code be amended to delete subparagraph 1 entitled “Prohibition of Motor Driven Scooters” as 

motor driven scooters are regulated pursuant to Title 5 Chapter 14 of the Municipal Code; and  

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities concur with the recommendations of the Village 

Administrator. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION  1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS 

clauses into this Ordinance, as though fully set forth herein, thereby making the findings as 

hereinabove set forth.  

SECTION 2: Title 1, entitled ADMINISTRATIVE, Chapter 9, entitled “Municipal 

Finances”, Sub Chapter 9B entitled “Purchase and Sale of Surplus and Real Property”, Section 1 

entitled “Sale of Surplus Property” is hereby amended to read as follows:  



2 

 

1-9B-1: SALE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY 

1. Obsolete or surplus personal property which is, in the opinion of the finance director 

and the Village administrator, is no longer necessary or useful to the Village, and 

that has an estimated value exceeding three thousand dollars ($3,000.00) and all 

motor vehicles and real property of any value of the Village of Morton Grove shall 

be sold subject to approval by resolution of a simple majority of the Village Board 

of Trustees. 

2. Obsolete or surplus personal property other than motor vehicles which are, in the 

opinion of the Village administrator and finance director, determined no longer 

necessary or useful to the Village, which has an estimated value of less than three 

thousand dollars ($3,000.00), may be sold at the direction of the Village 

administrator upon consultation with the finance director and the appropriate 

department director in a manner deemed appropriate considering the value of the 

asset, and the amount of staff time necessary for the sale of said property. 

3. Obsolete or surplus personal property which is determined to be no longer necessary 

or useful to the Village by the Village administrator and finance director, and which, 

in the opinion of the Village administrator has no substantial resale or trade-in value, 

may be disposed of or recycled in the reasonable discretion of the Village 

administrator after consultation with the finance director and appropriate department 

director. 

4. All obsolete personal property may also be traded-in for credit on the purchase of 

other property at the discretion of the Village administrator upon consultation with 

the finance director and appropriate department director. If the value of the trade-in 

credit and price of other property exceeds $25,000, Village Board approval is 

required. 

 

SECTION 3: Title 8 entitled PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY, Chapter 11 entitled 

"Special Events”, Section 1, entitled “Definitions and Exclusions” and Section 2 entitled “Permit 

Required” are hereby amended to read as follows: 

8-11-1: DEFINITIONS AND EXCLUSIONS 

 

5. Special Event. As used in this chapter, "special event" means: 

6. An activity on public or private property that requires the Village to provide special services 

as defined in this Section; 



3 

a. Any activity deemed to significantly impact normal Village operations

(such as activities which require traffic to be rerouted, or needing

additional police, public works or fire department support, etc.);

b. An event that requests or requires street closures or the use of Village- 

owned equipment;

c. An outdoor event within Village limits where more than 500 people are

expected to attend including parades, fun runs, festivals, outdoor

concerts, large grand openings, sidewalk sales, etc.; or

d. An outdoor event that is open to the general public and provides alcoholic

beverages.

2. Special Services. As used in this chapter, "special services," means the allocation

of Village resources, including but not limited to Village personnel, equipment,

rights-of-way, or property, for use in conjunction with a specific event or

activity, as requested by the host or sponsor of the event, or deemed necessary

by the Village Administrator or his designee.

3. Exclusions. For purposes of this chapter, the following shall not be considered

special events:

a. An official visit or appearance of the President or Vice-President of the

United States, the Governor of the State of Illinois, an incumbent United

States Senator or member of the United States Congress representing the

voters of the Village of Morton Grove that is open to the public.

b. An activity or event occurring outside the corporate limits of the Village,

for which Village personnel, services and/or resources are provided

pursuant to a mutual aid agreement, other intergovernmental agreement,

or a custom and practice of intergovernmental cooperation in which the

participating municipalities do not charge for the activity or event

sponsor and do not charge each other for services provided.

c. Neighborhood block parties

8-11-2: PERMIT REQUIRED

No person or organization shall conduct a special event without first having

obtained a special event permit from the Village. Applications for special event

permits shall be delivered to the Village Administrator at least sixty (60) days

before the event.

SECTION 4: Title 5 entitled "MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, Chapter 4 entitled 

"Rules of the Road”, Section 10, entitled “Prohibited Actions, Conduct”, Sub Section 1, entitled 

“Prohibition of Motor Driven Scooters” is hereby deleted in its entirety. 



4 

 

SECTION 5: The terms and conditions of this ordinance shall be severable and if any 

section, term, provision, or condition is found to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason by a 

court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining sections, terms, provisions, and conditions shall 

remain in full force and effect.  

SECTION 6: Except as to code amendments set forth in this ordinance, all chapters and 

sections of the Morton Grove Village Code shall remain in full force and effect.  

SECTION 7: This ordinance shall be effective from and after its adoption, approval, and 

publication as provided by law.   

 

Passed this 25th day of November 2025. 

 

Trustee Khan  _________    

Trustee Minx  _________  

Trustee Shiba  _________  

Trustee Thill  _________  

Trustee Travis  _________  

Trustee White  _________ 

 

 

Approved by me this 25th day of November 2025 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Janine Witko, Village President 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

 

 

Attested and Filed in my office this  

26th day of November 2025. 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 



   

 

Submitted by: Charles L Meyer, Village Administrator       

Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel   

Prepared by Zoe Heidorn, Assistant Village Administrator 

Legislative Summary 

 

Ordinance 25-33 
 

AMENDING TITLE 4 ENTITLED “BUSINESS REGULATIONS”, CHAPTER 6, ARTICLE D, ENTITLED 

“LIQUOR CONTROL”, AND TITLE 1 ENTITLED “ADMINISTRATIVE”, CHAPTER 11, ENTITLED “FEES”, 

SECTION 4 ENTITLED “FEES AND FOR SPECIFIC PERMITS, LICENSE, CERTIFICATES, AND 

SERVICES”, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 

Introduced: November 12, 2025 

  

Purpose: To update the Village’s Liquor Control Ordinances 

 

Background: In order to keep its regulations current and relevant, Village staff regularly review 

the Village’s Municipal Code. As part of this review process. the Village 

Administrator recommends the following updates to the Village’s Liquor Control 

Ordinances: 

• Update the regulations for Class J licenses, an ancillary license which 

authorize holders of Class A, A-V, C, C-V, M, M-V, E, or E-V licenses to 

sell alcoholic liquors for consumption off the licensed premises for up to 5 

events per year (except that holders of Class E or E-V licenses shall be 

limited to events lasting no more than one (1) day) approved in writing by 

the Village Administrator at least fourteen (14) days in advance of the 

event.  

• Reducing the number of Class N Video Gaming Café: License from 4 to 2 

and the total number of V (video gaming) licenses from 11 to 10. 

• Establish regulations, application and annual fees for Class S licenses which 

are an ancillary license which authorize holders of Class A, A-V, M, M-V, 

E, or E-V licenses to sell alcoholic liquors, only in original packages for 

consumption off the premises  

 

Departments 

 or Groups 

Affected 

Administration and Police 

Fiscal Impact: Minimal    

  

Source of Funds: N/A 

 

Workload 

Impact: 

Staff will implement these revisions as part of its normal duties. 

 

Administrator 

Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

  

Second Reading: November 25, 2025 

Special 

Requirements: 

None 

 

 



1 

 

ORDINANCE 25-33 
 

AMENDING TITLE 4 ENTITLED “BUSINESS REGULATIONS”, CHAPTER 6, 

ARTICLE D, ENTITLED “LIQUOR CONTROL”, AND TITLE 1 ENTITLED 

“ADMINISTRATIVE”, CHAPTER 11, ENTITLED “FEES”, SECTION 4 ENTITLED 

“FEES AND FOR SPECIFIC PERMITS, LICENSE, CERTIFICATES, AND SERVICES”, 

OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (the Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is 

a home rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the 

State of Illinois, can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government 

affairs, including but not limited to the power to tax and incur debt; and 

WHEREAS, the Village continuously reviews and, as it deems necessary, updates existing 

Municipal Codes to assure they are kept current and relevant; and  

WHEREAS, the Village seeks to promote the public health, safety, and welfare of its 

residents and visitors through the responsible regulation of alcoholic liquor; and 

WHEREAS, the Village desires to update the Municipal Code regarding the regulation of 

the sale of alcoholic liquor; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION  1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS 

clauses into this Ordinance, as though fully set forth herein, thereby making the findings as 

hereinabove set forth.  

SECTION 2: Title 4, entitled “BUSINESS REGULATIONS”, Chapter 6, Article D, entitled 

“Liquor Control”, Section 8, entitled “License Classifications and Fees”, is hereby amended to read 

as follows:  

4-6D-8: LICENSE CLASSIFICATIONS AND FEES 

 

13. Class J, off premises event sales: Ancillary license which shall authorize a licensee 

authorized to sell alcoholic liquors for on-premises consumption to sell alcoholic liquors for 

consumption off the licensed premises. A Class J license shall be limited to holders of Class 

A, A-V, C, C-V, M, M-V, E, or E-V licenses. Dates, times, and locations of sales shall be 

approved in writing by the Village Administrator at least fourteen (14) days in advance of 

the event. Off-premises sales shall be limited to five (5) events per calendar year, lasting no 

more than four (4) consecutive days, except that holders of Class E or E-V licenses shall be 

limited to events lasting no more than one (1) day.  



2 

 

 

18. Class N Video Gaming Café: License that authorizes the retail sale of alcoholic liquor 

in video gaming cafes for consumption on the premise. A Class N licensed premise must 

have least 1,500 but not more than 3,000 square feet of public space and have a maximum 

table seating capacity in the dining area of twenty-five persons. No person under the age of 

21 shall be allowed in a Class N licensed premise. Food service offering meals (as opposed 

to light snacks) shall be available each day within the premise at all times until two hours 

prior to the time the premise closes to the public. Such food service may be more limited 

than a full menu after 9:00 pm. A Class N license must have and maintain all required video 

gaming licenses and video terminal permits in good standing and shall comply with all 

provisions of this Code and the Illinois Video Gaming Act and all rules, regulations and 

restrictions imposed by the Illinois Gaming Board. No more than two (2) Class N licenses 

shall be allowed at any one time.  

 

23. Class S, limited package sales: Ancillary license which shall authorize the retail sale of 

alcoholic liquors, only in original packages for consumption off the premises and not for 

consumption on the premises where sold. A Class S license shall be limited to holders of 

Class A, A-V, M, M-V, E, or E-V licenses. 

 

SECTION 3: Title 4, entitled “BUSINESS REGULATIONS”, Chapter 6, Article D, entitled 

“Liquor Control”, Section 14, entitled “Regulations for Licensees Operating Video Gaming 

Terminals on the Licensed Premise”, is hereby amended to read as follows:  

4-6D-14: REGULATIONS FOR LICENSEES OPERATING VIDEO GAMING 

TERMINALS ON THE LICENSED PREMISE 

 

A. It shall be unlawful for any licensed premise to operate a video gaming terminal, except 

for Class A-V, C-V, E-V, M-V and N license holders who have and maintain in good 

standing a video gaming license issued by the Illinois Gaming Board in accordance with the 

provisions of the Video Gaming Act, 230 ILCS 40/1 et seq. and have all current required 

permits for each video gaming terminal. No more than ten (10) licensed premises in the 

Village may operate video gaming terminals at any one time. Additional licenses may be 

issued pursuant to an economic development agreement between the Village and the 

licensee, who shall operate a restaurant on the same zoning lot, dated after August 1, 2021, 

or a class E-V license is issued to the holder of a class E license pursuant to the legacy 

restaurant assistance program administered by the Village Administrator. However, any 

license issued pursuant to a legacy restaurant agreement or an economic development 

agreement shall be included in the calculation of the maximum number of ten (10) licensed 

premises permitted to operate video gaming terminals, and shall backfill any available or 

newly available standard license until the maximum number of ten (10) licenses is reached. 

 

D. The annual fee for a video gaming terminal permit sticker issued by the Village of Morton 

Grove, including the licensed operator fee, shall be assessed a fee in accordance with Title 

1, Chapter 11 of this Code. A valid Village video gaming terminal permit sticker shall be 



3 

 

clearly displayed at all times on each video gaming terminal. No more than six video gaming 

terminals may be located on a Class A-V, C-V, E-V, M-V and N licensed establishment’s 

premise. (Ord. 20-12, 6-22-2020)  

 

SECTION 4: Title 4, entitled “ADMINISTRATIVE”, Chapter 11, entitled “Fees”, Section 

4, entitled “Fees and for Specific Permits, Licenses, Certificates, and Services”, is hereby amended 

to read as follows:  

1-11-4: FEES FOR SPECIFIC PERMITS, LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND 

SERVICES 

Code 

Section 

Description Fee Unit or Description 

4-6D-8 Liquor License – Class R, Complimentary Service $55/Event or $275/Year, 

Whichever is Less 

4-6D-8 Liquor License – Class S, Limited Package Sale $550.00 /Year 

4-6D-9 Liquor License Application Fee – Class A, Full 

Liquor 

$1,100 /Year 

    

4-6D-9 Liquor License Application Fee – Class R, 

Complimentary Service 

$30.00 /Year 

4-6D-9 Liquor License Application Fee – Class S, Limited 

Package Sale 

$30.00 /Year 

4-6D-9 Video Gaming Terminal Permit $275.00 /Machine/Terminal

/Year 

SECTION 5: The terms and conditions of this ordinance shall be severable and if any 

section, term, provision, or condition is found to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason by a 

court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining sections, terms, provisions, and conditions shall 

remain in full force and effect.  

SECTION 6: Except as to code amendments set forth in this ordinance, all chapters and 

sections of the Morton Grove Village Code shall remain in full force and effect.  

SECTION 7: This ordinance shall be effective from and after its adoption, approval, and 

publication as provided by law.   

 

 

 

Passed this 12th day of November 2025. 

 

Trustee Khan  _________    

Trustee Minx  _________  

Trustee Shiba  _________  

Trustee Thill  _________  



4 

 

Trustee Travis  _________  

Trustee White  _________ 

 

 

Approved by me this 12th day of November 2025 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Janine Witko, Village President 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

 

 

Attested and Filed in my office this  

13th day of November 2025. 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 



Legislative Summary  

Ordinance 25-31 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE BUDGETS FOR ALL CORPORATE PURPOSES OF THE  

VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE AND THE MORTON GROVE LIBRARY, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS FOR THE 

CALENDAR YEAR EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2026, AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2026 
 

Introduced: November 12, 2025 
 

Purpose: The 2026 Budget represents the Corporate Authorities’ projections of revenue that are expected to become available 

during fiscal year 2026, as well as recommended expenditures for the Village. 
  

Background: The Budget was presented at Village Workshops held on October 21 and October 22, and a public hearing on the 

budget was held on November 25, 2025. Public notice of the hearing was published in the Chicago Tribune Local 

newspaper on November 13, 2025.  The Budget has been available for inspection at the office of the Village 

Administrator, the Public Library, and posted on the Village’s website since at least November 3, 2025. 

Budget 

Summary: 
   Fund # Fund 2026 Expenses 

02 General Fund  

 Legislative $     122,750 

 Media/Communication $       82,090 

 Administration $     803,737 

 Legal $     396,539 

 Community & Economic Development $     360,914 

 Finance $  2,858,773 

 Information Technology $  1,022,110 

 Reserves $     544,000 

 Police $14,165,154 

 Fire  $11,758,988 

 Public Works $  5,524,240 

 Family & Senior/Civic Center $     281,775 

 Building & Inspectional Service $     930,740 

 Municipal Buildings $     786,417 

       General Fund Sub Total $39,638,227 

 General Operations  

03 Motor Fuel Tax $     931,000 

07 Emergency 911 $     516,218 

18 Commuter Parking $       32,200 

20 Debt Service $     660,963 

30 Capital Projects $     718,000 

31 Equipment Replacement Fund       $        -  

33 New Village Hall/Police Station Fund $  1,100,000 

40 Water & Sewer $10,574,743 

41 Fire Alarm $     332,650 

43 Solid Waste $  2,237,004 

45 MG Days $     173,950 

54 Seizure $     292,500 

61 Liability Insurance Fund $     100,000 

       General Operations Sub Total $17,669,228 

 TIF/Economic Develop  

12 Sawmill Station TIF $  3,134,632 

14 Lincoln Lehigh TIF $  5,390,000 

15 Lehigh-Ferris TIF $     175,010 

16 Economic Development $     378,000 

       TIF/Economic Develop Total $  9,077,642 

 Non-Pension Total $66,385,097 

 Pensions*  

51 Municipal Employees Retirement Fund $  1,526,000 

52 Firefighters Pension $  5,219,432 

53 Police Pension $  5,013,600 

       Pensions Total $11,759,032 

 Library $  4,257,018 

 Village and Library Total $82,401,147 
 

*Excludes IMRF, SLEP and OPEB Liabilities 

Admin Recomd: Approval as presented. 
 

Second Reading: 

 

Required 

Special Consider: The budget is required to be passed before December 31, 2025 
 

Submitted by: Charles L. Meyer, Village Administrator 

Reviewed by:  Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel 

Prepared by:  Hanna Sullivan, Finance Director 



ORDINANCE 25-31 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE BUDGETS 

FOR ALL CORPORATE PURPOSES OF THE  

VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE AND THE MORTON GROVE LIBRARY,  

COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2026, AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2026 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of 

Illinois, can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, 

including but not limited to the power to tax and incur debt; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 97-53 enacted on the 11th day of November 1997, the 

Corporate Authorities of the Village of Morton Grove established by a two-thirds majority vote of the 

Village Board then holding office, the budget system, all as authorized pursuant to Statute 65 ILCS 

5/8-2-9.1 and pursuant to said statute and local ordinance, the Village Administrator of the Village of 

Morton Grove has previously prepared and compiled the contents of the 2025 Budget and presented 

said Budget in tentative form for consideration by the Village Board; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed annual budget has been made conveniently available for public 

inspection in the Office of the Village Administrator and at the Morton Grove Public Library since at 

least by November 3, 2025, such date being at least ten (10) days prior to the date of passage of this 

Ordinance by the Village Board; and 

WHEREAS, the Village Board held a public hearing on the proposed annual budget on the 25th 

day of November 2025, such date being not less than one week after the proposed budget was made 

available for inspection; and 

WHEREAS, notice of such hearing was given by publication in the Chicago Tribune Local-

Morton Grove Champion which is a newspaper of general circulation in the Village, at least one week 

prior to the time of said hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the budget documents are too voluminous to attach to this ordinance but comport 

with the budget recapitulation attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS 

clauses into this Ordinance as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as hereinabove 

set forth. 



  SECTION 2:  The annual budget of the Village of Morton Grove, Illinois for the calendar year 

beginning January 1, 2026, and ending December 31, 2026, pursuant to the official budget documents 

currently kept in the Office of the Village Administrator shall be and is hereby adopted. 

 SECTION 3:  The Annual Budget of the Morton Grove Public Library for the fiscal year 

beginning January 1, 2026, and ending December 31, 2026, is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” shall be 

and is hereby adopted 

 SECTION 4: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 

approval, and publication in pamphlet form according to law.  

 

Passed this 25th day of November 2025. 

 

Trustee Khan __________ 

Trustee Minx  __________ 

Trustee Shiba __________ 

Trustee Thill       __________ 

Trustee Travis  __________ 

Trustee White __________ 

 

Approved by me this 25th day of November 2025. 

 

                                                     

Janine Witko, Village President 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

 

Attested and filed by me in my office 

this 26th day of November 2025. 

 

 

                                                    

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

 
  



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE AND MORTON GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BUDGET ORDINANCE 25-31 

CALENDAR YEAR JANUARY 1, 2026, TO DECEMBER 31, 2026 

 

RECAPITULATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fund # Fund 2026 Expenses 

02 General Fund  

 Legislative $     122,750 

 Media/Communication $       82,090 

 Administration $     803,737 

 Legal $     396,539 

 Community & Economic Development $     360,914 

 Finance $  2,858,773 

 Information Technology $  1,022,110 

 Reserves $     544,000 

 Police $14,165,154 

 Fire  $11,758,988 

 Public Works $  5,524,240 

 Family & Senior/Civic Center $     281,775 

 Building & Inspectional Service $     930,740 

 Municipal Buildings $     786,417 

       General Fund Sub Total $39,638,227 

 General Operations  

03 Motor Fuel Tax $     931,000 

07 Emergency 911 $     516,218 

18 Commuter Parking $       32,200 

20 Debt Service $     660,963 

30 Capital Projects $     718,000 

31 Equipment Replacement Fund       $        -  

33 New Village Hall/Police Station Fund $  1,100,000 

40 Water & Sewer $10,574,743 

41 Fire Alarm $     332,650 

43 Solid Waste $  2,237,004 

45 MG Days $     173,950 

54 Seizure $     292,500 

61 Liability Insurance Fund $     100,000 

       General Operations Sub Total $17,669,228 

 TIF/Economic Develop  

12 Sawmill Station TIF $  3,134,632 

14 Lincoln Lehigh TIF $  5,390,000 

15 Lehigh-Ferris TIF $     175,010 

16 Economic Development $     378,000 

       TIF/Economic Develop Total $  9,077,642 

 Non-Pension Total $68,467,842 

 Pensions*  

51 Municipal Employees Retirement Fund $  1,526,000 

52 Firefighters Pension $  5,219,432 

53 Police Pension $  5,013,600 

       Pensions Total $11,759,032 

 Library $  4,257,018 

 Village and Library Total $82,401,147 
 

*Excludes IMRF, SLEP and OPEB Liabilities 



EXHIBIT “B” 

MORTON GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY 

APPROPRIATIONS AND LEVY 

CALENDAR YEAR 2026 

 

 

2026 Budget
Revenues / Reciepts

Property Tax 4,045,637$                

Replacement Tax 50,000$                      

License Plate Sticker Revenue 2,000$                         

Fines 150$                            

Lost Materials Payments 400$                            
Photocopies/Printing 8,100$                         

Miscellaneous Income 1,000$                         
Grants 41,000$                      

Interest Income 1,000$                         

Book Sale 8,000$                         
Donations 4,800$                         
Vending Income 7,100$                         
Passport Fees 30,000$                      
Passport Photos 8,500$                         
Special Reserves 49,331$                      

Total Revenues / Reciepts 4,257,018$                

Expenses (Summary)

Salaries 1,994,000$                
Other Personnel Expenses 646,250$                    

Materials / Services 628,050$                    

Operations 668,868$                    

Special Fees & Taxes 319,850$                    

Total Expenses 4,257,018$                 



LEGAL NOTICE – PUBLIC HEARING 

VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

PROPOSED BUDGET REQUEST – 2026 CALENDAR YEAR 

The Village of Morton Grove will hold a public hearing at 7:00pm on Tuesday, November 25, 2025, at the 

Richard T. Flickinger Municipal Center, 6101 Capulina Avenue, Morton Grove, Illinois for the purpose of 

hearing written or oral comments from the public concerning the proposed annual budget for the calendar year 

ending December 31, 2026, as contained in the proposed budget summarized below:  

Copies of the proposed annual budget shall be posted on the Village's website http://www.mortongroveil.org/ and 
made available for public inspection in the office of the Village Administrator during normal business hours at 
the Richard T. Flickinger Municipal Center, 6101 Capulina Ave., Morton Grove, Illinois and at the Morton 
Grove Public Library, 6140 Lincoln Ave., Morton Grove, Illinois for a period of at least 10 days prior to 
approval 

Sincerely, 

Charles L. Meyer 

Fund # Fund 2026 Expenses 

02 General Fund 

Legislative $     122,750 

Media/Communication $       82,090 

Administration $     803,737 

Legal $     396,539 

Community & Economic Development $     360,914 

Finance $  2,858,773 

Information Technology $  1,022,110 

Reserves $     544,000 

Police $14,165,154 

Fire  $11,758,988 

Public Works $  5,524,240 

Family & Senior/Civic Center $     281,775 

Building & Inspectional Service $     930,740 

Municipal Buildings $  786,417 

      General Fund Sub Total $39,638,227 

General Operations 

03 Motor Fuel Tax $     931,000 

07 Emergency 911 $     516,218 

18 Commuter Parking $       32,200 

20 Debt Service $     660,963 

30 Capital Projects $     718,000 

31 Equipment Replacement Fund       $        - 

33 New Village Hall/Police Station Fund $  1,100,000 

40 Water & Sewer $10,574,743 

41 Fire Alarm $     332,650 

43 Solid Waste $  2,237,004 

45 MG Days $     173,950 

54 Seizure $     292,500 

61 Liability Insurance Fund $     100,000 

      General Operations Sub Total $17,669,228 

TIF/Economic Develop 

12 Sawmill Station TIF $  3,134,632 

14 Lincoln Lehigh TIF $  5,390,000 

15 Lehigh-Ferris TIF $     175,010 

16 Economic Development $     378,000 

      TIF/Economic Develop Total $  9,077,642 

Non-Pension Total $66,385,097 

Pensions* 

51 Municipal Employees Retirement Fund $  1,526,000 

52 Firefighters Pension $  5,219,432 

53 Police Pension $  5,013,600 

      Pensions Total $11,759,032 

Library $  4,257,018 

Village and Library Total $82,401,147 
*Excludes IMRF, SLEP and OPEB Liabilities

http://www.mortongroveil.org/


Submitted by: Charles L. Meyer, Village Administrator 

Reviewed by: Terry Liston, Corporation Counsel 

Prepared by: Hanna Sullivan, Finance Director 

Legislative Summary 

ORDINANCE  25-32 
AN ORDINANCE LEVYING AND ASSESSING TAXES 

FOR THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

FOR 2025 TO BE COLLECTED IN THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING 

JANUARY 1, 2026, AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2026 

Introduced: November 12, 2025 

Purpose: This ordinance sets the 2025 property tax levy amount that will be collected and will fund the 2026 budget. This 
ordinance must be adopted and filed with the Cook County Clerk to levy property taxes within the Village of Morton 
Grove. 

Background: Pursuant to Ordinance 25-31 the amount necessary to be levied for the 2025 property taxes is: $12,660,061 for Village 
operational expenses, $657,963 for Village debt service and $4,045,637 for the Library. This will result in a levy of 
$13,318,024 for the Village and $4,045,637 for the Library for a total levy of $17,363,661. The effective result is a 
4.33% increase in the Village’s portion of the tax levy and a 3.50% increase in the Library’s portion of the tax levy, 
resulting in an overall increase of 4.14% from the final extended tax levy from the previous year.  

Summary of 

Appropriation 

to be levied and 

Assessed: 

Admin Recom: Approval as presented. 

Second 

Reading: 

Required  

Special 

Consider or 

Requirement: 

A certified copy of this ordinance must be filed with the Cook County Clerk on or before the last Tuesday in 
December. 



ORDINANCE 25-32 
 

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING AND ASSESSING TAXES 

FOR THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

FOR 2025 TO BE COLLECTED IN THE FISCAL YEAR 

BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2026, AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2026 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a 

home rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the 

State of Illinois, can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government 

affairs, including but not limited to the power to tax and incur debt; and 

WHEREAS, on November 25, 2025, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village 

passed and approved by roll call vote, the annual Budget Ordinance 25-31 of said Village for the 

fiscal year beginning January 1, 2026, and ending December 31, 2026. The Ordinance was duly 

signed and approved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village and attested by the 

Village Clerk; and thereafter it was duly published in pamphlet form by order of the President 

and Board of Trustees of the Village; and 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Ordinance 25-31, the amount necessary to be levied for 2025 

property taxes is $13,318,024 for the Village and $4,045,637 for the Library for a total levy of 

Seventeen Million Three Hundred Sixty-Three Thousand Six Hundred Sixty-One Dollars 

($17,363,661).  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS 

clauses into this Ordinance as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as 

hereinabove set forth. 

SECTION 2: The total amount of appropriations for all corporate purposes legally made 

and to be collected from the tax levy of 2025 is hereby ascertained to be the sum of Seventeen 

Million Three Hundred Sixty-Three Thousand Six Hundred Sixty-One Dollars ($17,363,661)  

SECTION 3: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 

approval, and publication in pamphlet form according to law. 

 



 

Passed this 25th day of November 2025 

 

Trustee Khan __________ 

Trustee Minx  __________ 

Trustee Shiba __________  

Trustee Thill       __________ 

Trustee Travis  __________ 

Trustee White __________ 

 

Approved by me this  

25th day of November 2025. 

 

______________________________ 

Janine Witko, Village President 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

 

 

 

Attested and filed by me in my office this 

26th day of November 2025. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

  



   

 

Submitted by: Charles L. Meyer, Village Administrator       

Reviewed by: Hanna Sullivan, Director of Finance 

Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel 

Reviewed by: Mike Lukich, Director of Public Works 

 

Legislative Summary  

 

Resolution 25-76 

 

AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER WITH H&H ELECTRIC COMPANY 

FOR THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL AND STREET LIGHTING MAINTENANCE PROGRAM  

Introduction: November 12, 2025 

  

Purpose: To authorize the Village Administrator to execute a change order with H&H Electric Company for the Traffic 

Signal and Street Lighting Maintenance Program. 

  

Background: Resolution 25-13 (Exhibit “A”) authorized a contract with H&H Electric Company, located at 2831 

Commerce Street, Franklin Park, Illinois, for a not-to-exceed amount of $70,000.00 for the Village’s Traffic 

Signal and Street Lighting Maintenance Program. The contract is necessary to maintain the four Village-

owned traffic signals and streetlight infrastructure. This existing infrastructure is also vulnerable to other 

unpredictable or unforeseen repairs, including but not limited to periodic equipment failures, damage caused 

by vehicular crashes, and construction-related damage. 

 

Based on the increased number of village-owned traffic signals and arterial streetlights damaged by vehicle 

crashes and construction damage in the past seven months, the funds approved by Resolution 25-13 are 

nearly fully allocated. Staff recommends that this resolution authorize a change order to spend up to an 

additional $65,000 to cover the costs of these unexpected emergency repairs. The repairs to village-owned 

traffic signals and arterial streetlights damaged due to vehicle crashes and construction damages are 

reimbursed through our membership with the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA). This 

change order will raise the total contract limit to $135,000.00. 

 

The additional material and labor costs will continue to be based on unit pricing as outlined in the approved 

contract. This contract must conform to the requirements of the Prevailing Wage Act. 

 

Departs Affected Department of Public Works  

  

Fiscal Impact: $65,000.00 

  

Source of Funds:  Emergency repairs that are the result of vehicular accidents and construction-related damage, are charged to 

the Liability Insurance Fund 60-10-12-55-7131. 

  

Workload Impact: The Department of Public Works will manage and implement the project as part of its normal work 

activities. 

  

Administrator 

Recommendation 
Approval as presented  

  

Second Reading: Not Required 

  

Special 

Requirements: 
None 

 



RESOLUTION 25-76 

 
AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER WITH H&H ELECTRIC COMPANY 

FOR  THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL AND STREET LIGHTING MAINTENANCE PROGRAM  

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, 

can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but 

not limited to the power to tax, purchase, and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, Resolution 25-13 (Exhibit “A”) authorized a contract with H&H Electric 

Company, located at 2831 Commerce Street, Franklin Park, Illinois, for a not-to-exceed amount of 

$70,000.00 for the Village’s Traffic Signal and Street Lighting Maintenance Program.  

WHEREAS, the contract is necessary for maintaining the four Village-owned traffic signals and 

streetlight infrastructure; and 

 WHEREAS, this infrastructure is also vulnerable to other unpredictable or unforeseen repairs, 

including but not limited to periodic equipment failures, damage caused by vehicular crashes, and 

construction-related damages; and 

WHEREAS, based on the increased number of village-owned traffic signals and arterial 

streetlights damaged due to vehicle crashes and construction damages in the past seven months the 

funds approved by Resolution 25-13 are nearly fully allocated; and 

WHERASE, with the onset of winter months and susceptibility to additional damage to the 

infrastructure for the remainder of 2026, staff recommends that this resolution authorize a change order 

to spend up to an additional $65,000 to cover the costs of these unplanned emergency repairs; and 

WHEREAS, this change order will increase the total value of the contract limit to $135,000.00; 

and 

WHEREAS, H&H Electric Company has satisfactorily performed the work included in this 

contract for the Village and has the capacity to complete the additional work; and 

WHEREAS, the repairs to village-owned traffic signals and arterial streetlights damaged due to 

vehicle crashes and construction damages are reimbursed through our membership with the 

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA); and 

WHEREAS, funding for the change order amount of $65,000.00 is available for emergency 

repairs to the village-owned and maintained traffic signals and street lighting in the Liability Insurance 

Fund 60-10-12-55-7131. 

 

 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS 

clauses into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as hereinabove 

set forth. 

SECTION 2: The Corporate Authorities approve the change order to increase the contract 

amount to the not-to-exceed amount of $135,000.00 (an increase of $65,000.00 with H&H Electric 

Company, located at 2831 Commerce Street, Franklin Park, Illinois. 

SECTION 3: The Village Administrator and Director of Public Works and their designees are 

authorized to take all necessary steps to execute and implement the change order to the contract for the 

Traffic Signal and Street Lighting Maintenance Program approved by Resolution 25-13, to increase the  

not to exceed amount to $135,000.for unplanned and emergency work,  

SECTION 4: The Village Administrator and Director of Public Works or their designees are 

authorized to take all steps necessary to implement the change order with H&H Electric Company. 

SECTION 5: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval. 

Passed this 12th day of November 2025 

Trustee Khan ____________ 

Trustee Minx ____________ 

Trustee Shiba ____________ 

Trustee Thill ____________ 

Trustee Travis ____________ 

Trustee White ____________ 

Approved by me this 12th day of November 2025 

____________________________________ 

Janine Witko, Village President 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 



Attested and filed in my office this 

13th day of November 2025 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 



Submitted by: Charles L. Meyer, Village Administrator       
Reviewed by: Hanna Sullivan, Director of Finance 
Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel 
Reviewed by: Zoe Heidorn, Assistant Village Administrator 
Reviewed by: Mike Lukich, Director of Public Works 
Prepared by:  Chris Tomich, Village Engineer 

Legislative Summary 

Resolution 25-13 

AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH H&H ELECTRIC COMPANY FOR  
TRAFFIC SIGNAL AND STREET LIGHTING MAINTENANCE PROGRAM 

Introduction: March 11, 2025 

Purpose: To authorize the Village Administrator to execute a contract with H&H Electric Company for the Traffic 
Signal and Street Lighting Maintenance Program and to execute change orders to utilize the full amount of 
the budgeted funds. 

Background: The Village’s Traffic Signal and Street Lighting Maintenance Program is necessary for the maintenance of 
the four Village-owned traffic signals, arterial streetlights, and parking lot lighting infrastructure. The traffic 
signal and street light infrastructure requires planned monthly routine maintenance. This infrastructure is 
also susceptible to other unforeseeable or unplanned repairs, including but not limited to periodic equipment 
failure, damage due to vehicular crashes, and construction damages which on average costs an additional 
$30,000.00 annually. The Department of Public Works advertised in the February 6, 2025, and February 13, 
2025, issues of the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) Notice to Contractors Bulletin inviting 
bids for the 2025 “Traffic Signal and Street Lighting Maintenance Program”. The bid sought unit pricing for 
both the monthly routine maintenance and additional emergency services if needed. 

Two bids were received, publicly opened, and read at the Department of Public Works Facility at 10:00 a.m. 
on February 27, 2025, with the bid tabulation included in Exhibit “A”. H&H Electric Company, located at 
2831 Commerce Street, Franklin Park, Illinois, was the low bidder with a base bid amount for routine 
services of $39,861.80. The bid amount is based upon unit pricing proposed by the contractor for the 
number of units estimated by the Village for the routine maintenance and for unplanned and emergency 
services. The final price of the contract will include the base bid for routine maintenance and the estimated 
emergency repairs for an amount not to exceed $70,000.00. This contract must conform to the requirements 
of the Prevailing Wage Act. 

Departs Affected Public Works Department 

Fiscal Impact: The total amount shall not exceed $70,000. Since this is a unit-price contract, the final contract amount will 
be based on the actual quantity of work performed. 

Source of Funds: 2025 Motor Fuel Tax Account Number 03-50-60-55-4170 for routine maintenance and for emergency 
repairs that are the results of car accidents they are charged to 60-10-12-55-7131. 

Workload Impact: The Department of Public Works will manage and implement the project as part of its normal work 
activities. 

Administrator 
Recommendation Approval as presented 

Second Reading: Not Required 

Special 
Requirements: None 

Exhibit C



RESOLUTION 25-13 
 

AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH H&H ELECTRIC COMPANY 
FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL AND STREET LIGHTING MAINTENANCE PROGRAM  

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, 

can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but 

not limited to the power to tax, purchase, and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village’s Traffic Signal and Street Lighting Maintenance Program is necessary 

for the maintenance of the four Village-owned traffic signals, arterial streetlights and parking lot 

lighting infrastructure; and 

 WHEREAS, this traffic signal and street light infrastructure requires monthly routine 

maintenance that is planned; and 

 WHEREAS, this infrastructure is also susceptible to other unforeseeable or unplanned repairs, 

including but not limited to periodic equipment failure, damage due to vehicular crashes, and 

construction damages; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works advertised in the February 6, 2025, and February 

13, 2025, issues of the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) Notice to Contractors Bulletin 

inviting bids for the 2025 “Traffic Signal and Street Lighting Maintenance Program”. The bid requested 

unit pricing for the work contemplated for the base services and for possible emergency work; and 

 WHEREAS, fifteen entities, contractors, or suppliers obtained the bidding materials; and 

WHEREAS, two bids were received, publicly opened, and read at the Department of Public 

Works Facility at 10 a.m. on February 27, 2025, with the bid tabulation included in Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, H&H Electric Company, located at 2831 Commerce Street, Franklin Park, Illinois, 

is the low bidder with a base bid amount of $39,861.80; and 

WHEREAS, the bid amount is based upon unit pricing proposed by the contractor for the 

number of units estimated by the Village for routine maintenance and unplanned repairs; and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends that this Resolution authorizes spending up to $70,000 to cover 

the cost of planned maintenance and cost of unplanned repairs in order to apply the same unit cost 

pricing to such unplanned repairs, thereby preventing the need for future emergency bidding and 

improving cost efficiency; and  

WHEREAS, the final price of the contract will be based upon the number of units the Village 

directs the contractor to perform the required maintenance or unplanned repairs as is in the best interest 

of the Village; and 



WHEREAS, H&H Electric Company has satisfactorily performed the work included in this 

contract for the Village since 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Village reserves the right to renew the contract for two, one-year terms; and  

WHEREAS, funding for the above work in the amount of $70,000 is available for traffic signal 

and street lighting maintenance in the 2025 Adopted Budget Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) Fund Account 

Number 03-50-60-55-4170. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS 

clauses into this Resolution as though fully set forth therein thereby making the findings as hereinabove 

set forth. 

 SECTION 2: The Corporate Authorities accept the bid of H&H Electric Company of Franklin 

Park, Illinois in the amount of $39,861.80. 

SECTION 3: The Village Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a contract with H&H 

Electric Company for the Traffic Signal and Street Lighting Maintenance Program in the amount of 

$39,861.80 for the work to be performed in the Village. 

 SECTION 4: The Village Administrator and Director of Public Works or their designees are 

authorized to take all steps necessary to implement the contract for the Traffic Signal and Street 

Lighting Maintenance Program for the routine planned and unplanned work for a contract amount not 

to exceed $70,000.  

SECTION 5: The Village Administrator is hereby authorized to take all necessary steps to make 

a determination of whether it is in the Village’s best interest to renew this contract in 2026 and 2027 

and, if circumstances warrant, to execute a letter of renewal for 2026 and/or 2027 based on that 

determination. 

SECTION 5: The Village Administrator and Director of Public Works or their designees are 

authorized to take all steps necessary to implement the contract with H&H Electric Company. 

 SECTION 6: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval. 

  



Passed this 11th day of March 2025 

Trustee Khan 

Trustee Minx 

Trustee Shiba 

Trustee Thill 

Trustee Travis 

Trustee Witko  

____________ 

____________ 

____________ 

____________ 

____________ 

____________ 

Approved by me this 11th day of March 2025 

____________________________________ 
Daniel P. DiMaria, Village President 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 

Attested and Filed in my office this 
12th day of March 2025 

____________________________________ 
Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 
Village of Morton Grove 
Cook County, Illinois 



Village of Morton Grove,  Cook County, Ilinois
2025 Traffic Signal and Street Lighting Maintenance Program

Bid Tabulation

Bid Opening: February 27, 2025, 10:00 am

PAY 

ITEM
PAY ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST ITEM COST UNIT COST ITEM COST UNIT COST ITEM COST

1 Maintaining Street Light Equipment Unit-Mth 4450 $5.25 $23,362.50 $7.25 $32,262.50 $4.70 $20,915.00

2 Maintaining Traffic Control Signal Equipment Unit-Mth 48 $150.00 $7,200.00 $207.00 $9,936.00 $291.40 $13,987.20

3 Maintaining Flashing Traffic Control Signal Equipment Unit-Mth 12 $28.00 $336.00 $22.33 $267.96 $30.80 $369.60

4 Detector Loop, Type I Foot 300 $25.00 $7,500.00 $24.17 $7,251.00 $15.30 $4,590.00

Apparent Low Bidder: H&H Electric Company
Apparent Low Bid Amount:

Engineer's Estimate of Cost: $38,398.50
Difference: $1,463.30

$39,861.80

AS-READ PROPOSAL AMOUNT $49,717.46

2830 Commerce Street
Willowbrook, Illinois 60527

CORRECTED TOTAL PROPOSAL AMOUNT $38,398.50 $49,717.46

Engineer's Estimate Meade Inc.

625 Willowbrook Center Parkway
Franklin Park, Illinois 60131

H&H Electric Company

$39,861.80

$39,861.80

Exhibit "A"



   

 

Submitted by: Charles L Meyer, Village Administrator       

Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel   

Prepared by: Dennis Johnson, Deputy Police Chief 

Reviewed by Michael Weitzel, Chief of Police 

 

Legislative Summary 

 

Ordinance 25-28 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 6, ENTITLED “POLICE REGULATIONS”, 

CHAPTER 4, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE ENTITLED “ANIMAL CONTROL”  

Introduction: October 14, 2025 
 

 

Purpose: The Ordinance will amend Title 6, Chapter 4 of the Village Code entitled “Animal Control” to add 

several definitions, update the nuisance animal section, expand the prohibited species section, 

prohibit feeding wild animals, and grant the Village authority to require the removal of birdfeeders 

due to rodent activity. 

  

Background: From time to time, the Police Department reviews ordinances to ensure they remain current, 

effective, and supportive of community health and safety. A recent review of the Village’s Animal 

Control Ordinance identified several areas in need of improvement. 

 

The current ordinance does not define “wild animals,” which could allow residents to legally 

possess a variety of potentially dangerous species. The amended ordinance addresses this gap by 

expanding the list of prohibited species and establishing clear procedures for complaint handling 

and enforcement. 

 

The nuisance animals section was updated so the ordinance no longer conflicts with Cook County 

Managed Care of Feral Cats Ordinance as a result of community feedback. 

 

In addition, the ordinance introduces new provisions prohibiting ground feeding and authorizing 

the Village to require the removal of bird feeders that contribute to rodent activity. These 

measures will strengthen the Village’s ability to address and prevent rodent-related issues. 

 

If adopted, the Village and Police Department will proactively educate the community about these 

changes. The Police Department will also partner with Building Inspection and Services to ensure 

consistent and effective application of the ordinance. 

 

Departments 

Affected 

Village Administrator’s Office, Police Department, Building Inspection and Services. 

  

Fiscal Impact: No financial impact 
  

Source of Funds: N/A 
  

Workload 

Impact: 

The Police Department and Building Inspection and Services will enforce this Ordinance. Village 

staff will prosecute these cases before an administrative hearing officer.   

  

Administrator 

Recommendation 
Approval as presented 

  

Second Reading: November 12, 2025 

  

Special 

Requirements: 
None 

 



1  

ORDINANCE 25-28 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 6, ENTITLED “POLICE 

REGULATIONS” CHAPTER 4, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE ENTITLED “ANIMAL 

CONTROL” 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (the "Village"), located in Cook County, 

Illinois is a home rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the Constitution 

of the State of Illinois, and can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its 

government affairs, including but not limited to the power to tax and incur debt; and 

WHEREAS, the Village President and Board of Trustees are committed to protecting 

the health, safety and welfare of the Village and its residents by controlling the species of 

animals prohibited in the Village of Morton Grove; and 

WHEREAS, the Village President and Board of Trustees are committed to protecting 

the health, safety and welfare of the Village and its residents by prohibiting the feeding of 

wild animals; and 

WHEREAS, the Village President and Board of Trustees are committed to protecting 

the health, safety and welfare of the Village and its residents by requiring the removal of bird 

feeders that exacerbate rodent issues; and 

WHEREAS, the Village continuously reviews and, as it deems necessary, updates 

existing Municipal Codes to assure they are kept current and relevant; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Morton Grove believe it is in 

the best interest of the residents of the Village to amend the Municipal Code of the Village of 

Morton Grove to strengthen the animal control ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing 

WHEREAS clauses into this Ordinance as though fully set forth herein thereby making the 

findings as hereinabove set forth. 

SECTION 2: Title 6, entitled “Police Regulations”, Chapter 4 entitled “Animal 

Control,” Section 3 entitled “Definitions,” shall be amended to add the following definitions: 

 

 



2  

COMMUNITY CAT CAREGIVER/FERAL CAT CARETAKER: A person who 

provides care, including food, shelter or medical care to a community cat, while not 

being considered the owner, custodian, harborer, controller or keeper of a community 

cat or to have care or charge of a community cat. Caregivers/Caretakers must make 

every effort to minimize the impact on local wildlife and feed the proper quantity of 

food for the number of cats in appropriate containers, Caregivers/Caretakers may 

redeem community cats from the shelter without proof of ownership and are exempt 

from any charges and/or fees.  

FERAL CAT:  A cat that (i) is born in the wild or is the offspring of an owned or feral 

cat and is not socialized or (ii) is a formerly owned cat that has been abandoned and is 

no longer socialized, or (iii) lives on a farm. (510 ILCS 5/2.11b) 

WILD ANIMAL: Any species of mammal, reptile, amphibian, arachnid or fowl which 

is not naturally tame or gentle but is of a wild nature or disposition, and which, because 

it is carnivorous in its wild state, or is poisonous, or because of its size, physical 

makeup, vicious nature or other characteristics, would constitute a danger to human 

life, domestic animals or property, including, but not limited to, deer, racoon, squirrel, 

lion, tiger, leopard, ocelot, jaguar, cheetah, serval cat, margay, mountain lion, lynx, 

bobcat, jaguarundi and other wild cat of the family felidae (not including the species 

felis catus), hyena, bear, wolverine, badger, wolf, coyote, boar, alligator, crocodile, 

any poisonous or venomous biting or injecting species of amphibian, arachnid, or 

reptile or any life-threatening reptile. Any animal which is of a species listed 

specifically shall be considered a wild animal and any poisonous, venomous biting or 

injecting species of amphibian, arachnid or reptile or life-threatening reptile shall be 

considered a wild animal, and the provisions of this chapter regarding such wild 

animals shall apply. 

 SECTION 3: Title 6, entitled “Police Regulations”, Chapter 4 entitled “Animal Control,” 

Section 9 entitled “Nuisance Animals,” shall be amended to the following: 

1. No owner shall keep or harbor any animal in such a way that it creates a nuisance, such as 

disturbing the peace by loud noises at any time of the day or night, allowing the premises 

to become unsanitary or endangering neighbors or the general public. Examples of 

nuisance include, without limitation, animals which:  



3  

2. Are not properly controlled;  

3. Molest persons or vehicles by chasing, barking or biting;  

4. Attack other animals;  

5. Damage property other than the owner's;  

6. Bark, whine, howl or make other noises excessively;  

7. Create noxious or offensive odors;  

8. Are present at any location designated by signs to be a prohibited area.  

Animals creating a nuisance may be trapped when they cannot otherwise be humanely 

apprehended.  

2. Skunks, opossums, and raccoons found in the Village of Morton Grove are hereby declared 

to be a public nuisance. The Village may, from time to time, establish policies to assist 

residents to abate any such nuisance; however it shall always be the responsibility of the 

owner of any private property to remove any raccoon, opossum, or skunk or the nest of 

said animal from his property. The owner/person in possession of said property shall allow 

the animal control officer, any law enforcement officer, or other authorized Village 

representative to enter said property and inspect where skunks, raccoons, or their nests are 

suspected to be present for purposes of investigating the property, and to assist or direct 

the owner in removing said animal(s).  

3. The Village's sanitarian, the animal control officer, police officers and/or any organization 

or organizations, agent and employee of the Village of Morton Grove are hereby authorized 

and empowered to take all actions necessary to abate said nuisance and may, for the 

purpose of abating said nuisance, enter upon private property in an emergency, with the 

permission of the owner, agent of the owner, or lessor of the premises, or upon attaining a 

warrant issued by the Village's adjudication hearing officer or a court of competent 

jurisdiction. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-2011)  

4. Conduct by a feral cat that disturbs the peace creates a public nuisance.  Feral cats may 

create a nuisance by  (a) habitually or continually howling, crying or screaming, or (b) 

habitually and significantly destroying, desecrating or soiling property against the wishes 

of the owner of the property. (Cook County Ordinance Chapter 10 Article IV).  

1. Any agent or employee of the Village of Morton Grove may investigate an alleged 

violation of this section upon the receipt of two (2) sworn complaints in a form provided 



4  

by the Police Department, signed by two (2) unrelated Village residents living in 

separate dwellings within a 500 feet radius of the alleged violation. The affidavit shall 

specify the address or location of the alleged violation, the nature, time and date(s) of 

the act, the name and address of the owner or caretaker, if known, and a description of 

the cat, if known.  

2. In the event The Village finds that a feral cat has created a nuisance, The Village shall 

advise the Cook County Department of Animal and Rabies Control and the sponsor in 

writing of the nuisance.    

3. The Sponsor shall have the right to review the matter with The Village of Morton 

Grove. If the Sponsor is not able to satisfy the Village of Morton Grove that a nuisance 

is not occurring, the Sponsor shall have 30 days to comply with The Village’s direction 

with respect to correcting the nuisance. If the Sponsor fails to correct the nuisance, The 

Village shall have the right to remove the cat.  

 

SECTION 4: Title 6, entitled “Police Regulations”, Chapter 4 entitled “Animal 

Control,” Section 12 entitled “Prohibited Species,” shall be amended to the following: 

6-4-12 Prohibited Species 

A. It shall be unlawful for any person or entity to harbor or keep any wild animal, 

bees, fowl, or farm animals in the Village, except the provisions of this section 

shall not apply to any keeping of such animals in a bona fide licensed veterinary 

hospital for treatment, bona fide educational institution, museum, circus, 

carnival, zoo or other event for entertainment, which is authorized by the proper 

and responsible official or officers of the Village in accordance with all 

applicable laws and ordinances, and provided that proper bond and/or insurance 

has been posted in accordance with Village ordinances, all federal, state, county 

and local permits and licenses have been procured and the applicant thereunder 

is in compliance with all federal, state, county and local rules, regulations, laws 

and ordinances. It shall not be a defense to a violation of this section that the 

person or entity violating said section has attempted to, or has in fact, 

domesticated the wild animal, bees, fowl, or farm animals.  

  



5  

B. Upon the complaint of any person that a person, firm or corporation procured, 

owns, possesses or harbors a wild animal, bees, fowl or farm animals on premises 

in the Village, the chief of police or building official shall forthwith cause the 

matter to be investigated, and if after investigation the facts indicate that such 

person, named in the complaint, is in fact the owner or is keeping or harboring 

any such wild animal, bees, fowl, or farm animals in the Village, the chief of 

police or building official shall forthwith send written notice to such person, 

requiring such person to safely remove said wild animal, bees, fowl, or farm 

animals from the Village within ten days of the date of said notice. Notice as 

herein provided shall not be required where such wild animal, bees, fowl, or farm 

animals has previously caused serious physical harm or death to any person, or 

has escaped and is at large, in which case the chief of police or building official 

shall cause said wild animal,  bees, fowl, or farm animals to be immediately 

seized and impounded, according to the provisions  of this chapter, or killed, if 

seizure and impoundment are not possible without risk of serious physical harm 

or death to any person, domestic animal or property.  

 

C. The chief of police or building official shall forthwith cause to be seized and 

impounded any wild animal, bees, fowl, or farm animals where the person 

owning, keeping or harboring such animal has failed to comply with the notice 

sent pursuant to this chapter. Any Building Inspection and Services Official, 

Animal Control Officer, or any police officer of the Village shall have the 

authority to enforce the provisions of this section, including, but not limited to, 

taking possession of any wild animal, bees, fowl, or farm animals the officer or 

official reasonably believes is being kept, possessed or harbored in violation of 

this chapter. If the person in possession refuses to relinquish possession of the 

wild animal, bees, fowl, or farm animals the officer or official shall so notify the 

chief of police or building official, and the chief of police or building official 

shall obtain an appropriate court order, with the assistance of the Village 

attorney, to obtain possession. This section shall not be interpreted to authorize 

or attempt to authorize entry into places not open to the public, without either the 



6  

consent of the owner or person in possession of a warrant or other court order. 

Upon seizure and impoundment, said animal shall be delivered to a place of 

confinement for safekeeping with a qualified zoological park, humane society, 

veterinary hospital or animal refuge, authorized by law to accept, own, keep or 

harbor such wild animals, bees, fowl, or farm animals.  

 

D. Any person, firm or corporation violating any provision of this section  shall, in 

addition to any fine, penalty or equitable relief granted against it, forfeit the wild 

animal, bees, fowl, or farm animals to the Village for permanent disposition to a 

zoological or animal refuge authorized by law to accept, keep or harbor such 

animals, if reasonably possible, or, if not, for destruction of said wild animal, 

bees, fowl, or farm animals   

 

 

SECTION 5: Title 6, entitled “Police Regulations,” Chapter 4 entitled “Animal 

Control,” Section 15 entitled “Permit Required,” shall be amended to add the following 

subsection: 

5. Feral Cats Exempt - Ear-tip removing of approximately a quarter inch off the tip of the 

cat's left ear in a straight-line cut, is the universal sign of a sterilized, unowned cat. If 

these requirements are met, the ear-tipped cat is exempt from permit requirements, tag,  

stray, and at-large provisions of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION 6: Title 6, entitled “Police Regulations,” Chapter 4 entitled “Animal 

Control,” Section 16 entitled “Penalty,” shall be amended to the following: 

6-4-16: FEEDING WILDLIFE AND BIRDS: 

A. No person under any circumstances may provide feed for wild animals to 

consume except as authorized under subsection B.   

B. Ground feeding of birds is prohibited. Certain bird feeders are allowed for use 

and in moderation as long as all feed is placed in a feeder designed for the specific 

purpose of feeding birds. Any accumulation of feed spilled onto the ground or 

surfaces from hanging feeders shall be removed by the person or property owner 

daily to reduce the attractant for wild animals.  



7  

C. Bird feeders shall be set back five feet (5’) from dwelling units, accessory 

structures, lawn furniture, shrubs and trees. 

D. If there is rodent activity at the residence that is providing the feed or any adjacent 

property, the Village has the right to require removal of the feeders until the 

activity has ceased. 

 

SECTION 7: Title 6, entitled “Police Regulations,” Chapter 4 entitled “Animal 

Control,” shall be amended to add the following section: 

6-4-17: PENALTY 

Except as specifically specified otherwise in this chapter, any person violating or 

aiding in or abetting the violation of any provision of this chapter or counterfeiting or 

forging any certificate, permit or tag, or making misrepresentation in regard to any 

matter prescribed by this chapter, or resisting, obstructing, or impeding the animal 

control officer or any authorized officer in enforcing this chapter, or refusing to 

produce any animal for inoculation or who removes a tag from an animal for purposes 

of destroying or concealing its identity, shall be fined in accordance with title 1, 

chapter 4 of this code. Each day a violation continues shall be deemed a separate 

violation. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-2011) 

 

SECTION 8: All ordinances and resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with the 

provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of the conflict, expressly repealed on the 

effective date of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 9: The terms and conditions of this ordinance shall be severable and if any 

section, term, provision, or condition is found to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason 

by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining sections, terms, provisions, and conditions 

shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

SECTION 10: Except as to code amendments set forth in this ordinance, all chapters 

and sections of the Morton Grove Village Code shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-16:_PENALTY


8  

SECTION 11: This Ordinance shall take effect upon the adoption of this Ordinance.  

 

 

Passed this 12th day of November 2025.  

 

Trustee Khan  ______________  

Trustee Minx  ______________   

Trustee Shiba  ______________   

Trustee Thill  ______________   

Trustee Travis  ______________   

Trustee White  ______________   

 

 

 

 

Approved by me this 12th day of November 2025.  

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Janine Witko, Village President 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

 

 

 

 

Attested and Filed in my office  

this 13th day of November 2025. 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

 



 
Chapter 6-4 ANIMAL CONTROL 

6-4-1: PURPOSE 
6-4-2: CONSTRUCTION 
6-4-3: DEFINITIONS 
6-4-4: ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER 
6-4-5: OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES 
6-4-6: CRUELTY TO ANIMALS 
6-4-7: DANGEROUS ANIMALS 
6-4-8: VICIOUS ANIMALS 
6-4-9: NUISANCE ANIMALS 
6-4-10: STRAY ANIMALS 
6-4-11: DISEASED ANIMALS 
6-4-12: PROHIBITED SPECIES 
6-4-13: PREMISES PROHIBITED TO ANIMALS 
6-4-14: RABIES CONTROL REGULATIONS 
6-4-15: PERMIT REQUIRED 
6-4-16: FEEDING WILDLIFE AND BIRDS 

6-4-17: PENALTY 
 

6-4-1: PURPOSE 

The purpose of this chapter is to: 

1. Protect animals from abuse, neglect and rabies; 

2. Protect residents from annoyance, intimidation, injury and rabies by animals; 

3. Establish the community's method of response to residents regarding situations 
involving animals; 

4. Develop a program designed to encourage responsible pet ownership; 

5. Assist the community's animal control program through the payment of fees and the 
enforcement of animal violations; 

6. Promote a harmonious relationship between man and animal; and 

7. Protect the safety and general welfare of the public. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-2011) 

6-4-2: CONSTRUCTION 

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=Chapter_6-4_ANIMAL_CONTROL
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=Chapter_6-4_ANIMAL_CONTROL
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-1:_PURPOSE
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-2:_CONSTRUCTION
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-3:_DEFINITIONS
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-4:_ANIMAL_CONTROL_OFFICER
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-5:_OWNER_RESPONSIBILITIES
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-6:_CRUELTY_TO_ANIMALS
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-7:_DANGEROUS_ANIMALS
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-8:_VICIOUS_ANIMALS
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-9:_NUISANCE_ANIMALS
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-10:_STRAY_ANIMALS
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-11:_DISEASED_ANIMALS
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-12:_PROHIBITED_SPECIES
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-13:_PREMISES_PROHIBITED_TO_ANIMALS
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-14:_RABIES_CONTROL_REGULATIONS
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-15:_PERMIT_REQUIRED
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-16:_PENALTY
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-1:_PURPOSE
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-2:_CONSTRUCTION


1. This chapter shall be liberally construed to the end that all animals are treated 
humanely and the safety and welfare of the people of the Village of Morton Grove 
shall be protected. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to supersede the 
Illinois animal control act, 510 Illinois Compiled Statutes 5/1 et seq., the Illinois 
humane care for animal act, 510 Illinois Compiled Statutes 70/1 et seq., or any state 
of Illinois or Cook County regulation dealing with the care or regulation of animals, 
unless a provision of this chapter is in conflict with same, in which case the 
provision of this chapter shall be controlling to the extent allowed by the Illinois 
constitution. To the extent allowed by law, enforcement of this chapter, and any 
state of Illinois or Cook County law, ordinance, or regulation dealing with the care or 
regulation of animals shall be concurrent. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-2011) 

6-4-3: DEFINITIONS 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a 
different meaning: 

ANIMAL: Any living creature other than a man which may be affected by rabies. 

ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER: Any person or persons designated by the chief of police to 
perform the duties set forth in this chapter. 

CAT: Any member of the feline family (i.e., Felis domesticus). 

CERTIFIED APPLIED BEHAVIORIST: An individual certified by the Animal Behavior Society 
Of North America, the American College Of Veterinary Behaviorist, or by an agency or 
organization approved by the chief of police as having met the minimum standards of 
education, experience and ethics to give professional advice about animal behavior in 
general or about behavioral problems of a particular animal. 

COMMUNITY CAT CAREGIVER/FERAL CAT CARETAKER: A person who provides care, 
including food, shelter or medical care to a community cat, while not being considered the 
owner, custodian, harborer, controller or keeper of a community cat or to have care or 
charge of a community cat. Caregivers/Caretakers must make every effort to minimize the 
impact on local wildlife and feed the proper quantity of food for the number of cats in 
appropriate containers, Caregivers/Caretakers may redeem community cats from the 
shelter without proof of ownership and are exempt from any charges and/or fees. 

CONFINED: Restriction of an animal at all times by the owner, or his agent, to an escape 
proof building, house, or other enclosure away from other animals and the public. 

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-3:_DEFINITIONS


DANGEROUS ANIMAL: Any animal determined pursuant to this chapter to have bitten or 
attacked a person or a domestic animal without justification or to pose a serious threat or 
reasonable fear of physical injury to a person or another animal, or has been used primarily 
or in part for the purpose of fighting, or was trained for fighting. Any such dangerous animal 
is hereby declared a public nuisance. 

DOG: Any member of the canine family (i.e., Canis familiaris). 

DOMESTIC ANIMALS: Animals commonly considered as house pets, including, but not 
limited to, cats (Felis catus), dogs (Canis familiaris), and ferrets excluding feral cats. 

ENCLOSURE: A fence or structure of at least six feet (6') in height, forming or causing an 
enclosure suitable to prevent the entry of young children, and suitable to confine the 
animal. The enclosure shall be securely enclosed and locked and designed with secure 
sides, top, and bottom and shall be designed to prevent the animal from escaping from the 
enclosure. If the enclosure is a room within a residence, it cannot have direct ingress from 
or egress to the outdoors unless it leads directly to an enclosed pen and the door must be 
locked. A dangerous or vicious animal may be allowed to move about freely within the 
interior of the entire residence if it is muzzled at all times. 

FARM ANIMALS: Includes, but is not limited to, cows, sheep, pigs and goats. 

FERAL CAT:  A cat that (i) is born in the wild or is the offspring of an owned or feral cat and is 
not socialized or (ii) is a formerly owned cat that has been abandoned and is no longer 
socialized, or (iii) lives on a farm. (510 ILCS 5/2.11b) 

FOWL: Includes, but is not limited to, chickens, turkeys, geese and ducks. 

GUIDE DOG: A dog that is trained by a recognized organization to assist a legally blind 
person. 

HAS BEEN BITTEN: Has been seized, nipped or gripped with the teeth or jaws or scratched 
by the teeth or nails or wounded or pierced, and includes contact of saliva with any break 
or abrasion of skin. 

IMPOUNDED: Taken into the custody of a Cook County public animal control facility or a 
facility designated for impounding by the animal control officer. 

KEEPER: Any person, firm or corporation in possession of an animal for any period of time. 

MICROCHIP: For the purpose of this chapter, to implant an EAID (electronic animal 
identification device) in an animal. 



OWNER: Any person, firm or corporation having the right of property of an animal, or who 
keeps or harbors an animal, or who has in his care or acts as its custodian or who 
knowingly permits an animal to remain on or about any premises occupied or owned by 
him/her within the Village of Morton Grove. 

PROPERLY CONTROLLED: On the enclosed premises of its owner or on a leash and under 
the control of a responsible person. 

RABIES INOCULATION: The injection of an antirabies vaccine approved by the Illinois 
department of agriculture. 

RABIES INSPECTOR: A licensed veterinarian appointed by the board of commissioners of 
Cook County, pursuant to the rabies control act of the state of Illinois. 

SERIOUS PHYSICAL INJURY: A physical injury that creates a substantial risk of death or that 
causes death, serious disfigurement, protracted impairment of health, impairment of the 
function of any bodily organ, or plastic surgery. 

SERVICE ANIMAL: Guide dogs and animals that have been trained and certified by a 
recognized organization to assist the blind, hearing impaired, or the physically 
handicapped. 

STRAY ANIMAL: Any domestic animal other than a cat that is not properly controlled or 
found running at large. 

STRAY CAT: A cat not properly controlled or not in its owner's possession and does not have 
either a microchip or collar and tag. 

VICIOUS ANIMAL: An animal that, without provocation or justification, has bitten or has 
attacked a person or domestic animal and causes serious physical injury; or an animal that 
has been determined to be a dangerous animal on two (2) or more separate occasions. Any 
such vicious animal is hereby declared a public nuisance. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-2011) 

WILD ANIMAL: Any species of mammal, reptile, amphibian, arachnid or fowl which is not 
naturally tame or gentle but is of a wild nature or disposition, and which, because it is 
carnivorous in its wild state, or is poisonous, or because of its size, physical makeup, 
vicious nature or other characteristics, would constitute a danger to human life, domestic 
animals or property, including, but not limited to, deer, racoon, squirrel, lion, tiger, leopard, 
ocelot, jaguar, cheetah, serval cat, margay, mountain lion, lynx, bobcat, jaguarundi and 
other wild cat of the family felidae (not including the species felis catus), hyena, bear, 
wolverine, badger, wolf, coyote, boar, alligator, crocodile, any poisonous or venomous 
biting or injecting species of amphibian, arachnid, or reptile or any life-threatening reptile. 
Any animal which is of a species listed specifically shall be considered a wild animal and 



any poisonous, venomous biting or injecting species of amphibian, arachnid or reptile or 
life-threatening reptile shall be considered a wild animal, and the provisions of this chapter 
regarding such wild animals shall apply.  

6-4-4: ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER 

1. The chief of police shall be responsible for the administration of this chapter, and 
may delegate the authority to administer and enforce this chapter to one or more 
persons and may designate such persons as animal control officers. 

2. An animal control officer, any officer of the law, or any authorized Village 
representative may enter upon private premises in order to enforce the provisions of 
this chapter, to make inspections or investigations, or apprehend a stray animal, a 
dangerous animal, a vicious animal, or an animal thought to be infected with rabies 
in the following circumstances: 

1. In an emergency; 

2. With the permission of the owner, lessor, or agent of the owner or lessor of 
the premises; or 

3. Upon attaining a warrant issued by the Village's adjudication hearing officer 
or a court of competent jurisdiction. 

3. It is unlawful for any person to impede or interfere or refuse to cooperate with an 
animal control officer, an officer of the law, or an authorized Village representative's 
enforcement of this chapter, or to refuse to allow such person to enter upon a 
private premises in order to enforce the provisions of this chapter, to make 
inspections or investigations, or apprehend a stray animal, a dangerous animal, a 
vicious animal, or an animal thought to be infected with rabies. 

4. An animal control officer, an officer of the law, or an authorized Village 
representative shall not be held responsible for any injury or damage which may 
occur while in the pursuit of any dog or other animal, or otherwise when enforcing 
the provisions of this chapter. 

5. A police officer is authorized to kill any animal when he or she reasonably believes 
such action is necessary for the protection of any person or animal. (Ord. 11-19, 6-
13-2011) 

6-4-5: OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. Removal Of Excreta: No animal owner shall allow feces to accumulate on any 
premises or property including the owner's property to the point it becomes 

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-4:_ANIMAL_CONTROL_OFFICER
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-5:_OWNER_RESPONSIBILITIES


offensive to others in the area. An owner shall immediately remove and dispose of 
any excreta from his/her animal left on the property of another, and when 
accompanying the animal off of the owner's property, an owner shall have on his 
person suitable means for removal of his/her animal's excreta and shall 
immediately remove and dispose of any feces left by the animal. Horses using bridle 
paths shall be considered an exception to this section. 

2. Number Of Animals Per Premises: No owner or person shall keep more than seven 
(7) animals over six (6) months of age on any premises, and not more than three (3) 
of such animals may be dogs, cats, or ferrets of the same species. This section shall 
not apply to persons who are licensed to operate animal hospitals or kennels. 

3. Crossing Property Lines Prohibited: No owner of an animal shall allow his/her 
animal to cross his or her property line, including, but not limited to, reaching over, 
under, or through a fence, or to keep or allow such animal to be on an unfenced 
portion of the owner's property, unless the animal is properly controlled. No animal 
shall be allowed on the premises of another without that person's permission. This 
section shall not apply to guide dogs, service animals or any animal being used for 
law enforcement work. 

4. Wild Animals; Possession Restriction: No person other than a licensed rehabilitator 
or a person licensed or authorized by Illinois law to care for and/or protect injured or 
wild animals, shall keep or permit to be kept any wild animal on any premises 
except as part of a performing animal exhibition or circus which is in full compliance 
with all applicable laws and regulations. 

5. Liability: The owner of any animal that has bitten, attacks, damages or injures any 
person, the property of any person, any publicly owned property, or another animal 
without justification shall be liable for all injuries and damages sustained by such 
person or the owner of the injured animal. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-2011) 

6-4-6: CRUELTY TO ANIMALS 

1. Responsible Animal Care: Every owner shall ensure that their animals have 
adequate wholesome food and water; proper protection from the elements; proper 
care and/or attention to prevent undue suffering or discomfort; and veterinary care, 
when necessary, to prevent any suffering or discomfort. 

2. Abuse Of Animals: No person shall beat, torment, overload, overwork or otherwise 
abuse an animal. 

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-6:_CRUELTY_TO_ANIMALS


3. Abandonment: No person may abandon any animal, which includes, without 
limitation, the releasing of any animal, or failure to take possession, control, or 
responsibility for any animal where it may become a public charge or may suffer 
injury, hunger or exposure. Any animal determined to have been abandoned may be 
immediately transferred to an approved animal facility for humane euthanasia or 
adoption. The owner of the abandoned animal shall pay a public safety fee as set 
forth in Title 1, Chapter 11 of this Code unless waived by the Chief of Police. (Ord. 
20-12, 6-22-2020) 

4. Giving Away Prizes: No person shall give away any live animal, fish, reptile or bird as 
a prize for, or as an inducement to enter, any contest, game, or other competition, or 
as an inducement to enter a place of amusement; or offer such as an incentive to 
enter into any business agreement whereby the offer was for the purpose of 
attracting trade. 

5. Chicks Or Ducks: No person may sell, offer for sale, barter or give away as a pet or a 
novelty any baby chick, duckling or other fowl. 

6. Poison: No person may knowingly poison or cause to be poisoned any animal other 
than rats and mice, using approved poisons. 

7. Killing, Injuring Birds: No unauthorized person shall kill or wound, attempt to kill or 
wound, or take the eggs or young of any fowl. 

8. Negligence: No person shall act negligently with respect to any animal nor shall 
they: 

1. Permit or cause an unjustifiable risk to the well being of any type of wild or 
domestic animal. 

2. Permit or cause circumstances to exist that may result in any animal 
escaping from an owner's premises by way of improper fences or other types 
of containment. 

3. Use leashes or collars that are not fitted properly, or any type of line that 
could injure or kill any animal. 

9. Killing, Injuring An Animal: No unauthorized person shall kill, or attempt to kill, or 
wound any animal, or remove the young of any wild animal from its mother.  

10. Accidents; Rendering Aid: Any person who, as the operator of a motor vehicle, 
strikes a domestic animal shall stop at once and render such assistance as may be 



possible and shall immediately report such injury or death to the police department, 
and to the animal's owner, if the owner can be ascertained. 

11. Fight: No person shall cause, instigate or permit, promote, stage, hold, manage, 
conduct or carry on any dog or cock fight, or other combat between animals or 
between animals and humans. 

12. Confinement In A Motor Vehicle: No person shall confine any animal in a motor 
vehicle in such a manner that places it in a life or health threatening situation by 
exposure to a prolonged period of extreme heat or cold, without proper ventilation 
or other protection from such heat or cold. In order to protect the health and safety 
of an animal, an animal control officer or a law enforcement officer who has 
probable cause to believe that this subsection is being violated shall have the 
authority to enter into such motor vehicle by any reasonable means after making a 
reasonable effort to locate the responsible person. 

13. Penalty: Any person violating any of the provisions of this section shall be fined in 
accordance with title 1, chapter 4 of this code. 
 
(Ord 15-20; 11-8-15) 

6-4-7: DANGEROUS ANIMALS 

1. The chief of police or his designee may, after conducting an investigation, declare 
an animal to be a dangerous animal. Prior to said declaration, the Village shall notify 
the owner of the animal of the investigation and afford the owner an opportunity to 
answer allegations or submit information to the chief of police or his designee 
within seven (7) days of the mailing of the notification. If the owner has not 
registered his animal with the Village, or the animal is not wearing identification, and 
the owner is unknown or cannot be located, the notification provision of this section 
is waived. If the owner is unknown or cannot be located, the animal may be 
immediately impounded. If the owner's address is known, but the owner cannot be 
located, the notice shall be posted on the owner's property or sent by certified mail 
to the owner's last known address. During the pendency of the investigation and any 
subsequent hearing or appeal, the animal shall not be sold, given away or relocated 
without the written approval of the chief of police, and if necessary for the 
protection of the public, the chief of police or his designee may require the animal 
be confined at a location specified by the chief of police or his designee. 

2. The following information may be considered as part of any investigation conducted 
pursuant to this section: 

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-7:_DANGEROUS_ANIMALS


1. Any testimony, documentation, or information regarding any pending or prior 
complaints, citations, or arrests regarding the animal. 

2. Any medical or veterinary evidence regarding the animal. 

3. At the request of and upon the advance payment by the owner, a written 
evaluation of the animal by a certified applied behaviorist, a board certified 
veterinary behaviorist, or another recognized expert selected by the chief of 
police. 

4. If the animal is a dog, evidence of the propensities of the breed of the dog 
may be probative, but shall not be the sole basis of a determination that the 
animal is a dangerous animal. 

3. No animal shall be deemed a dangerous animal without clear and convincing 
evidence that the animal meets the definition of a "dangerous animal" as set forth in 
this chapter. 

4. An animal shall not be determined to be dangerous if the chief of police finds the 
conduct or alleged conduct of the animal was justified because: 

1. The attack or alleged attack by the animal was directed at a person or animal 
who at the time was committing a crime or offense upon the owner or 
custodian of the animal or was committing a willful trespass or other tort 
upon the premises or property occupied by the owner of the animal. 

2. The attack or alleged attack by the animal was directed at an animal or 
person who at the time was abusing, tormenting, assaulting, or physically 
threatening the animal or its offspring. 

3. The animal was responding to pain or injury or was protecting itself, its 
owner, custodian, or a member of its household, kennel, or offspring. 
 
Testimony of a certified applied behaviorist, a board certified veterinary 
behaviorist, or another recognized expert may be relevant to the 
determination of whether the animal's behavior was justified pursuant to the 
provisions of this chapter. 

5. Guide dogs and service animals and sentry, guard, or police owned animals are 
exempt from this section; provided, an attack or injury to a person occurs while the 
animal is performing duties as expected. To qualify for exemption under this 
chapter, such animal shall be currently inoculated against rabies in accordance 
with this chapter. 



6. Any determination that an animal is a dangerous animal shall be made in writing 
setting forth the basis for said determination. The report shall be sent to the last 
known address of the owner of the animal within five (5) business days after it is 
issued by registered or certified mail and shall include an explanation of the appeal 
process set forth in subsection K of this section. 

7. If the chief of police or his designee declares an animal to be a dangerous animal, 
the animal's owner shall pay a public safety fee as set forth in Title 1, Chapter 11 of 
this Code and shall comply with any or all of the following conditions which the 
chief of police or his designee deems appropriate under the circumstances:  

1. Require the animal be confined in a secure yard, enclosure, or on a leash 
controlled by the owner, or the owner's agent, at all times. 

2. Require the animal to be spayed or neutered at the owner's expense.  

3. Require a microchip to be implanted in the skin of the animal by a licensed 
veterinarian. The microchip shall identify the owner of the animal by name, 
address and telephone number. The cost of the microchip and the procedure 
to implant the microchip shall be borne by the owner of the dangerous 
animal. 

4. Require a sign stating "Warning - Dangerous Animal - Keep Away" be posted 
in a prominent place at any premises where the dangerous animal is kept or 
confined. The sign shall be legible from the public streets or thoroughfares 
upon which the owner's property adjoins. The owner shall also display a sign 
with a symbol warning children of the presence of a dangerous animal. Exact 
or similar signs shall be posted on the animal's kennel, pen or enclosed 
structure. The cost of the signage shall be borne by the owner of the 
dangerous animal. 

5. Require the animal be evaluated at the owner's expense by a certified 
applied behaviorist, a board certified veterinary behaviorist, or another 
recognized expert selected by the chief of police and/or completion of 
training or other treatment as deemed appropriate by such an expert. The 
owner of the animal shall be responsible for all costs associated with 
evaluations and training ordered under this subsection. 

6. Require the animal be directly supervised by an adult eighteen (18) years of 
age or older whenever the animal is off the property of its owner.  



7. Require the animal to be muzzled whenever it is off the property of its owner 
in a manner that will prevent it from biting any person or animal, but that 
shall not injure the animal or interfere with its vision or respiration. 

(Ord. 20-12, 6-22-2020) 

8. The owner of an animal found to be a dangerous animal must carry full liability 
insurance for any damage, injury, or death caused by the animal in an amount not 
less than the amount of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00). Upon the 
declaration that an animal is dangerous, the owner of the animal must provide proof 
to the Village administrator or his designee that the owner possesses the required 
insurance. Anytime thereafter, upon request of the Village, the owner shall be 
required to present proof that the owner is maintaining said insurance. 

9. No owner or person shall knowingly or recklessly permit any dangerous animal to be 
at large within the Village unless properly controlled. The owner of a dangerous 
animal shall notify the Village's police department immediately upon learning the 
dangerous animal is unconfined or on the loose, or if the animal has attacked a 
human being or domestic animal. 

10. In addition to any other penalties imposed on its owner, a dangerous animal may be 
impounded by written order of the chief of police or his designee, if the owner fails 
to comply with any requirements of this chapter. The animal's owner shall be 
responsible for all costs related to or incurred as a result of said impoundment. 

11. Within fourteen (14) days after the animal has been determined to be dangerous 
pursuant to this chapter, its owner may appeal this decision to the Village's 
administrative adjudication hearing officer by filing a written request for a hearing on 
a determination with the Village administrator. In the event the owner fails to file a 
written request for a hearing within the requisite fourteen (14) day period, or fails to 
appear at a scheduled hearing, the owner will be deemed to have waived the right to 
a hearing, and the animal shall be deemed dangerous. All hearings before the 
Village's administrative adjudication hearing officer shall be conducted pursuant to 
sections 3-3A-5 through 3-3A-7 of this code. After hearing all relevant evidence, the 
court shall affirm the determination of the chief of police if the hearing officer finds 
the animal meets the definition of a "dangerous animal" as set forth in this chapter. 
The hearing officer's decision may be appealed pursuant to section 3-3A-11 of this 
code. At all times during any appeal process, the owner shall comply with the 
requirements set forth by the chief of police, and pay all costs related to or incurred 
as a result of any impoundment. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-2011) 



6-4-8: VICIOUS ANIMALS 

1. The chief of police or his designee may, after conducting an investigation, declare 
an animal to be a vicious animal. Prior to said declaration, the Village shall notify the 
owner of the animal of the investigation and afford the owner an opportunity to 
answer allegations or submit information to the chief of police or his designee 
within seven (7) days of the mailing of the notification. If the owner has not 
registered his animal with the Village, or the animal is not wearing identification and 
the owner is unknown or cannot be located, the notification provision of this section 
is waived. If the owner is unknown or cannot be located, the animal may be 
immediately impounded. If the owner's address is known, but the owner cannot be 
located, the notice shall be posted on the owner's property or sent by certified mail 
to the owner's last known address. During the pendency of the investigation and any 
subsequent hearing or appeal, the animal shall not be sold, given away or relocated 
without the written approval of the chief of police, and if necessary for the 
protection of the public, the chief of police or his designee may require the animal 
be confined at a location specified by the chief of police or his designee. 

2. The following information may be considered as part of any investigation conducted 
pursuant to this section: 

1. Any testimony, documentation, or information regarding any pending or prior 
complaints, citations, or arrests regarding the animal. 

2. Any medical or veterinary evidence regarding the animal. 

3. Evaluation of the animal by a certified applied behaviorist, a board certified 
veterinary behaviorist, or another recognized expert selected by the chief of 
police. Should the owner of the animal request such an evaluation, the cost 
of said evaluation shall be paid in advance by the owner. 

4. If the animal is a dog, evidence of the propensities of the breed of the dog 
may be probative, but shall not be the sole basis of a determination that the 
animal is a vicious animal. 

3. No animal shall be deemed a vicious animal without clear and convincing evidence 
the animal meets the definition of a "vicious animal" as set forth in this chapter.  

4. An animal shall not be declared vicious if the chief of police or his designee finds 
the conduct or alleged conduct of the animal was justified because: 

1. The attack or alleged attack by the animal was directed at a person or animal 
who at the time was committing a crime or offense upon the owner or 

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-8:_VICIOUS_ANIMALS


custodian of the animal or was committing a wilful trespass or other tort 
upon the premises or property occupied by the owner of the animal.  

2. The attack or alleged attack by the animal was directed at an animal or 
person who at the time was abusing, tormenting, assaulting, or physically 
threatening the animal or its offspring. 

3. The animal was responding to pain or injury or was protecting itself, its 
owner, custodian, or a member of its household, kennel, or offspring. 
 
Testimony of a certified applied behaviorist, a board certified veterinary 
behaviorist, or another recognized expert may be relevant to the 
determination of whether the animal's behavior was justified pursuant to the 
provisions of this chapter. 

5. A guide dog, service animal, sentry, guard, or animal used for law enforcement 
purposes are exempt from this section; provided, an attack or injury to a person 
occurs while the animal is performing duties as expected. To qualify for exemption 
under this chapter, such animal shall be currently inoculated against rabies in 
accordance with this chapter. 

6. Any determination an animal is a vicious animal shall be made in writing setting 
forth the basis for said determination. The report shall be sent to the last known 
address of the owner of the animal within five (5) business days after it is issued by 
registered or certified mail and shall include an explanation of the appeal process 
set forth in subsection I of this section. 

7. If the chief of police or his designee declares an animal to be a vicious animal, the 
animal's owner shall pay a public safety fee as set forth in Title 1, Chapter 11 of this 
Code and shall confine the vicious animal in an enclosure approved by the chief of 
police or his designee. The only times a vicious animal may be allowed out of the 
enclosure are: 

1. If it is necessary for the owner or keeper to obtain veterinary care for the 
animal. 

2. In the case of an emergency or natural disaster where the animal's life is 
threatened. 

3. To comply with the order of a court of competent jurisdiction, and in such 
events the animal shall be securely muzzled and restrained with a leash not 



to exceed six feet (6') in length, and shall be under the direct control and 
supervision of the owner or keeper of the animal. 

Any vicious animal which is not confined to an enclosure shall be immediately impounded 
at the owner's expense. If the owner of the animal has not appealed the impoundment 
within seven (7) days after the impoundment order has been issued, the animal may be 
euthanized at the owner's expense, pursuant to the Illinois Humane Euthanasia In Animal 
Shelters Act. (510 ILCS 72) 
 
(Ord. 20-12, 6-22-2020) 

8. If the chief of police or his designee declares an animal to be a vicious animal, the 
animal's owner shall comply with any or all of the following conditions which the 
chief of police or his designee deems appropriate under the circumstances:  

1. Require the animal be impounded. 

2. Require the animal be euthanized pursuant to the Illinois humane euthanasia 
in animal shelters act. 

3. Require the animal to be spayed or neutered at the owner's expense.  

4. Require a microchip be implanted under the skin of the animal by a licensed 
veterinarian. The microchip shall identify the owner of the animal by name, 
address and telephone number. The cost of the microchip and the procedure 
to implant the microchip shall be borne by the owner of the vicious animal. 

5. Require a warning sign stating "Warning - Vicious Animal - Keep Away" be 
posted in a prominent place at any premises where the vicious animal is 
confined. The sign shall be legible from the public street or thoroughfare 
upon which the owner's property adjoins. The owner shall also display a sign 
with a symbol warning children of the presence of a vicious animal. Exact or 
similar signs shall be posted on the animal's kennel, pen or enclosed 
structure. The cost of the signage shall be borne by the owner of the vicious 
animal. 

6. Require the animal be evaluated at the owner's expense by a certified 
applied behaviorist, a board certified veterinary behaviorist, or another 
recognized expert selected by the chief of police and/or completion of 
training or other treatment as deemed appropriate by such an expert. The 
owner of the animal shall be responsible for all costs associated with 
evaluations and training ordered under this subsection. 



9. Within seven (7) days after the chief of police or his designee has determined the 
animal to be a vicious animal or has imposed any condition pursuant to subsection 
H of this section or has ordered the animal's impoundment, its owner may appeal 
this determination or any such condition or order of impoundment to the Village's 
administrative adjudication hearing officer by filing a written request for a hearing 
with the Village administrator or his designee. 

1. In the event the owner fails to file a written request for a hearing within the 
requisite seven (7) day period, or fails to appear at a scheduled hearing, the 
owner will be deemed to have waived the right to a hearing. 

2. All hearings before the Village's administrative adjudication hearing officer 
shall be conducted pursuant to sections 3-3A-5 through 3-3A-7 of this code. 

3. Upon filing of a notice of appeal, any order of euthanasia shall be 
automatically stayed pending the outcome of all appeals so long as the 
owner has given notification in writing of the appeal to the chief of police or 
his designee. 

4. After hearing all relevant evidence, the Village's administrative adjudication 
hearing officer shall affirm the determination of the chief of police or his 
designee if the hearing officer finds the animal meets the definition of a 
"vicious animal" as set forth in this chapter, and shall affirm any 
impoundment ordered and/or condition imposed by the chief of police or his 
designee so long as there is a reasonable basis for the impoundment and/or 
condition. 

5. The hearing officer's decision may be appealed pursuant to section 3-3A-11 
of this code. 

6. At all times during any appeal process, the owner shall comply with the 
requirements set forth by the chief of police or his designee, and pay all 
applicable impoundment fees. 

10. The owner of a vicious animal shall notify the chief of police immediately upon 
learning the vicious animal is unconfined or on the loose, or if the animal has 
attacked a human being or domestic animal. 

11. No owner or keeper of a vicious animal shall sell or give away the animal without the 
written approval from the chief of police or his designee. Whenever an owner of a 
vicious animal relocates, he or she shall notify both the chief of police of the Village 



of Morton Grove and the administrator of county animal control where he or she has 
relocated. 

12. The owner of an animal found to be a vicious animal must carry full liability 
insurance for any damage, injury, or death caused by the animal in an amount not 
less than two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.00). Upon a declaration an 
animal is vicious, the owner of the animal must provide proof to the Village 
administrator the owner possesses the required insurance. Anytime thereafter, 
upon request of the Village, the owner shall be required to present proof the owner 
is maintaining said insurance. 

13. In addition to any other penalties, if an owner fails to comply with the requirements 
set forth in subsections G through L of this section, the animal shall be immediately 
impounded and the owner shall pay an additional fine in accordance with title 1, 
chapter 4 of this code plus any impoundment or related fees. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-
2011) 

6-4-9: NUISANCE ANIMALS 

1. No owner shall keep or harbor any animal in such a way that it creates a nuisance, 
such as disturbing the peace by loud noises at any time of the day or night, allowing 
the premises to become unsanitary or endangering neighbors or the general public. 
Examples of nuisance include, without limitation, animals which: 

1. Are not properly controlled; 

2. Molest persons or vehicles by chasing, barking or biting; 

3. Attack other animals; 

4. Damage property other than the owner's; 

5. Bark, whine, howl or make other noises excessively; 

6. Create noxious or offensive odors; 

7. Are present at any location designated by signs to be a prohibited area. 

Animals creating a nuisance may be trapped when they cannot otherwise be humanely 
apprehended. 

2. Skunks, opossums, and raccoons found in the Village of Morton Grove are hereby 
declared to be a public nuisance. The Village may, from time to time, establish 
policies to assist residents to abate any such nuisance; however it shall always be 
the responsibility of the owner of any private property to remove any raccoon, 

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-9:_NUISANCE_ANIMALS


opossum,  or skunk or the nest of said animal from his property. The owner/person 
in possession of said property shall allow the animal control officer, any law 
enforcement officer, or other authorized Village representative to enter said property 
and inspect where skunks, raccoons,  or their nests are suspected to be present for 
purposes of investigating the property, and to assist or direct the owner in removing 
said animal(s).or their nests are suspected to be present for purposes of 
investigating the property, and to assist or direct the owner in removing said 
animal(s). 

3. The Village's sanitarian, the animal control officer, police officers and/or any 
organization or organizations, agent and employee of the Village of Morton Grove are 
hereby authorized and empowered to take all actions necessary to abate said 
nuisance and may, for the purpose of abating said nuisance, enter upon private 
property in an emergency, with the permission of the owner, agent of the owner, or 
lessor of the premises, or upon attaining a warrant issued by the Village's 
adjudication hearing officer or a court of competent jurisdiction. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-
2011) 

4. Conduct by a feral cat that disturbs the peace creates a public nuisance.  Feral cats 
may create a nuisance by  (a) habitually or continually howling, crying or screaming, 
or (b) habitually and significantly destroying, desecrating or soiling property against 
the wishes of the owner of the property. (Cook County Ordinance Chapter 10 Article 
IV). 

1. Any agent or employee of the Village of Morton Grove may investigate an 
alleged violation of this section upon the receipt of two (2) sworn complaints 
in a form provided by the Police Department, signed by two (2) unrelated 
Village residents living in separate dwellings within a 500 feet radius of the 
alleged violation. The affidavit shall specify the address or location of the 
alleged violation, the nature, time and date(s) of the act, the name and 
address of the owner or caretaker, if known, and a description of the cat, if 
known. 

2. In the event The Village finds that a feral cathas created a nuisance, The 
Village shall advise the Cook County Department of Animal and Rabies 
Control and the sponsor in writing of the nuisance.   
 

3. The Sponsor shall have the right to review the matter with The Village of 
Morton Grove. If the Sponsor is not able to satisfy the Village of Morton Grove 
that a nuisance is not occurring, the Sponsor shall have 30 days to comply 



with The Village’s direction with respect to correcting the nuisance. If the 
Sponsor fails to correct the nuisance, The Village shall have the right to 
remove the cat. 

6-4-10: STRAY ANIMALS 

1. A stray animal may be apprehended and impounded. 

2. The animal control officer shall promptly give notice to the owner of any stray animal 
so impounded, unless the name or address of said owner cannot be ascertained.  

3. The owner of any impounded stray animal shall pay all costs of impoundment 
including all fees for boarding and medical care in addition to any fine imposed.  

4. No impounded stray animal shall be released to anyone other than its owner or the 
owner's agent. If the animal was taken to a private boarding facility by the police 
department, the animal's owner shall pay a public safety fee as set forth in Title 1, 
Chapter 11in order to secure the release of said animal and shall pay all fees 
incurred for the impounding and/or boarding and care of the animal, if applicable. 
Animals which are kept in the pound shall be in the charge of the animal control 
officer. Animals unredeemed after seven (7) days may be disposed of in a humane 
manner as directed by the animal control officer. (Ord. 20-12, 6-22-2020) 

5. Any animal that has been impounded shall, at the direction of the animal control 
officer, be microchipped by a licensed veterinarian. The microchip shall identify the 
owner of the animal by name, address and telephone number. The cost of the 
microchip and the procedure to implant the microchip shall be borne by the owner 
of the animal. 

6. The owner of any animal impounded pursuant to this section may appeal the order 
of impoundment pursuant to the procedure set forth in subsection 6-4-8I of this 
chapter. 

7. Unless an appeal is pending, any impounded animal which has not been released to 
its owner within seven (7) days after being impounded shall be humanely 
dispatched pursuant to the humane euthanasia in animal shelters act or offered for 
adoption. (Ord 15-20; 11-8-15) 

6-4-11: DISEASED ANIMALS 

No animal afflicted with an infectious disease shall be exposed in any public place 
whereby the health of man or beast may be affected; nor shall such diseased animal be 
shipped or removed from the premises of the owner thereof, except for the treatment 

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-10:_STRAY_ANIMALS
https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-11:_DISEASED_ANIMALS


and/or under the supervision of the animal control officer to direct such disposition of any 
diseased animal and such treatment of affected premises as to prevent the 
communication and spread of contagion or infection, except in cases where the state 
veterinarian is empowered to act. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-2011) 

6-4-12: PROHIBITED SPECIES 

A. It shall be unlawful for any person or entity to harbor or keep any wild animal, bees, 
fowl, or farm animals in the Village, except the provisions of this section shall not 
apply to any keeping of such animals in a bona fide licensed veterinary hospital for 
treatment, bona fide educational institution, museum, circus, carnival, zoo or other 
event for entertainment, which is authorized by the proper and responsible official 
or officers of the Village in accordance with all applicable laws and ordinances, and 
provided that proper bond and/or insurance has been posted in accordance with 
Village ordinances, all federal, state, county and local permits and licenses have 
been procured and the applicant thereunder is in compliance with all federal, state, 
county and local rules, regulations, laws and ordinances. It shall not be a defense to 
a violation of this section that the person or entity violating said section has 
attempted to, or has in fact, domesticated the wild animal, bees, fowl, or farm 
animals.  

  

B. Upon the complaint of any person that a person, firm or corporation procured, 
owns, possesses or harbors a wild animal, bees, fowl or farm animals on premises 
in the Village, the chief of police or building official shall forthwith cause the matter 
to be investigated, and if after investigation the facts indicate that such person, 
named in the complaint, is in fact the owner or is keeping or harboring any such wild 
animal, bees, fowl, or farm animals in the Village, the chief of police or building 
official shall forthwith send written notice to such person, requiring such person to 
safely remove said wild animal, bees, fowl, or farm animals from the Village within 
ten days of the date of said notice. Notice as herein provided shall not be required 
where such wild animal, bees, fowl, or farm animals has previously caused serious 
physical harm or death to any person, or has escaped and is at large, in which case 
the chief of police or building official shall cause said wild animal,  bees, fowl, or 
farm animals to be immediately seized and impounded, according to the 
provisions  of this chapter, or killed, if seizure and impoundment are not possible 
without risk of serious physical harm or death to any person, domestic animal or 
property.  

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-12:_PROHIBITED_SPECIES


C. The chief of police or building official shall forthwith cause to be seized and 
impounded any wild animal, bees, fowl, or farm animals where the person owning, 
keeping or harboring such animal has failed to comply with the notice sent pursuant 
to this chapter. Any Building Inspection and Services Official, Animal Control 
Officer, or any police officer of the Village shall have the authority to enforce the 
provisions of this section, including, but not limited to, taking possession of any wild 
animal, bees, fowl, or farm animals the officer or official reasonably believes is 
being kept, possessed or harbored in violation of this chapter. If the person in 
possession refuses to relinquish possession of the wild animal, bees, fowl, or farm 
animals the officer or official shall so notify the chief of police or building official, 
and the chief of police or building official shall obtain an appropriate court order, 
with the assistance of the Village attorney, to obtain possession. This section shall 
not be interpreted to authorize or attempt to authorize entry into places not open to 
the public, without either the consent of the owner or person in possession of a 
warrant or other court order. Upon seizure and impoundment, said animal shall be 
delivered to a place of confinement for safekeeping with a qualified zoological park, 
humane society, veterinary hospital or animal refuge, authorized by law to accept, 
own, keep or harbor such wild animals, bees, fowl, or farm animals.  

D. Any person, firm or corporation violating any provision of this section  shall, in 
addition to any fine, penalty or equitable relief granted against it, forfeit the wild 
animal, bees, fowl, or farm animals to the Village for permanent disposition to a 
zoological or animal refuge authorized by law to accept, keep or harbor such 
animals, if reasonably possible, or, if not, for destruction of said wild animal, bees, 
fowl, or farm animals  

 

6-4-13: PREMISES PROHIBITED TO ANIMALS 

1. It shall be unlawful for any dog, cat or other animal, even though on a leash, to be in 
or enter upon any restaurant, or any place where food is sold or processed, except 
establishments selling or treating pet animals. 

2. It shall be unlawful for any dog, cat or other animal, even though on a leash, to be 
present at or upon any school premises, public playground or public swimming 
pool, unless permission is granted by the agency which has jurisdiction over such 
school or facility. 

3. The provisions of this section shall not apply to guide dogs, service animals or 
animals engaged in law enforcement activities. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-2011) 

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-13:_PREMISES_PROHIBITED_TO_ANIMALS


6-4-14: RABIES CONTROL REGULATIONS 

1. All owners of dogs, cats and ferrets over four (4) months of age shall have such 
animals inoculated against rabies by a licensed veterinarian at such intervals as 
required by the state of Illinois. No dogs, cats or ferrets over four (4) months of age 
may be boarded at a kennel, unless the animal has been inoculated as required by 
this section. 

2. Any licensed veterinarian who inoculates a ferret, dog or cat against rabies shall 
procure from the department of rabies control, county of Cook, serially numbered 
tags, one to be issued with each inoculation certificate. Such tags shall at all times 
be attached to the collars or harnesses worn by the ferrets, dogs or cats for which 
the certificates and tags have been issued. 

3. Every veterinarian or other person discovering or suspecting any animal to be 
suffering with rabies shall forthwith report such fact to the animal control officer and 
the Cook County department of animal control, giving the name and address of the 
owner of such animal and the license number thereof, if known. If such animal after 
examination is suspected to be suffering with such disease, the animal shall be 
immediately impounded according to regulations adopted by the county 
department of animal control at the expense of the owner. If such animal should die 
during the interval of observation, the intact brain shall forthwith be delivered to the 
laboratory of the state department of public health. 

4. It shall be unlawful for the owner or person in control of any animal, when notified 
such animal has bitten, scratched or has otherwise injured any person so as to 
cause an abrasion of the skin, to euthanize, sell or give away such animal or to 
permit or allow such animal to be taken beyond the limits of Cook County. It shall be 
the duty of such owner to immediately notify the animal control officer. The owner, 
person in control or custodian of any animal suffering from rabies or which exhibits 
clinical signs of rabies, or which has bitten any person or any animal or been bitten 
by another animal having or suspected of having rabies shall immediately cause the 
animal to be confined or impounded pursuant to subsection E of this section. If any 
dangerous, vicious or other animal suspected of suffering from rabies cannot safely 
be taken up and impounded, such animal may be killed by any law enforcement 
officer or animal control officer of the Village. However, in all cases where any 
animal so slain has bitten any person or caused an abrasion of the skin of any such 
person, it shall be the duty of the officer slaying such animal to immediately deliver 
the carcass and the brain of such animal to the state department of public health. 

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-14:_RABIES_CONTROL_REGULATIONS


No person shall remove any animal from any place of impoundment or confinement 
without the consent of the animal control officer. 

5. Any animal required to be confined or impounded pursuant to subsection D of this 
section, shall be impounded or confined under the observation of a licensed 
veterinarian for a period of ten (10) days, except the animal control officer may by 
written order permit such confinement to be reduced to a period of less than ten 
(10) days. When evidence is presented the animal was inoculated against rabies 
within the time prescribed by law, it may be confined in a house, or in a manner 
which will prohibit it from biting any person for a period of ten (10) days, if a licensed 
veterinarian adjudges such confinement satisfactory. The veterinarian shall examine 
the animal on the first, fifth, and tenth day from twenty four (24) hours of time of the 
bite. The veterinarian shall submit report of the clinical condition of the animal to 
the animal control officer within twenty four (24) hours after the animal is presented 
for examination, giving the owner's name, address, the date of confinement, the 
breed, description, age, and sex of the animal, and whether the animal has been 
spayed or neutered, on appropriate forms approved by the Illinois department of 
public health. At the end of the confinement period, the animal shall be examined 
by a licensed veterinarian who shall certify, if appropriate, the animal is free of 
rabies. If such animal should die during the interval of observation, the intact brain 
shall forthwith be delivered to the laboratory of the state department of public 
health. 

6. When a person has been bitten by a police dog, the police dog may continue to 
perform its duties for the peace officer or law enforcement agency and any period of 
observation of the police dog may be under the supervision of a peace officer. The 
supervision shall consist of the dog being locked in a kennel, performing its official 
duties in a police vehicle, or remaining under the constant supervision of its police 
handler. 

7. Whenever the number of animals suffering from rabies or animals running at large 
within the Village shall be such as to endanger the public health, public safety, or 
general welfare, the animal control officer upon recommendation of the Village 
president and board of trustees shall apply to the Illinois department of agriculture 
for quarantine. A proclamation of the Village president and board of trustees 
containing such declaration shall be published at least once in some newspaper of 
general circulation in the Village. After the first publication of such proclamation by 
the Village president and board of trustees, it shall be unlawful for the owner or 



custodian of any animal to permit such animal to be at large contrary to the terms of 
such proclamation. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-2011) 

6-4-15: PERMIT REQUIRED 

1. It shall be the duty of every owner of any ferret, dog or cat over six (6) months of age 
to obtain a permit to own said animal from the Director of Finance-Treasurer and 
pay a permit fee as set forth in Title 1, Chapter 11. The owner shall provide the 
Director of Finance-Treasurer with proof the animal has been currently inoculated 
against rabies and that said inoculation has not expired as a condition of obtaining 
and maintaining said permit. If any person is found guilty of violating any part of 
section 6-4-6 of this chapter, or of being cruel to animals, the Chief of Police is 
authorized to revoke all permits to own animals held by such person and the 
Director of Finance-Treasurer is authorized to refuse to issue any new permit to such 
person for a minimum of one year, as deemed necessary to prevent further cruelty 
to any animal. 

2. Any such revocation or refusal to issue a permit to own an animal may be appealed 
to the Village's Administrative Adjudication hearing officer by filing a written request 
for a hearing with the Village Administrator or his designee. In the event the owner 
fails to file a written request for a hearing within the requisite seven (7) day period, or 
fails to appear at a scheduled hearing, the owner will be deemed to have waived the 
right to a hearing. All hearings before the Village's Administrative Adjudication 
hearing officer shall be conducted pursuant to sections 3-3A-5 through 3-3A-7 of 
this Code. 

3. The annual permit fee for any ferret, dog or cat shall as set forth in Title 1, Chapter 
11. Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, the permit fee shall be due and 
payable annually on or before September 1 of each year and the permit shall be for 
a one-year period commencing September 1 of each said year and ending on 
August 31 of the following year. If an owner submits proof that the ferret, dog, or cat 
was not acquired or did not become six months old until after February 28, the 
permit fee for the balance of the permit term shall be as set forth in Title 1, Chapter 
11. Annual permits will only be issued with valid proof the animal is in compliance 
with subsection 6-4-14A of this chapter. If an owner fails to obtain a permit as 
required by this section, in addition to any fine imposed, the permit fee shall be 
increased as set forth in Title 1, Chapter 11. Animals registered prior to July 1, 2011, 
that have a lifetime registration, are exempt from the annual registration provision of 
this chapter. 

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-15:_PERMIT_REQUIRED


4. Upon registering the animal, the owner shall receive a permit tag which must be 
fastened to the animal's collar and worn by the animal at all times. Any ferret, dog or 
cat which does not have such a tag while in or upon any public street may be 
deemed to be a stray pursuant to section 6-4-10 of this chapter. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-
2011; Ord 17-26, 9-25-17) 

5. Feral Cats Exempt - Ear-tip removing of approximately a quarter inch off the tip of 
the cat's left ear in a straight-line cut, is the universal sign of a sterilized, unowned 
cat. If these requirements are met, the ear-tipped cat is exempt from permit 
requirements, tag,  stray, and at-large provisions of this ordinance. 

(Ord. 20-12, 6-22-2020) 

6-4-16: FEEDING WILDLIFE AND BIRDS  

A. No person under any circumstances may provide feed for wild animals to consume 
except as authorized under subsection B.  

B. Ground feeding of birds is prohibited. Certain birdfeeders are allowed for use and in 
moderation as long as all feed is placed in a feeder designed for the specific 
purpose of feeding birds. Any accumulation of feed spilled onto the ground or 
surfaces from hanging feeders shall be removed by the person or property owner 
daily to reduce the attractant for wild animals.   

C. Bird feeders shall be set back five (5’) feet from dwelling units, accessory structures, 
lawn furniture, shrubs and trees.  

D. If there is rodent activity at the residence that is providing the feed or any adjacent 
property, the Village has the right to require removal of the feeders until the activity 
has ceased.  

 

6-4-17: PENALTY 

Except as specifically specified otherwise in this chapter, any person violating or aiding in 
or abetting the violation of any provision of this chapter or counterfeiting or forging any 
certificate, permit or tag, or making misrepresentation in regard to any matter prescribed by 
this chapter, or resisting, obstructing, or impeding the animal control officer or any 
authorized officer in enforcing this chapter, or refusing to produce any animal for 
inoculation or who removes a tag from an animal for purposes of destroying or concealing 
its identity, shall be fined in accordance with title 1, chapter 4 of this code. Each day a 
violation continues shall be deemed a separate violation. (Ord. 11-19, 6-13-2011) 

https://mortongrove.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=6-4-16:_PENALTY


   

 

Submitted by: Charles L Meyer, Village Administrator       

Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel   

Prepared by: Dennis Johnson, Deputy Police Chief 

Reviewed by Michael Weitzel, Chief of Police 

 

Legislative Summary 
 

Ordinance 25-29 

 

AMENDING TITLE 1 CHAPTER 4 SECTION 2 ENTITLED  

“MONETARY PENALTIES AND FINES FOR SPECIFIC VIOLATIONS AND OFFENSES” OF THE 

MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 

 

 

Introduced: October 28, 2025 

  

Purpose: To amend Title 1, Chapter 4, Section 2 of the Morton Grove Municipal Code to update the 

penalty schedule to include violations of Title 5, Chapter 14, entitled “MOTOR DRIVEN 

SCOOTERS AND ELECTRIC BICYCLES.” 

  

Background: This ordinance will amend Title 1, Chapter 4, Section 2 of the Code to include specific 

penalties for violations of 5-14-2 and 5-14-3, which were created on August 12, 2025, 

when the Village Board passed Ordinance 25-23, It also removes the penalties associated 

with the obsolete Section 5-4-10-1D. 
  

Programs, Departments 

 or Groups Affected 

Administration, Finance, and Police 

  

Fiscal Impact: Minimal    

  

Source of Funds: N/A 
  

Workload Impact: Staff will implement these revisions as part of its normal duties. 

 

  

Administrator 

Recommendation: 

Approval as presented. 

  

Second Reading: November 12, 2025 

  

Special Considerations or 

Requirements: 

None 

 

 



ORDINANCE 25-29 
AMENDING TITLE 1 CHAPTER 4 SECTION 2 ENTITLED  

“MONETARY PENALTIES AND FINES FOR SPECIFIC VIOLATIONS AND OFFENSES” 

OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 

 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (Village), located in Cook County, Illinois is a home 

rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, and 

can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, including but 

not limited to the power to tax and incur debt; and 

 WHEREAS, on May 12, 2008 pursuant to Ordinance 08-22, the Village Board amended the 

Village Code to provide a comprehensive fine schedule for violations of the Village’s Municipal Code 

in one location so fines can be easily referenced by the Adjudication Hearing Officer, Courts and the 

public, and annually reviewed by Village staff as part of the budget process. The comprehensive fine 

schedule is now set forth in Title 1, Chapter 4 of the Code; and 

 WHEREAS, on August 12, 2025, the Village Board passed Ordinance 25-23, “AN 

ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 5, CHAPTER 4, SECTION 10 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE 

ENTITLED PROHIBITED ACTIONS, CONDUCT AND CREATING TITLE 5, CHAPTER 4, 

SECTION 14 ENTITLED MOTOR DRIVEN SCOOTERS AND ELECTRIC BICYCLES; and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend Section 1-4-2 of the Village Code to include penalties for 

violations of Sections 5-14-2 and 5-14-3, which were created by Ordinance 25-23. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION 1: The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS 

clauses into this Ordinance as though fully set forth herein thereby making the findings as hereinabove 

set forth. 

SECTION 2: Title 1, Chapter 4, Section 2, entitled “MONETARY PENALTIES AND FINES 

FOR SPECIFIC VIOLATIONS AND OFFENSES,” of the Municipal Code of the Village of Morton 

Grove is hereby amended as follows: 

 

A. A new row in the penalty schedule pertaining to Title 5, Chapter 14, Section 2 is 

hereby inserted to read as follows: 

Code 

Section 
Description of Violation Penalty  



 2 

5-14-2 

Violations of Operation of Electric Bicycles, 

Electric Scooters, Non-Highway Vehicles, and 

Toy Vehicles 

$30.00 - $750.00 

 

B. A new row in the penalty schedule pertaining to Title 5, Chapter 14, Section 3 is 

hereby inserted to read as follows: 

Code 

Section 
Description of Violation Penalty  

5-14-3 

Fees related to the impoundment of Electric 

Bicycles, Electric Scooters, or Low-Speed 

Electric Scooters 

$500.00 

 

C. The following rows in the penalty schedule pertaining to Title 5, Chapter 4, Section 

10, Subsection 1D are hereby removed: 

Code 

Section 
Description of Violation Penalty  

5-4-10-1D 
Violations of motor driven scooter - first 

violation 
$50.00 - $100.00 

5-4-10-1D 
Violations of motor driven scooter - second 

violation 
$100.00 - $750.00 

 

SECTION 3:  The terms and conditions of this ordinance shall be severable and if any section, 

term, provision, or condition is found to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, the remaining sections, terms, provisions, and conditions, shall remain in full 

force and effect. 

           SECTION 4:  In the event this ordinance or any Code amendment herein conflicts with any 

statute, ordinance, or resolution or part thereof, the amendments in this ordinance shall be controlling 

and shall supersede all other statutes, ordinances, or resolutions but only to the extent of such conflict. 

Except as amended in this ordinance, all chapters and sections of the Village of Morton Grove Village 

Code are hereby restated, readopted, and shall remain in full force and effect.        

SECTION 5: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval, 

and publication in pamphlet form according to law. 

 

 



 3 

 

 

Passed this 12th day of November 2025.  

 

Trustee Khan  ______________  

Trustee Minx  ______________   

Trustee Shiba  ______________   

Trustee Thill  ______________   

Trustee Travis  ______________   

Trustee White  ______________   

 

Approved by me this 12th day of November 2025. 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Janine Witko, Village President 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

 

 

Attested and Filed in my office this  

13th day of November 2025. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

 



Submitted by: Chuck Meyer, Village Administrator       

Reviewed by: Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel                           

Prepared by – Brandon Nolin, Community Development Administrator 

Legislative Summary  

 

Ordinance 25-34  

APPROVING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT ON PROPERTY 

COMMONLY KNOWN AS 6222 LINCOLN AVENUE AND 8503-09 FERNALD AVENUE IN 

MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

Introduction: November 12, 2025 

  

Purpose: To approve a Special Use Permit for the renovation of an existing two-structure mixed-use 

development at 6022 Lincoln Avenue and 8503-09 Fernald Avenue.  

  

Background: Johnnie Jiron (“applicant”) submitted a complete Special Use Application to the Department of 

Community and Economic Development requesting authorization to renovate a nonconforming 

mixed-use development (12-5-7:E) at 6222 Lincoln Avenue and 8503-09 Fernald Avenue (“subject 

property”) with variations to density (12-5-7:C), lot width (12-5-7:C), rear setback (12-5-7:C), 

number of structures on a zoning lot less than one acre (12-2-2:A), transparency requirements (12-5-

7:A.3.k), and off-street parking (12-7-3:I, 12-5-7:C). The subject property is improved with two 

nonconforming mixed-use structures containing, in total, five residential units and three commercial 

units.  

 

The applicant is planning enhancements to the buildings’ facades and will construct off-street parking 

and landscape screening on the premises, which will improve the property beyond its original 

condition. The base off-street parking requirement established in Sections 12-7-3:I and 12-5-7:C is 

14 parking spaces. The applicant is planning to improve the unpaved area to the east of the principal 

structure with five (5) off-street parking spaces, requiring a waiver of nine (9) parking spaces to the 

minimum Code requirement. Each apartment unit will be assigned one parking space.  

 

On October 2, 2025, the Traffic Safety Commission reviewed the Application, including the plans 

and traffic and parking study, and recommended approval with comments. On October 7, 2025, the 

Appearance Commission reviewed the Application, approved an Appearance Certificate for proposed 

improvements, and recommended approval of the Application with conditions. On October 21, 2025, 

the applicant appeared before the Plan Commission to present the request for approval of the 

Application made under Case PC 25-10. Based on the Application, supporting staff report, and 

testimony presented at the public hearing, the Plan Commission voted unanimously (5-0, 

Commissioners Dorgan and Liston absent) to recommend approval of the Special Use Permit, with 

conditions relating to building and site design, construction schedule, signage, lighting, and snow 

removal.  

 

Departs. Affected Department of Community and Economic Development 

  

Fiscal Impact: None 

  

Source of Funds: N/A 

  

Workload 

Impact: 

The Special Use Permit will be implemented and supervised by staff as part of their normal work 

activities. 

  

Administrative  

Recommendation: 
Approval as presented 

  

Second Reading: November 25, 2025 

  

Special 

Requirements: 
None 

 



   

 

1 

 

ORDINANCE 25-34 

APPROVING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT ON 

PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN AS 6222 LINCOLN AVENUE AND  

8503-09 FERNALD AVENUE IN MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (“Village”), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a 

home rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State 

of Illinois, and can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and 

affairs, including, but not limited to, the power to tax and incur debt; and 

WHEREAS, 6222 Lincoln Avenue and 8503-09 Fernald Avenue, legally described in 

“Exhibit A”, attached hereto and made a part of this Ordinance, is a 0.17-acre property zoned C/R 

Commercial/Residential (“Subject Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the Subject Property is currently improved with two (2) mixed-use structures 

collectively containing five (5) residential units and three (3) ground-floor commercial units; and  

WHEREAS, the existing mixed-use development is nonconforming with respect to density 

(12-5-7:C), lot width (12-5-7:C), rear setback (12-5-7:C), number of structures on a zoning lot less 

than one acre (12-2-2:A), transparency requirements (12-5-7:A.3.k), and off-street parking (12-7-3:I, 

12-5-7:C); and  

WHEREAS, while these nonconformities existed for several decades and were considered 

legal non-conforming uses. However, one of the buildings was vacant for more than 6 months due to 

a fire and lost its nonconforming status; and  

WHEREAS, an existing nonconforming structure that is no longer protected under the 

provisions of Sections 12-15-4, “Nonconforming Structures,” may not be restored or altered by-right 

unless the structure complies with all applicable development standards; and  

WHEREAS, mixed-use developments that do not meet the development standards for 

permitted uses in the C/R District may be approved by a Special Use Permit pursuant to Section 12-

5-7:E of the Unified Development Code (Title 12); and  

WHEREAS, Johnnie Jiron (“Applicant”), filed a complete application to the Village’s Plan 

Commission under Case PC 25-10 (“Application”) requesting approval of a Special Use Permit for 

the renovation of a nonconforming mixed-use development; and  

WHEREAS, to authorize the development as presented, the Application requests variations 

for density (12-5-7:C), lot width (12-5-7:C), rear setback (12-5-7:C), number of structures on a zoning 



   

 

2 

 

lot less than one acre (12-2-2:A), transparency requirements (12-5-7:A.3.k), and off-street parking 

(12-7-3:I, 12-5-7:C); and  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Municipal Code, public notice for a 

public hearing on the Application to be held on October 21, 2025, was published in the Morton Grove 

Champion, a newspaper of general circulation in the Village of Morton Grove, on October 2, 2025, 

written notification was sent to property owners within 250 feet of the subject property on October 2, 

2025, and a sign was posted on the Subject Property on October 2, 2025, as required by ordinance; 

and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12-7-3:B, the off-street parking standards identified in the 

Unified Development Code as “Required Spaces by Use” shall be advisory only for Special Use 

applications and the final number of required parking spaces for Special Use Permits will be 

established by the Village Board based on the submitted traffic and parking impact study and any 

recommendations by the Traffic Safety Commission, Plan Commissions, and staff; and 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 12-7-3:B of the Village Code, the Applicant 

submitted a traffic and parking impact study, “Summary Traffic and Parking Evaluation,” prepared 

by Javier Millan of Kenig, Lindgren, O’Hara, Aboona, Inc. (KLOA), dated May 16, 2022, which 

indicates that the existing development could be modified to fit at maximum five (5) off-street parking 

spaces and that trips to be generated by the proposed parking lot will not have an additional impact 

on traffic conditions in the area; and  

 WHEREAS, on October 7, 2025, the Appearance Commission reviewed the Application, 

approved an Appearance Certificate for proposed improvements, and recommended approval of the 

Application with conditions; and   

WHEREAS, at the October 21, 2025, public hearing, the Village’s Plan Commission heard 

the Applicant’s presentation and reviewed the Application, at which time all concerned parties were 

given the opportunity to be present and express their views for the consideration by the Plan 

Commission; and  

WHEREAS, the Village’s Plan Commission considered all the evidence and testimony 

presented to it, discussed the merits of the Application in light of applicable law, including the 

Standards for Special Use established in Section 12-16-4:C.5 of the Unified Development Code, and 

voted to recommend approval of the Special Use Permit, subject to conditions, restrictions, and 

requirements contained in the report of the Plan Commission, dated October 28, 2025, which was 



   

 

3 

 

presented to the Village Board on November 10, and a copy of that report is contained in “Exhibit 

B”, attached to and made a part of this Ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Village’s Unified Development Code, the 

Corporate Authorities have determined that the Special Use Permit should be approved, subject to the 

provisions, conditions, and restrictions contained in this Ordinance.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 

OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 

AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  Incorporation by Reference. The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate 

the foregoing WHEREAS clauses into this Ordinance by this reference, as though fully set forth 

herein, thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 

SECTION 2.  Approval of Special Use Permit. The Corporate Authorities hereby grant a 

Special Use Permit to authorize the renovation of a nonconforming mixed-use development with 

select variations to requirements of the Unified Development Code, with the following conditions 

and restrictions, which shall be binding on the owners/lessees, occupants and users of this property, 

their successors and assigns. The Special Use Permit approval shall include the following waivers: 

 

A. Waiver to Section 12-5-7:C for density; 

B. Waiver to Section 12-5-7:C for lot width; 

C. Waiver to Section 12-5-7:C for rear setback; 

D. Waiver to Section 12-2-2:A for number of structures on a zoning lot; 

E. Waiver to Section 12-5-7:A.3.k for transparency requirements in a C/R District; 

 

SECTION 3. Conditions. The Special Use Permit shall be subject to the following conditions:   

A. The site, improvements, and buildings, including building footprints, shall be improved 

and operated consistent with the plans and supporting documents and modifications as 

finalized and specifically approved in writing by the Village Administrator or his/her 

designee, including:  

1. Plat of Survey, prepared by Polena Engineering LLC, dated December 1, 2021; 

2. Sheet C1.0 – Site Plan Proposed Improvements, dated December 15, 2022; 

3. Sheet A0.1 – Proposed Plans (First Floor & Second Floor Plans), prepared by HWR 

Inc., dated December 15, 2022; 



   

 

4 

 

4. Sheet A2.1 – Proposed Elevations, Building 1, prepared by HWR Inc., revised 

December 15, 2022; 

5. Sheet A2.2 – Proposed Elevations, Building 2, prepared by HWR Inc., revised 

December 15, 2022; 

6. Open Building Violations, prepared by Atlantis Architects, dated June 23, 2025; 

7. Landscape Plan, prepared by HWR Inc., dated December 15, 2022; and 

8. Summary Traffic and Parking Evaluation, prepared by Javier Millan, Kenig, 

Lindgren, O’Hara, Aboona, Inc. (KLOA), dated May 16, 2022.  

Any change to the site or building may subject the Applicant or subsequent owners, 

lessees, occupants, and users of the Subject Property to additional conditions and may 

serve as the basis for amendment to the Special Use Permit.  

B. The Subject Property shall be developed and operated consistent with all representations, 

assertions, and testimony provided by the Applicant and their representatives at the public 

hearings before the Appearance Commission and Plan Commission. Any inconsistencies 

in development or operation, as determined by the Village Administrator or his/her 

designee, may serve as the basis for amendment to or revocation of the Special Use Permit.  

C. The Applicant shall comply with all comments issued by the Building Department, Fire 

Department, and Community and Economic Development Department in the staff report 

to the Plan Commission dated October 16, 2025, whether by strict or alternative 

compliance, subject to the Village Administrator or his/her designee’s final approval.  

D. The Applicant shall install a safety buffer such as bollards to protect the east exterior 

stairwell from vehicles maneuvering through the driveway, subject to the Village 

Engineer’s final approval.  

E. Prior to filing any building permit application, the Applicant shall provide the Village with 

final elevations and material specifications for review and approval. Final elevations and 

materials must be deemed consistent with the approved elevations and materials, and with 

comments provided by the Appearance Commission at the public meeting held on July 6, 

2022, as determined by the Community Development Administrator and Appearance 

Commission Chairperson. If such designs are deemed to be inconsistent with the approved 

plans or if materials are deemed to be of a lower quality than the approved materials, then 

the Applicant will be required to file an application for an amendment to the Appearance 

Certificate. 



   

 

5 

 

F. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit final site and 

engineering plans for review and approval by the Community Development 

Administrator, Village Engineer, and Village Administrator, and shall comply with all 

comments and recommendations provided by the Village Engineer in the departmental 

comment form dated October 27, 2025, whether by strict or alternative compliance, 

subject to the Village Engineer’s final approval. 

G. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall submit a signage 

plan that includes parking area signage for review and approval by the Village 

Administrator and shall install and maintain signage in accordance with the approved 

signage plan. 

H. The applicant shall commence construction within 120 days of approval of the ordinance 

granting this request for a Special Use Permit, and construction shall be complete within 

365 days of approval of the same ordinance. The construction start date or completion of 

construction may be extended upon the applicant’s submittal of documentation requesting 

extensions and as reviewed and approved by the Village Administrator. 

I. The Applicant shall provide weekly project progress reports to the Community 

Development Administrator unless deemed unnecessary by the Community Development 

Administrator or Village Administrator or his/her designee. 

J. The Applicant shall advise the Department of Community and Economic Development of 

any proposed change in ownership or operation of the subject property. Such changes may 

subject the owners, lessees, occupants, and users to additional conditions and may serve 

as the basis for amendment to the Special Use Permit. 

K. Prior to filing any Building Permit Application, the owner/applicant shall provide the 

Village with final elevations, material specifications, and landscaping plan for review and 

approval. Final plans must be deemed consistent with the approved elevations, materials, 

and landscape plan as determined by the Community Development Administrator and 

Appearance Commission Chairperson. If such designs are deemed to be inconsistent with 

the approved plans or if materials are deemed to be of a lower quality than the approved 

materials, then the owner/applicant will be required to file an application for an 

amendment to the Appearance Certificate. 



   

 

6 

 

L. Future sign colors shall blend with the building and storefront colors through use of 

complementary color ranges, or as otherwise approved by the Appearance Commission 

Chairperson. 

M. Any portable signage shall be permitted pursuant to Section 10-10-8:E, except that the 

signage frame and base shall be constructed primarily of metal or wood, or as otherwise 

authorized by the Village Administrator. 

N. Illuminated signage and other illuminating features on the property may not exceed 

5,000K (degrees Kelvin) 

O. Prior to filing any Building Permit Application, the owner/applicant shall submit plans for 

aesthetic improvements to the trash enclosure that reflect or complement the approved 

façade materials and architectural style of the primary structures, subject to review and 

approval by the Community Development Administrator. All trash receptacles shall be 

stored within the trash enclosure and moved to the alley on collection days, or as otherwise 

authorized by the Village Administrator. 

P. The Applicant shall maintain a contract for snow removal from the site for as long as the 

development is in existence or shall submit an equally effective plan for removal that does 

not interfere with on-site parking, subject to review and approval by the Village 

Administrator. 

Q. The Applicant shall advise the Department of Community and Economic Development of 

any proposed change in ownership or operation of the Subject Property. Such changes 

may subject the Owner, lessees, occupants, and users to additional conditions and may 

serve as the basis for amendment to the Special Use Permit. The Special Use Permit is 

granted so long as the Applicant, Owner, occupants, and users of the Subject Property 

utilize the area for the purposes as herein designated.  

R. The Owner, Applicant, and any lessees, occupants, and users of the Subject Property, their 

successors and assigns, shall allow employees and authorized agents of the Village access 

to the Subject Property at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the Subject 

Property to verify all terms and conditions of this Ordinance have been met. 

SECTION 4. Village Records.  The Village Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to amend 

all pertinent records of the Village of Morton Grove to show and designate the Special Use Permit as 

granted hereunder. 



   

 

7 

 

SECTION 5. Failure to Comply with Conditions.  Upon failure or refusal of the Applicant 

to comply with any or all of the conditions, restrictions or provisions of this Ordinance, the Corporate 

Authorities may initiate the revocation of the Special Use Permit granted in this Ordinance, in 

accordance with process and procedures established in the Unified Development Code. 

SECTION 6. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 

its passage, approval and publication in pamphlet form according to law. 

 

PASSED this 25th day of November 2025.  

 

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Minx    

Trustee Shiba    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee White    

 

Approved by me this 25th day of November 2025.  

 

 

____________________________________ 

Janine Witko, Village President 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

 

Approved and filed in my office this 26th day of November 2025.  

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Eileen Scanlon-Harford, Village Clerk 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

  



   

 

8 

 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

 

EXHIBIT A  Legal Description, 6222 Lincoln Avenue and 8503-09 Fernald Avenue 

EXHIBIT B  Plan Commission Report for PC 25-10, dated October 28, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 

6222 LINCOLN AVENUE AND 8503-09 FERNALD AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, 

ILLINOIS 60053 LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

 

LOTS 40 AND 41 IN BLOCK 5 IN BINGHAM AND FERNALD’S MORTON GROVE 

SUBDIVISION OF PART OF LOT 40 IN THE COUNTY CLERK’S DIVISION OF SECTION 

20 AND THE EAST ½ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 41 NORTH, 

RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, 

ILLINOIS.  

 

PROPERTY INDEX NUMBERS: 

 

10-20-114-049-0000 

10-20-114-050-0000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  



   

 

2 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

 

PLAN COMMISSION REPORT FOR PC 25-10 

Dated October 28, 2025 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community & Economic Development Department 

 
  

To: Village President and Board of Trustees 
 

From: Chris Kintner, Plan Commission Chairperson 
 Chuck Meyer, Village Administrator 
 Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel 
 Brandon Nolin, AICP, Community Development Administrator 
 

Date: October 28, 2025 
 

Re: Plan Commission Case PC 25-10 
 Request for a Use Permit to legalize and authorize the renovation of a nonconforming mixed-use 

development (12-5-7:E) at 6222 Lincoln Avenue and 8503-09 Fernald Avenue (10-20-114-049-0000, 
10-20-114-050-0000) in Morton Grove, Illinois, with variations to density (12-5-7:C), lot width (12-5-
7:C), rear setback (12-5-7:C), number of structures on a zoning lot less than one acre (12-2-2:A), 
transparency requirements (12-5-7:A.3.k), and off-street parking (12-7-3:I, 12-5-7:C). The applicant is 
Johnnie Jiron. 

 
Executive Summary 
Johnnie Jiron (“applicant”) submitted a complete Special Use Application to the Department of Community and Economic 
Development requesting authorization to renovate a nonconforming mixed-use development (12-5-7:E) at 6222 Lincoln 
Avenue and 8503-09 Fernald Avenue (“subject property”) with variations to density (12-5-7:C), lot width (12-5-7:C), rear 
setback (12-5-7:C), number of structures on a zoning lot less than one acre (12-2-2:A), transparency requirements (12-5-
7:A.3.k), and off-street parking (12-7-3:I, 12-5-7:C). 
 
The Special Use Application was considered by the Plan Commission at the regularly scheduled meeting on October 21, 
2025. For the reasons set forth in this report, on October 21, 2025, the Plan Commission unanimously recommended by a 
vote of 5-0 (Commissioners Dorgan and Liston absent with notice) that the Village Board of Trustees should approve the 
requested Special Use Permit with various conditions.  
 
Application 
The subject property is improved with two nonconforming mixed-use structures, one located to the north of the lot (“north 
building”), and one located to the south of the lot (“south building”). In total, there are five residential units and three 
commercial units located on the property. On November 11, 2020, a fire event occurred at the subject property, causing 
considerable damage to a residential unit within the south building.  
 
The applicant obtained a Special Use Permit in 2022 with plans very similar to the plans included in the current application. A 
one-year extension was also granted in 2023 which has since expired. After making initial investments in window replacement, 
siding, and interior and structural improvements to the building, progress on the project stopped. The applicant partially 
completed work on the windows, capping, and siding installation in 2023, but work ceased and the exposed façade has been 
unfinished for approximately two years. The Special Use Permit has expired since the applicant failed to make substantive 
progress in bringing the property to code and implementing the improvements approved as part of the special use permit. 
 
On August 11, 2025, the applicant submitted a complete Special Use Application requesting approval of a Special Use Permit 
to legalize the nonconforming mixed-use development on the subject property so that the damaged building may be restored. 
The applicant is proposing to complete enhancements to the buildings’ facades and will construct five off-street parking 
spaces and landscape screening on the premises, which will improve the property beyond its original condition. 
 

Departmental Review 

• Building Department: The Building Department issued the following comments: 
1. Submit for review 5 full sets of architectural plans for both buildings based on the currently adopted codes and 

amendments. 
2. Existing lead water service is required to be replaced, and existing sanitary sewer will need to be 

inspected for water tightness. 



PC 25-10 – 6222 Lincoln Avenue & 8503-09 Fernald Avenue Mixed-Use Development 
October 28, 2025 

 

 
2 

• Fire Department: The Fire Department issued the following comments: 
1. The entire structure (Buildings 1 & 2) is required to be fully sprinkled. 
2. The entire structure (Buildings 1 & 2) is required to be fully protected by an automatic full 

detection and notification fire alarm system that sends signals to, and is monitored by, the Fire 
Department Dispatch Center. 

3. The structure is required to be equipped with a Fire Department Knox Box to enable 
emergency access. 

• Public Works Department/Engineering: In review of the proposed project, the Village Engineer 
issued comments dated October 27, 2025, attached hereto as “Attachment A”.  

 
Public Hearings 

Appearance Commission 
On October 7, 2025, the applicant appeared before the Appearance Commission to provide testimony and respond to 
comments issued by Department of Community and Economic Development staff in the report dated September 30, 2025, 
attached hereto as “Attachment B”. At the meeting, the Commission, the applicant, and the applicant’s consultants discussed 
the proposed elevations, landscape plan, and general aesthetic compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood. The 
Commission voted 5-1 to issue an Appearance Certificate and forwarded a recommendation of approval of Case PC 25-10, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1) Prior to filing any Building Permit Application, the owner/applicant shall provide the Village with final elevations, 

material specifications, and landscaping plan for review and approval. Final plans must be deemed consistent 

with the approved elevations, materials, and landscape plan as determined by the Community Development 

Administrator and Appearance Commission Chairperson. If such designs are deemed to be inconsistent with the 

approved plans or if materials are deemed to be of a lower quality than the approved materials, then the 

owner/applicant will be required to file an application for an amendment to the Appearance Certificate. ¬¬ 

2) Future sign colors shall blend with the building and storefront colors through use of complementary color ranges, 

or as otherwise approved by the Appearance Commission Chairperson.  

3) Any portable signage shall be permitted pursuant to Section 10-10-8:E, except that the signage frame and base 

shall be constructed primarily of metal or wood, or as otherwise authorized by the Village Administrator.  

4) Illuminated signage and other illuminating features on the property may not exceed 5,000K (degrees Kelvin). 
 

Traffic Safety Commission 
The chairperson of the Traffic Safety Commission waived the requirement for review.  
 
Plan Commission 
The Village of Morton Grove provided public notice for the October 21, 2025,Plan Commission public hearing for Case PC 
25-10 in accordance with the Unified Development Code. The Morton Grove Champion published a public notice on 
October 2, 2025. The Village mailed letters to property owners within 250 feet of the subject property on October 2, 2025, 
and placed a public notice sign on the subject property on October 2, 2025.  
  

Plan Commission – October 21, 2025, Proceedings: Five members of the Plan Commission were in attendance at 
the public hearing for Case PC 25-10 held on October 21, 2025. Commissioners Dorgan and Liston were absent with 
notice.  
 
Brandon Nolin, Community Development Administrator, provided a brief introduction to the application. The staff 
report dated October 16, 2025, and attached hereto as “Attachment C,” was entered into the public record.  
 
Mr. Nolin introduced the case. In the case of PC 25-10, the applicant is requesting approval of a Special Use Permit 
for a 4-dwelling unit mixed-use development proposed to be legalized and renovated at the property commonly 
known as 6222 Lincoln Avenue. 



PC 25-10 – 6222 Lincoln Avenue & 8503-09 Fernald Avenue Mixed-Use Development 
October 28, 2025 

 

 
3 

The existing site plan maintains the property’s near-zero-foot setbacks along the Lincoln and Fernald Avenue 
frontages. The proposed parking area is located to the side of the buildings, which complies with established 
guidelines for C/R District development. Landscaping is limited to screening of the proposed parking area a waiver is 
required for façade transparency.  
 
The applicant obtained a Special Use Permit in 2022 with plans very similar to the plans included in the current 
application. A one-year extension was also granted in 2023 which has since expired. After making initial investments 
in window replacement, siding, and interior and structural improvements to the building, progress on the project 
stopped. The applicant partially completed work on the windows, capping, and siding installation in 2023, but work 
ceased and the exposed façade has been unfinished for approximately two years. The Special Use Permit has 
expired since the applicant failed to make substantive progress in bringing the property to code and implementing the 
improvements approved as part of the special use permit.  
 
The Appearance Commission voted 5-1 to recommend approval of the project with some discussion around project 
viability. The applicant has not provided any proof of project financing to Community and Economic Development 
Staff, but indicated in discussion with the Appearance Commission that they secured a loan and want to keep the 
building with conditions of the loan requiring proper permitting from the Village. The applicant’s general contractor 
also stated they believe they are three months of effort away from project completion.  
 
Chairman Kintner asked for the current parking regulations on Fernald Avenue and Lincoln Avenue for residents. The 
on-street parking is capped at 4 hours. The new parking would benefit the residential units. 
 
Chairman Kintner asked if the current condition of the buildings due to the delay in construction is of concern of 
Village staff. There are concerns with the building being open to the elements and possible deteriorating conditions. 
Mr. English said staff is very concerned with the conditions. 
 
Commissioner Hussaini asked if the fire conditions had been remedied. Occupancy has been revoked for both 
buildings due to code violations. 
 
The applicant, Johnnie Jiron, was sworn in by Secretary Kirchner. He said it has been 5 years since the fire, they 
wish to finish the project which they can now do as they have secured financing. They were not planning on any 
renovations prior to the fire. 
 
Chairman Kintner asked if the commercial and residential units would continue to be the same size and use. They do 
not have a replacement for the dry cleaner space and have not targeted a tenant. 
 
Mr. Jiron said they are improving parking by adding a paved, 5-space parking lot for the 5 residential units in the 
building. 
 
Chairman Kintner discussed the time frame required for completion, 120 days is now required. Mr. Rocha, the 
contractor, was sworn in. He is comfortable with the time frame. He noted there is no water damage and they want to 
turn on the heat and begin work. They are about on-half way through the interiors and exteriors of the buildings. 
 
Commissioner Ingram asked about storm water detention and drainage. It is a requirement because of the added 
pavement. 
 
Commissioner Stein asked how long the house wrap has been exposed. It has been exposed for almost one year. 
The wrap would need to be redone as it has been installed for over a year. 
 
Commissioner Mohr asked if the timeline for permit approval is included in the 120 days. It is an aggressive 
timeframe, but staff think the permit processing can be met. The 2022 plans are the most recent and later revisions 
were done in 2025 for the rear building. 
 



PC 25-10 – 6222 Lincoln Avenue & 8503-09 Fernald Avenue Mixed-Use Development 
October 28, 2025 

 

 
4 

Judy Garcia of 8510 Georgiana said she does not like the cinder block enclosure for the trash enclosure. Staff said 
the enclosure was required. 
 
Commissioner Hussaini said the storm water detention is an important point. It is not an MWRD requirement due to 
the lot size. It is under the review of the Village Engineer. 
 
Chairman Kintner said there 9 conditions listed in the suggested motion, these may be added upon. 
 
Commissioner Ingram made a motion to recommend approval of Case PC 25-10, a request for approval of a Special 
Use Permit to legalize and authorize the renovation of a nonconforming mixed-use development in a C/R 
Commercial/Residential District (12-5-7:E) at 6222 Lincoln Avenue and 8503-09 Fernald Avenue (10-20-114-049-
0000, 10-20-114-050-0000) in Morton Grove, Illinois, with variations to density (12-5- 7:C), lot width (12-5-7:C), rear 
setback (12-5-7:C), number of structures on a zoning lot less than one acre (12-2-2:A), and off-street parking (12-7-
3:I, 12-5-7:C), subject to the following conditions: 

1. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit final site and engineering plans 

for review and approval by the Community Development Administrator, Village Engineer, and Village 

Administrator, and shall comply with all comments and recommendations provided by the Village 

Engineer in the departmental comment form dated October 16, 2025, whether by strict or alternative 

compliance, subject to the Village Engineer’s final approval. 

2. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall submit a signage plan that 

includes parking area signage for review and approval by the Village Administrator and shall install 

and maintain signage in accordance with the approved signage plan. 

3. The applicant shall commence construction within 120 days of approval of the ordinance granting 

this request for a Special Use Permit, and construction shall be complete within 365 days of approval 

of the same ordinance. The construction start date or completion of construction may be extended 

upon the applicant’s submittal of documentation requesting extensions and as reviewed and 

approved by the Village Administrator. 

4. The Applicant shall advise the Department of Community and Economic Development of any 

proposed change in ownership or operation of the subject property. Such changes may subject the 

owners, lessees, occupants, and users to additional conditions and may serve as the basis for 

amendment to the Special Use Permit. 

5. Prior to filing any Building Permit Application, the owner/applicant shall provide the Village with final 

elevations, material specifications, and landscaping plan for review and approval. Final plans must 

be deemed consistent with the approved elevations, materials, and landscape plan as determined 

by the Community Development Administrator and Appearance Commission Chairperson. If such 

designs are deemed to be inconsistent with the approved plans or if materials are deemed to be of 

a lower quality than the approved materials, then the owner/applicant will be required to file an 

application for an amendment to the Appearance Certificate. 

6. Future sign colors shall blend with the building and storefront colors through use of complementary 

color ranges, or as otherwise approved by the Appearance Commission Chairperson. 

7. Any portable signage shall be permitted pursuant to Section 10-10-8:E, except that the signage frame 

and base shall be constructed primarily of metal or wood, or as otherwise authorized by the Village 

Administrator. 

8. Illuminated signage and other illuminating features on the property may not exceed 5,000K (degrees 

Kelvin). 

9. The applicant shall maintain a contract for snow removal from the site for as long as the development 

is in existence or shall submit an equally effective plan for removal that does not interfere with on-

site parking, subject to review and approval by the Village Administrator. 



PC 25-10 – 6222 Lincoln Avenue & 8503-09 Fernald Avenue Mixed-Use Development 
October 28, 2025 

 

 
5 

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Stein. Chairman Kintner called for the vote. The motion was 
unanimously (5-0) approved.  

 
Final Plans and Supporting Documents 
The application’s final plans and supporting documents recommended for approval by the Plan Commission include the 
following and are attached hereto as “Attachment D”: 
 

1. Special Use Application, submitted by Johnnie Jiron, received August 11, 2025 
2. Owner Authorization, submitted by Johnnie Jiron, dated August 6, 2025 
3. Plat of Survey, prepared by Polena Engineering, LLC, dated December 1, 2021 
4. Site Improvement Plans and Elevations, prepared by HWR Inc., dated December 15, 2022 
5. Open Building Violations, prepared by Atlantis Architects, dated June 16, 2025 
6. Landscape Plan, prepared by HWR Inc., dated December 15, 2022 
7. Summary Traffic and Parking Evaluation Proposed Parking Lot, prepared by Kenig, Lindgren, O’Hara, Aboona 

(KLOA, Inc.), dated May 16, 2022 

Attachments 

• Attachment A – Departmental Comment Form for Case PC 25-10, prepared by Chris Tomich, Village Engineer, 
dated October 27, 2025 

• Attachment B – Staff Report to the Appearance Commission for AC 25-10, prepared by Brandon Nolin, AICP, 
Community Development Administrator, dated September 30, 2025 

• Attachment C – Staff Report to the Plan Commission for PC 25-10, prepared by Brandon Nolin, AICP, Community 
Development Administrator, dated October 16, 2025 

• Attachment D – Final Plans and Supporting Documents for PC 25-10 
 
  



PC 25-10 – 6222 Lincoln Avenue & 8503-09 Fernald Avenue Mixed-Use Development 
October 28, 2025 

 

 
6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A  
Departmental Comment Form for Case PC 25-10 

Prepared by Chris Tomich, Village Engineer 
Dated October 27, 2025 

  



REVIEWING:                 BUILDING FIRE      POLICE PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING         TSC 
 

 
VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

PLAN REVIEW COMMENT FORM 
 

DATE DISTRIBUTED: 8/15/2025 

CASE NUMBER: PC 25-10 

APPLICATION: Request for approval of a Special Use Permit for a Mixed Use Development in a C/R Commercial/Residential District 
(12-5-7:E) with variations to lot width (12-5-7:C), rear setback (12-5-7:C), number of structures on a zoning lot less than one acre (12-2-
2:A), landscaping requirements (12-11), and off-street parking (12-7-3:I, 12-5-7:C) for the property commonly known as 6222 Lincoln 
Avenue and 8503-8509 Fernald Avenue (10-20-114-049-0000, 10-20-114-050-0000) in Morton Grove, Illinois.  

 

A Special Permit Application has been submitted to the Plan Commission for action. Please return your review to the Department of 
Community and Economic Development by Friday, August 29, 2025. 
 

Thank you,  
Brandon Nolin, AICP 
Community Development Administrator  
 

 
COMMENTS OR CONCERNS 

 
 

1. A hard surface for the parking lot with perimeter curb will be required for a site improvement permit. 
2. The plan indicates the parallel parking space is 8 feet wide and the driveway is 12’-5” wide. The 

Municipal Code requires parallel parking spaces to be 8’-6” wide and the driveway to be 12’ wide. It is 
not likely Engineering staff would be supportive of approving a new parking lot at a new facility with 
two-way circulation. Although not explicitly stated in the Municipal Code, one-way circulation would 
be needed for this driveway width, but two-way operation is planned. Driveways on single family 
residential properties of this width generally operate safely as two-way because of the level of control 
of the property. As the driveway lengths get longer and as the ability, familiarity, and cooperation of 
drivers diversifies, the operational safety should be anticipated to decrease. 

3. Garbage collection maneuvers have not been evaluated for the proposed new trash enclosure. It is 
anticipated that garbage truck maneuvers onto the property would be difficult. Rolling the garbage 
containers to the alley for collection should be a condition of development. 

4. The Public Works Department considers snow removal to be a noteworthy issue to be addressed 
because it could have the effect of further constricting a constricted site. 

5. The Traffic Study recommends assigned parking spaces and reversing from the alley into parking 
spaces on the property. The Municipal Code does not explicitly prohibit or encourage this, so some 
judgement is needed. Reversing into parking spaces should be considered a voluntary compliance issue 
because it is not part of a broad requirement for any driver within Morton Grove, Cook County, or 
Illinois. Public Works staff considers lengthy reversing maneuvers to be a potential safety hazard to 
pedestrians, parked vehicles, moving vehicles, and fixed objects. All of those factors are present in 
close proximity to the vehicle accessing the parking area. 



6. The Municipal Code requires stormwater detention this site improvement. Improvements were 
approved at this site in 2022 that did not include stormwater detention. At that time, the Village 
Administrator exercised authority also included in the Municipal Code allowing the Village 
Administrator to grant a waiver to the technical requirement for stormwater detention for the 
additional impervious coverage. This waiver may be considered to have expired. Either the stormwater 
detention would need to be provided or a new waiver from the Village Administrator would be needed 
to meet the code requirements related to stormwater management. 

 
These comments accurately represent existing Village regulations or policies.  
 
Name (please print): Chris Tomich, Village Engineer 
 
Signed: 
 
Date: 10/27/2025 



PC 25-10 – 6222 Lincoln Avenue & 8503-09 Fernald Avenue Mixed-Use Development 
October 28, 2025 

 

 
7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment B 
Staff Report to the Appearance Commission for AC 25-13 

Prepared by Brandon Nolin, AICP, Community Development Administrator 
Dated September 30, 2025 

  



   

 

1 

 

 

 

To: Chairperson Pietron and Members of the Appearance Commission 
 

From: Brandon Nolin, AICP, Community Development Administrator 
 Anne Ryder Kirchner, Planner/Zoning Administrator 
 
Date: August 26, 2025 
 

Re: Appearance Commission Case AC 25-13 
 Request for approval of an Appearance Certificate for site, building, and landscape plans with 

associated waivers for a 4-dwelling unit mixed-use development proposed to be legalized and 
renovated under a Special Use Application (PC 25-10) for the property commonly known as 6222 
Lincoln Avenue and 8503-09 Fernald Avenue (10-20-114-049-0000, 10-20-114-050-0000) in Morton 
Grove, Illinois. 

  
Project Overview 
Johnnie Jiron (“applicant”) submitted a complete Special Use Application to the Department of Community and Economic 
Development requesting authorization to renovate a nonconforming mixed-use development (12-5-7:E) at 6222 Lincoln 
Avenue and 8503-09 Fernald Avenue (“subject property”) with variations to lot width (12-5-7:C), rear setback (12-5-7:C), 
number of structures on a zoning lot less than one acre (12-2-2:A), transparency requirements (12-5-7:A.3.k), and off-
street parking (12-7-3:I, 12-5-7:C). Pursuant to Section 12-16-4:2, Appearance Commission review is required for all 
Special Use Permit applications.  

The subject property was purchased by its current owners, Laureano Jiron, Teresa Jiron, and Miguel Herran in 2004. The 
owners have authorized the applicant, a close relative, to submit the application and appear before the reviewing 
commissions on their behalf. 

 

Subject Property Location Map 

Subject Property 
The subject property is a 0.17-acre corner lot located at the northeast intersection of Lincoln and Fernald Avenues. A 16-
foot-wide improved public alley abuts the property to the north and a multi-family residential building at 6218 Lincoln 
Avenue abuts the property to the east. Another multi-family residential building is located just north of the public alley 
abutting the subject property. The subject property and all surrounding properties are zoned in a C/R 
Commercial/Residential District.  
 

 

 

Community & Economic Development Department 

 
  



   

 

2 

The subject property is improved with two mixed-use structures, one located to the north of the lot (“north building”) and 
one located to the south of the lot (“south building”). Each structure contains two commercial units on the ground floor 
and two residential units on the second floor. At this time, neither structure can be legally occupied due to code 
compliance issues that pose safety concerns. The entire south building was vacated following a fire event in 2020 while 
the occupancy permit for the north building was revoked in September 2024. 
 
Project Summary 
On November 11, 2020, a fire event occurred at the subject property, causing considerable damage to the south 
structure. Pursuant to Section 12-11-4:B, if a nonconforming structure is destroyed by a fire and the cost of restoring the 
structure to its original condition does not exceed 50% of the cost of restoring the entire structure, then the structure may 
be restored provided that a building permit is secured, reconstruction is initiated within one year from the date of the 
damage, and the reconstruction is diligently pursued to completion. According to the applicant, due to issues with the 
insurance adjuster that caused considerable delay, a building permit could not be obtained within the one-year grace 
period provided by Code.  

The applicant obtained a Special Use Permit in 2022 with plans very similar to the plans included in the current 
application. A one-year extension was also granted in 2023 which has since expired. After making initial investments in 
window replacement, siding, and interior and structural improvements to the building, progress on the project stopped. 
The applicant partially completed work on the windows, capping, and siding installation in 2023, but work ceased and the 
exposed façade has been unfinished for approximately two years. The Special Use Permit has expired since the 
applicant failed to make substantive progress in bringing the property to code and implementing the improvements 
approved as part of the special use permit. 

The applicant is now seeking a Special Use Permit to legalize the nonconforming mixed-use development, so that the 
damaged building may be restored. Per the Building Department, the extent of work to be performed will trigger the 
requirement for compliance with the current adopted 2018 International Building Code with respect to egress paths, 
electrical, mechanical, plumbing, and water service. The applicant is planning to complete enhancements to the buildings’ 
facades and will construct off-street parking and landscape screening on the premises, which will improve the property 
beyond its original condition. A summary of existing nonconformities is provided in the following table: 

Dimensional 

Control 
Code Requirement Existing Proposed 

Waiver 

Request 

Lot Width 

(12-5-7:C) 
Min. 60 ft. 57.22 ft. 

No 

change 

Approval of the 

construction of 

a structure on 

a 

nonconforming 

lot (12-15-4:A) 

Rear 

Setback 

(12-5-7:C) 

Min. 10 ft. 57.22 ft. 
No 

change 

Approval of the 

construction of 

a structure on 

a 

nonconforming 

lot (12-15-4:A) 

Off-Street 

Parking 

(12-5-3:I) 

Min. 75% of total for commercial + residential uses or amount 

required of larger use, whichever is greater; min. 1 space/du 
 

Residential: 7 spaces required 

Commercial: 13 spaces required 

   6222 Lincoln: Vacant (1,500 sf. x 1 space/250 sf.) – 6 spaces 

   8505 Fernald: Vacant (320 sf. x 1 space/250 sf.) – 1 space 

   8507 Fernald: Vacant (720 sf. x 1 space/250 sf.) – 3 spaces 

   8509: Vacant Restaurant (720 sf. x 1 space/250 sf.) – 3 spaces 
    

Total: 15 spaces required 

0 spaces 5 spaces 

Waiver of 10 

parking spaces 

to allow a 

mixed-use 

development 5 

spaces 



   

 

3 

Number of 

Structures 

(12-2-2) 

Max. 1 (zoning lots < 1 ac in the C/R District) 2 
No 

change 

Approval of the 

construction of 

two principal 

structures on a 

zoning lot 

 
Staff notes that the Appearance Commission’s review is not for the property’s current exterior, for which the owners have 
received multiple property maintenance violations that will remain open until resolved by repair or demolition. No building 
permit can be issued until the Board approves a Special Use Permit authorizing the nonconforming structures. The 
property owners have been required through the adjudication process to secure the existing facades to ensure that they 
present no hazard to the public or persons living on the premises.  

Site Design 
That the development was constructed over a century ago should be taken into consideration in the Commission’s review 
of the existing site design. Generally, the site design is in keeping with the guidelines for C/R District development. 
Section 12-5-7:A.3 establishes fundamental design principals for development in the District, which “is intended to 
encourage the creation of a vibrant mixed-use neighborhood that allows for convenient access to local businesses and 
the Metra station while giving priority to pedestrians and residents.” The principals encourage a defined streetwall that 
creates a comfortable public space scaled for humans.  

The existing site plan includes near-zero-foot setbacks along the Lincoln and Fernald Avenue frontages, which define the 
streetwall and help create a traditional neighborhood feel. The proposed parking area is located to the side of the 
buildings, which complies with established guidelines for C/R District development.  

The minimal separation between the two existing structures is not typical of current development and would likely not be 
approved today. The parking area to the east is also much narrower than permitted by Village dimensional standards for 
parallel parking and an abutting access drive. The parking area would function better with two-way access, but the 
existing geometry of the street and property do not support an additional vehicular access point along Lincoln Avenue.  

Building Design 
The existing building exteriors are proposed to be refinished with a charcoal gray Hardie board siding. New aluminum 
capping in white will be placed around most windows and new commercial grade entry doors with transparent glazing are 
proposed at existing entry points along the street frontages. Based on the submitted elevations, some windows will be 
replaced, but most will remain in place. The existing cornice on the south façade of 6222 Lincoln building will be 
preserved and painted white, while a matching cornice to be made of white polyurethane will be installed along the east 
and west façades of that building, as well as along the west façade of 8503-09 Fernald. 

The applicant partially completed work on the windows, capping, and siding installation in 2023, but work remains 
incomplete including only partial siding installation. No parking or landscaping improvements have been made. 

  

Existing Cornice (LEFT); Partially Installed Hardie Board (RIGHT) 



   

 

4 

Section 12-5-7 establishes façade requirements for commercial and mixed-use structures in the C/R District. A minimum 
transparency of 50% is required between two (2) and 12 feet above grade for ground-floor commercial uses. The existing 
windows along the south elevation facing Lincoln Avenue are proposed to remain in place and currently provide a 
conforming transparency of 50.2%. Two new windows have been installed to the south building’s west elevation, which 
increased the transparency to 55.6%. A new window and glass doors were installed in west façade of the north building 
to achieve an existing facade transparency of 36.7%, which does not comply with minimum facade transparency 
requirements. The applicant is requesting variations to approve the submitted elevations as presented. The applicant is 
expected to comply with all other façade requirements set forth in Section 12-5-7.   

Development 
Control 

Requirement Proposed Waivers Requested 

Facade 
Transparency 
(12-5-7:A.3.k) 

Min. 50% of wall area 
between 2 and 12 feet 
above grade shall be 
occupied by windows 
or entry doors 

North Building: 
   West elevation (Fernald): 36.7% 
South Building: 
   South elevation (Lincoln): 50.2% 
   West elevation (Fernald): 55.6% 

North Building:  West elevation 
(Fernald): 13.3% to allow an elevation is 
36.7% transparency 
South Building: Compliant 

Clarity 
(12-5-7:A.3.k.1) 

Clear transparent 
glass  

Clear transparent glass Compliant 

Tinting & 
Screening 
(12-5-7:A.3.k.2) 

Tint, internal 
screening, patterns, 
and mirrored coating 
prohibited 

No tint, internal screening, patterns, or 
mirrored coating proposed 

Compliant 

Coatings 
(12-5-7:A.3.k.3) 

Limited to minimum U-
factor requirement in 
the State-adopted 
International Energy 
Conservation Code 

Coating limited to minimum U-factor 
requirement 

Compliant 

Grade 
(12-5-7:A.3.k.4) 

Commercial grade and 
design 

Commercial grade and design Compliant 

Obstruction 
(12-5-7:A.3.k.5) 

No obstruction beyond 
Chapter 10-10 
permissions 

No obstruction beyond Chapter 10-10 
permissions 

Compliant 

 
Landscape Design 
The applicant submitted a parking lot plan that includes a new landscape bed that is 5.4 ft. wide along the south lot line. 
Per Section 12-11-3:B.1, paved surface areas located adjacent to sidewalks or streets must be screened with a 
landscape yard measuring at least five feet in width and containing a year-round dense opaque screen of landscaping a 
minimum of three feet in height. Proposed plantings within the landscape bed include arborvitae and a Tilia cordata 

(Littleleaf Linden) tree. Littleleaf Linden is an approved street tree species within the Village and is appropriate for the 
proposed location which is adjacent the Lincoln Avenue right-of-way. 
 
Signage  
Because no specific future tenants are being proposed at this time, a signage plan was not submitted to the Appearance 
Commission for review. All signage is expected to comply with all requirements of Chapter 10-10 unless waivers are 
requested and approved by the Appearance Commission at a later date.  

To maintain a high quality “downtown” feel, Staff recommends conditions of approval for future signage that will enhance 
the overall quality of signage serving the property:  

1) Sign colors shall blend with the building and storefront colors through use of complementary color ranges, or as 
otherwise approved by the Appearance Commission Chairperson.  

2) Any portable signage shall be permitted pursuant to Section 10-10-8:E, except that the signage frame and base 
shall be constructed primarily of metal or wood, or as otherwise authorized by the Village Administrator.  

3) Illuminated signage and other illuminating features on the property may not exceed 5,000K (degrees Kelvin).  
 



   

 

5 

Appearance Commission Review  
In accordance with Unified Development Code Section 12-12-1:C, all site, landscape and building plans are to be 

reviewed by the Appearance Commission, and an Appearance Certificate by the Commission granted, prior to the 

issuance of a building permit. Further, per Section 12-16-2:C.2, the Appearance Commission is charged with reviewing 

the exterior elevations, sketches, and materials and other exhibits as to whether they are appropriate to or compatible 

with the character of the immediate neighborhood and whether the submitted plans comply with the provisions of the 

regulations and standards set forth in chapter, 12 "Design Standards," of this title. 

 

The Design Standards (Sec. 12-12-1:D) are as follows: 

D. Criteria and Evaluation Elements: The following factors and characteristics relating to a unit or development and which 

affect appearance, will govern the appearance review commission's evaluation of a design submission: 

1.   Evaluation Standards: 

a.  Property Values: Where a substantial likelihood exists that a building will depreciate property values of 

adjacent properties or throughout the community, construction of that building should be barred. 

b.  Inappropriateness: A building that is obviously incongruous with its surroundings or unsightly and grotesque 

can be inappropriate in light of the comprehensive plan goal of preserving the character of the municipality. 

c.  Similarity/Dissimilarity: A builder should avoid excessively similar or excessively dissimilar adjacent 

buildings. 

d.  Safety: A building whose design or color might, because of the building's location, be distracting to vehicular 

traffic may be deemed a safety hazard. 

2. Design Criteria: 

a.  Standards: Appearance standards as set forth in this chapter. 

b. Logic Of Design: Generally accepted principles, parameters and criteria of validity in the solution of design 

problems. 

c.   Architectural Character: The composite or aggregate of the components of structure, form, materials and 

functions of a building or group of buildings and other architectural and site composing elements. 

d. Attractiveness: The relationship of compositional qualities of commonly accepted design parameters such 

as scale, mass, volume, texture, color and line, which are pleasing and interesting to the reasonable 

observer. 

e. Compatibility: The characteristics of different uses of activities that permit them to be located near each 

other in harmony and without conflict. Some elements affecting compatibility include intensity of occupancy 

as measured by dwelling units per acre; floor area ratio; pedestrian or vehicular traffic generated; parking 

required; volume of goods handled; and such environmental effects as noise, vibration, glare, air pollution, 

erosion, or radiation. 

f.  Harmony: A quality which produces an aesthetically pleasing whole as in an arrangement of varied 

architectural and landscape elements. 

g. Material Selection: Material selection as it relates to the evaluation standards and ease and feasibility of 

future maintenance. 

h.   Landscaping: All requirements set forth in chapter 11, "Landscaping and Trees", of this title. (Ord. 07-07, 3-

26-2007) 

 



   

 

6 

Recommendation  
If the Appearance Commission approves the request for an Appearance Certificate for site, building, and landscape plans 
with associated waivers for a 4-dwelling unit mixed-use development proposed to be legalized and renovated under a 
Special Use Application (PC 25-10) for the property commonly known as 6222 Lincoln Avenue and 8503-09 Fernald 
Avenue in Morton Grove, Illinois, staff recommends the following conditions of approval:  

 
1) Prior to filing any Building Permit Application, the owner/applicant shall provide the Village with final elevations, 

material specifications, and landscaping plan for review and approval. Final plans must be deemed consistent 
with the approved elevations, materials, and landscape plan as determined by the Community Development 
Administrator and Appearance Commission Chairperson. If such designs are deemed to be inconsistent with the 
approved plans or if materials are deemed to be of a lower quality than the approved materials, then the 
owner/applicant will be required to file an application for an amendment to the Appearance Certificate.  

2) Future sign colors shall blend with the building and storefront colors through use of complementary color ranges, 
or as otherwise approved by the Appearance Commission Chairperson.  

3) Any portable signage shall be permitted pursuant to Section 10-10-8:E, except that the signage frame and base 
shall be constructed primarily of metal or wood, or as otherwise authorized by the Village Administrator.  

4) Illuminated signage and other illuminating features on the property may not exceed 5,000K (degrees Kelvin).  

 

 

 



PC 25-10 – 6222 Lincoln Avenue & 8503-09 Fernald Avenue Mixed-Use Development 
October 28, 2025 

 

 
8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment C 
Staff Report to the Plan Commission for PC 25-10 

Prepared by Brandon Nolin, AICP, Community Development Administrator 
Dated October 16, 2025 

  



   

 

1 

 

 

 

To: Chairperson Kintner and Members of the Plan Commission 
 

From: Brandon Nolin, AICP, Community Development Administrator 
 Anne Ryder Kirchner, Planner/Zoning Administrator 
 
Date: October 16, 2025 
 

Re: Plan Commission Case PC 25-10 

Request for approval of a Special Use Permit for a Mixed Use Development in a C/R 
Commercial/Residential District (12-5-7:E) with variations to lot width (12-5-7:C), rear setback (12-5-7:C), 
number of structures on a zoning lot less than one acre (12-2-2:A), landscaping requirements (12-11), 
and off-street parking (12-7-3:I, 12-5-7:C) for the property commonly known as 6222 Lincoln Avenue and 
8503-8509 Fernald Avenue (10-20-114-049-0000, 10-20-114-050-0000) in Morton Grove, Illinois. The 
applicant is Johnnie Jiron. 

 
Public Notice 
The Village of Morton Grove provided public notice for the October 21, 2025, Plan Commission public hearing for PC 25-10 in 
accordance with the Unified Development code. The Morton Grove Champion published a notice on October 2, 2012. The 
Village mailed letters on October 2, 2025, notifying surrounding property owners, and placed a public notice sign on the 
subject properties on October 2, 2025. 
 
Application Summary 
Johnnie Jiron (“applicant”) submitted a complete Special Use Application to the Department of Community and Economic 
Development requesting authorization to renovate a nonconforming mixed-use development (12-5-7:E) at 6222 Lincoln 
Avenue and 8503-09 Fernald Avenue (“subject property”) with variations to lot width (12-5-7:C), rear setback (12-5-7:C), 
number of structures on a zoning lot less than one acre (12-2-2:A), transparency requirements (12-5-7:A.3.k), and off-
street parking (12-7-3:I, 12-5-7:C).  

The subject property was purchased by its current owners, Laureano Jiron, Teresa Jiron, and Miguel Herran in 2004. The 
owners have authorized the applicant, a close relative, to submit the application and appear before the reviewing 
commissions on their behalf. 

 

Subject Property Location Map 

 
 

 

 

Community & Economic Development Department 

 
  



   

 

2 

Subject Property 
The subject property is a 0.17-acre corner lot located at the northeast intersection of Lincoln and Fernald Avenues. A 16-
foot-wide improved public alley abuts the property to the north and a multi-family residential building at 6218 Lincoln 
Avenue abuts the property to the east. Another multi-family residential building is located just north of the public alley 
abutting the subject property. The subject property and all surrounding properties are zoned in a C/R 
Commercial/Residential District.  
 
The subject property is improved with two mixed-use structures, one located to the north of the lot (“north building”) and 
one located to the south of the lot (“south building”). Each structure contains two commercial units on the ground floor 
and two residential units on the second floor. At this time, neither structure can be legally occupied due to code 
compliance issues that pose safety concerns. The entire south building was vacated following a fire event in 2020 while 
the occupancy permit for the north building was revoked in September 2024. 
 
Project Summary 
On November 11, 2020, a fire event occurred at the subject property, causing considerable damage to the south 
structure. Pursuant to Section 12-11-4:B, if a nonconforming structure is destroyed by a fire and the cost of restoring the 
structure to its original condition does not exceed 50% of the cost of restoring the entire structure, then the structure may 
be restored provided that a building permit is secured, reconstruction is initiated within one year from the date of the 
damage, and the reconstruction is diligently pursued to completion. According to the applicant, due to issues with the 
insurance adjuster that caused considerable delay, a building permit could not be obtained within the one-year grace 
period provided by Code.  

The applicant obtained a Special Use Permit in 2022 with plans very similar to the plans included in the current 
application. A one-year extension was also granted in 2023 which has since expired. After making initial investments in 
window replacement, siding, and interior and structural improvements to the building, progress on the project stopped. 
The applicant partially completed work on the windows, capping, and siding installation in 2023, but work ceased and the 
exposed façade has been unfinished for approximately two years. The Special Use Permit has expired since the 
applicant failed to make substantive progress in bringing the property to code and implementing the improvements 
approved as part of the special use permit. 

The applicant is now seeking a Special Use Permit to legalize the nonconforming mixed-use development, so that the 
damaged building may be restored. Per the Building Department, the extent of work to be performed will trigger the 
requirement for compliance with the current adopted 2018 International Building Code with respect to egress paths, 
electrical, mechanical, plumbing, and water service. The applicant is planning to complete enhancements to the buildings’ 
facades and will construct off-street parking and landscape screening on the premises, which will improve the property 
beyond its original condition.  
 

  

Subject Property as seen from Lincoln Avenue (LEFT) and from Fernald Avenue (RIGHT) 



   

 

3 

Site Design 
That the development was constructed over a century ago should be taken into consideration in the Commission’s review 
of the existing site design. Generally, the site design is in keeping with the guidelines for C/R District development. 
Section 12-5-7:A.3 establishes fundamental design principals for development in the District, which “is intended to 
encourage the creation of a vibrant mixed-use neighborhood that allows for convenient access to local businesses and 
the Metra station while giving priority to pedestrians and residents.” The principals encourage a defined streetwall that 
creates a comfortable public space scaled for humans.  

The existing site plan includes near-zero-foot setbacks along the Lincoln and Fernald Avenue frontages, which define the 
streetwall and help create a traditional neighborhood feel. The proposed parking area is located to the side of the 
buildings, which complies with established guidelines for C/R District development.  

The minimal separation between the two existing structures is not typical of current development and would likely not be 
approved today. The parking area to the east is also much narrower than permitted by Village dimensional standards for 
parallel parking and an abutting access drive. The parking area would function better with two-way access, but the 
existing geometry of the street and property do not support an additional vehicular access point along Lincoln Avenue.  

Applying current development controls for mixed-use development in the C/R District, the subject property is 
nonconforming with respect to lot area (density), lot width, rear setback, number of structures on a zoning lot, and number 
of bedrooms per unit. A summary of existing and proposed compliance with applicable development controls is provided 
in the following table: 

C/R District 
Dimensional 
Controls 

Requirement Existing Proposed Conformity 

Lot Area 

(Density) 

(12-5-7:C) 

Max. 24 dwelling units/ac 29.4 du/ac 

(5 du / 0.17 ac) 

29.4 du/ac 

(5 du / 0.17 ac) 

Nonconforming – Waiver of 

5.4 du/ac requested 

Lot Width 

(12-5-7:C) 
Min. 60 ft. 57.22 ft. 57.22 ft. 

Nonconforming – Waiver of 

2.78 ft. requested 

Front Setback 

(12-5-7:C) 
Min. 0 ft., Max. 10 ft. 

Lincoln: 1.94 ft. 

Fernald: 0.19 ft. 

Lincoln: 1.94 ft. 

Fernald: 0.19 ft. 
Compliant 

Interior Side 

Setback 

(12-5-7:C) 

 
Min. 5 ft. – 10 ft. 

West: 25 ft. 

Separating: 

West: 25 ft. 

Separating: 

 
Compliant 

Rear Setback 

(12-5-7:C) 
Min. 10 ft. 0.77 ft. 0.77 ft. 

Nonconforming – Waiver of 

9.23 ft. requested 

Building Height 

(12-5-7:C) 
Max. 50 ft. < 50 ft. < 50 ft. Compliant 

Number of 

Structures 

(12-2-2) 

Max. 1 (zoning lots < 1 ac 

in the C/R District) 

 
2 

 
2 

Nonconforming – Waiver of 1 

structure requested 

Stairs 

(12-2-6:G) 

Permitted encroachment in 

front yards, Max. 5 ft. 

Max. encroachment 

< 5 ft. 

Max. encroachment 

< 5 ft. 
Compliant 

Number of 

Bedrooms 

(12-5-7:D) 

 
Min. 1 bedroom per unit 

8505 Fernald: 

Studio apartment 

8505 Fernald: 

Studio apartment 

Nonconforming – Waiver to 

allow 1 studio apartment 

 

Only building demolition or reconstruction would help address the above dimensional nonconformities. As the applicant is 
seeking legalization of the existing buildings in their current footprints and no change to the residential unit count, no 
dimensional nonconformities will be alleviated or eliminated by the requested Special Use Permit.  

Section 12-5-7:D requires that commercial uses shall be located on the ground floor facing the street with residential units 
above or behind the commercial space. Staff finds that the south building’s ground-floor residential unit complies with this 



   

 

4 

standard when the building is considered as a standalone development. The residential unit is considered to be behind 
the dominant commercial unit, which fronts on Lincoln Avenue, even though it also faces a public street. 

Off-Street Parking & Site Access 
Per Section 12-7-3:B, all Special Use Permit applications must provide a traffic and parking impact study which details the 
traffic impact and the amount of parking necessary and its usage. For Special Uses, the off-street parking requirements 
set forth in Section 12-7-3:I are advisory only and the final parking required is decided by the Village Board based on the 
submitted study, any traffic and parking recommendation prepared by the Village staff, and the final recommendation of 
the Plan Commission. The applicant submitted a study prepared by Kenig, Lindgren, O'Hara, Aboona, Inc. (KLOA) which 
describes existing conditions, proposed parking lot use, and an evaluation of on-site access and circulation, but does not 
provide a parking demand analysis. The applicant is expected to discuss the development’s parking demand at the 
Plan Commission meeting and discuss whether the development can be supported by the proposed on-site 
parking capacity in combination with available surrounding on-street parking, which is naturally subject to 
change. 
 

Currently, no conforming parking spaces are located on the subject property. Historically, the unimproved 25-foot-wide lot 
to the east of the principal structures has been used for occasional vehicle parking even though it is partially grassed and 
partially graveled. In 2022, the applicant was advised by staff to make every effort to provide on-site parking to help 
alleviate the parking nonconformity and reduce the development’s impact on surrounding street parking. The applicant 
produced a parking lot plan for the lot to the east that includes 5 parallel parking spaces located along the east lot line. 
The parking lot stalls measure 8 feet in width by 22 feet in depth and the abutting drive aisle measures 12.42 feet at the 
narrowest point. 

Section 12-7-3:J establishes minimum dimensional requirements for parallel parking stalls, which are 8.5 feet for width, 21 
feet for depth, and 12 feet for drive aisle width. Staff notes that the 12-foot minimum drive aisle width is intended to 
support one-way traffic only. A typical two-way drive aisle measures 24 feet in width. 

Due to the physical constraints of the parking lot, the applicant is proposing that vehicles back into the parking lot from the 
abutting alley and into the parallel parking spaces. This maneuvering allows the driver’s door to open onto the drive aisle 
and presents the least amount of hazard to pedestrians and vehicles within the alley. A landscaping bed along the south 
lot line will provide separation between the parking lot and the Lincoln Avenue public sidewalk, so pedestrian activity 
within the parking lot will be limited to residents of the development. The applicant is proposing that each residential unit 
is provided with one on-site parking space. 

Staff recommends that future occupancy is limited to uses requiring no more than one space per 250 square feet of gross 
floor area. Section 12-5-7:C adjusts the requirements for off-street parking for mixed-use developments in a C/R District 
to 75% of the sum of each use set forth by Chapter 7 or the amount required of the larger use. A minimum of one space 
must be reserved for each residential unit. A parking bonus of 15% for developments within a quarter mile of a municipal 
parking lot is also provided by Section 12-5-7:A.2.a. A municipal parking lot for public use is located just east of the 
Morton Grove Fire Station #4 at 6250 Lincoln Avenue, just over 200 feet from the subject property. 
 

Control Requirement Existing Proposed Conformity 

Off-Street 

Parking 

(12-5-3:I) 

Min. 75% of total for commercial + residential uses or amount 

required of larger use, whichever is greater; min. 1 space/du 

Residential: 1.75 spaces/du = 9 spaces required 

Commercial: 12 spaces required 

6222 Lincoln: Vacant (1,500 sf. x 1 space/250 sf.) – 6 spaces 

8507 Fernald: Vacant (720 sf. x 1 space/250 sf.) – 3 spaces 

8509: Vacant (720 sf. x 1 space/250 sf.) – 3 spaces 

Subtotal: 21 spaces required x 0.75 = 16 spaces 

Total: 16 spaces x 0.85 (TOD discount) = 14 spaces 

0 spaces 5 spaces Nonconforming 

– Waiver of 9 

spaces 

requested 

 
 



   

 

5 

Building Design 
The exteriors of both north and south buildings are proposed to be refinished with a charcoal gray Hardie board 
siding which has been partially installed. New white aluminum capping has been installed around most windows 
and new commercial grade entry doors with transparent glazing have been installed at existing entry points 
along the street frontages. Some windows have also been replaced. A landscape bed measuring at least five 
feet in depth is proposed along the south Lincoln Avenue lot line. 

At the October 7, 2025, meeting of the Appearance Commission, the applicant presented a site plan and building 
elevations. Commission members discussed the applicant’s ability to develop the project within the allowable 18 
month timeframe of a Special Use Permit. 

The Appearance Commission voted (5-1) to approve an Appearance Certificate for the project with minimal 
discussion regarding the design.  

Stormwater 
The applicant is proposing to pave the unimproved 25-foot-wide lot to the east of the principal structures. As 
noted in the departmental comment form issued by the Village Engineer, stormwater detention will be required as 
part of a site improvement permit. Per Section 12-10-4:B, detention volume and release rates must be calculated 
in accordance with Metropolitan Water Reclamation District (MWRD) standards. The applicant was not asked to 
submit a stormwater detention plan because of the limited nature of the detention to be required and the 
possibility of the parking lot not being approved as presented. It is expected that the stormwater detention will be 
provided underground unless surface detention is a viable option. 

Trash & Snow Removal 
A new trash enclosure is proposed to the east of the north building. Staff does not expect that garbage trucks will 
be able to access the site, so trash receptacles will need to be moved to the alley on collection days. This is a 
recommended condition of Special Use Permit approval. 

The submitted traffic and parking impact study and site plans do not identify a location for snow storage on the 
property. As such, a recommended condition of Special Use Permit approval is that the applicant maintains a 
contract for snow removal from the site for as long as the development is in existence or submits an equally 
effective plan for removal that does not interfere with on-site parking, such as a snow melting system, subject to 
review and approval by the Village Administrator. 
 
Construction Schedule 
The applicant is expected to discuss the proposed schedule for renovation. The fire event occurred nearly 
five years ago and the previous Special Use Permit expired without significant progress having been made in 
improving the subject property. The applicant has provided no information regarding the financing of the project or 
construction timeline. Staff is concerned by the 18-month time limit provided for Special Use Permits by Section 
12-16-4:C.6.c, which reads as follows: 

12-16-4:C.6.c.Time Limit for Special Use Permits: A permit for a special use shall be valid for a period 
no longer than eighteen (18) months from the date of issue unless a building permit is issued and 
construction is actually begun within that period and is thereafter actively pursued to completion, or a 
certificate of occupancy is obtained and a use commenced within that period. 

Staff recommends that a more stringent schedule for completion is included as a condition of Special Use Permit 
approval. Staff is supportive of the previous Special Use Permit requirement that construction commence within 
120 days of ordinance adoption and construction be completed within 365 days of ordinance adoption. 
 
Commission Review 
Appearance Commission  
On October 7, 2025, the Appearance Commission reviewed Case PC 25-10. At the conclusion of the discussion, the 
Appearance Commission recommended approval (5-1) of the application with recommended conditions. The Staff Report 
to the Appearance Commission has been included as “Attachment A.” 

The chairperson of the Traffic Safety Commission waived the requirement for review. 



   

 

6 

Departmental Review  
The proposed project was reviewed by several department representatives with the Fire Department and Department of 
Public Works providing comments (see “Attachment B”).  
 

• Building Department: Submit for review 5 full sets of architectural plans for both buildings based on the 
currently adopted codes and amendments.  

• Fire Department: No comments at this time. 

• Public Works Department/Engineering: In review of the proposed project, the Village Engineer noted that 
plans will need to be updated with a current licensed design professional stamp. The Village Engineer also 
noted that if water service replacement is required, that improvement will to be added to the site improvement 
plans and carried through the permit application including a required right of way permit. 

 
Standards for Review 
The Standards for Subdivision are established in Section 12-16-4:D.3 of the Unified Development Code: 
12-16-4:D.3. Standards for Subdivisions: The following standards for evaluating subdivisions shall be applied in a 
reasonable manner, taking into consideration the restrictions and/or limitations which exist for the site being considered 
for development: 

1. Orderly Development: The proposed subdivision will encourage orderly and harmonious development within the 
Village. 

2. Coordination of Streets: The streets within the proposed subdivision will coordinate with other existing and 
planned streets within the Village. 

3. Coordination of Utilities: The utilities within the proposed subdivision will coordinate with existing and planned 
utilities, and create a uniform system of utilities within the Village. 

4. Consistency with Comprehensive Plan: The proposed subdivision will be evaluated based on its consistency 
with the overall land use policies of the Village as may be expressed in the Village's comprehensive plan. 

5. Section 12-16-4:C.5 of the Unified Development Code establishes Standards for Special Uses, which are 
intended to be used for evaluating Special Use Permit requests. The Standards are as follows: 
 

12-16-4:C.5. Standards for Special Uses: The following standards for evaluating special uses shall be applied in a 
reasonable manner, taking into consideration the restrictions and/or limitations which exist for the site being considered 
for development: 

1. Preservation of Health, Safety, Morals, And Welfare: The establishment, maintenance and operation of the 
special use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals or general welfare. 

2. Adjacent Properties: The special use should not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the uses permitted in the zoning district. 

3. Orderly Development: The establishment of the special use will not impede normal and orderly development or 
impede the utilization of surrounding property for uses permitted in the zoning district. 

4. Adequate Facilities: Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary facilities are in existence or 
are being provided. 

5. Traffic Control: Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress designed to 
minimize traffic congestion on the public streets. The proposed use of the subject site should not draw 
substantial amounts of traffic on local residential streets. 

6. Adequate Buffering: Adequate fencing and/or screening shall be provided to ensure the right of enjoyment of 
surrounding properties to provide for the public safety or to screen parking areas and other visually incompatible 
uses. 

7. Conformance to Other Regulations: The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to applicable provisions 
of this title or amendments thereto. Variation from provisions of this title as provided for in subsection 12-16-3A, 
"Variations", of this chapter, may be considered by the plan commission and the Village board of trustees as a 
part of the special use permit. 

8.  
The applicant should be prepared to discuss how the project meets the above standards at the Plan Commission public 
hearing.  



   

 

7 

 
 
Recommendation  
If the Plan Commission moves to recommend approval of this application, staff suggests the following motion and 
conditions: Motion to recommend approval of Case PC 25-10, a request for approval of a Special Use Permit to legalize 
and authorize the renovation of a nonconforming mixed-use development in a C/R Commercial/Residential District (12-5-
7:E) at 6222 Lincoln Avenue and 8503-09 Fernald Avenue (10-20-114-049-0000, 10-20-114-050-0000) in Morton Grove, 
Illinois, with variations to density (12-5- 7:C), lot width (12-5-7:C), rear setback (12-5-7:C), number of structures on a 
zoning lot less than one acre (12-2-2:A), and off-street parking (12-7-3:I, 12-5-7:C), subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit final site and engineering plans 
for review and approval by the Community Development Administrator, Village Engineer, and Village 
Administrator, and shall comply with all comments and recommendations provided by the Village 
Engineer in the departmental comment form dated October 16, 2025, whether by strict or alternative 
compliance, subject to the Village Engineer’s final approval. 

2. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall submit a signage plan that 
includes parking area signage for review and approval by the Village Administrator and shall install and 
maintain signage in accordance with the approved signage plan. 

3. The applicant shall commence construction within 120 days of approval of the ordinance granting this 
request for a Special Use Permit, and construction shall be complete within 365 days of approval of the same 
ordinance. The construction start date or completion of construction may be extended upon the applicant’s 
submittal of documentation requesting extensions and as reviewed and approved by the Village 
Administrator. 

4. The Applicant shall advise the Department of Community and Economic Development of any 
proposed change in ownership or operation of the subject property. Such changes may subject 
the owners, lessees, occupants, and users to additional conditions and may serve as the basis for 
amendment to the Special Use Permit. 

5. Prior to filing any Building Permit Application, the owner/applicant shall provide the Village with 
final elevations, material specifications, and landscaping plan for review and approval. Final plans 
must be deemed consistent with the approved elevations, materials, and landscape plan as 
determined by the Community Development Administrator and Appearance Commission 
Chairperson. If such designs are deemed to be inconsistent with the approved plans or if materials 
are deemed to be of a lower quality than the approved materials, then the owner/applicant will be 
required to file an application for an amendment to the Appearance Certificate. 

6. Future sign colors shall blend with the building and storefront colors through use of 
complementary color ranges, or as otherwise approved by the Appearance Commission 
Chairperson. 

7. Any portable signage shall be permitted pursuant to Section 10-10-8:E, except that the signage 
frame and base shall be constructed primarily of metal or wood, or as otherwise authorized by the 
Village Administrator. 

8. Illuminated signage and other illuminating features on the property may not exceed 5,000K 
(degrees Kelvin). 

9. The applicant shall maintain a contract for snow removal from the site for as long as the 
development is in existence or shall submit an equally effective plan for removal that does not 
interfere with on-site parking, subject to review and approval by the Village Administrator. 

10. (Any other conditions recommended by the Plan Commission) 



PC 25-10 – 6222 Lincoln Avenue & 8503-09 Fernald Avenue Mixed-Use Development 
October 28, 2025 

 

 
9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment D 
Final Plans and Supporting Documents for PC 25-10 

 
1. Special Use Application, submitted by Johnnie Jiron, received August 11, 2025 

2. Owner Authorization, submitted by Johnnie Jiron, dated August 6, 2025 

3. Plat of Survey, prepared by Polena Engineering, LLC, dated December 1, 2021 

4. Site Improvement Plans and Elevations, prepared by HWR Inc., dated December 15, 2022 

5. Open Building Violations, prepared by Atlantis Architects, dated June 23, 2025 

6. Landscape Plan, prepared by HWR Inc., dated December 15, 2022 

7. Summary Traffic and Parking Evaluation Proposed Parking Lot, prepared by Kenig, Lindgren, O’Hara, 

Aboona (KLOA, Inc.), dated May 16, 2022 

 

Attachment D on file with the Department of Community and Economic Development 
 



Submitted by – Charles L. Meyer, Village Administrator       

Reviewed by - Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel 

Prepared by – Brandon Nolin, AICP, Community Development Administrator 

Legislative Summary  
 

Ordinance 25-35 

APPROVING A MINOR AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE 24-19 GRANTING A SPECIAL USE 

PERMIT FOR AN AUTOMOBILE MINIMART STATION AT 6335 DEMPSTER STREET IN 

MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

Introduction: November 12, 2025 

  

Purpose: To amend a Special Use Permit authorizing the construction of an automobile minimart station at 6335 

Dempster Street to grant a 12-month extension of time, until October 22, 2026, to begin construction. 

  

Background: On October 22, 2024, the Village Board approved a Special Use permit for an automobile minimart station 

at 6335 Dempster Street (Ord. 24-19). Per Section 12-16-4: C.6.c of the Village Code, a special use permit 

is valid for a period of no longer than one year from the date of approval, unless a building permit is issued 

and construction is begun and actively pursued to completion.  

 

In the attached letter received October 21, 2025, Alex Skariah on behalf of Cissily, Inc., the applicant 

requested an additional 12-month extension to October 22, 2026, to allow additional time to obtain all 

necessary permits and begin construction. The applicant, who owns the property and operates an existing 

gas station at the subject property, has been working diligently with Village Staff to obtain needed permits. 

Village Staff provided comments on initial permit materials and to the applicant working to address those 

comments and submit revised materials. The applicant also submitted for permit from the Metropolitan 

Water Reclamation District (MWRD) and the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT), but is still 

awaiting the required approvals. 

 

Section 12-16-4-B of the Unified Development Code allows minor amendments to existing special use 

permits upon the review of the request by the Building Commissioner or his/her designee, the Plan 

Commission Chairperson, Village Administrator, and Corporation Counsel. Since the proposed 

amendment would not change any aspect of the approved use or site plan, the proposed request for an 

extension is eligible for approval as a minor amendment to Ordinance 23-18. 

Programs, Dept’s, 

Groups Affected 
Department of Community and Economic Development 

  

Fiscal Impact: N/A 
  

Source of Funds: N/A 
  

Workload Impact: N/A 
  

Administrative  

Recommendation: 
Approval as presented 

  

Second Reading: November 25, 2025 
  

Special 

Considerations or 

Requirements: 

None 

 



1 

 

ORDINANCE 25-35  

APPROVING A MINOR AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE 24-19 GRANTING A 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR AN AUTOMOBILE MINIMART STATION AT  

6335 DEMPSTER STREET IN MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (“Village”), located in Cook County, Illinois, is 

a home rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the 

State of Illinois, and can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government 

and affairs, including, but not limited to, the power to tax and incur debt; and 

WHEREAS, 6335 Dempster Street, legally described in “Exhibit A”, attached hereto, and 

made a part of this Ordinance, is a 13,540-square-foot (0.3-acre) property zoned C-1 General 

Commercial and improved with an automobile minimart station (“Subject Property”); and  

WHEREAS, on October 22, 2024, pursuant to Ordinance 24-19, a special use permit 

application from Morton Grove Mobil for an automobile minimart station to operate at 6335 

Dempster Street was approved by the Village Board; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant Section 12-16-4:C.6.c of the Village Code a special use permit shall 

be valid for one year unless a building permit is issued and construction is begun within that period 

and is thereafter actively pursued to completion or a certificate of occupancy is obtained and a use 

commenced; and 

WHEREAS, the applicant, Cissily, Inc., has made proper application to the Village of 

Morton Grove for a minor amendment to the previously granted special use permit for an 

additional time extension of 12 months, until October 22, 2026, to meet the parameters of Section 

12-16-4:C.6.c; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 07-07, the Village adopted a Unified Development 

Code which set forth an abbreviated procedure for minor revisions to special use permits which 

allows for the granting of such amendments without a formal public hearing process subject to the 

recommendation for approval by the Village Administrator, Corporation Counsel, Building 

Commissioner, and Plan Commission Chairperson and subsequent approval by the Village Board; 

and 



   

 

2 

 

WHEREAS, the Village Administrator, Corporation Counsel, Building Commissioner and 

Plan Commission Chairperson have found this amendment with certain conditions as set forth in 

this ordinance meets the standard for the abbreviated process described above, and as such 

recommend approval of the minor amendment to Ordinance 24-19; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Village of Morton Grove Unified 

Development Code, the Corporate Authorities have determined the proposed amendment to the 

special use shall be approved subject to conditions and restrictions as set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  Incorporation by Reference. The Corporate Authorities do hereby 

incorporate the foregoing WHEREAS clauses into this Ordinance by this reference, as though fully 

set forth herein, thereby making the findings as hereinabove set forth. 

SECTION 2.  Approval of Amendment to Special Use Permit. The Corporate Authorities 

hereby grant Cissily, Inc. an amendment to the previously granted Special Use Permit, pursuant to 

Ordinance 24-19, to allow for a 12-month extension of time, until October 22, 2026 for the 

commencement and progression of the construction of the approved development subject to the 

following conditions and restrictions which shall be binding upon the owners, lessees, and 

occupants and users of this property, their successors and assigns: 

1. The project shall meet the parameters of Section 12-16-4:C.6.c by October 22, 2026; 

and 

2. All conditions of Ordinance 24-19 shall remain in effect. 

SECTION 3. Village Records.  The Village Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to 

amend all pertinent records of the Village of Morton Grove to show and designate the Special Use 

Permit as granted hereunder. 

SECTION 4. Failure to Comply with Conditions.  Upon failure or refusal of the Applicant 

to comply with any or all the conditions, restrictions or provisions of this Ordinance, the Corporate 

Authorities may initiate the revocation of the Special Use Permit granted in this Ordinance, in 

accordance with process and procedures established in the Unified Development Code. 

SECTION 5. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 

its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form according to law. 



   

 

3 

 

 

Passed this 25th day of November 2025.  

 

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Minx    

Trustee Shiba    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee White    

 

Approved by me this 25th day of November 2025.   

 

 

____________________________________ 

Janine Witko, Village President 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

 

 

Attested and filed in my office this  

26th day of November 2025. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk 

Village of Morton Grove 

Cook County, Illinois 

  



   

 

4 

 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

 

EXHIBIT A  Legal Description, 6335 Dempster Street 

EXHIBIT B Request for Special Use Permit Time Extension from Alex Skariah on 

behalf of Cissily, Inc., received October 21, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



   

 

5 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 

 

6335 DEMPSTER STREET, MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 60053  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

 

PARCEL 1: LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4, AND 5 ALL IN LUMPP’S SUBDIVISION OF THE NORTH 366.17 

FEET OF LOT 3 IN HENNING’S SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 42 AND 43, TOGETHER WITH 

THE NORTH 16.00 FEET OF LOT 44 IN COUNTY CLERK’S DIVISION OF SECTION 20 

AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 41 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST 

OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, (EXCEPT THEREFROM THE NORTH 100.17 

FEEET OF THE EAST 85.00 FEET OF SAID LOT IN HENNING’S SUBDIVISION), IN COOK 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS.  

 

 

PROPERTY INDEX NUMBERS: 

 

10-20-100-026-0000 

  



   

 

6 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

 

REQUEST FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT TIME EXTENSION 

 FROM ALEX SKARIAH ON BEHALF OF CISSILY, INC. 

Received October 21, 2025 



Morton Grove Mobil 
6335 W. Dempster Street 

Morton Grove Illinois 
(847) 966 - 0444 

 
 
 
Dear Brandon, 
 
I am writing regarding the Morton Grove Mobil located at 6335 W. Dempster 
Street, Morton Grove, IL 60053. We would like to respectfully request a one-year 
extension for our construction timeline. 
 
At this time, we are still awaiting approvals from the Metropolitan Water 
Reclamation District (MWRD) and the Illinois Department of Transportation 
(IDOT). In addition, we have experienced some delays in finalizing our financing, 
though we expect to resolve those matters soon. 
 
Most of our contractors are now in place, and we are in the process of finalizing 
the details related to the underground tank work and corresponding drawings. 
 
Thank you for your time and understanding. Please let me know if you need any 
additional information. 
\ 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Alex Skariah 



Submitted by – Chuck Meyer, Village Administrator      

Reviewed by - Teresa Hoffman Liston, Corporation Counsel  

Reviewed by Chris Tomich, Village Engineer

Prepared by - Brandon Nolin, Community Development Administrator 

Legislative Summary 

Ordinance 25-36 
APPROVING A FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION AND ACCEPTING CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE 

PARK VILLAS TOWNHOMES SUBDIVISION LOCATED ON PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN AS 8721 

NARRAGANSETT, 8720-26 FERRIS AVENUE, AND A 1,121-SQUARE-FOOT PORTION OF PUBLIC ALLEY 

RIGHT OF WAY PETITIONED FOR VACATION IN MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

Introduction: November 12, 2025 

Purpose: To approve a Final Plat of Subdivision for the Park Villas Townhomes Subdivision at 8721 Narragansett 

Avenue, 8720-26 Ferris Avenue and accept public improvements pursuant to Section 12-8-3 of the Unified 

Development Code.  

Background: The property commonly known as 8721 Narragansett Avenue and 8720-26 Ferris Avenue is a 0.48-acre site 

located within a C-1 General Commercial District and comprises lots separated by a 1,120.64-square-foot 

portion of public dedicated alley located directly north of Hennings Court, between Ferris and Narragansett 

Avenues, that has been approved for vacation under Ordinance 22-06. Collectively the site and vacated 

public alley make up the subject property (“Subject Property”). 

Based on Special Use Permit and Subdivision Applications submitted for the Subject Property by P&P 

Properties, LLC (“Developer”) under Case PC 22-04, on May 23, 2022, the Village Board of Trustees passed 

Ordinance 22-07 approving for the Subject Property a Special Use Permit authorizing the development of 

ten (10) townhomes in two (2) structures and a preliminary plat of subdivision to create twelve (12) new lots 

of record, one for each new townhome residence and two for the common areas to be owned and maintained 

by a homeowner’s association. The Developer is now requesting approval of a final plat that includes eleven 

(11) new lots of record including, one for each of the ten (10) new townhome residences, and a single lot

comprising the common areas to be owned and maintained by a homeowner’s association.

The Developer has completed site improvements required by Ordinance 22-07 and the site improvement 

permit issued for the Subject Property. Pursuant to Section 12-8-3:A.3 of the Municipal Code, the Village 

Board may approve a final plat of subdivision that is substantially consistent with the approved preliminary 

plat of subdivision upon receipt of a statement signed by the Village Engineer certifying that the 

improvements described in the applicant's plans and specifications, together with the supporting documents 

and agreements, meet the requirements of the Village and other authorities having jurisdiction and that the 

improvements have been constructed in compliance with the approved plans and all applicable regulations. 

The Village Engineer has provided a certificate of conformance for the development’s required 

improvements, and the Developer has fulfilled the requirements and obligations required by Section 12-8-3 

of the Municipal Code prior to the Village Board’s approval of the final plat of subdivision. Upon Village 
Board approval of the final plat of subdivision, the plat and declaration will be recorded with the Cook 

County Clerk, and the Department of Building and Inspectional Services will be able to issue certificates of 

occupancy for completed townhome units that pass required final inspections.  

Department of Community and Economic Development 

None 

N/A 

The Final Plat of Subdivision will be implemented and supervised by staff as part of their normal work 

activities. 

Approval as presented 

November 25, 2025 

Departs. 

Affected 

Fiscal Impact: 

Source of Funds: 

Workload 

Impact: 

Administrative  

Recommendation 

Second Reading: 

Special 

Requirements: 
None 



 

ORDINANCE 25-36 
 APPROVING A FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION AND ACCEPTING CERTAIN 

IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE PARK VILLAS TOWNHOMES SUBDIVISION LOCATED 

ON PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN AS 8721 NARRAGANSETT, 8720-26 FERRIS 

AVENUE, AND A 1,121-SQUARE-FOOT PORTION OF PUBLIC ALLEY RIGHT OF 

WAY PETITIONED FOR VACATION IN MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton Grove (“Village”), located in Cook County, Illinois, is a 

home rule unit of government under the provisions of Article 7 of the 1970 Constitution of the State 

of Illinois, and can exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government affairs, 

including, but not limited to, the power to tax and incur debt; and 

WHEREAS, 8721 Narragansett Avenue and 8720-26 Ferris Avenue, legally described in 

“Exhibit A”, and depicted in the Plat of Survey prepared by United Survey Service, LLC, dated 

February 25, 2022, and attached hereto as “Exhibit B” and made a part of this Ordinance, are a 0.48-

acre site located within a C-1 General Commercial District and comprise lots separated by a 1,120.64-

square-foot portion of public alley right of way located directly north of Hennings Court, between 

Ferris and Narragansett Avenues, that has been approved for vacation under Ordinance 22-06, in 

accordance with the Plat of Vacation and legal description prepared by United Survey Service, LLC, 

dated March 8, 2022, a copy of which is attached hereto an made a part hereof and market as “Exhibit 

C”, and together comprise the subject property (“Subject Property”); and  

WHEREAS, on May 23, 2022, pursuant to the application of P&P Properties, LLC 

(“Developer”) under Case PC 22-04, the Village Board of Trustees passed Ordinance 22-07, which 

approved a Special Use Permit authorizing the development of ten (10) new townhome residences 

and a preliminary plat of subdivision for the Subject Property to create twelve (12) new lots of record, 

in accordance with the submitted preliminary plat of subdivision, “Preliminary Plat Of Subdivision 

Park Villa Townhome Subdivision Morton Grove,” prepared by Advantage Consulting Engineers 

dated March 14, 2022 (“Preliminary Plat of Subdivision”); and 

WHEREAS, in establishing required by-laws governing the future homeowner’s association, 

staff supported the Developer’s request to consolidate two common area lots into a single common 

area lot, resulting in a proposed final plat of subdivision with eleven (11) new lots of record instead 

of the initially proposed twelve (12) lots of record; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12-8-3: A.1, the Developer submitted a final plat of 

subdivision, “Park Villas Townhomes Subdivision,” prepared by United Survey Service, LLC, 

revised May 1, 2025 (“Final Plat of Subdivision”), a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part 

hereof, and is marked as “Exhibit D”; and 



 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12-8-3:A.2, the Building Commissioner, Plan Commission 

Chairperson, Village Administrator, and Corporation Counsel reviewed the Final Plat of Subdivision 

and unanimously find that the proposed Final Plat is in substantial compliance with the approved 

Preliminary Plat of Subdivision and recommend approval of the Final Plat to the Village Board of 

Trustees; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has installed surface and underground improvements within the 

Subject Property and public right-of-way dedicated to the Village including, but not limited to, street 

pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalk, parkway grass, storm sewer system, sanitary sewer system, 

water distribution system, stormwater volume control and detention facilities, and parkway trees in 

accordance with the permitted site improvement plan, “Final Site Improvement Plans for Park Villas 

Townhomes,” prepared by Advantage Consulting Engineers, dated June 7, 2022 (revised January 11, 

2024), and approved by the Village Engineer on January 18, 2024, under Permit PB 22-0781, a copy 

of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof and is marked as “Exhibit E” (“Site Improvement 

Plan”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 12-8-3:A.3, the Village Engineer provided a signed statement, 

“Certificate of Conformance of Constructed Improvements,” dated October 31, 2025, a copy of which 

is attached hereto and made a part hereof, and is marked as “Exhibit F”,  certifying that the 

improvements described in Developer’s plans and specifications, together with the supporting 

documents and agreements, meet the minimum requirements of the Village, county, state, and other 

authorities having jurisdiction and that improvements comply as herein provided; and  

WHEREAS, the Village staff has recommended that street pavement, curb and gutter, 

sidewalk, parkway grass, and parkway trees constructed or installed in the public right-of-way 

dedicated to the Village as depicted the Site Improvement Plan should be accepted by the Corporate 

Authorities; and  

WHEREAS, the Village staff has recommended and the Developer has agreed the ownership 

of the water distribution system and sanitary sewer system improvements installed as part of the Site 

Improvement Plan within the right-of-way or on the Subject Property should be accepted by the 

Corporate Authorities up to and including the connection to the Village’s water and sanitary sewer 

mains under Ferris Avenue and Narragansett Avenue, but the Developer and, ultimately the 

homeowner’s association, will be responsible for the continuity, care, conservation, maintenance; and 

WHEREAS, the Village staff has recommended, and Developer has agreed that the following 

improvements will NOT be accepted by the Village and shall remain the property of the Developer 

or its successor: 



 

1. All portions of the street pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalk, parking area, and driveway 

improvements installed as part of the Site Improvement Plan within the Subject Property;  

2. The storm sewer system and stormwater volume control and detention facilities 

improvements installed as part of the Site Improvement Plan within the abutting dedicated 

public alley or on the Subject Property up to and including the connection to the Village’s 

storm sewer within the abutting dedicated public alley; and  

WHEREAS, Section 12-8-3:D requires a maintenance agreement for the repair or replacement 

of defective materials and workmanship for a period of time extending two (2) years for 

improvements constructed in the public right-of-way and a guarantee in the amount of not less than 

ten percent (10%) of the value of those improvements; and   

WHEREAS, Developer has met all the conditions required for accepting public improvements 

specified in Section 12-8-3:D; and  

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have considered this matter at a Public Meeting and 

find, pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Village of Morton Grove Unified Development Code, 

the proposed Final Plat of Subdivision to be in accordance with applicable ordinances of the Village 

of Morton Grove for a Subdivision, subject to the conditions and restrictions as set herein. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1:  Incorporation by Reference. The Corporate Authorities do hereby incorporate 

the foregoing WHEREAS clauses into this Ordinance, as though fully set forth herein, thereby making 

the findings as hereinabove set forth: 

SECTION 2: Approval of Final Plat of Subdivision. The Corporate Authorities do hereby 

approve the Final Plat of Subdivision for a Subdivision to be known as the Park Villas Townhomes 

Subdivision to create eleven (11) new lots of record for the property commonly known as 8721 

Narragansett Avenue and 8720-26 Ferris Avenue and adjacent vacated public alley, and legally 

described in “Exhibit D”.  

SECTION 3: Conditions. The Final recorded Plat of Subdivision shall be subject to the 

following conditions:  

A. The Final recorded Plat of Subdivision shall be in accordance with the approved “Park 

Villas Townhomes Subdivision,” prepared by United Survey Service, LLC, revised May 

1, 2025.  



B. The property and buildings shall be operated consistent with the plans and supporting

documents in the application, and any necessary modifications to accommodate code

compliance requirements as finalized and specifically approved in writing by the Village

Administrator or his/her designee, including:

1. “Park Villas Townhomes Subdivision,” prepared by United Survey Service, LLC,

revised May 1, 2025;

2. “Declarations of Easements, Restrictions and Covenants for Park Villa Townhomes

Association,” prepared by Saichang Xu, Esq., Law Offices of Saichang Xu, received

June 10, 2025; and

3. “Final Site Improvement Plans for Park Villas Townhomes,” prepared by Advantage

Consulting Engineers, dated June 7, 2022 (revised January 11, 2024), and approved by

the Village Engineer on dated January 18, 2024, under Permit PB 22-0781, as modified

by Village authorization.

SECTION 4:  Filing of Final Plat of Subdivision. The Developer or his/her successor shall 

file the Final Plat of Subdivision and declaration with the Clerk of Cook County, Illinois, in 

accordance with Section 12-8-3 of the Village Code.  

SECTION 5: Acceptance of Improvements 

A. The Corporate Authorities hereby accept ownership and perpetual maintenance of the street

pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalk, parkway grass, and parkway trees constructed or

installed in the public right-of-way as part of the Site Improvement Plan.

B. The Corporate Authorities hereby accept ownership of the water mains (not including water

service lines) installed as part of Site Improvement Plan within the public right-of-way or

on private property up to and including the connection to the Village’s water main under

Ferris Avenue and Narragansett Avenue, provided that the Developer and, ultimately the

homeowner’s association, retains responsibility for the continuity, care, conservation,

maintenance and operation up to and including the connection to the Village’s water mains.

C. The Corporate Authorities hereby accept ownership of the sanitary sewer main (not

including building sewer lines) installed as part of Site Improvement Plan within the public

right-of-way or on private property up to and including the connection to the Village’s

sanitary sewer main under Ferris Avenue and Narragansett Avenue, provided that the

Developer and, ultimately the homeowner’s association, retains responsibility for the

continuity, care, conservation, maintenance and operation up to and including the

connection to the Village’s sanitary sewer main.



 

D. The Corporate Authorities do NOT accept ownership or maintenance obligations of any 

improvements not specifically described in Subsection A, B or C of this Section 5 including, 

but not limited to: 

1. All portions of the street pavement, curb and gutter, sidewalk, parking area, and 

driveway improvements installed as part of the Site Improvement Plan within the 

Subject Property; 

2. The storm sewer improvements and stormwater volume control and detention facilities 

installed as part of the Site Improvement Plan within the abutting dedicated public 

alley or on the Subject Property up to and including the connection to the Village’s 

storm sewer within the abutting dedicated public alley. 

SECTION 6: The Ordinance shall be in full force and effect: (i) from and after its passage, 

approval and publication in pamphlet form according to law; (ii) the Developer or his/her successors 

has recorded Final Plat of Subdivision, in accordance with Section 12-8-3 of the Village Code and 

has recorded this Ordinance with the Recorder of Deeds of Cook County, Illinois, and has provided 

the evidence of such recordings to the Village of Morton Grove; (iii) the Developer and the Village, 

have executed a Maintenance Agreement, and the Developer has provided and the Village has 

approved the maintenance guarantee.  

 

Passed this 25th day of November 2025.  

 

Trustee Khan    

Trustee Minx    

Trustee Shiba    

Trustee Travis    

Trustee Thill    

Trustee White    

 

Approved by me this 25th day of November 2025.  

  
 

____________________________________  

Janine Witko, Village President  

Village of Morton Grove  

Cook County, Illinois  

  

Attested and filed in my office this   



 

26th day of November 2025.  

  

  

________________________________  

Eileen Scanlon Harford, Village Clerk  

Village of Morton Grove  

Cook County, Illinois  

 



 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT A Legal Description, 8721 Narragansett Avenue & 8720-26 Ferris 

Avenue 

EXHIBIT B Plat of Survey, 8721 Narragansett Avenue & 8720-26 Ferris Avenue 

EXHIBIT C   Plat of Vacation and Legal Description, Public Alley 

EXHIBIT D  Final Plat of Subdivision 

EXHIBIT E  Site Improvement Plan 

EXHIBIT F  Certificate of Conformance of Constructed Improvements 



EXHIBIT A 

8721 NARRAGANSETT AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 60053 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

LOTS 17 AND 18 IN LUMPP’S SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE NORTH 

366.17 FEET OF LOT 3 IN HENNING’S SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 42 AND 43 TOGETHER 

WITH THE NORTH 16 FEET OF LOT 44 IN COUNTY CLERK’S DIVISION OF SECTION 20 

AND THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHP 41 NORTH, RANGE 13 

EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, LYING EAST OF LINCOLN AVENUE AND 

THE CHICAGO, MILWAUKEE AND ST. PAUL RAILROAD (EXCEPT THEREFROM THE 

NORTH 100.17 FEET OF THE EAST 85 FEET OF SAID LOT 3 IN HENNING’S SUBDIVISION 

IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PROPERTY INDEX NUMBER: 

10-20-100-029-0000

8720-26 FERRIS AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 60053 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

LOTS 13, 14, 15 AND 16 IN LUMPP’S SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE 

NORTH 366.17 FEET OF LOT 3 IN HENNING’S SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 42 AND 43 

TOGETHER WITH THE NORTH 16 FEET OF LOT 44 IN COUNTY CLERK’S DIVISION OF 

SECTION 20 AND THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 41 NORTH, 

RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, LYING EAST OF LINCOLN 

AVENUE AND THE CHICAGO, MILWAUKEE AND ST. PAUL RAILROAD (EXCEPT 

THEREFROM THE NORTH 100.17 FEET OF THE EAST 85 FEET OF SAID LOT 3 IN 

HENNING’S SUBDIVISION) IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PROPERTY INDEX NUMBER: 

10-20-100-021-0000

10-20-100-022-0000

10-20-100-023-0000

10-20-100-024-0000



O' 10' 20' 50' 

l�I 

LEGEND ABBREVIATIONS 

@SAN-MH SANITARY MANHOLE 

@
:;T-MH STORM MANHOLE 

�B CATCH BASIN 

9WVV WATER VALVE VAULT 

+SIGN SIGN 
wFH FIRE HYDRANT 

(?ITEL-MH TELEPHONE MANHOLE 

�MH M ANHOLE 
• W OOD UTILITY POLE 

• ,. t< TREE 

T/F=TOP OF F OUNDATION 

F/F=FINISH FLOOR 

C=TOP OF CURB 

G=GUTTER 

ORDERED BY: 
ADVANTAGE CONSULTING 

ENGINEERS 

SCALE : 1" = 20' 
DATE : FEBRUARY 25, 2022 
FILE No.: 

2022-29848 DATE 

COMBINATION 
MANHOLE 

RIM=621.97'---.._ 
INV=612.97 

WATER 
MANHOL.cr----.;J 

RIM=622.86 

0: w 
;o I= 

"' "' 

1 STORY BRICK 
RESIDENCE 

FOUND IRON PIPE 
0.0S'S & 0.49'E 

LOT 18 

CATCH BASIN 
RIM=621.77 
INV=618.57 PARCEL2 

CATCH BASIN 
RIM=621.9 
INV=618.95 

J....... 

LOT 

COMBINATION 
MANHOLE'L--l/t---

----11coMB.M 
RIM=622.22 
INV=615.02 

STORM MANHOLE 
RIM=622.B 
INV=614.83 

SITE BENCHMARK 
BONNET BOLT ON 
FIRE HYDRANT 

STORM 
MANHOL..,.__,­

RIM=623.12 

EL� 624.52 (NAVD 88) 
ELEVATIONS DETERMINED 
BY GPS METHOD 

REVISION 

D/C-62228;'1<------­
G-622,22 

PUBLIC UTILITY NOTE: 

622.82 

LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES WHERE NOT 
SUBSTANTIATED BY PHYSICAL EVIDENCE ARE TAKEN FROM 
RECORDS NORMALLY CONSIDERED RELIABLE. NO 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR ACCURACY IS ASSUMED BY THE 
SURVEYOR. 

CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ALL PUBLIC UTILITY 
COMPANIES (GAS, 
ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, SEWER AND WATER, ETC.) PRIOR TO 
COMMENCING ANY CONSTRUCTION. 

THESE COMPANIES WILL LOCATE ON THE GROUND THE 
LOCATION OF ALL CONDUIT, DUCTS, UNDERGROUND PIPING, 
ETC., ADJOINING AND CROSSING 
PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION. 

17 

SANITARY 
MANHOL 

RIM=623.06 

c7c2:,_01 
o c-s22.95 

76 

ASPHALT AREA 

i" 
.� ,,. 

T -� -� 

,c,· ,,�· 

, ,,�". -,e. ,,. " . 
C ONG. 

00J2" •APRON 
D/C•622.71_ �· ------------

LOT 14 

PARCEL1 

LOT 15 

LOT 16 

, 

WATER 
MANH0Lcl____,­

RIM=S22_35 

CATCH BASIN 
RIM=623.54 

WATER 
MANHOL 

RIM=622.33 

CATCH BASIN 
RIM=621.9 
INV=617.70 

WW 

CATCH BASIN 
RIM=623.54 

WW 

I )-- )-- I )-­
CB 1 

T 
T 
T 
T 
T 
T 
T 
T 
T 
T 
T 
T 

T 
;o ,..-o-4' 

L 

STORM 
MANHOLE 

RIM=624.04 
INV=616.64 

T 
T 
T 

T 
T 
T 
T 

u N IT��S�U�T�Y�rLA����i��, LLc 
7710 CENTRAL AVENUE, RIVER FOREST, IL 60305 

TEL.: (847) 299 - 1010 FAX: (847) 299- 5887 
E-MAIL: USURVEY@USANDCS.COM 

STORM 
MANHOLE 
RIM=622.36 
INV=617.36 

PLAT OF SURVEY 
OF 

PARCEL1 
LOTS 13, 14, 15 AND 16 IN LUMPP'S SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF 
THE NORTH 366.17 FEET OF LOT 3 IN HENNING'S SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 42 
AND 43 TOGETHER WITH THE NORTH 16 FEET OF LOT 44 IN COUNTY 
CLERK'S DIVISION OF SECTION 20 AND THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 41 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, LYING EAST OF LINCOLN AVENUE AND THE 
CHICAGO, MILWAUKEE AND ST. PAUL RAILROAD (EXCEPT THEREFROM 
THE NORTH 100.17 FEET OF THE EAST 85 FEET OF SAID LOT 3 IN 
HENNING'S SUBDIVISION) IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

ST-MH 

i 

l 

l 

l 

�I 
WATER 

__.-----Mi',N HOLE 
RIM=622.85 

CATCH BASIN 
RIM=622.71 

KNOWN AS: 8720-26 FERRIS AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

PERMANENT INDEX NUMBER: 
10 -20-100 -021 -0000 
10-20-100 -022-0000 
10-20-100 -023-0000 
10-20-100 -024-0000 

AREA= 12,161 SQFT OR 0.279 ACRE 

PARCEL2 
LOTS 17 AND 18 IN LUMPP'S SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE 
NORTH 366.17 FEET OF LOT 3 IN HENNING'S SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 42 AND 
43 TOGETHER WITH THE NORTH 16 FEET OF LOT 44 IN COUNTY CLERK'S 
DIVISION OF SECTION 20 AND THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, 
TOWNSHIP 41 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, LYING EAST OF LINCOLN AVENUE AND THE CHICAGO, 
MILWAUKEE AND ST. PAUL RAILROAD (EXCEPT THEREFROM THE NORTH 
100.17 FEET OF THE EAST 85 FEET OF SAID LOT 3 IN HENNING'S 
SUBDIVISION) IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

KNOWN AS: 8721 NARRAGANSETT AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

PERMANENT INDEX NUMBER: 
10-20-100 -029-0000 

AREA=B,514 SQFT OR 0.195 ACRE 

SITE BENCHMARK 
BONNET BOLT ON 
FIRE HYDRANT 
EL.= 625.21 (NAVD 88) 
ELEVATIONS DETERMINED 
BY GPS METHOD 

COMBINATION 
MANHOLE 
RIM=623-40 
INV=613.1 

COMBINATION 
MANHOLE 

IM=623.74 
INV.N=613.16 
INV.W=613.44 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
)S.S. 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

I, ROY G. LAWNICZAK, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I HAVE 
SURVEYED THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY AND THAT THE 
PLAT HEREON DRAWN IS A CORRECT REPRESENTATION OF 
SAID SURVEY . 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONFORMS TO THE CURRENT 
ILLINOIS MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR A BOUNDARY SURVEY. 

DIMENSIONS ARE SHOWN IN FEET AND DECIMALS AND ARE 
CORRECTED TO A TEMPERATURE OF 68° FAHRENHEIT. 

COMPARE THIS PLAT, LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ALL SURVEY 
MONUMENTS BEFORE BUILDING, AND IMMEDIATELY REPORT 
ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE SURVEYOR 

::
ER 

;

S
�

LIN
z::;:

.D. 2022. 

ROY G. LAWNICZAK, REGISTERED ILLINOIS LAND SURVEYOR NO. 35-2290 
LICENSE EXPIRES: NOVEMBER 30, 2022 
PROFESSIONAL DESIGN FIRM LICENSE NO.: 184--004576 
LICENSE EXPIRES: APRIL 30, 2023 



O' 

I 
10' 20' 50'

1�1 I 

MAIL PLAT TO: 
VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 
6101 CAPULINA AVENUE 
MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 60053 

l 

UJ 
::J 
z 

0 0 
c:i,,., 
c..i w QC 

0 0 
c:i,,., 
c..iwQC 

0 0 
c:i 
..­

u w QC 

LOT 19 

LOT 19 

N89°23'21" 
16.00' 

-----, 
NORTH NORTH LINE OF LOT 1a-l 

LOT 18 

LOT 17 

LOT 12 

--------------

LOT 13 

--------

LOT 14 

-------

LOT 15 

LOT 16 

0 0 
ir:i N 
c..iwQC 

0 0 
ir:i N 
c..i w QC 

0 0 
LO N 
u w QC 

0
0
LO N 
c..i w QC 

REC.121.59' REC. 121.59 

1-�3
3

_
00

··---L-�------���l_
_

------.----+.1-:6�.0::-:0::':',..1---------------'-"==--'=:c:..=---------�

I 

LEGEND 

�---�I AREA TO BE VACATED

BOUNDARY LINE OF 
PROPOSED VACATION 

----- RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

- LOT LINE

j
RAFFIC FLOW DIRECTIONAL'S 

PROJECT No.: 

2022-29848-2 PLAT PREPARED FOR: 

NORTH R.O.W. LINE OF HENNINGS COURT 

.... 

s 

-+ 

S89°23•21 ·w 

P.0.B.

66 R.0.W. HERETOFORE DEDICATED 
AS FOR PUBLIC STREET PURPOSES 

PLAT PREPARED BY: 

-60l-:JRT-

UNITED SURVEY SERVICE, LLC ISSUE DATE: ADVANTAGE CONSULTING 
03/08/22 CONSTRUCTION AND LAND SURVEYORS 

SCALE: 1 "=20' 
ENGINEERS 7710 CENTRAL AVENUE, RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS, 60305 

SHEET NUMBER 80 MAIN STREET- SUITE 17 TEL.:(847) 299-1010 FAX: (847) 299 -5887 

1 OF 1 LEMONT, ILLINOIS 60439 E-MAIL: USURVEY@USANDCS.COM

-+ 

NO. REVISIONS 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

UJ 

J 
UJ 

� 

_J 

DATE 

VILLAGE ENGINEER CERTIFICATE: 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) S.S. 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

UNITED SURVEY SERVICE LLC 
CONSTRUCTION AND LAND SURVEYORS ' 

7710 CENTRAL AVENUE, RIVER FOREST, IL 60305 
TEL.: (847) 299 - 1010 FAX: (847) 299 - 5887 

E-MAIL: USURVEY@USANDCS.COM

PLAT OF VACATION 
OF THAT PART OF THE NORTH-SOUTH 16 FEET WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING 

NORTH OF AND ADJOINING THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF HENNINGS 
COURT; LYING WEST OF AND ADJOINING THE WEST LINE OF LOTS 15, 16 
AND ADJOINING THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTH 20 FEET OF LOT 14; LYING 
EAST OF AND ADJOINING THE EAST LINE OF LOTS 17 AND 18; LYING 
SOUTH OF AND ADJOINING THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 18 PROJECTED EAST, 
ALL INCLUSIVE IN LUMPP'S SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE 
NORTH 366.17 FEET OF LOT 3 IN HENNING'S SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 42 AND 
43 TOGETHER WITH THE NORTH 16 FEET OF LOT 44 IN COUNTY CLERK'S 
DIVISION OF SECTION 20 AND THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, 
TOWNSHIP 41 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, LYING EAST OF LINCOLN AVENUE AND THE CHICAGO, 
MILWAUKEE AND ST. PAUL RAILROAD (EXCEPT THEREFROM THE NORTH 
100.17 FEET OF THE EAST 85 FEET OF SAID LOT 3 IN HENNING'S 
SUBDIVISION) ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JUNE 23, 
1926 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 9317622, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE ENGINEER OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 18, THENCE NORTH 00 
DEGREES 48 MINUTES 52 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 70.04 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 21 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE 
OF 16.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 52 SECONDS 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 70.04 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 23 
MINUTES 21 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 16.00 FEET TO THE POINT 

COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, THIS __ DAY ____ � A.D. 20_. 

BY: __________ _ 
VILLAGE ENGINEER OF BEGINNING, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

AREA TO BE VACATED= 1,120 SQFT OR 0.025 ACRE 

PLAN COMMISSION CERTIFICATE: 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) S.S. 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AT A MEETING HELD THIS __ DAY ____ ,A.D. 
20_. 

ATTEST:. __ ��=��---­
SECRETARY 

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES CERTIFICATE: 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) S.S . 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

ACCEPTED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF 
MORTON GROVE, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, THIS __ DAY ____ �A.D. 20_ 

BY: ____________ _ 
PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

ATTEST:. __________ _ 
VILLAGE CLERK 

COUNTY RECORDER 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) S.S. 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

THIS INSTRUMENT NO.-----------� WAS FILED FOR RECORD
IN THE RECORDER OF DEEDS OFFICE OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AFORESAID, 
THIS DAY ____ �A.D. 20 .

-- --

COOK COUNTY RECORDER 

,11\\\\lll///11 ,,,,0 LAWJL,/11,1 
.$-:J.... : .......... 'C"� � 

SURVEYOR'S NOTES: 

THE BASIS OF BEARINGS IS ASSUMED. 

DATE OF COMPLETION OF FIELD WORK : FEBRUARY 25, 2022 

NO DIMENSIONS SHOULD BE ASSUMED BY SCALE MEASUREMENTS. 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) S.S. 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

I, ROY G. LAWNICZAK, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I HAVE 
PREPARED THE PLAT OF VACATION FOR THE PURPOSE 
SHOWN HEREON. 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONFORMS TO THE CURRENT 
ILLINOIS MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR A BOUNDARY SURVEY. 

DIMENSIONS ARE SHOWN IN FEET AND DECIMALS AND ARE 
CORRECTED TO A TEMPERATURE OF 68° FAHRENHEIT. 

RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS, MARCH 8, A.D. 2022. 

� o.,
.. .. ... ,. � .::::- .re.. -�-:;:. BY· :.:: "<.-,. 35-002290 \ . ._,,..,-:;;. ··�-�-�--��---��--�-�-�--

:::: : PROFESSIONAL I ::: ROY G. LAWNICZAK, REGISTERED ILLINOIS LAND SURVEYOR NO. 35-2290 
=: *: LAND SURVEYOR!*= LICENSE EXPIRES: NOVEMBER 30, 2022

:o \ '\IUJ0 1�F j ; PROFESSIONAL DESIGN FIRM LICENSE NO.: 184-004576 
� •• _.-_. $ LICENSE EXPIRES: APRIL 30, 2023 / 

••. • ... ,v ..... 'l C'L=-••• .. ••• Q " 11/11 '7 ICAG \'''111,11111111111''



PARK VILLAS TOWNHOMES SUBDIVISION 

O' 10' 20' 

I_I 

SEND TAX BILL TO: 

50' 
LOT 1
AREA= 1,082 SQ . FT . OR 0. 024 ACRE
LOT 2  

AREA= 843 SQ . FT. OR 0. 019 ACRE
LOT 3 
AREA= 843 SQ , FT . OR 0. 019 ACRE
LOT 4

LOT 8  

AREA= 844 SQ . FT . OR 0. 019 ACRE
LOT 9
AREA= 844 SQ . F T. OR 0. 019 ACRE
LOT 1 0 

AREA= 1, 082 SQ , FT . OR 0. 024 ACRE
OUTLOT A
AREA= 1 2,4 06 SQ .FT OR 0. 285 ACRE

BEING A SUBDIVISION A PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 20, 

TOWNSHIP 41 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN 

COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 

8720-26 FERRIS AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 
8721 NARRAGANSETT AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

COOK COUNTY PERMANENT INDENTIFICATION NUMBERS 
10 - 20 -100 - 021 - 0000 10 - 20 -100 - 024 - 0000 

10 - 20 - 100 - 022 - 0000 10 - 20 - 100 - 029 - 0000 

P&P PROPERTIES LLC 

1625 MILWAUKEE AVENUE 

GLENVIEW. IL 60025 

AREA= 843 SQ . FT . OR 0. 019 ACRE
LOT 5
AREA= 1,082 SQ . FT. OR 0. 025 ACRE
LOT 6
AREA= 1,082 SQ . FT. OR 0. 025 ACRE
LOT 7

TOTAL SUBDIVISION 10 - 20 - 100 - 023 - 0000 

AREA= 21,796 SQ. F T. OR 0.50 0 ACRE ±

M 

' 

"-
0 

Wj
::) 0

AREA= 844 SQ . FT . OR 0.019 ACRE

LUMPP S SUBDIVISION 

REC. JUNE 23, 1926 

SIT IRON PIPE 
AT PROPERTY CORNER 

LUMPP S SUBDIVISION 

REC. JUNE 23, 1926 

LOT 12 
N89

°

23'22"E 

M 121.62' 

!;;
z � g 

W I � LOT 19 

� fl:'. FOUND IRON PIPE 
> 2 w N89

°

23'21"E SET IRON PIPE 
AT PROPERTY CORNER 

OUTLOT A 

<( Z:;:�

o.os·s & □.49'E M 137 61 ' a oo NORTH LINE OF LOT 1 ■ 

I �r.w- 5 � 
1 2.9 0'� 1 06.67' � I 1' U� g - - - ,:-M�.; 5:-8:1:0� 

---
� � T- -I� - 7

w C & 0 0 
0 0 

I ui REC JUNE 23, 1926 HEREBY GRANTED 
:!a/ 1[ �[;J '< � UTL T A � � · N AS DOC, 9317622 16' PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMEN

1 :!r �� ..-Irr:� 
� I ,--1- fs �[cl -

l[;l
-----

i__J f2� ----- -- -- ------N89
°23'04"E - - -�_!!;

_ 
---� -- -- filll9"23'04'E--- -- -- ------- - , 

I 
o 1-- 3.36' 8-27' -24.58' 1 9.17' 1 9.17' 1 9.17' 24.57' 1•·24 -,__"' w _ 24_58, 19_ 1 9. 1 1 9 _ 1 24.5 I �:I· -�,! - ._,. J- LU� F--80 i:; 

J- :! �do- - - - - -- - -�s ��, LOT 6 LOT 7 LO+,; LciT 9 LOT 10 w
df2 !;;j:� � LOT 1 �_LOT2LU LOT3 w 

LOT4�- LOTS lLil'0 fil�,':'i'_1,082SQFT i'B44 SQF T_i' 844 SQ FT -i' 844 SQ FT1-J f 1,082SQFT b,-
w ; ¼I � � g [ii 

1•�-��;��
T i � 843 SQFT * §l 843 SQFT � §l 843 SQ FT � � 1,08 2 SQFT �� r ". ij � �� "N.EA" 

� 
� "N.EA"

� � "N.EA" � � "N.E.A." � � "N.EA" � � 
fr\ o.,.· 0 

c,v"N.E.A." b�"N.E.A." 0-: "N.E.A." � "o:t "N.E.A." �bl >i5 
1
0.., _ _  ��- -�02 __ �� - ::!_� - - -a

V .J LJ a w en en w ,, ,- oc ·c z (/) 

z 
� 2 T I� 1;, �� � I - 13 

__ 0
<( i' � "" 1 9 17' 1 9.17' 24.58' � � 

--!--2:!JllL _ _J___:1!Jl9:..l, 1'-'7-' -,,�:-:¥19�.1
:1!

7�' =.1...---1.1.ii!a9 -.!.11 .. •_..1... __ 2�4:.,58=' ---f'rt--' 
--+l--�24!:.· 5�8�' _...J __ 1:;:9::..:· 1�7 -' -L,,,,,;.;;·;,;,.,=.1.......;.=:....-1--='?--t-113_ 13• 

14.44' 24 -58' ' 1 8-27' I S89
°23'21 ''W HEREBY GRANTED _/ � <f' 

� HEREBY GRA NTED S89
°23'21 "W � � 0 6.67',.,--: 

w 

::) 
z 
w 

FOUND CROSS NOTC� 
1.90'E & ON LINE EXT.

� 

(JJ 
-

� 

� 

w 

LJ 
<f; ----1----Jgl_ .-::_::__!B!;LA�N�KE�T_!:EA!S�E�M�E;:•�T--..B!�!i!�L--------,-----

8L_ J....l'l..G .. :�u:' �8

��-:--
---------.lR�E_.c.,.1�2 .. 1 ... 5�9:,.' ;_....;B;;;LA;.;N;,;;KE;;;;,;T.,;E;;,A;;;s;;;E;;;M;;,EN�T;....

-:::'.:'.:".'.='.'::::---;�
----: f-----:33_00·----

N
�F----:33_00· 

FOUND IRON PIPE 

RFC ,, ��-

{R&M) 259.18' FO
�

N
a�:��-�!"-0 

33.00·---...J-----·33_00'-------I

LL. AT PROPERTY CORNER NORTH R.O.W. LINE OF HENNINGS COURl' S89
°

23'21 "W 

� 

<( 
z 

I 
-HENNINGS- 66 R.O.W. HERETOFORE DEDICA_T_E

_
D--.. c o u RT---­

AS FOR PUBLIC STREET PURPOSES

_J 

'---> 

BLANKET UTILITY EASEMENT (B.U.E.) PROVISIONS 

A NON-EXCLUSIVE BLANKET EASEMENT FOR SERVING THE LOT OR LOTS WITH THIS SUBDIVISION AND 
OTHER PROPERTY WITH ELECTRIC, COMMUNICATIONS, SEWER, WATER, GAS AND DRAINAGE SERVICE IS 
HEREBY RESERVED FOR AND GRANTED TO VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, NICOR, COMMONWEAL TH EDISON
COMPANY, SBC (AMERITECH), AND CABLE TELEVISION FRANCHISES OF VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, THEIR 
RESPECTIVE SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY, TO INSTALL, OPERATE, MAINTAIN AND 
REMOVE, FROM TIME TO TIME, FACILITIES USED IN CONNECTION WITH UNDERGROUND TRANSMISSION AND 
DISTRIBUTION OF ELECTRICITY, SOUNDS AND SIGNALS, GAS MAINS, SEWER AND WATER MAINS AND 
DRAINAGE IN, UNDER, ACROSS, ALONG AND UPON THE SURFACE OF THE LOT WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION, 
EXCEPTING THEREFROM, ANY PART THEREOF FALLING WITHIN -NEA" (NON-EASEMENT AREA) AREAS OR 
FALLING WITHIN OTHER SPECIFIC EASEMENT CORRIDORS AS DELINEATED WITH DASHED LINES, TOGETHER 
WITH THE RIGHT TO INSTALL REQUIRED SERVICE CONNECTIONS UNDER THE SURFACE OF EACH LOT TO 
SERVE IMPROVEMENTS THEREON, THE RIGHT TO CUT, TRIM OR REMOVE TREES, BUSHES AND ROOTS AS 
MAY BE REASONABLY REQUIRED INCIDENTAL T O THE RIGHTS HEREIN GIVEN AND THE RIGHT TO ENTER

PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT 

AN EASEMENT OF ACCESS IS HEREBY RESERVED OVER THE PORTIONS OF THE PROPERTY DESIGNATED 
AS THE "PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT' FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE OWNERS F ROM TIME TO TIME OF 
LOTS 1 TO 10 IN PARK VILLAS TOWNHOMES SUBDIVISION PLATTED HEREON, AND THEIR RESPECTIVE 
T ENANTS, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, VENDORS, AND INVITEES TO USE THE EASEMENT AREA FOR ACCESS TO THE
BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, AND FACILITIES CONSTRUCTED AND INSTALLED THEREON. THE GENERAL PUBLIC 
SHALL ALSO BE PERMITTED TO USE THE EASEMENT AREA FOR PURPOSES OF INGRESS, EGRESS, AND
CIRCULATION THROUGH THE PROPERTY. THE USE AND ENJOYMENT OF THE EASEMENT HEREIN RESERVED 
SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS SET FORTH BELOW.

EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT OTHERWISE PROVIDED ON A FINAL PLAN, THE EASEMENT AREA SHALL BE 
USED SOLELY AND EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE MOVEMENT OF VEHICULAR TRAFFIC IN TWO-WAY 
DIRECTION AND FOR PEDESTRIAN ACCESS IN BOTH DIRECTIONS. NO CARS, TRUCKS, OR OTHER MOTOR 
VEHICLES SHALL BE PARKED OR LEFT UNATTENDED ON THE EASEMENT AREAS AND NO VEHICULAR OR 
OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS SHALL BE PLACED ON THE EASEMENT AREAS THAT INTERFERE WITH OR PREVENT 

LEGEND UPON THE LOT OR LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION FOR ALL SUCH PURPOSES. OBSTRUCTIONS SHALL NOT 
BE PLACED OVER GRANTEES' FACILITIES WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF GRANTEES. AFTER THE FREE MOVEMENT OF VEHICLES OR PEDESTRIANS OVER THE EASEMENT AREAS. 

-- -- --

------

BOUNDARY LINE OF 
SUBDIVISION 

PROPOSED LOT LINE 

EXISTING LOT LINE

EASEMENT LINE 

LOT - PROPOSED LOT NUMBER

LOT - EXISTING LOT NUMBER

<� I 

>
RAFFIC FLOW DIRECTIONAL'S 

(N.E.A.) NON-EASEMENT AREA 

(R) RECORD DATA

(M) MEASURED DATA

PROJECT No.: 

INSTALLATION OF ANY SUCH FACILITIES, THE GRADE OF THE LAND SHALL NOT BE ALTERED IN A MANNER SO 
AS TO INTERFERE WITH THE PROPER OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE THEREOF. THE PARK VILLAS TOWNHOMES ASSOCIAT ION ("HOA") SHALL OWN AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING,
THE TERM "COMMON ELEMENTS SHALL HAVE THE MEANING SET FORTH FOR SUCH TERM IN SECTION 2(E) OF REPAIRING, AND REPLACING THE DRIVEWAYS AND ROADWAYS INSTALLED WITHIN THE EASEMENT AREAS. ALL 
"AN ACT IN RELATION TO CONDOMINIUMS (ILLINOIS REVISED STATUTES, CH. 30, PAR. 302 (E)). AS AMENDED NECESSARY MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS, AND REPLACEMENTS SHALL BE UNDERTAKEN AT SUCH TIMES AND IN
FROM TIME TO TIME. SUCH A MANNER AS TO MINIMIZE DISRUPTION OF ACCESS TO THE BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, AND FACILITIES 
THE TERM "COMMON AREA OR AREAS IS DEFINED AS A LOT PARCEL OR AREA OF REAL PROPERTY, THE LOCATED ON SUCH LOTS. EXCEPT FOR EMERGENCY REPAIRS, THE EASEMENT SHALL NOT BE CLOSED TO 
BENEFICIAL USE AND ENJOYMENT OF WHICH IS RESERVED IN WHOLE AS AN APPURTENANCE TO THE VEHICULAR TRAFFIC. NO PERMANENT STRUCTURES SHALL BE LOCATED ON THE SURFACE OF OR ABOVE THE 
SEPARATELY OWNED, PARCELS OR AREAS WITHIN THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT, EVEN THOUGH SUCH BE EASEMENT AREAS THAT INT ERFERE WITH THE FREE MOVEMENT OF VEHICULAR OR PEDESTRIAN TRAFFIC
OWNERS OTHERWISE DESIGNATED ON THE PLAT BY TERMS SUCH AS, "OUTLOTS", "COMMON ELEMENTS". THEREON. 
"OPEN SPACE", "OPEN AREA", "COMMON GROUND", PARKING LOT "A" & "COMMON AREA". THE TERMS 
COMMON AREA OR AREAS" AND "COMMON ELEMENTS" INCLUDING REAL PROPERTY SURFACED WITH THE FOREGOING DOES NOT PROHIBIT THE INSTALLATION OF DIRECTIONAL TRAFFIC SIGNAGE OR LIGHTING, 
INTERIOR DRIVEWAYS AND WALKWAYS, BUT EXCLUDES REAL PROPERTY PHYSICALLY OCCUPIED BY A PROVIDED SUCH SIGNS AND LIGHTING ARE INSTALLED IN THE LOCATIONS SET FORTH ON THE FINAL PLANS 
BUILDING, SERVICE BUSINESS DISTRICT OR STRUCTURES AS A POOL OR RETENTION POND, OR MECHANICAL AS APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE. THE EASEMENTS HEREBY RESERVED ARE 
EQUIPMENT. EASEMENTS APPURTENANT TO LOTS 1 TO 10 IN PARK VILLAS TOWN HOMES SUBDIVISION PLATTED HEREON 
RELOCATION OF FACILITIES WILL BE DONE BY GRANTEES AT COST OF GRANTOR/LOT OWNER, UPON AND ARE INTENDED TO RUN WITH THE LAND AND BE BINDING UPON AND INURE TO THE BENEFIT OF ALL 
WRITTEN REQUEST. FUTURE OWNERS, OCCUPANTS, AND HOLDERS OF SECURITY INTERESTS THEREIN. 
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS PROVIDED, SHALL BE FOR THE USE OF MUNICIPAL SEWER AND WATER LINES, 
STORM DRAINAGE AND PUBLIC UTILITY LINE, LINES FOR ANY CABLE TELEVISION FRANCHISE GRANTED BY THE PUBLIC ACCESS DRIVE SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM WIDTH OF 16 FEET AND SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED 
THE VILLAGE, AND OTHER MUNICIPAL USES. AND MAINTAINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROVED FINAL PLAN, ENSURING CONTINUED ACCESS
ALL UTILITIES WITHIN WITHIN THE BLANKET UTILITY EASEMENT SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE CROSSINGS FOR PEDESTRIAN AND VEHICULAR USE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW AND REGULATIONS. 
AT MORTON GROVE CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIAT ION.

PLAT PREPARED BY: NO. REVISIONS 

2022-29848-3 PLAT PREPARED FOR: 
UNITED SURVEY SERVICE, LLC 1 REVISED 

ISSUE DATE: ADVANTAGE CONSULTING REVISED 2 
07/27/22 

ENGINEERS
CONSTRUCTION AND LAND SURVEYORS 

REVISED 
7710 CENTRAL AVENUE, RIVER FOREST, ILLINOIS, 60305 3 

SCALE: 1 "=20' 
4 REVISED 

80 MAIN STREET - SUITE 17 TEL.: (847) 299 -1010 FAX: (847) 299 -5887 SHEET NUMBER 
1 OF 1 LEMONT, ILLINOIS 60439 E-MAIL: USURVEY@USANDCS.COM 5 

6 

DATE 

10/7/24 

2/28/25 

4/23/25 

5/1/25 

VILLAGE ENGINEER CERTIFICATE: 

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) S .S .

COUNTY OF COOK )

APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE ENGINEER OF T HE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE,
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS , THIS __ DAY ____ �A-□. 20 __ .

BY: ___________ _ 
VILLAGE ENGINEER 

PLAN COMMISSION CERTIFICATE: 

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) S .S .

COUNTY OF COOK )

APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISS ION OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE,
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS , AT A MEET ING HELD T HIS __ DAY ___ �A.D. 20_.

BY: ____________ _ 
CHAIRMAN OF THE PLAN COMMISS ION 

ATTEST : ___________ _
S ECRETARY

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES CERTIFICATE: 

ST AT E OF ILLINOIS )
) S .S .

COUNTY OF COOK )

ACCEPT ED BY T HE PRES IDENT AND BOARD OF T RUST EES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORT ON GROVE,
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, THIS __ DAY , A.D. 20_.

BY:====�=--------
PRES IDENT OF T HE BOARD OF T RUSTEES 

ATTEST :_�=�-------­
VILLAGE CLERK 

VILLAGE COLLECTOR CERTIFICATE: 

ST AT E OF ILLINOIS )
) S .S.

COUNTY OF COOK )

I DO HEREBY CERTIFY T HAT THERE ARE NO DELINQ UENT SPECIAL ASSESS MENTS OR UNPAID
CURRENT S PECIAL ASS ESS MENTS DUE AGAINST THE LAND INCLUDED IN THE ABOVE PLAT .

DATED T HIS __ DAY OF _____ � A.D. 20 __ .

BY: ___________ _ 
VILLAGE COLLECTOR 

DRAINAGE STATEMENT: 

TO T HE BEST OF OUR KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF , T HE DRAINAGE OF T HE SURF ACE
WAT ERS WILL NOT BE CHANGED BY T HE CONST RUCT ION OF T HIS S UBDIVIS ION OR ANY
PART T HEREOF, OR T HAT IF S UCH S URFACE WATER DRAINAGE WILL BE CHANGED,
REASONABLE PROVIS IONS HAVE BEEN MADE FOR T HE COLLECT ION AND DIVERS ION OF 

S UCH S URFACE WATERS INT O PUBLIC AREAS OR DRAINS WHICH THE S UBDIVIDER HAS A
RIGHT TO US E, AND T HAT S UCH SURFACE WATERS WILL BE PLANNED FOR IN
ACCORDANCE WIT H GENERALLY ACCEPT ED ENGINEERING PRACT ICES SO AS T O REDUCE
THE LIKELIHOOD OF DAMAGE T O T HE ADJOINING PROPERTY BECAUS E OF THE
CONST RUCT ION OF T HE S UBDIVIS ION. 

DAT ED THIS __ DAY OF -----�A.D. 20_.

BY: ----o"'w=N=ER�----

ADDRESS : 87 20- 26 FERRIS AVENUE, MORT ON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

87 21 NARRAGANS ETT AVENUE, MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

BY: ___________ _ 
ENGINEER 

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE: 

ST ATE OF ILLINOIS )
) S .S .

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

MAIL PLAT TO:
VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE 
6101 CAPULINA AVENUE 
MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 60053 

P&P PROPERTIES LLC, HEREBY CERT IFIES T HAT IT IS T HE OWNER OF THE PROPERTY
DESCRIBED HEREON AND AS S UCH OWNER HAS CAUS ED SAID PROPERTY T O BE SURVEYED
AND S UBDIVIDED IN THE MANNER HEREON DRAWN.

ADDIT IONALLY, P&P PROPERTIES LLC, HEREBY CERTIFIES T HAT T HE PROPERTY HEREON 
DESCRIBED IS LOCATED WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF :

ELEMENTARY S CHOOL DIS TRICT: 89 
HIGH S CHOOL DIS TRICT : 219

-

DATED T HIS ____ ,DAY OF ______ � A.D. 20 __ _

BY: ____________ _ 
T ITLE:

AT TEST : ___________ _
T ITLE:

NOTARY CERTIFICATE: 

ST ATE OF ILLINOIS )
) S .S .

COUNTY OF COOK )

I,---------� A NOTARY PUBLIC, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT,
OWNER(S ) OF T HE TRACT OF LAND COMMONLY KNOWN AS T HE _____ � APPEARED
BEFORE ME THIS DAY IN PERSON AND ACKNOWLEDGED THE EXECUT ION OF T HIS S TATEMENT 

AS T HEIR FREE AND VOLUNT ARY ACT F OR T HE USES AND PURPOSES T HEREIN SET F ORTH.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND NOTARIAL S EAL THIS __ DAY OF _____ � 20 __ _

NOT ARY PUBLIC: __________________ _

COMMISSION EXPIRES : ________________ _

LAND SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION: 

S TATE OF ILLINOIS )
) S.S.

COUNTY OF COOK )

I, ROY G. LAWNICZAK, A REGIST ERED PROF ESSIONAL ILLINOIS LAND S URVEYOR NO. 
35 - 229 0, DO HEREBY CERT IFY T HAT I HAVE SURVEYED AND S UBDIVIDED T HE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED
PROPERTY: 

PARCEL1 
LOTS 13, 14, 15 AND 16 IN LUMPP'S S UBDIVIS ION, BEING A S UBDIVIS ION OF T HE NORT H 366.17 FEET OF LOT 

3 IN HENNING'$ S UBDIVIS ION OF LOTS 4 2 AND 43 TOGET HER WIT H T HE NORTH 16 FEET OF LOT 44 IN
COUNTY CLERK'S DIVISION OF S ECT ION 20 AND THE NORT HEAST Q UART ER OF SECT ION 19, TOWNSHIP 41
NORT H, RANGE 13 EAST OF T HE T HIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, LYING EAST OF LINCOLN AVENUE AND THE
CHICAGO, MILWAUKEE AND S T. PAUL RAILROAD (EXCEPT T HEREF ROM THE NORTH 1 00.17 FEET OF THE
EAST 85 FEET OF SAID LOT 3 IN HENNING'$ S UBDIVIS ION) IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS .
PARCEL2 
LOTS 17 AND 1 8 IN LUMPP'S S UBDIVIS ION, BEING A S UBDIVIS ION OF THE NORTH 366.17 FEET OF LOT 3 IN
HENNING'S S UBDIVIS ION OF LOTS 4 2 AND 43 TOGET HER WIT H T HE NORT H 16 FEET OF LOT 44 IN COUNTY
CLERK'S DIVIS ION OF SECT ION 20 AND T HE NORTHEAST Q UART ER OF S ECT ION 19, TOWNS HIP 41 NORTH,
RANGE 13 EAST OF THE T HIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, LYING EAST OF LINCOLN AVENUE AND T HE CHICAGO,
MILWAUKEE AND ST . PAUL RAILROAD (EXCEPT T HEREF ROM T HE NORT H 1 00.17 FEET OF THE EAST 85
F EET OF S AID LOT 3 IN HENNING'S S UBDIVIS ION) IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL3 
T HAT PART OF T HE NORT H-SOUT H 16 F EET WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY LYING NORT H OF AND ADJOINING THE
NORT H RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF HENNINGS COURT : LYING WEST OF AND ADJOINING T HE WEST LINE OF 

LOTS 15, 16 AND ADJOINING T HE WEST LINE OF T HE SOUT H 20 FEET OF LOT 14; LYING EAST OF AND
ADJOINING THE EAST LINE OF LOTS 17 AND 1 8; LYING SOUT H OF AND ADJOINING T HE NORT H LINE OF LOT 

1 8 PROJECT ED EAST , ALL IN LUMPP'S SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE NORT H 366.17 FEET OF
LOT 3 IN HENNING'S S UBDIVIS ION OF LOTS 4 2 AND 43 T OGET HER WIT H T HE NORT H 16 FEET OF LOT 44 IN
COUNTY CLERK'S DIVIS ION OF S ECT ION 20 AND THE NORT HEAST Q UART ER OF SECT ION 19, TOWNS HIP 41 
NORT H, RANGE 13 EAST OF T HE T HIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, LYING EAST OF LINCOLN AVENUE AND THE
CHICAGO, MILWAUKEE AND S T. PAUL RAILROAD (EXCEPT T HEREF ROM THE NORTH 1 00.17 FEET OF THE
EAST 85 FEET OF SAID LOT 3 IN HENNING'S S UBDIVIS ION) ACCORDING T O THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED
JUNE 23, 19 26 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 93176 22, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

I FURTHER CERTIFY T HAT T HE S UBJECT PROPERTY IS DES IGNATED AS UNSHADED ZONE -"X", DEFINED AS 

AREAS DET ERMINED T O BE OUTS IDE T HE 0. 2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN, AS SHOWN IN T HE FLOOD
INS URANCE RATE MAP (F IRM) FOR THE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS , COMMUNITY NUMBER
17 01 28, PANEL NUMBER 0241 J, MAP 17 031C 0241J EFF ECTIVE DATE AUGUS T 19, 2008, AS PUBLISHED BY
T HE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY.

I FURTHER CERTIFY T HAT T HE PROPERTY SHOWN ON T HE PLAT HEREON DRAWN IS WIT HIN T HE 
CORPORAT E LIMITS OF T HE VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS WHICH HAS ADOPT ED A VILLAGE PLAN
AND WHICH IS EXERCISING THE S PECIAL POWERS AUTHORIZED BY DIVIS ION 1 2 OF ARTICLE 11 OF T HE
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL CODES AS HERETOF ORE AND HEREAF TER AMENDED.

I FURTHER CERTIFY T HAT NO PART OF T HE PROPERTY COVERED BY T HIS PLAT OF SUBDIVIS ION IS 

SIT UATED WIT HIN 500 FEET OF A S URFACE DRAIN OR WAT ER COURSE SERVING A T RIBUTARY AREA OF
64 0 ACRES OR MORE.

I FURT HER CERT IFY T HAT MONUMENTS DES IGNAT ED IRON PIPES AND / OR CONCRET E MONUMENTS ON 
T HIS PLAT HAVE BEEN S ET AT ALL LOT CORNERS.

T HIS PROF ESS IONAL SERVICE CONF ORMS TO T HE CURRENT ILLINOIS MINIMUM ST ANDARDS FOR A
BOUNDARY S URVEY.

DIMENS IONS ARE S HOWN IN FEET AND DECIMAL PARTS T HEREOF AND ARE CORRECT ED TO A
T EMPERATURE OF 6 8 DEGREES F AHRENHEIT .

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL THIS 1st DAY OF MAY, 2025 AT RIVER FOREST , ILLINOIS.

BY: ________________________ _
ROY G. LAWNICZAK, REGISTERED ILLINOIS LAND S URVEYOR NO. 35- 229 0 

LICENSE EXPIRES : NOVEMBER 3 0, 2026
PROFESS IONAL DES IGN F IRM LICENS E NO.: 184- 004576 
LICENS E EXPIRES : APRIL 3 0, 20 27



CAil J.U.LI.E. 1-800-892-0123 
WITH THE FOLLOWING:

COOll1Y COOK 
CnY, TOMISHIP 
SEC. & SEC. NO. 

MORTON GROVE
1
NIL£S 

SEC 19, T41N, R1JE 

48 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG. 
EXCLUDING SAT., SUN. & HOLIDAYS 

DEYD,,OPER 

P & P PROPERTIES, LLC 
1625 NORTH MILWAUKEE AVENUE
GLENVIEW, IL 60025 

P: (773) 294-1491 

ADVANTAGE NOTE 
AOVAIIITAGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS IS TO BE NOTIFIED AT I.IA5T 
THREE

W
) DAYS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. STAXING REQUESTS 

FM 5 OA\'S NOTICE BEIW£EN SEPTEMBER 15th AND DECEMBER 15th
mD BE INCLUDED IN lHE PRECONSTRUCTION M!IIINGS 

�f�
E 
l��tof�R

c
�� �8fED· 

CONTRACTOR/REVIEWER WILL NEED TO 

BENCHMARK 
£!.£VA'OON: 
IIESCRIPIION SEE SHEET EX 1 FOR 

BENCHMARK INFORMATION
EXlillNG TOTAL Sill: AAEk 0.50 ACRES 

PROPOSfD PROJ[CJ A.'1£A: 0.50 ACRES 

ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION 

FINAL SITE IMPROVEMENT PLANS 

FOR 

PARK VILLAS TOWNHOMES 
FERRIS AVENUE AT HENNINGS COURT 

MORTON GROVE, ILLINOIS 

MWRD PERMIT # 22-206 

LOCATION MAP INDEX 
SHEET SHEET SHEET DESCRIPTION 

# I.D. 

1 C1 CMR SIEI' 

2 TS! GENEIW. NOTES Nil T'tPICAI. 5ECl10IIS 

J EX! EXISTING CONDIINlNS PIAN 

4 DM1 OEl«llJllOII PIAN 

5 LI GtOMEIRK: PIAN 

6 01 � PIAN 

7 u, UTIUTY PINI 

8-9 SE1-SE2 STllRII WATER POWmON PRf.VEHl10N PIAN 

10 SE3 SOIL EROSION ANO SEDIW9IT CONTROL PUii 

11 S1 SP£CIFJCATIONS 

12-14 01-03 otrALS 

15 DR1 DR,,MGE M£A EXHIBIT 

16 IIT1 llollHlEMINCE NfJ IIOIITORtlG PIM 

17-21 CUP DETENOOH S'ISlDI BY C0NIECH 

' 
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 
7 

8 

9 

,o 

VILL4GE Of MOr<TON GROVE
ENf:!N£E;iiNG 

DATE:tEBY� C 

RECEIVED 

JAN 1 b ,..:1 

VILLAGE OF 1.1omm1 G!''.;' 

REVISIONS 
ORIGINAL PIAN DATE: JUNE 7, 2022 

SHEET I REMARKS DATE 
Al.I. REVISED PER MORTON GROVE/f.4WRDGC 07/25/22 
All 

1 
Al.I. 
Al.I. 
Al.I. 
ALL 
7,13 

6 

7 

....... nwcMP.SWU.IIL ,..._.. 

REVISED PER f.40RTON GROVE/MWRDGC 
REVISED PER MWROGC 
REVISED PER VIUAGE 

REVISED PER VIUAGE/DEVELOPER 
REVISED PER VIUAGE 
REVISED PER VILLAGE 
REVISED PER MWRDGC 
REVISED PER VIUAGE 
REVISED PER VILLAGE 

J!NUAR'l 11, 2024 am 

:=���/JC)�002-04i&1l 

� lltSIGli fJnl HO.: 1�1Ei [)SltlAl'OI OAlI: 04-/30/ml!i 
nm f't.NCSORNfffWITTtffl:OF' SWU.E£CONSl>D!ED�W!TtOJI'Tt£ � • SDil. lf,l) IJPM-XW OIJI rx- SOi. or O£ ENGNI1i 

08/19/22 

09/02/22 
C'IJ/19/22 

09/15/23 
10/03/23 
10/27/23 
11/21/23 
12/20/23 
01/11/24 

Vl q-<( N 
...J 0 

M ...J N 
0 > M ..
N � M 
N ex: z

<( <t
0.. --, 

UJ 

et= 

w 

w 

z 
-

z 

w� 

(!)• 0 (/) 
�::, . _J .• 

:z _J C')- c:: 
i---"� _z <tS 
0. 

a- �I
-I r-:. 
::::, w

co !:::= I.O 
=:, ,._ 

UJ�� I-� 

z: 
w«>wN
0:: i-!.
I--.:!" 

o�
co 

0� as 

w 

(!) 

<C 

I-

z 

<C 

C 

� 

EXHIBIT E



GENERAL NOTES 

1
. :t.:=�����

SJ

�����=�� 
� Cf' 1>E lilJ!C:fWJJY. IN CASE. Of a»fll:I, cowrr COO£ StW.J. [MC[ PRmDOU. 

2. AU. ST0RW SEWEii. SNGR'r' stm NII -.mt WIiii � S>W.L. COlRRI 10 M stAN:AiD SPEtflCAtl>NS Fm 'MlER NI) saD 
Wilil � IN lUOS, LATEST mTQK, IMO � � 1ml TI£ CHOO SlllMSDI JllllAmNS rs Tl£ IUICPALltY Ul«.ESS 
OIHfJlWlSEHOIEDONll£PLANS. 

J. �lO������<Xll'���9:f 
sro:rcw:, Nl'J@l Bill • CON5tlO£tl A PNff rs nas COHWCI. 

4. TI£ CClffl1JCIOR SIW1 1:£ RESPONSll£ FOR � THE UTUJY CC.WANIES l1lCAJt TJ£II F.iCUl!E::S fl ll£ FnD F'ID TO o:HmU:TrJj Nil 
��

f£
������c:�r������� Of 

5. NO CONSTU:IOI PUH SW.U. SE USED FM � tN£SS 5PECfCAUY YiW:ED -r0R mtSJ!ll.K:Dlfrl.• PRO! TO C0IIIOICfllOO Of 
� n£ CClfflllQtlR StWJ. 'IERfY ,u IJID!DIS NIJ C0IOOONS Affi'.CFNG M mat lfTH Ttlf. ,ICfl.W. COtlXllllG AT TIE JOB 

� -CADOf_.,.COl6IRUt'TICII 

A ���M��ltJ����,:>J;.\,,T��t�.� 
trsnc,iroa:s.. £mlJ! IOICIPNJtY'S 0fi: 1)£ l)l;llf;R'S. St.mCEffl.YIN M7AIC:E CJ"� 

11. DI...IJR£ (FOJfIRILTOR 'R>AUDl'PflOF'OtJIOMtATOl 'IK M«HRESl.ln IN TEStKi t:ml"Ni6 TO 8£lJM..£ TD� S1TE' NID 
�����TD

TO��� 10 llmlo) 001. lESTN. NZN:r C'I.H � TESflHG 

7. ALL � 5NM.1. KllP /ccm .MUJll AT "1 TIIES FDR Ail O'ffS fl nwn::. 1'l NO M SIW.1. ACUSS BC r.om> ltl PROIUN'.S 
-Tl£SITE. 

t. #ti PA0POSED D.fWJl0NS SOOMI otll M Pl.ANS Mr. fNSHEO � ON106,, lKfSS OlltEWISE SPECflD. 
9. THE C0HWCJOR S>W.L PfEi£M All C'OMS1llUCmM Si.t1ES Lim. TtEY NO!. NO UIIOOt t(EIE). #rt srMCES llESJROYED 0fl OISTUfllED £fl' 1l£ 

COW1Wl'llR PlmR TO nu USE SHAU. BE f£SEf BY 11£ DMl.(Jf'fl"S Etan'l AT � oosr. 
10. SE� TO WEIT JJW. rNSH CRAil(. 1ll!i ilOJ.IS'TWOO" IS TD 

nEE � lD FNHD QWl£ Ni. NOT 
IJ'I' M COIMTY Uf'Clr( F11W. NSP£CTXlN or n£ PflllrT. flW. 
ANalW'W/lifftt'IIP\NIGIW£. 

II. � lJ;HT SWl!lMllS.IMJ UIIJJY PDtES ll«Jl tfflJfUIE lllmt COtmRUC1DI OFO.m»t5 NJ )l(JT ND1E!> Fat� 9Wl 
�:��A1.:=:ll::1����Jr��£s:1"JE�. 

m n£ RDPmM: OIMERS. 

12. �������l·
is���

aRtB
��� 9W.l BE Cl5P05tD 

StNJ.1£tollNftTOI m nf.l"ll:IPOSEl>STCf!MSEUSYSmlOR !HU DE 
urJiJDrf fl /i1. ftlD 1U CR DffMt FR flCDMlDe 9'tJ. 8C XD'T Uf 0£ 

Of n£ PRO.EJ. Ttft COST Of' ntS � � f£ CON5l3ER£D IS 
-.i_ 8E M.LMD B'I' DWNEt &- wu.:,,,tUIY. 

1•- NJ. 'aMI< P£.RfORldO UIQJl ntS CXllllR,ltJ SHiliLL BE awM1tID B't TiiE � Ml) HS SUIIEiY f'tlft A f'DID.\ OF 11 � AlOM 
'D£ DllE 0f FNJ. ll:f:.E11rJIU. �'M PIil.El NI> n€ �9WJ. IE 111D RESFQrtSB.[ f't1I AU. DD'tClS IH W.mw.5 MIO 
IIOflCIMGIPtF"""TMR*'ltH!LtllC™TPOlm 

15. aEFt1t£ � B'I' Tt£ IJIIO Nil FIW. �.(rlE)ff, HJ. WOIIX SML !I'. ICSPO:m) 8'f THE 0lltD OR tG IEPRE!OOArM. FM PA'l'Wlt 
lft!.BEMirilE'AFTER.U11£COHWCIOR'SID&tC:}M.SBEDIAPPfO'EDNID.ICa1'1'ED. 

16. ��n:.:::::&.�nE-��,���«·�wr-�
SM1. 8( Ja:E?7Nll TI) Ttl: IUICfW.llY. 

17, 

11, mo 911,U. OBiNN fASOEriTS Mm PmrJS IEn"!WrT 10 ua..rnn: � Cf' ntE Pl0PO!iD urwn Tl£ CCMR1CTOR. lfJl£\O. 
stWJ. FURtGt NJ. R£1J1.HD BONDS _, E.\U)U or 1G.1W1:E � ro SEWRE THESE PONTs. 

19. Tit: COfTRIClORS 9W1 PVM llf1t 11R<: 8'SED OH DER <MN BCl!:IGS, CQ'LDfW'QG ltilJ � la Dm1Ult stll IXMXIDE AJ 
l}f:LOQUl)N(l'nt£f'WOPUSED'd!K. 

2a. n£ectmltiClOflrSS0l.ELYRESPa,CSll,.£Ftllsi.mYQtlTJ£iJB .. M:C(RWIC[.11fflOStMR£CIJ.AroNS, 
21. �"':-.:-��fo�W 

FOO n£ tw.tJNC #I> C90W. RmJID f0II Cl£Nt-lP 

%l. IT StW..L BE CONlWCtOR's scu IIDP0IC5IEllfn' il) PRIM£ PfrlPCR � � occa NI) TI£ wt MIIGDIEMT a mm: 
WITTIH TI£ NiD <F CX'.lNSTliOCOON Ml 9.DI OOUS NifJ tt0 llfSVUAJKlH 9Wl o:KORN TO ll£ lJ.I05 liWI.W. OF lW'tlRY � 
cotffRCl ina:5 FtlR S11lat H«) HICJW.'tS, LATESI' am,, Nil N CONA>flWCt wm! REGUI.ATICIIS Cf ll£ � Oft D.0,T. 

%1 ICI � W(g SWil IE mw'tJE> ""11 IT K,;5 Bfl» � Br nE COUMY. � ltl MOC.m) WUST 8E 0BJME) FlDI 1)€ 
OlOKIY PMm 1D lltST� PNl8El1' !WK. fltlOER. S.IRDCt Afl) PfP m PO.IK JM1 C0NCRCII N1ER f0RWS MWE !E)l SEI, 

24, H.J. DlmC urunrs CJI nn:MIIENlS:. Hl.U)I(:. WNJ:s. Wt9S, fWIDENT IMO fWOOlll.iS �OR� 111.RNG COHSTflll:OOH SWfJ. 
BE PftOUl'Tl.Y RESTOfim TO TO � tAl::Mlil. CCJ«)IJOI. 

25. XI M ClD5£ !Y" r.AOI Ql(K: DAY NI) Al Tl£ IXJNCUtS(JH Of COlcSTllrJ'OJ � Ml DINilGE 5JRIX:i1m NI> fl()I' lM:5 SWU 
11.fJIE£FIUIORIAHOIIBR:B. 

2'. Tli£ESMC'l'�FM flll'.!llfAt.5W.ltl£CONSUJIEl)ASoe;&1W£DTO EESMDNl.lSHW.9:PRDltC1£DUNOERn£ PfrMSQGC, 
NnnE Mll.05 a lOC $WCIAAO SPEtR:A'OOMS. 

17. 1.1111 PSil»Ni StW1. E PERRR6J llQH nt: � (F >.H APPDll) � NCtTm NI> SKILL BE lNlfRfM[N � A TIEl.V 
f)S9JN 50 IS N01 10 WIDIF(R[ NIIW tXltCSTU1Dl 

a. M.L uwes, DIWOE.S. »1:1 ono DEBRIS R£Sl.lTIIC flQ,I 1)15 � stW1 BE DISFOS(D (F Ofi-31E Br l)£ COlnw:toa: /,J I-IS OWN 
ll<PlllS[. 

21. JU CUTS !MR l'IN DM.1iEU1 $Klil.8C W4' FUSI lffltn£ ET INU � IDJl)S'1,!Jl I' It twlE1£R S1W!. (£.PMfflJI ldMAN 
N'PRCKDTIEPMG'. 

30. Ntt Dl'WIJERINC fS SEWUt lifJ WAnR flOD£S AS 'lll£ll. AS TEMP0fNr SMeitNG OR � n"1 .,,_... BE JICQUl!m StWJ. B£ H 
RESP0NSBUiY Cf' lJiE CQORACTOR Nil SKltl NOT et ttlN5IDEl) OOAA WORK. IN 'H lW'T "THAT son MTERW.S wrrn lJIJWHD 
COWESNE. stlDGTH LESS TlWt U lSf' AM EtmJN1tR[I) IN S£l'ER NI> •m wt � DE C0NTWCrM Sltw. (lAl4. 
=-�����rortn�i.r:\�� fWT 8ElDIJ nt: �OW DF TIE PF£ NtD 

31. COfflRIIICTIJt stW.L 't'llttl WE 'IDRIC NlfV, �TD� FOR TI-£ Nfl0SC Cf COCI.AIJffN; � eotDTD6. 
32. TR£h0t 9'0l1l.l. UL BE R£Ql.ffD TOM: FLU DEPIM IBI£ AU.� U1ISTtS '#ITTIN TIIO rm fS PROPOSm OR OJS1M,, 

PASEH!S, llfl.1r£S. EU.DNGS, Mil 51Bti1.iS. Tl£ IJIMCH 8ACffl.L gwJ_ BE ODNE ti MXX11Wa WITH DOT STNIWID �. M 
Tf!DOf 8IICICFll NllJ flElllM .wATDIW. S1WJ. CCNSIST fE CRIJStC C'iRMl. aHnlMiC m llOT CfW)l,Tl)N � 

ll. SHIU. 1£ Cl£N(I) IF llORS 
COHl1ltiCI' �rr PRICC f'JDl FDR 

FW.F'ORCI.EANl!tO.PAltllNG, 
TllS C0HWCf Sl'W.L BE WfWG 

.)4. IITD THE STVRM 5DIER SYSm1 WIS EH o:J61JIIJCl'III TI£ ctlNTlW;TI)I StW.L !UC[ D!OSKIH a»ma. Kl IJXNlONS SH(MN QI n£ PUNS 
OR� SELECTED IHTHE Fn11 EJt n£ DQ££R. M: P!Jl)l)StOf' M EROSIClil C0NlROI.. WU 8ET0 tiaMlE Ttl:.wotJ.'T '69.P,TQL \MCK 
_, 111W] IJIIIJI 11£ sroRII Slll!l! S1STfM -- IKl/OR """"911 --

lS. (ROSl0lr( mmlCl. M£J&IIES SIWJ. !£ INSf.llU.ED N ICt0RIW«:E •TH� lMUf lWIW.; MJ SiWJ. 8( WMTilHD B'f TIC� 
NI) StW.1 ROUI( N PUC[ C.1111. A SI.KJNk£ CflOl'1H (If QI.ASS ICIXJ1Jlill£ TO lt£ DQtER KIi$ amt IIN1DP£n. 

36. n£ OMQ S,'ill1. PflOJIOt RECOOD DIIAIIKS PER liUl:Rl. flEOI.MDIOOS. 
31, Al.I. lD!K MUST tot.l'lY 111H l'ilE WJJC£ OF lilR1CH CiltNt5 ADOP1D) WU9IQ CODES MIi AID0ING ORDIWC£5. 

z• (JJ1Jlft)U5 cctc:R£i£ SJ.ff.<[ CCUISE', tf1J IIX ASPtWJ, _, 0, N50 
2.�• !ITUMNl)JS UllrlC:WI Sllf'..U: C0UltSt ttOJ Ma �. l-11.0. t60 
It" CRlJSHED ,c,QGfJ£ 9.JS-&ISt. 'JY, B.. 

ASPHALT PAVQENT SgcTION - AJUY/f6BPNG ABE& 

CJ 
11fPOinUtl)CE11DffCOfGETE.NVD,l£N'l'W/D5Wlf' 
•·CRUSHED�� r,. a. 

SECTION: DUllPSTER PAD 

CONTACTS 

EllGl!".lfil 
ADVANTAGE CONSUL llNG ENGINEERS 
80 MAIN STREET. SUITE 17 
!.£MONT, ILLINOIS 60439 
PHONE: (6:30) 520-2227 
CONTACT: THAKOR P PATEL 

� 
P & P PROPERTIES, LLC 
1625 NOR'lli MILWAUKEE A'JENU£ 
GLENVIEW, IL 60025 
PHONE: (773) 294-1491 
CONTACT: JOHN PARK 

PROPOSED 

--<--<-__ .., __ _ 
---•2---

+4J.2 
Ii) 
,c.o. •• • 
... 

I) 

"• LI. 

-.Q----0--

'" 
-E-

-t-

-0-

•"'
r,:, 

TF 
1D 
Tfr, 9"' ·-
R 

H'lll/NWl 

LEGEND 

DESCRIPTION EXISTING 

SIMMstll!'.li 
wmR IUI-I 'M1H SIZE 
5'H!tlRl'S[WQI 
COI.IIIN£DstwER 

--<----4-

-

""""""' 
""'™"'"""""' 
5'H!tlRl'CL£N<llJT 
STOtb.l �lE 
sm..N.ET 
sroRM tATCH &&N 
RR£"""""1 
Sl,ffM..O BOX 
CAT[ \IN.VE W/VJ,U.J 
'""'"""' 
SlffiETUOHT 
STREIT lJGHT W,'WSr 
Mllfl.OWDllECllON 
CUR!! 

S11.T FOa: 
f!NC£ 
CONS!"""""'"""' 

R<lOl>SlCH 
El.£CIRtC 
OAS 

"""""""""" 
tlllUIYl'CI£ 

llOilNSPOUT (rO """"""""") 

DOWIISFOUT(rOSURrM:E) 
OfPftESSE!> Ct.Im FOR IW4P/DftMWAY 
TCP Of FOI.NIAmH 
TOP OF CURS, 0£PRESSED 
TOP WAU.. GROUND Al BOTTOM � WALL 
R:W fOR STRUCTUA£S 
Ri� fOR S'iNITARY SERVICE 
HIGH/NO!aW. w,,n:R L1VEl. 
�l1C5Pffl1'1CUR 
'''""'" 
llWflC Slll""-
TA.ilf'IC � YAULT 
llW'FrllOl< 
PfDESl'<I. 
... CONOll10NER -­
'TEl.EPHOh{ w.>.IMOLE 
El.tCIRICTOWDl 

p 

nmRJC TIWtSf'OAw:11 rr 
El£Cll!IC"'1Di 
rutTRICIWOIO'..£ 
""'ll(l[R 
""'"'''"'"' 
.. TER MEIER 
ii'NJHOlt � 
ftQ-IPIPt Q 
fl!TAMIG Ml. 

C i hi 202.! A:lvani.c� ConsL1lli. £ticineen. LL: 

,. ' 

< 

! 
I :;, 

I I I J 
,. , .. 
•;• 

� � � � 
-� 
:,;: 

I ! I .... 
<· 

II II 
:-. 

� 
�-� 

ll " " :! 
,, 
��: 

:;�• 

); 

! 
t 

w (/) �� 0:: �· 
UJ � { UJ :z 

1 z 

� �l:l �;z =-i :;: 

z 
UJ 

� � 
C) ,._ .,:. - < 

� 

z I!:! : 
� �� i::
:::::, t:itf C Cl) � ;,
z 

�� ;,�<C ;:; 

th Cl) 
w-
::E 0 

0 0� 
z U) ::c -' z ..J <[ z 
(/) Q 3: -:.
sM e� z U) Cl) 0
...I ...I 

::5 ffi � <) 
� ii: -' z 

�� 
-o 
> t-
� r:r:: 
r:r::o 
�:ii: 

Cl)� 
w-

�� 
w-11. >
oz ,:r::W 
11. ...I
11. (!)
al!! 
11. 

JUNE 07, 2022 
JOB: 22-019 

SHffT; 

TS1 

2 Of 21 

.;� 

l� 
,; 

{ 
t" 
-� 
>.� 
;, .:,, ' 

;;· 
-�-

�� ·"·· 

'• 
/� ' 
:..:, ·, 
.�, ,·.:· 

{-: 



SITE BENCHMARK 
BONNET BOLT ON 
FIRE HYDRANT 

STORM 
.,,...0 

AM-tZ:3.12 

EL= 624.52 (NAVO 88) 
ELEVATIONS DETERMINED 
BY GPS METHOD 

"""""""""
"""""'-" 

Rt.1�1:»t 
1�12i1 

RM-122.M 

._. ..... l" 

,,,
.,;'7 

•'
,1u:? 

LOT 18 
,,�� 

PARCEL2 

,.·
/ 
lOT 11 

lfiV-614.IJ 

"""".:-'.,_,\ 
,,,l

f+�=.
�� ....

�
"' 

i;✓ 

,. .. )-,
'I'.."� 

:f 

OOMBINATIOH 
MANtlCU 
. ....,, ...
JMV-8131 

I 
� TOPCCP.IMC SUIMY • EICUIWn" PfONl£D a'I'; 
UIITEDSl�� 

BENCH I.IAAK 

�NET BOLT ON ARE H\'DRAl<T O NEX 
ar HtH!ilNGS !: IWlRACANSET 

EL= 624.52 (NIM) 68) 

w en
a:: 

C) 
w 
w 

z 

z 
w 

z (.!) 

� 

z

�:::>
C (I') 

z 

<( 0 
(.) 

tn z
0

0 z 

(!) z;:::
th 

w 

�
(/) ..I 
w-.

;:::�0:: w
W-
CI.> 
oz 
0:: w
Cl.� 
Cl. 
GO 
Cl. 

"'
i 
a ��
:1 
�I ~
�i 'o 
t::i"' 
w'9 

��
�""
l,l 

JU�E 07 2v22 
JOB: 22-019 

SHEi.l: 

EX1 

3 Of 21 



t 
- SCII.E , •• :zo· 

� ' 
10' 20' 40' 

�
1. C0KJl¥ClOR 15 10 FEJ) � £:4STN. IITlJIT IJ:rA1Q,IS NI> EUW.TllNS 

PAm lO OOOJ1IIN. SOIi[ tlTl.lTE5 W.'f' frl)T 11£ SICIN. 

2. HJ. DKISION CONJH0L Iii� SIW1 E£ NSTIWD PW.lR TU manx>ti 

3. C00fDW[ A ROE.ASE FROM 1l£ El£Cl'IC. GAS NII 1D.EPWOMt SDM::ES .... .,-
-4. JIOWATERl5T08£USEl)f'ACIIAFIIE'.fl'IUW(l'miOUSfC'Otmi:llt. 

wmotr Ii WAmt liEIR, A 9,1,C.QUM PRMNTER. M> WAltR tl:PARMlll -. 
s. .tu. .IO.ICNfG Pi.a..t NI> PRfll41t PROPERf'T' SfW.1. ar PAOttCm> rROM 

t:WM« CAUSED B'Y' ll£ 9'T£ OOD.m>N. 

6. N.1. mTE IM.TEAW.S SlW.L BC REMCMD II A. lWffR � PRt6JS 
���TO PERSOlS, AO.IOltH PA0PEJi'In, NiJfrlR Rl!il-lT 

7, AU."'51'EIWDll,lr,i.5-9W.1.IE(ISfQSIDOfCllWINANN'Pl!CMII 
f"'1JIY. 

I. M SITE 51-Wl. 8C CAAOED Tl> PRMHT 1HE ACQ.IIJI.Alk'.lN or-."IR OR 
D,V,G£ lO Mi f�'JJJNS l:lt Tt£ Pti£llSES Of Al}J(ffG PIU'EJnY. 

9. AU.EXISTPlltllln\51N!CATmtoll€�SWtl8t'.�AJ 
E.IQI 811, Pi.lJG OD'lH DIIS WITH AT t£AST 2 f'm LONG IOI-Sta« 
� OR CRCl1! PUX:. AU ffll.CTil!£S tn llE MWIOON£D StW1 BE 
REID'ED B1 AT LEAST J Fm BEl.O, FIW. OIWC NE IW:Xfli. WH C,.1 
DR r:A7 UI' TU 5U:IGR.lOE 

!fGWQ 

.•, 

! 
i 

',· ,.

Ii n ·, 

Ir Iii Iii Iii y ·•,· 

u n )
s I ill 

,.,,
r

� ·.• 
::

Ii ,.: Id al ,,; 

w Cl) ;c::: 
(!) w lsw 

�� z 
<( <5 

I( I- z 
z 

w .... 
0 ~ 
z 

�i j:: � 

� ....I "'"' 
::) ti;!i1 ..

�lil 

<( 

z

z0
i=
:J

w0

Cl) 

0 
:z 

(.) �
li'l 

Cl) Cl) 
w-:eo
0 a!;:I: ..J z ..J 
;: -:
0� 
i-o 

�ffi
..J z50
:it:� 
c:: 0 
�:::E 

I--..L.------1,J. 

Cl) ..J 
w-

�ffi 
�> 
ozc:: w
0. ..J
0. (!) 

oO

0.

JUNE 07 2022 
JOB: 22-019 

SHEET: 

DM1 
4 OF 21 

•' ' 
:� 

Co t �2t2J AdvofltQ eo�n:. E/1Qneers. 
<:.1,x�r '.•Y.-:-�-·� ... . )".,,_xl'-1/� ._.--y .. ;, /\.•-".:.:;:,.._-.. �-,,",:v.,;.::_:.�,.�-:�/. ... ;_'..), ,,_.:,.:.,, .. _ .... T: '.>:�>>:-❖'✓-- < .. ,,:-,, .. ;,,,. ... �··.v .-. -��}"1'' -Y✓-; )'""'.· ... J/1-·_-: -;1 . .. .. .:;.-:,.1::,_,_<--·.,_';, ··/••.:: <:'( ... ,-�• ... :;;,:.- ... :-;:..�; ... ;;,��h,·--:·��:,(:-�-"�:-:..,,-? ½ >1 ..... ✓.>::vv'•:·"'.;-;.;.,i·;-; "-�·,?--'.• :-:.�:-•·,.-· .. ·.:: 



... -... 

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENT TO BE 
DONE BY VILLAGE OF MORTON 

GROVE (NORTH OF DRIVEWAY TO 
FERRIS AVENUE) 

SITE BENCHMARK 
BONNET BOLT ON 
FIRE t1YDRANT _ 
EL; 62◄.52 (NAVO 88) 
ELEVATIONS OETEAMINED 

, BY GPS �!.(:!OD_ 

.... ".-),;.; .... ·--� "''"O ....... , � •.• -..;... • • -,, "��/�,,,.,; ,"-,�"';.�f,<,"',$i-'• �,t ,.. •'.r"•1•,:✓-1· ,_ • ,. , _ ... :,., }. • ,- .-'f/· ;_ ..,·.,,. r-�,,: '-�;, ll•,•»�;'. �·� ... _ ... ·.: • /'"•1,• ,·, ?"u :,·,. ·.·� .... :.-·,.>;,-,1-✓�.;,�� :,).4./:/}',..-;' :...;,1J�-,,.�-.:;.�,.,_�;,,:-·-'%2-�/Z:.�6--:'. .. ,.,..&s,. . ..,..�-�),;{,•/ ... ;✓t-...;.�:.'·'·,•� ?h�_.•,'.r\o:,::,•,.;�{'� .... :.-:.::i �-:-·,;,;,,t:•;...:•.�· ,.,.;, .. �',L_.�·,',,(,;,,.,,"'..-,,-:-•1•:�,,;-�..;:,:-:•:.<,�: :,,;,.>:;,,,.: •. •·-�:� 

l...!.....t:·=.rf. i=T�ffl' 

,·.:Ir=. 
""""-'§,."'" :> 

' � ' "' 
'....i. 11, 

f 
Qlli'l'./CSCALE1°-20· 

t.- \ 
0 10' 20' 40' 

CURB LEGEND (COLOR CODED): 

ff 81.RRD CUii, IHI I!' _1111�= 
[Er '

1 
NOTES: 

lll'RESSEDCURI! 
TJWrlSITDIWRB-" 
..,....,.ru.,;,, 
-

1
t

·SAN•MH,.-, 
1 

I. :�� ARE TO TH[ 84CK Of ct.Ill! UNUSS N0T£D 

:� I 
2. All CONJRICTORS ANO SUB-CONTRACTORS SIW.1. BE 

; 
ucENS£D B'1 1lt'E WJAGE or UOl!fON GR(1.'E. , fA 

:I J, ��=���
p
�H���-� 1Wi BW1 INSTAU£0 8'1 '1.1.'GE Of �ORTON GRM. #11 

JJ� 
PAYD,l!JIT lWll<ING lllS1lJll9ED 8'1 COIITRACTOR SHAU. BE 

� RESTORED BY CONTRACTOR ANO SHAU. BE Tt£RMOPIASTIC 
PAVEMEl/l MARKINGS, 

4. ElCJSTljC WHEEi. STOPS 11,y BE USED F1lR PARKING SPICES 
If R!Qt/ESTED 8'1 OfVEI.Of'£R. 0110 WHm S!1lPS S!Wl 
BE l,j(M]) TO I.OCATlON 11!:S!GHATED 8'1 000.0PER, 

5. AU. SlDEWAU< Ra.l0'/.11. SHIU ME EXT[NOEO TO NEAREST 
JOWT, C\JRB ,t GIJTITR RfM()';.11. S1'Al.l. BE El(l[llDED TO 
NEXT JOINT OR CRACK IF EXIITNG JOIHI OR CRACK IS ll!MI 
5 f'm Of REMOVAL UMITS SHOWN O!I PWIS Vl.UGE Mll 
0£1£RMINE THE EXilJII Of - PRIOR TO STAAi 
R£MOYAI. PROC£SS. CONTRACiOR TO COHIACT l'lUAGE 
PU8UC WORKS DEPN!lMENT. 

C t:'t 2J2J Mw:mta C<lnsufti • • ,. • ";l • ' • • ·, • " .r.,,;.,.,:,•:;,,, -;_)( .:_:_)->,,;:• ',,-'-/•,•)-', ,• •,.<:X.�� .... "-"i,J\,.) •• ,:,�:.., _,.'.7,I',::-:,�, �-• .,,.,·,• ,_.• /.•• '.- •� (-,'N ,V,.�,:1:1-.� ,•,(,.✓: ..,,_�.-: :-, ,'/,.• ,-,7 .. ,.,·,:;,;.-?✓ •• ;,,,,,·,•�,",. ,.·,//,'•;1(:•'� •'.":" •'<•.•·,.-•:..-:,.•;, ; ·,:.-:,·,;,-•,·•.;:,.>':'-.• _.,;•.:.•,:;, -,.:;:-:'9'.,'._>•:•i<•i""�••t':�:• ,;:;, "'.,:�,.�•• 

z 

5 
a.. 
w 
l-
ei> 
C 
w 
Cl) 0 a.. 
� a.. 

f/) f/) 
w-
:EO 
0� 
:c ..I 
z ...I 
�� 
I- � Cl) 0::: 
5 Cl 

...IZ 
-o 
> 1-:x:: 0::: 
o:::o 
<::::E a.. 

< 

. .. 

1----''------4'' �;;. 

� 
..I 

,,; ...I 
w-

�;: 
� � 
oz 0:::W 
a. ..I 
a.. C, 
olS 

a. 

JUNE 07 2022 
JOB: 2 -019 

SHEET: 

L1 



j 
CIW'!fC SC.ll£ 1"= 20' 

GRAPIIC A 20' 
,-_ =- I 

10' 20' 40' 

GRADING NOTES 

1. ALL SPal' �roes SiDV AJ Cdl9 J/f£. '?ti' 
($'---

2. NJ. �rQIS SK'IWN ON PlAMS N/f. flGt[D 
�El.MlDCS. 

3. NJ.CRDSPl'NCSEINJIJcotr.Ra.li0$r.lRD 
g,wl,8EINFUC£PRXIA10SM'Trl 
-

4. CCHTR.ICltlRSIW.l.WJriWrilPOSTM:SITE """"""""""""""""" 
5. "'1PIIOPOSiDCAADESSKlil.w.mt£XIStll'C 

� AT Tt£ PRCffR'l'I' U1E »II 1.T DSTM. 
IIIPR(Mll[Nl'S 1D ROMll 

6. SE£� R)I � NfJ 
5ffi!JC'nW,Lf1100ll¥CTK)NIG\JffllOTS. 

7. H a!06S SLOPE ON N.1 SllEIWXS SiW. tffl 
oo:mi 1.51. 

ll N.l. '11W: 9W.1. CMtRt 1U Tl£ 2018 fil!OON 
� 'H S!Ai[ Of lllQS .ICCCS!HJfY CCU 
N40/(Sl.n£2010EIITIOHOflt£JME'IIICMS 
wmt�ICT(AQ,\J'IH::HMRISMIYI: � 

40' 

Co 
• 

t -. 2023 Advcr.lo'"e- Cons.iti� • m,, Ll.C 

z 

:5 
0.. 
C) 
z 

i5 
� 
C) 

� 
..I 

fl) ...J 
w-

.:= � 
o::w 

�> 
oz
,:tW 
CL ..I 
CL C) 
oO 

0.. 

JUNE 07 2022 

JOB: 22-019 

SHEET: 

G1 

6 Of 2'.i 



•. 
,. 

SITE BENCHMARK 
BONNET SOLT ON 
FIRE HYDRANT 
EL.= 624.52 (NAVO BB)­
ELEVATIONS DETERMINED 
BY GPS METHOD I 

ti 
,: 

.J 

f 
GIW'l4CSCIU:1'•20' 

P- I
0 10' 20' 40' 

ttmS El! OONJ 1mm "* 
,. .,U Sl0Rlf SEIIEJIS SWU eE Ref' Q. Y, 

� AU. SiWWrf SDfER stW.1.BE M 00 18 lltUSS 
"""""""""'-

l. All 1WinR SEJMC[' SHW. IE TYPE ll COPPOI I.IC.m 
""'"""""""-

.. 1)£ tNlEJDWN $H,tU BE P£RFORAfED M: SDR 26 
o:tNJS N-12. 

,. n£flWi€taPAJ'""'-l\llftl!STtell'SfRUCMt'S 
�8£.ISFO..I.OIIIS: ·� JilDtlij R-1712. mt: D <F£H GRATE ·� IEDWl R-171Z. trPE B CU&D U) 

,. UTUTl'STIU:nl'!E.S'AIICK.UCOIO; 

M.16:liWttclE.Sl'RUCTUREf36 

I� -grlCH � ... _,., 
.. lFlMD>OIDsmrKll'IITHRIPNP 
• S: SWJ1,Rl' IMQ.f 
f!";lrF:lffl.OftAST 
wntm:H'l'DRAHf 
8 Ye -�W,,J 
• PC: PR£5W![ COIHtTDI 
• CXI: Qf#t[l/1' 

I.O:: PElf'OAAm> I.HltRIJR.f.lM 
MD.1P::TYPEA.4'°"'-.TrPt:orf1WI: 
,.,, G!Wf,/ll). 

7. C'OH1RICroR m � 'IOfY U>CATD( « EXSttG 
UllJTISRIICOlf£TICIIOff'RC'f'OSEDIJTIUT£i, 

& CONTWCT111 9WJ. o:>clRPMl'E »ff P.CWl Q.0Sl.ti5 
rot a:io. CUT UllJIY ,.._ lffli Tl£� ..,,,.,.,.,_ 

•. � •• -3=:':a •TREhtHBN:KflU. 

IO. C'£0JU:HflCALOQEERstw.1.TiSTn£BOOtE11ITOUR'fl: 
PAC»'ER WMM r:»K:JTT 01' Ttf. TRNCH 90TTOW. f' R(Qlftl) 
Bl' Q.OT(OH:Al. ODfEl. All 9)fT IM1CRW. StWJ. EE 
FID«MDNtO IEUCEII 11TH CJJ STOf£ OR emu '-"TE!Ml. 
Jl1l1RrNfIJ B'I' CiEDrmt ENGl£ER. 

& 

c=J : lfl 
M9!£N1 PMCH SWJ.L'BE ATLEASI fDl.lDflNG S8:TlON Cl!: MaQ'Ot EklSTtKi f'JIMMENl sa:t1JN 
A 2" Bm.UQI$ C0NCRat SllllfAC,£ COURSE, ftDT I&( ASPIW.T, IIX. ll. NS0 
8 2.5" lllWIQIS COld£it SUl9CE CttJtSt, l«J'I' Ill ASPtWJ, L-19.C, t,r,o 
C l'r CR11.HD �Tt SIJB-6'5[, rt. I. 

ASPHALT PAYBQNT $1CTION - PAYQENT P!TCB 

Consutfu. ErtriM-ffl l l 

. ,. 

w Cl) 
0:: 

C, w
w

� 

z 

a 
z 

z 
w 
C, 

� 

z 

i== 
..J 

C en 

z 

<( 0 
() 

;C' 
·, 
.. •.

�; 
f ;, �-•' ·�· 
t 
r 
i 
,· 
-�: 
:;\ 

I---'------!;, 
,, 

{:. 

JUNE 07 2022 
JO!l: 22-019 

SHEET: 

U1 

7 Of 21 



CONIROl J 

�
!.

MCASUR!: --
t � CONTl!Ol MEASURE CHMACTERISTICS I MAINTE!WlCE FRWJENCY NS A.AM � lnN Pfi1PMm iD c»'lY 10M � ?IIM5Q6 Of lfle ffl!MT IUIOC't lRtO, iSSUlD St Tl!£ 7, ,om- 4. lml:llll§ 11.UOS ONRClt«JiVrl f'ROf£COOl1 /ICUCr � �TtR 0:5C"nAll.tS rRDII COICSTfUC'D Sl1[ ACT'MTICS � SCI!. 

a:ISOi � 5cillM[JrfJCClffffl. � RIil Mco..tm'. sa.o NIE WIDll4.5 � 'IAASH, �OCID'l OCiRS, [Xt[SS Ct'�J:Tlll,' '-"TERltl,t.S, IUCIHRY. n£ (r.O. Ol l'1HJ!"S fl1'fESOOMM 9WJ. PflCMJE- �fG P£RS{HE. TC' ffrCSPm M D6r.RBED «AS 100!.S Ml) C1l£R mllS WU fE o::u!C"ED M.D CEPOScT> OF -0FF !fil 8"' "'-€ �"l'Z nt: CC!UIUCl'DRS Of Tl£ SITE lli:lE.11 COfeil'IIJCIIOP'I 'N0l Wi,'£ NOl IEH 5f&JZEO, Kl SiRUCt\All C0ffflr.l. VCJS.ffl.. "'"°
-� ® �15���'lwrovr�.JlE' l"UCliMOO X lt€1>0 'Hr F-.....0 MEAS.. 1. lmllESCRIPTIOII. 

>Rf. RSPclcS1l.E ro MX-4.� r-r f[RIIT 11£.0J'f'fD RlR S.ot C6"IJSl,L WR'tll: Ott SIT[ ".l. HOT 8E UlCAJOCS HRE YEHQ.£S oom "OR oo bf' sm: StW.t. BC � M UAST ONCE E'IER'I' srn.� (1) � tel Sot.!0 MATCRlt.l.S. IHCl.LONi BiJI.Ot«: i..-.TER'A:.S, SHAU. BE �:IWKD TO WA.tRS r£ lJ,£, SiAl£. 

I)<® 
rm::PfliS�{W4SB3)N -404 F'E'Rlill'. ML "'5Tt �lE'RA._S S-C-�..D fl: CW£Ctill A.IC ST� * � r-\YS #fJ Wit..,. 24 KMiS Of M 00 a:-A S!'OIN lh'T IS G 5 tD!£S OJI r.FIEl!TtR � 

VEGETATlVE -- ==��¢7':�o,T()���1[lt$ X m>OJ«rDU;C.lffl:1'. 1. Tl£ F'W.OIIG IS .A lr£Rf'TQf Cf nit � ,l,C1M1Y FttJ.OHIG YI.SS � Wtll){ 6 T-t: SU8.E:T APfll<MD li'fCEPl,IQ.E'S. t() WASTE3 SHXILD BE P-..)(:£0 N N(F �llON cno 1lWI JI lt£ � �!iJ(llllf".ll!.. 
(E'!llS I\NI: 00HWK1tS �J[ l'tfr "DI: MUmWS LOK; OSCM1)61, TltcJ!E SHQAD BE .'1:1 l.010 ""5Jtt 

SOIL ctPOS1'1£D 1ff0 Cl.'lflSl[RS Oft OT>E't CONTA:H(RS � Wi\'I' WK. JIUFTN:1£5 11111 CW::OC6 'StlXlD BC ,. (QUIKD NK....AS Na; NVS usm Ftf. STOJW.:C Of WiUDIKS ntll ,w: OPOSrn 1tl FRCP:YAl'ON Sli'U. 8£ 
COVER DDl!IIAH1'sm>ING @) =-"����.: �m:"' t'ON'fft $(ASTJt, � X K-,U., If H&llEIL 11£ PID'OS[D tl'IO..OPIIOrT C0MS1rn or OOff'SrfflJC7D, IS f'Hf< JIii 6-'S WfflfflYES lf\ill.lJPIE(f flPI.NE 1/S SOO'I 16 MSSB.E ff mt: � aLNil-t.P � SHClUl w:£ A.ICE. F 1£ESS1fn. 'MSF'frTll) FOR MnCE tY!, OR rtt f'Oroff'Jl RlR, POl.WTANiS Dfl(1W; DfE ()ILWl(l smEll """""Hf> 

It 
Tl£ CON5'1llJCOOl,i .lie™T'l5 FQR SITE lliff.CMMOOS tnlU � � MAltBI(. IS Mat tO B£ � ON SITE. ""5'l'E D9'0Sl,l. Stt,IU �y 'flffll AU. lOCli. � a»iTRCL � Q041KD ti fl{: � SHIU fE. 0BS0MD TO OCSf8£ ™T 111£'1' IR! �Tffl 

@) �:&�T��"c::-r� SM. '"D �"'" R£1llN""5, COAAEtRY. WHERE DfSQWQ: �TllNS OR POIKl5 J.Rf .<.C(SSa£. Tt£'r' SWU. 8E !MSPEtfED TO �MN 
SOOOINO X .,. ,. ........... WIHJl£R DK>StOk WiTFK•. l6SllRES AA£ EmcfM: II PRMflDIIC � IMP#ICB TiJ RlCU,'!M: WAIUI$. � --- Ot -W tWMXll'5 M'.� s:f:,fiJ,6£ � ft Y'tMlttD 4'«l sneD Ii IJBEl.lll. SlPAR,1,'lE RfC£i'Lla.LS UD.lll'.liS lltU:'l'EliClES EJtllR ��TH£ STE SIVIU.E£ t6PCCITD Ftll: [V':t)£Jf;[ 'Y"OfT sm: SEDffil)O' 

_,__, ® FW:7tCO 101, � n:.; 00S'OH � X "" C, ltQ.ltJAl'hf Of UllL'TES N:lWNi S10ilil S8VtS fP.(11 N!>t-11'?.r«l0..5 WAST.E. All. 1WARDW5 w.5iE SH)(lJ) BC llSPOS£D Cl' 11 n£ IWtO 5PO'.:fEl SY -

n 'J o, sm. 6IO$t'M IKJ SDillEHl'.IJDC eotmlQ.. M£/.Sll!£S, IS A.� LOCJ-1. ot Stl,l[ fS.lATl)NS OR BT Tt£ 11Wl.f"'1Ufi0. 
NON 0 

" BIS[D(II M R£SU..i5 Of 1ME. tcS?E.CfOl 11'1.0ESCRIPOON·Y PC.lfOOW.l'O!.illl'#l'T9l.fK:CS l)(),11'EJ II 

VEGErl\llVE POl'BIER �������� X RSJ,PA.f[-ron't)lo'OOIS. 1- TIC FOl.l/J'IIIHG 15 ,. � Of THE IHTN)Ct• stIMta. Of """10R CMlJI� ,t,clMTlrS WMCH WIil. ,. OOHCRrn: PSI£ ltWW".OO!r SCCtJ0I. 1 JetlllE 1KJ f'OOJJJION PR:..t,m()M lilf1&ffl OOfiRl) Rf SEOO!I 2 ..._ SM.I. a: .lhSID AS Ii! Ii! Ii! Ii! OISIUIIB SOLS fai lilAICI! P<JfTl0HS Of nt: SIT(, SUCH AS CRl.138tte, D:CINATIOH.. Nil G!Wil«i: �lt J..5 SOON J.S � ITTDt SUCH INSPECIDC. ,W � 10 TltlS FV,N RC!it.ll!«i FRW lif£ 

SOIL 
® w������� � 'lt.fSlE al � IS HOT H.lOWED IN Tl-( S1RErT OR AU.OWE& ro l!EACt1 A STORU WI.� �WIGE: REO'JIRfl) IHS� SIW.I. BE lf19(Nl[D 'lfflllM 7 � l»tVS rru.ct,+c Th{ NSPECTl(W 

!U ! COVER 
A0011£00ECCMJI X X 0£WLPDll'l'r!ClMSl'OlltNS,GtllO. Tl£ SC0LOICE Cf" nt: CONST1!\Jl;l1QN KTMTts IM.Y I!£ � fru.CMS,: !.'!StE:111 M w,,� ��A SH SH1UD BE P05TCD AI OCtl LOCA.i'QI TQ 1nm TltE 

'fAS«IJ. 10 TIE EX100 � altlC.f([JE � JR£J6 Sll'A.ID BE LOCATED ,. � CIS"NU •. A Rl'.PCRT swwmHi, TNt SCCl'E Cf' M liSF'EtllON, ,w,((SJ NI) � Of P£RSQflilfl. lil'l<ING THE 

- IX ® ���.?'ES'.'�� NC) IIGICI! (IA :m4CII .llUli 
X "" • K5T.IU. 3<.T fUER FUa Hf) STA91.:lED GONS'7JllC1l0H (Jr{r,Wj,:f fROl,I AS!0fll WAmt�E K!:7'(1t � AAO 5H01A..11 8E UlCAltD.-T LUST 1,rur """"»c lilSP£C10t, 111: Qt.lf(S) Of 1)£ toft.CIDt. .....at OOS[IMl."1:»,'S IB.AllltC TD 'll IIRlW>fTAJDI II' � 

-- amsr, F rt£ 'IIMSHOlJT ,R£J,. IS #CJlaNT ro A. P!WED RCWI, I< SVEIIJZED OORA.."1:E TKIT WEEJ5 (1N)tS lli'94'1 5"0RM 9l41lJ! ro1.11100N Pl!Mf(J)Qtl PlN'. N() A..'W>'S ViKDt • ICaJO.-O: 111TH. � •· SM..L er wa. 

� I !!! 
@) 

C IJhOOllR(ltN}�S�OOH M,lkLlrl.S'tlll)NmS St«U.DBE llfSl',umKI EACtl �Jl9. NO 11£i"NPG AS ?ART Of' n+£PLNf R>R AT W5T'IHIEt(l)'TtMS lrfTER Tl£ DtJtCJ' Tl€� 11£ 
-- IYPICAU�IJWl.ia:,."(tLCS'll'.SlOCQ.1.EClnBtNIJ�to,lfSUll'E X X a.tMISl:.T��Klilf-AU. D r,,c i;!Wl!NG IN PA'vt)Ol MfA R£P0RT $Kl{I. BE 5K;ffD tN � 'dM N'PLlCNtl.E P.illfCl'llE IZNERALPERM',T. ' PNi'DIOO'o:JtS'JR'..CflOff 'JI£ C{l(:'lflliOff r>.:::k.lil:S Stc:uD !IE Of SUf'f'ICl9{1 � lt) OlNl'LETEL'f CONfNH ,t.!. tJQIJO NI) C0HCR£TE ���
CIWHl.OMRSIOH ® X TIE SOit. � MJ SllMJftA� «w1P.Ct. ITCYS WJ. 8E JNS:,tUfD f'lRST AHO .I.S IEUG 00� :a: NKHE 

WAST£ �iDiWS Nl.lllNo OiOUQ1 Clf'K:r.Y Fa-t �lEO ll'l'tl.S Of RM..-IER. n£MIEDCCN::RETE ,. r Nf'f WltA!DI or i'lt: � or ntS P'.M rs WITTID Di.9IG tH£ O)GJCf rs n£ � 1m1e. = � ci 
f\'PIC.lil.l.l"IIIIB)fOOM:111"-0W. X .IOt.lic:(�IHHNa!X!l. mrtlik'JD,l,LS10.IDEtf'!Cle!.PN()l$'0SmOFPID"OI.YWta60CW.tQJYISR£,l,,0£D. tw;DE)ll) COw'fREJI 8T MS PIJrH. TM[ f£SIOIT ODIIR M RESIOOfT 1E0fft.NI SlW.l. t:OIFl£lt N¥J fl� .l,M "taEtCt 

-- C0«.1£.t QM aE: POEJ\.t' R£Cl':uD H/0 ustD � OH sr.r (AS N'PfiOO 6Y M EJQl££1) Olt tW.tED 11i--�)IIEPOOJll)Oll£UlOJID\UA>l0k P.£ 16lt>DCf Dat![l( Qt R£SOOO' T[C!fiD,t,k 
DIVERSIONS --- ® �'��t\l\l•SLOf't. 

,.._TNG)IOJffTOWIIIO...CS X X ftDl'I.N::El'IIOTl'CTIOtlMC>lldmED. i M'.10f�ESTWtDMJ. orTt£S1TEIS_gjg___�. Cffsr.E1Qiltlo\Pf'f(ffW[lNllfll SltU. USt' roFtMS PiiMXtl Br M:IJ.Jl«'.llS 01\'lff.MErffCJ. AIOJ'fcn»I KDC(IJe SrW!,.c.ta' SP£tf'C i "' .. .,; �
� C11 rn:c: CWS£ Of� . .ACTICl!tS IHCH � lMEN TC PR£\eff JH( rum£R CM.l!ilS <T 

I)< 
111.'. mTolJ. ESTIWAffil NfEJ, Of 1� Silt rtJ II( CISrllllW B'r' �TION. CRGKi, 0li 01}0 ACTMr.£S IS ,. "'""""'V!TloG N�Ci. AlfJ- A $1,f'DEl'fl C(tl.AJM; Nfl DMIP&CNT.._ IIIIPACT 'M«tl MA'I �VE RESlt:"E t'ROM n£ 

� """" - OU1TER ® 
SPtOAl.t.-scOF0fi/t!tSIOl<lt.aDINtoNJUtL"'1Dl'IIITH•Sll'll:tltl) X .,. M!L...l<A<s. �ct. .tt.L REPO:rrS CK NONCOM� SWil. BE: SIQEtJ B'r' ,_ RE� NJM)mY 111 � CNt'ff w.l"DI nat NI MD IGDIC � C0NCRm w,.m MNlolC.DDT SIQ.1D BE ll?l.£WOOEJ TO CQHI'� NIJ OiSf'OSE OF 5Mf-(111111C s.l.lRllCi, lWnt PNn' IA. C Of TitE CElfM. PDNT. ll£ Rf.FORT Of � s:tWJ. 11€ WNLED TO T'!l FOLl.OfflNG 

® ro'��.()lli��=��QlfuPtS 
4, THE ESmWfD RlJICff <XEfl::OITS Of r'< 91£ N1tR IXllCSlRIXTal r.cfM'!ftS .ltiR£ COUP'LmD ,UC) Cttf"IMEl CO'PlTt C\JJTlfC SH<>.lD tiOJ r.w: f'I.ACt � OR IMDli'�Y .-fiER A. Wl'M.L MN!'. I'm! CUlfJIJOIDl """"'' 

X X "" II M flftD£'T CfW,l.\(j£ SflCY, nna; SlMM IWtR � fOll fNIK ¥Ll,.Q TQ!'!f9IVi fl!OI/ coiorn: OJllNi � BE �-up »fJ DP-OSlf[D am, 11£' COMCRm nsll)UT fJ.GliJT'I' "5 
PR£PAA0 8T N:IIHIJGE. .:a&l.TIHC � wttOI IS � � 8"f fVDi'ElQ: I,' Tif5 Ft.AH. -- AU.PACl<l«S: "'-"""" 

WC£rA1M:CIWML ® � MDD. SNIU'IY D QWIND. l1'm WttDf momY :.' n.c,,r X X R(tlONtff'MJHGM{N;.. 1l-l ESJMJCD ?R0P0stti OYDW.L sttE RIJ:iOff COEfFIC(l.'T 15 � 
WlOS � f'ltCTECTlON '4DCY w«:xs OM¥.NSml PROJECTIOH IIDtCt 

I! Cinl'Dlt.Ynll'. 10, \'tJ-llCL[ S'JOfW:E >J.[1 � DMS¥lk CF W,_TER PW.UIIOft COHffll. OMSlJN Of WA@! fiD'.llJl'Dt COKTml 
W�TFRIIAYS � DATA CESCRIBNi t>1.S IS lhCU!lO 1H S0I.S REPClll: ___ Cft fill -..a, Af!lf: CClMPI..Wa.>.$1JRNIX S£CllON - �.SSl.84HCESECD 

lHDCIWi!E. © :C.�a,�,.ow��:""11r���� X llt'.JltJla: � '90 IIWU, NU:m-A1.m.w::WMtJt(S)fi!MUWD 
� r«JT ti US£. COtCSlHIJCTIOH '611Q..IS SKU.D fl: SIOR(D ti ,. DESIQ,j.\TED AAE(S) OI.IT5l)E -cf' Tl£ 1C24 N'.>Rllt GR.WI � DSr PQSTa:FICE oo,: 192,e 
Rml.UJO!r'f f"�. � ... ffQI Ntff tw\.l'W. OR �rm IATtllXll.f(S[. PC»,O, �-WAY ca S1ort.l SPtNnl.D, L eu94 SPIDl(;f(U), 1. 1527M-tt7e !Ii 

I)( @ 
=.:-= � 'M?U'{S� tpmt WA PPfrO ftMR �. COlmll1.5 9W.D 8£ MTAIJ.U) fO l0INIZ£ M POrtWllAL CW RU«lfT Fmf »£ S1'®G£ Mf.AiS} m0U wSlllflllSDl[R CNI 11:VSOI toCOIM'r Sa:MJ,,.TIJ«lt 11:tJD ftlsaa,b,'1' M»IOII X tWr,N su,.cwr 0111'. NON--SJPBN WATER BS!lMifS $ ENCLOSED flCOICSJl'Cfl0l,WlfH,\�. fl[)QIN: sror4 CRWS � WA1U1 tnf!StS, � � (tt(ll()f,IG 001tf "1JIM. IWC!DWtcE AS 5. a:: 

DRAINAGE I)( @) �L�����8:illI� � POmlM. SOURCES Of' P<llUOOlf ASSXtA.TUI WUH CONSl'RUCIION ,tCl'M)' W,lf IHCU(I£; Ml.LAS ()ii-SITE REPJIISJ SH:ll:LD 1£ MlllE 'lffl1ffi J W'OIAfto ND(S) ro Pl£W1tl'Tr£ !a:;RAOON Of 

(!) LU sa 
-- X '" � ruJES (OIL. IHffREEE, EiC.) INTO � � OR STORM OAAINS. DRIP PNtS OIi' cttP'I FOR fLCW5 FROM � l1Gl{1'Nl >CTMT(S, POSSi8.f scur.:ES (£ t«'.lN-SJOOl:I WAlIR TKIJ W.Y BC 0 • SEDIIEtT FROM QoSTURB[D SO:t.S � PIOS SlfJUlD SC l&D FOR ALL "l�:.f: Nil EOl.l'MOO � N;TMTES lJW ltMl.'.t CREASE, CDUal1rC IIJTH STDRl,I: WATrR � ASSOcWED \llliH TJiE Pfl0P05ED �?MN. 11€. OOiCRIEl Eli.O'#: w 

�! STRAIGltrfff� €) usro lf»A(l.fJ'Ml,W SWl,tl WJIIICAI. ..-.lrfCswu.r..o.s CSM:ot X � Ol,,f � ,S::IMS • PORJ'8'.f SNll'Nff STAJ'O,IS 00. SCI.WITS.OR OllO\etCl.!F\.LIIDS. � WtCf.!S st10W) 9£ ll6P£ClED �y 10 IOOfflLY 

<( 
z ' RnlAl«S 

� l!l,IC5. 1IN<S � BE REP:UE> IIMEIM@..Y OR "Di£ � �D IE m:tMD AKIM Sil!. """"' • """'""""'™"' 
C!i �·i! D """"- Of .\1 U!lD «. MTftEEZt. SOL\Omi HfJ CMR V81Cl£-R£1Al([, QflDlS tf � lfTlf UflT£I> B tllt�nl.&IX:i.S 

DRDP lfUT PFE SPIU.W4Y s � .S PIF'C 91.UUY DilCl'PT UIIQEil ruin HO l""-C 'oPT!Ul OIIOP'$ 
X E WfSTE t'Qr(flffRS SfAl£S OftllOll,EmL PRT,EtllCJI NXJCT (\JStPJ,) H(I JEP,\ lllGU.JJQcS MJ PCR YA1EiW, 518V GIJA Stm C •TtR USED TC WGf \'9la.!S WtQ!E OOUICOOS � NCr.' usm I-

m-
Dl!I(�. CU',MfCUf�IDM. 0 Wo\1ERIJ9DTCOONTA0(.0UST z �f SPIil.WAYS 

F C!Ellel<Sll:RIOl:/l6J/l (ISS) AHO/Oft M:lJ:l'..DCTlJltl\ l!tS'Tl!OCTl(lt. GCMPJ,CiOIIS SJCilAD f:4:!0MTUY FID'(]R'T SPl!.S TO nt: PRll:Wrr 

® G Di.0ROntERf'ElilX.fVNPID1UtlS CDlf[ACT. ' POT"AE WATER SCUICfS ltCLlOIHG UHCOKJAIA'V.n:D W>Jf!IJHE � w 
-- =��SllltL"8WCll.PM>'l.lrNOfl.OWS�OfltJ.TCR X C'.LWCM�DUftl5 H - F INQ5tN'[Jl!!l:Al'l)/l"'""""'5 

z I .... " w.mtN.. S'JCRa Ml) 0000 K>USEXEEPJ«: C ROLllNl' OO'£RN,lrl El.'Ufie ""5HOOWN IM,G:K 00£5 l«lT US£ ClC1ERCEHTS (!) -
y 

[X ® J """"" H PiWENDIT ""5lf NIITERS 'lftOE SPh..LS. M IDKS a" mtt OR � llAIDU:lS HrWE l«JT 0tO.lffflED " eax H£t MM SPll.WAY CUl(ArllOISPU,W.Y'�l,MQEXn,m5(11f18E� X '1.UHCM'CiQkS1'IIIUO'OIOCMS. (UUSS SPWD WJtRW.S MAK im. REl:KMD) Alf> WIDE D£rumns HoWE Mlt ettN I..� 

� 

z � ....�Ofl.D'[RWO:tLOClm K """"""' IWIR'l,l;S NfJ/(E COffJ'Mfi#jfS �U) ££ STORO H .\ WHO ™'i � l!IE � TD ll5cH,W;£ 

@) 
L FEl!II/W!S ttTC srMM 01W6 OR '14.TERCrJIP.S{S. »I ON-snt N!EA SI-IOJ.D BC DESll)UiT!D Fttll IWDll,l:l Dfl.M'.Rl' NI> I �,. ctlOJXleC«: c� i== �"' 

OIJTLEIS Ll<EDN'RON P11011Z:nDCifllilffllVIIC>WMJ.�IOt'ltl..001YOfFUIW� X ltO"MIDISlllUOmHstll " RAW W,l[J;W.S (t.G., 8,1,CC(D PMTLMO CEWOOj Slt!Ra. JU. M,'!tlll,ltS )(£PT Ofll Sr!(: $hOUI.C BE S"':HO If TIO IR,t(H.. COOMNERS wmt lfGIB.! I.HES. J """" 

ii 
" � Sl'lluc:rutt:5. �l.ll00ilfllf'-Wo\fl'l::Cl£D • -"""" AHO F POSSIEU. Ul«A A R00!' OR OltlER ENCU>9JRE. IJalS Sto.tD OC REPl..,l('6 IF' � Oft Ol'F\Ct.lT K f!Ar.AT'JONDmlf.S _J 

® l:r£_Jf. co.i.r.i:f $W,lilll PM'l'ICla - 0£1',W( llllVI ar>t a:itmQ.ilD 0 ....,,c,,[Wl,SIC TO !£AO. flERMEO-Cff stn!Wi£ AFm 1M. M N:CtPrfcll.E «>ttmtJl. MfASlll£ TO PRN111 CONTAIIMTDk Cf L lltCCM.t.MN.TmCID.IHD"41£R ::) 
SEDMENT 

SEDIIIEMT 8'&'I X X ��Cl.'TWHDIIW.!-1'..U. p COfO£I'£ AHO C0IICft£TE. l1llQS $t'ORW 'tW,tJCR, IMJmlL S,llrJY Ill'".\ Slff£1S (MSDS) 5HOU.D E£ IN/iUJJ.! FOR � CLCNH� " � OR FOOTl«i [RllrtS »DE nows Mt. NOT COkf.wMTFO Wflk PfKIC(SS ""TEF!W.S SUOi iS 

C en0 U11IJI PROa'.Wl£S. Mi AElU,S£ Of' tMIMC/,LS/� SHIUl) 8E �LY tl.tNGJ LP JrHb t:SlQ50> OF 50.l!lflS 
BIISINS SEIIIIIE!fl'llW' @ IJSl0lO�rJrflOCPfO.lolml:US-�""1tR'f!TltCDffllOU.m� X D,.C,\l,l�CllJT..,.Hli.F-ftaL PR::ffRLY. (Xlfr.lRtClOOS 5HOU.O IMD!aTU.Y RO'ORI' .tti SFIJS 10 H PflWMl'I' COf<JiCJ', tltk> StruD MJTfY 

6. PROllfflED NOfHJlM6Jffl QISCH\RGES
z 

2. l:!l!ll!Q1S. 1ll: lrfflROffWE IQJiQES, F !E8JFD. 

<( 0 :z 

I)( ®
_...,�'TIIIHDl91.Tl5 �

SEDIMENT SUID!Ct: �
,=.-

t�.OII CN1Nro1Z MN I.DI tw.'1 1/2 ,,CC "'O n.1t1t X H,t,J�U.:-•. f'Oll:IIINffDM,ll«l)St.J MS S£CTQf ct' Tl£ AN: J.D!RSSE5 Tr£ w.lOJS COfftJKlS '!Wir W:U. BE U'I.Delro:l FOR Di:CN or nc MV)R rnE FCIUDf,NC OOXI ltCllx:([[fll.C ?RlaU$ 5HOUlD IE FWOJl£D 0H SM: CW!IHC �f � PRC.l:Cl: • C0HCRrn. Ml lllal5m1'AltR FROl:I. WASHOl,:I 0t t:0ttCRETE (t.tl,.BS � ltl' Mt ,t,PPROPillm co,.tTROt) (.} 
COMSTRI.JCOOH AC'IMTES DESaE[D fl I 1BN£. FM £ACH WEAStm£ CISCUSSED. rt-.£ rot,;.1P.ACTD!5 11W. 5E NI mtlll' SH(M.[I IE MAX. TO STO'!E OMI.'( (110',JQi PRDOOCr flD:)L.ffl TO DO l)€ JOB, ' °""""'-'°""""" a;: 

•. F1LTERS llll(TAMl'IJEI ® 
USD�DAIMIIOtk'r!Olllllltl'U'ffl.MSJtlrL'Vt'SlDM>ffJ",o,, X lt[l)O#ff"MMC/1R£1&. RESPOh� roR ITS �AT'Of AS IIOCAttD. fAClf SUCH� Ho\S ScQED � RE� C � FIDI WA9tOU'J NfD CWM:tlT Of STOC,CO, PMfJ 
11.M(ff. $1Zf.lA.Sfa.N:4M[llW�lO�.lfltA. connATOf 0, FCelS lltaf lflE. NtOO£D AS A fWiT OF' ntS F'IN' Ml � sra:e a-I sn SfO.ll.Il 3£ Sit«[D tit A Ir.AT, OfitO!LY "'6li8 IN ll•Ut APf'f!OPfWt 0 -Rrn:AS[(ll5 

., a»aiHRS lifD �lll.Y mormm no, OE OC'tliO!ttlO(t. E CliM'fG COlll'Ol.tiOS .tf() on£R �� WATEM.$ 

I)( ® MUD AND sr-,m, CONsr. EN1lWICE 911D&1'11.JO""°"'eu«lf!IOclDl#AHOOIAlll(DOl'f-$1lt. X =-IUIMtCIIIDI.IUSl'ONCIIS 1, [R()SION»l)SID!:E(JCONTJl:U, 

I
� SNOil.D 8£ IC£PT t,I no! 0RICIW. � MfM ff Ol!ICINM. IMl'�UEID.. r f\l1.S. OU <It OlttEl PCUtlHflS USUI t. ffl'IClE OP. ftl'JAIO(J Of£WJlCW JKJ w.HEtWCt 

DUST 
SI.IISTANCES SH(U.D lilOT El£ 1,1.XEO Wltrt Cfri( ».OlllR LH£SS Rtt0UMOtXD fJf T,C l::Wtlf',Cllfefl 

� 
9'llPS.. SOL'OfS. OR OEiOG005 

X ® �llON PPJ,COCES PR0'IKl[D ea.or,· '5 A oc.t:R!PTDM Of INT(R,w MD PEfD.W,0,11 sr,,atlATION FmlltcS. Of'Dill� 9ml) BE D8SfW AS ttEC� Ttl ENSlR PR0fQ US£ A,1€1 D:SPOSlol. Of !Mma,J.S Ct! SltE, iOXC M Kt.VJ!00U5 SJ8S1HQ:5 RIOl:I A SPll OR one 1IEl£\S[ 
CONlliOI. DUSTCONmOl �la.S"FJIOl,iLD:o,",IIQctlGTf!IJCllOMSIT[. X '2-.11:PU...SJIIEOED, INCU/t:NNC SffE-Sf'tCflC sa.trJI.UrC � TI£. IMP.DOT.tJION Of' nit PR>lOC£S ff Pl,IHS WJ.. ENSURE f.'i'IT M1£1E\'O! POSSlll!, /.U. {»' A PROOUCT SHWlD 1:£ USED IICF� 0GPOSf:IC Of n( OONl'MltR, I If« O�R PCWJWO T!i',I ttUC b.US£ OR IDIO l-0 Ct.lJS[ IUTIJ! PCW100N 

EX5TK. 'oJEGET� IS Pl6tlMD 'fMilE MWM.L NlJ !ISiUR8ED ?(fflQtS � Tl£ :iTE Ml. El£ Sflr8lllllJ. 
--BINICi'I ® "'IORCn XI., ,Im NG ICLrJ; fllf1II '¥alef�. X X N:JVCt •:i..um:D (XW>J -S PRMXD 11 2. Stlr8LZAJl(lt t:l£ASlRS SIWJ. OC NllAlED IS SOON AS fW&IICA&.£ 1:1 POllTIOkS or WWSAC'TIJO'S RltOMUOl»l'OOHS FOR pt(W>[.lf USE .-...0 0ISP0Sli- SWU. er r«.LDl£D. 

lt£ 9Tt:�«wSTFllJCTICI( � Hr.{ �YM f!EftllNOKTa:ASm, i,.,rw N) as( Im£' OOlf NPOES COIITRACTOR cmnF!C>.TE 

@) 
7 O-.lSNTERn£ �IC™ll' Ill ntU P(J{TDI Of Tll: Sil[ W.S TD,f'OIWILrOfl Pff!IIN£t(.lYCEASlll 12 � Cf Pmfl'Aa.£ !W(IT� SIA� 

1UIFll£ltFOIIC!M£MTIMT � RM 1H � Noll: 1/tO'EMS. X X """"""""" ac JrU. � PO!mOliS Of lt£ 9T£ WIEI£ c::R;TRL-crrM .actMTY M.L. NCT � FOO � PERl'I> � 21 (It Tl1S COOJ'O,TIOtl sti,TO:iENT :S A PMl'l' or ff STIJ!M WNtJi; � � FV,H rOR 
IQ!CltDIWI Df.'l'S. TOM 0000 fR,lCIICAllf. �1-it'.I SA,•OfJRi srAOOHS 5W:l.D 8E �TEO 11 � MfA �T DOES NDr DRAIN ltt: PROJECJ DESCR'9£D eelilW, Ii ACCORIWU WITli NPOOl fERhlT NO um:xm»:1, SSlJW IN 

CW.UIAAOCltlFlNDIDfT @) 
TO NN P!KlJICrID HAJ'I..IW. 1RW. WAJ[RS Cf rtE STATE. CR STtRU mER STRJCTIJRE5 AA1I SH:lti BE Ti£ (�!,l PRCJl'(CID, l4NCY DH 

EROSION U5all0t()t.l:!)�0Nmll'st.0PES. X X """""..,,.,, � M HAAOON � Sf-'SUV,Tai LEA9Jl£S BT D£ Hllt i.r N'TER CON5TRIXTr:IN lcrMTY TD.IP'JR,IAY Off � TO Tt£ CRQl.#,1 11) PREVOO' FJal TIPfW, Ofii, POA!Aa.E S,l,Nl'TAR'I' !irATIC»4S llX:ATD ON PROJt:CT mu:: P,a;«V.UASRlllftfnOl:fES 

CONTROL 
Pmt.lHi()rlf,.y COSES IS m:aJ.alJ BT Sl«7f aMR. 5WlllWJP:I WASl.lRtS S>WJ. D'I' NIWtD JS S00,. liS ll:IPERWlUS Slff'ACtS SIO.l1I l5E PUGED CW la' Of " stcattWt't' �Yf.Nl D('V[::, Cli BE S\JmJJUD Bl' 

-- @ IJSEDl0Pflf)Vtl'OIC'1CINll�IIO!FIDIIAIIC.ll5. X .......... ...,.,, �raat f,fJtO,fllR. A c:otmr.l. DOa (E.G.. GRN,0.-� IIRW} T.-£ � StQJlD Pfi'MHI/A'OID UCSWT!wl1 a»OIX)N5'. PROJECT LOCATIOH: -- COO< IWN<>S 

11£ Ftll.J.Offfl«j tHfRl:I Nti f£.IILVfNT 5r8.CZAroN l'R1CTIC£S, AS A �Nl�W. •.L 8E W..E)Sll[D Ttl STAUM 
S-.'fTARY ...-.src SHCXAD SE OSPOM> ,;y N � w.n; APPi.PA£ srm NIJ/M L0Cl,l R£CUJJl)!fS. CITY/\41.1-"'E COUNIY ST.n: 

omrEl'1U FMIRIC ® um, ftlfl DESDI / � co:'lfflOt./ ,trWOON / SiM'LIV,IIQH. X X """""''"""" nc ornMI> llff> CJ' M 9Te " � � � CI.Wl•Uf' PfiOCEOIJR£S DlVELOPER: P .Ii: P PROP£RTIES U.C Cl) 1/) 
w-

ce:aoac P0R0US - ® 
• ""'""""""""" l:Wrllfl:CTUIO'S R£C0""9m IEi«IDS mR SFtJ.. CUNI-J> 5lilM.O BE � NrlJ SIT£ PERSOli.1£1. 9«llD ::!!i:O IJltO Pait nll£ IA< ICCDS / \CICWM: 1'#!0/0,T. X ..,..,,..,.....,, ' 51.T FUER fOa BE MAll£ Miff fY M PilOCEDi.l!f:5 NI> 'M: LDOODft OF Tit IHF0fU:IATQ4 A)fO ctl>,H-\JQ StJffl£S. MATERLlt.S z 

[X
' 'w£timJM'fl.1!it N£ [l).IIIEfl' 1£CES'SARr� 5PU ClJ:liN-t.fl sttOUb SE KD'l'IH Tl£Wt:TDIW. ST0Rt(;£-WA,Oft SUI. ! ctR'TfY lKE.R PW.!JY Of U.WlliLT I lll(U(SiiftO Tl£TCRIIS or nCGt.."JO&lfr,1,11(JW. 0 0�

N£TPROT£CIIOff @ \ISIDfOllll'IIOf[CT.(lt!IC,,.-NrlS, X MPU,C( 011 Q.VH w,m, o..o:cm, 0 sr.e.m:o CQl'STROC'D E'f1'1W4Ct � NfJ W.TERWS 9:au.D ltCUU, 811' 11tE: filOT LCYTm rn, RlOMS, MT f#G. li!O?S, P.JC.S, QM$, POJ.UJM,' DISQt4.� o.,tftl,TIOff Sl'SiDI (M'(l:s} 'Ull-1 I� � 1t£ SKfflt WA'!QI' !; z :c .J GOGiilES. KITTY UilER. 5M:IO, � Mil PLASnC NIJ/� 1r1EtAL l'Mili C01WliEIIS SPm.9C:AU.Y fOR nt5 DISCtURXS AS'SOCWtO Wf?}f � �MTY fROlil THE: � ST[ llOOftD 1,5 PNfl 
2, SfR'JCTURAL pRAm:;ES, PRCMJtD 3fiM IS ADESCRIPTION Of' sm.,;ruw.�icts i'H',l WU BE IW\&Orlm, """"'- �ntis ccmrr.ATKlN z .J 

SUlfEINmlllFI' ® tJS(DfOBflEl,,IUPl'tE.F\.OW�ASI.O"t, X X CWM M \rl'tE>I IUl'-N.L. rs kl, IOTtCOCOIII:ATI.IWBLE, JOCM!IT�f'RO!il EXPDSED5CILS, s:oREfl.OWS OR�EiMI' RUNOfFNll .J :s 3: -:.li£ MDWU. Of POUUTN:tf$ FR(lf O'POSFD .tKAS Ci' M Silt. Tl'£ �rHJ..m::N or ThESE OE\G:S "'-Y BE 14, 0(-IWtJIIIG CffRATKlliS 5 C. �Ttl sa:m(.0. OfTl€ct,(l,H wmRACT. 
:, om:,, CH0( ® USIXl�fl3tSlllU),'l':C01'fflQ.ata:iwaN&><:t.....a.s. X Ct.UN our WHD- ......,.-fW. or ar. C. z 0W 

0El!H1'"'1PDIE � OC-'IAlD!t«;/Rlf'IHC OP£AATIONS. OH.Y !If,� "4'!Ut SIC>U'..0- 1£ lrU..OIED TD o.:5CIWU. 10 
I- >

® 
' """""""'"""" POOTCCTID � AlllAS. WA'IFRS Cl Tt£ STAil. OR 10 A StoRII � MTEM (tc � W:fM UX'Jrl 0:: 0 

SEDIMENT FlDC LOO lJSEDT.)�1£Utltf'KlY""'5SflaOffllTllt•lotrct:IJ.lt,II-. X IIOI.AttMOl'lllFt:tSSOI..JIEI,, C RIP i\P FOO OOftEf l"A!ffE�I PCRWIS). lklD ftJ5E5 5t«M.O Et P1JirCW � A STAIIIJZED SIJMP PIT 00 fU!ifflD AT 1K: SlffAC[ <E n£ *TEP. I!!� "' 0 
0 �PRCIT[CTO, ,lffOR:EITO�rllHEMIOUNTOFSEIMHJ'JHTN<E, PmffCOPtf!AOO'tSl:M.YBE�TOAS"JalZED :5 ffi ca-ITROL 

SLY CIJRIAtl ® \1$ll)PQlll5tDMJ,rf�-5PIO.W/l'CHD X �=(>l!lfl':.15Ml'tl'IIJlllttOW JrMA �'! C(ff;ISTS OF AN� [)f;SFJ.TINC ,X11C£ (EC., Siaroi), SE:DllDT FI.TFil 6'G. (E BOTH. M!'OOA'E S'19noture: Dale: iw '· DUST Ctlfflt0l: DUST COHillll SKltl. BE � ffR ruNWI) lmOfll.tN)6Uff9',H�llll m'.&ON COflTR(U S>l1lll IIE liSED 00.=w::l DE-"-'rERII«> OPERA� AS NfCESSIJl'I'. Sf1a.'ZEO CO!M:YAHCE. 

)< ®
RJ.100-C l:UMOOS FM Tl£ OOST COtmKl. CN. iJE L-.:0. � $HOWJ IE NS':1,1.1,£:D TO DfiECT -.ru TO n£ DCSR£D l.0C4l1')H AS�� COlfilQ �J ..J z 

--- u,m n:a. ....... 05DWIIX u«:!5. X 
IDUa: 11tO ""'1'-RAL r.rren; 1!li lOl'III. � UAY I£ ,cwum �T r,£ OIJfl£f lffJ. AT M !ISai£lDI a-M PftMIRT (XMC, CR DIC;HEIR. (lllH01.£SlrG"Jln:lR)AI,. • "''""""

� C. 

-o·-
CONCRm WASH0llt )< @ 0.C,LJCQ,r.'wtl(N�F-,u.a..ClD,H B SPRAY (II NJt£Slliii. 1$, CfT-SITEVDIC:t£� > I-,c«�TIU:1'$10�. X ���lrl5NrtD[ij C V[G{TA,J,\l[OMR COfo/lRACTOR/5UBCONll<ACTOR CERTmCATIOII STATEMENT � a:: D ""-""" <ti. SITE SrtCUD � CHE OR 1i10RE STitauZED QlHSTRIXrOI � N Olll'OftWNCE v«rti Tl!E PUlt =- )< ® USW��Kllw.ClPINsn!ll'.'S. X 

Clll,l:IOM:£-.l'IED(.OltJ.5� .l)(JAlS. ST8.il£D�IDI OOJWtCf:(S) 910Ul.O II: INSW.UD TO fD.P Rm.ltf.VE!ft:Clf TR'Q(N; or rx: 0 TT)ICIIJl'SJJIUT"CWH. .. �w..ut:R� . SEDl:iM1S. SlJlCET$ SHDt/1..D OC SllCPT AS t,Eml> 70 RDJJCE EXCESS SfDIIHT, tm, OIi STOt:E TIUCli'iJ FROM Nome: Signature 

f :!ii: ill' snr. � MAY ICI.Uf:• RJ' llR£SSN;; iM: SIMNJm> Of\1Wa Mlli JQ'.ATIOfU(. STD€ MJ 
Ble-� DIM�SIQM I�L.E PRM!llllCl.Or15AOESQ1P11(140f'�™'ll'lll.BEIN!t1il.:.EODMtell£CONSlROCTQIPIU£5510 RllOH fOO I.MRS Qt Sl0f£ N«l SEDl.lfNI', -'5 llllUD. \OflCUS � £lilOll£ IIU,Tt:Rl:L TO� ra0II 

CCNTRCl. PCUl.lf""'1'S fl SJ0RII WATER CISOWICCi THAI" \1.1. CCCUA ll1£R COk$TI!L(ll)H O?ERATJ<l6 liWE 8EOI M(:OHSfltl.lClJON srr� ac QMR(DWAIAT.tla'. 
COWUJta nt£ lf6'WLl,TION or MS£ OCW:£5 MAT BE SWLCT 10 SECTlCN 404 Cf' 1l£ Cl!,t.N '11/JCR ICf' 

IHlErPIPE UNGIHDf' - '"°"' ... WIIIM 0.- DEPTH OF AREAO.- WWlll:CF ,. Ttf'SJLS10Q<P!L£� 

•"1£i � � � u� D� PJJ'&:f rg_,:::) �-� 
n£ PAACOC6SllECTm '°"' M'I.OEHATOI IQ:'.OETERMlf:IED 0NJ1€&\SISOfM ITQf,iDLGlMCWIC£ 
OONT.1,1;:D N m's m,11),1,R) SPECR:MM FOIi SOi mosn. JHJ 5£0I01'IlOH CClfllOC. .4'11 ono � TCf'50it. IS TO BE SlDCIJ'lCD Al K 9"t SlL[Cf A 1.0C/.OON SO TIW It ft.I. t«ii EROOC. fl.Oil( 0RMW£. 
� USTfD 1ft f,£ � M IJfTE.rif'E:Rt 1lffH IIICIRK Oft stn:. mP5t'I.. S?lQDl:.[S SWU. l,IOf !IE LOC.l:Tfll � ti€ l«i�'lfAA fl((QVlt 

fil 12 10 6 3.00 13.00 l5 6.69 J,7 OR oo;o&Am:; IUTER PftJtEt1tC -� � n£ rut£. DllitlG COHSIRVCOOW Cl TH£ PIIUCr, sot 

fil 15 lO 6 3,75 13,75 ,5 9,72 4.1 M; 51Dlbl WAT('q P<UtrrNlT CONTTml. � Shill ..cLOOE: S!OCX"l.£5 9tiUlD tif 5TIBl.lZu: OR P001£Cltll fllTH SEDIENT � MOSlf!ES. PCRIIErUi a:Jt,TR0;.5, 5IJCII 
AS SILT ro..tE. SJ(lWl BE: � ARO',Hl Tl£ STDCK!>I.£ �mY. STABUZATOI or ll£ sroocPI.£ 9tOl.lO 

AU 18 15 9 4.50 !9,50 20 20,00 :1.1 • """°'"-lERS B[ �:f llE�l.E IS 10 RDIN1'I l:N!)t'JTIJ!l!EII r:)11 Ul!'aR Ttll..'f fOORtEDt (14} O,.'t"J, 

AU. 21 15 g 525 2025 20 21.25 11.8 B ..-.-
tJ C RmNTIOll/[:ml'fr,Qft�S 

24 16 g 6.00 2,.00 20 l0.00 16.7 • PIIU,Wlt,.JS([l)tlC l. MrYfTQWjCF .J 
AU. 27 18 9 675 24,75 20 31.50 17,5 ' IUFi:E!PReli{iflU .J 
ALL lO 20 9 7.50 27.50 20 38.89 21.6 ,. \ti.OC'ITY IIISSf'AllOH [UC[S L !I: Pl,l,(It IJ O,'SCHIIRG£ l.CCATIONS AND H.OkG 1"< lEhGfH rl- HM OU'lf>.l!. 

11£ � ISA l:E!iCRll"ilJN,J'f'ROC(l)\.11[5 TO '11111.L er.: USO) ro � COClO #1:J ET"tCTM 
OP£Ril.llltC COfOTDHS, \£CVAlOI, EROSION IM S[Dll,!00 COK1RCl Yt.lSlRS N-11 OnB Pl!Om:Th'E �S ui ::!AU. 36 24 12 9.00 33.00 28 56.00 43.6 ctWMl AS� TO fflCIVCf: A NOM-£l!OSM: 'tO.lXITT' Ftm F'llll:I Ttf: STRLP:Tff TO A 'illi"IR C\UtSE. SO ClOOftJI IN l�ts Pt.Ni N<l STh'«W!O SPECfD!KtlS. 

AU. 42 27 12 l0.5 !7.50 w 72,00 60,0 
'M'T 1ll'. KAJUW. PHrSICAL �D IQ.oor:A 0iNIJCTEiilSTIC Mli) F\!tfC[oOttS ME. IUIITfi.0 A."10 Pm'IEt1ED lE.C_ 

�t l:l.l:IITOO.'«X. Of�� s.Df."5 M.�NIIJ � Pf£5DfT � 10 lltE ' SflrSlJZfDCONrnilCb)lrtENJJWa: n;tNT:Wa.:SKlll.1:£1:WHWr(EIJIDP!!:YEHl"�Of ---
ALL 48 27 15 12,0 J9,00 !2 76,50 66,0 HTMWlH Cf' OOfCSffl\lCTOH ACiMT'tSJ. &mE,il 01ro PUE.\£ SfJIITS. ntS 'Ill.:. i£ OCH: BYTQP MESSl$W';niAIG'iXlt,,lil.srot£.11£11.:M IW> 

fil }4 27 15 lJ.5 40,50 J2 80,00 72.0 
l£A.ACE. TOP 1..A'IDI Cl' SJtlf£ {II W4.SHlfC Tt£ DtTRAl:iCE. THE $5Nl.'f w.st{tt 01. nl£ PllllC �wST[f.'U'lf,llill�COJffllQ.l'«l.lJCtS• ,of!'-0,-W ·1111. BE � ll�T:LY. -

AU. 60 J6 15 15,0 e,.oo J2 132.CO 118,0 w-
fil 72 44 18 18.0 62,00 12 195.56 174,0 

• RIP Arr mR 8i:fftEf !'!IRE.ta' fS({ RP R, f :El£ �R lil:b�liW� ' \(G(TA'llt EROSoON �- i0.9.JRES· THE VECETAiM: � � IB,FOflAA'{ M4> f'UU;H£N1 �£1'«'.:, a. > B - 5'XIClliC, 'tECPAJM: Ci'WIIEI.S, YEGEl'AtM fl.Tflt, EiC. SJ-ML. eE tHn"NNEEI PERl(l.llC.tUY � �y 
oz

Ai'.ECUT[ .TOM; ».lJ FIR'i'.u.ztlt. Tl£ \<CEJ�'fll,'E CC,.,O s;.w.J. BE mr:Ml) Nil ESE!DED .\S fA""""' - ID. - - "" - .... - -- ocr. ""'· -
OBSERVATION & MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE 

"'°"""'· �w
CONSTRUCTION SCHEOULE-2022-23 ,. APPfl0Y£D STATl<.'RlOC'lR./IHS. _..,. 0. .J 

ACTI�TY RESPONSlBL£ PARTY OlmATICN 

-.... ,

d-J ..,, .• IIOM uot,,'-8 l,lllt-1 ...,_, 1:ICJH: 
' SE!ll!.Eh'\.0101'1 8'SHS/f'R,l:fS. 5£DIMOOS SiAL1. 8f. m,o,e MN ,W-5(} F'OaNf or M JOTM. 

0. c.:,THE JiWUGEWE](T � WtTfUlS. Ml OMR F'RO'.'ISK>IIS CCINtij.'£0 »I ms PINI� Al LWI AS DRKillll. CJ,f>,t;m IS (ICQ?ED ID' S:DII],;[, IN NO GAS£ Sl+l:ll smwoo a: IWMm IO 8U't.T VD lt) 
ST.'BIUZ.4.ilON DUR:NG CURING CONS1RUCTION PROTECTM: AS TM£ RECOlf9EMl'S �m IN mr UJ!t:)16 �lAI. PW-ll'E� l(;ll!v"'f"S �rNCINlOS NIU li:(R[™'-" 1 roO'l'EllOWTrf CR!"ST fl.F£0C. -'ITllfS.SfM:£, M RISNsti.lU.eEQDNfl>OllT TO .. 1"-t-
CONSTRIJCTIO�- COHIHAC'OR SP(m!Cl.JDS FDR SIX Elm.'OH NfO SEDloU(.' �IR(l, I.Li'1015 PIIIX£D,� »C> ST� rcR I.AWi SCl. PEsro:tf'ITS�� �
- � MD SfDW.011,.llON fV,N, Ml> nf£ w.taf'M. &IBCX\"SOI � REQllEIC'ffi SP£Df'G fl! =="" . 
ST>SUZ4TIOH ooRi;. - SZD!IOJ'NC>� WKilQ. gf[P,JrHSCM SlltPEIIIITSOR� � SIJEPlN.'S � S1£ • SL� n.JER FN:£; I.Hf D,J,,\,l,J,G£'D SU FlltR .JE!CE sw.L:. Ill R!Smffm !'O l,([T n£ S;A'C.I.IUS CR a. WE'1<LY & AffER EACH -·- f'ERIIIS � 8'i I.OOL OffDlLS nW' ARE JrPf'lVft£ TO PAaTim«, 51.R'ACE' WATCR RfS(llte(S NIC. lf'OH RDO.m 1"«) �"U) A5 ,mn ... 
co,s1RUC11011- OE\'E,Oi'ER/CWNER RA,_JN:"Al.J. E\'T..NT 1H ' '10h SUNilA:. or .IN Man: BE .IUiMO!ml.t TO o-SCW:RGE '.tlO£R r,cs POU!, � 8T' RErn0«X: NCJ � -

OOSERVATION EXC�S or 0,5' 
ORiaJ8£ tN)[R ms P[Rl,lif M"I f' IJ.f.'Y NIE �r SP[CIFlCILLT IIClLOOJ .. nt::: fll.Nrl. ' w .. ,u.p oonu PIIOT!CT!O!l: l9EC1ED SHU ocaJR l1fl£/l tUI r!.M fOA #« � r£H:Al'H T< 

RP-fW' � � STlX '!HtoT MVE: BEEN CtSLClX:ED. Mtl.MD RI" RAF' 9W.l BC RE?lffD MO\mY. -

VEGETATION I "rIAR FRO• 
IIAl1i19V,NC!' CONTAACTOR COl,l'l.mlfl 

F oost CXN� Mt.. 1!� DUSt c:».TROt. llloo.ffi. ME IJSCC, R£l't11?,( TIDTVOfl sa)UI.D OC 
.IJ'fUD AS t(It(D m � IXll:':RQ. . IDUS't&IG1IJISSVJ�JOl:.Ml'CmW111...,..,.,tm;IIISS M»l04 llll('C 0.-.C Alli:"".,. 

JUNE 07 2022 .,..., ... - �tQtll!!UIP:)'11JIIJW[\(£--.fflJ'M:9CO. 

�"5oir Ol+30ING FROM • �IU'08Sllll»�M:SWl!DIDO(fOON;l,I.� - IICW;MICS�� 
JOB: 22-019 .UISjllal: .. llM'M.lOl27'Q{irOlf 

ST>BIUZA110N 0El'EcOFER/OWNER CONSIRUCrnJ� ' 5'M.<MIS1CD1114/lt:l.l. 
IIAlmBWICE C(),ll"LETION ' �l'IIW!Orlll'![l:l(ILB5,',Qll,. SHffi: : "" 

51Mtubl2llffi/.c.'E. 
SE1 

I SWHM!. CHART 
:Lndit.!'ll �12112� kfv:::,lo::t! Co1,�trra [ iC•!l':Cf'.I. lLC 8 Of' 21 



STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE PLAN STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE PLAN 

� .• •• 
! 1r\ �

o

0

o

0

o
; -- .:��-.. I� FMn@ __ _ 

,___ _ 

� 

.. i.ua 
�

-IGW'lf'UQ 

�,_. Fcbrfc 

SECTION A-A 

:� ·.l r::.� :!_·�: := -�·::� f .·'. -.-:=/

MmS, 
1.f".11..-fcrbrfc�mmtU-..,wq.ilnim.nt.aofrrterlefkll-.,.ell'kotwin R.worc«IQ:ln,eNta oPdnSpOCI 

:182GEmtx'l'llf.lobl91or:Z,Ckm, I rlt' bhclft111:b•plac«s 
o...rtl'Mlole<l,-.dor.apnor1:othapbc\n.gofrodi. 

2.Rock or r-.dolmed eo,,,:nt• tt1o11 mMt oo,t of tlle "°""""9 IDOT toanl 
ovgrwgow �. �-,, CA-2, CA-3 or CA-of. and bt1 plomd � 
to CCI�� 25 ROOQ1U. Vl'hQ �t � ' 
andQDM:UI �-

:SM)' drolnoV9 f®ltUi• �lrN � of -c9Nlw, lholl N 
C\liN'lltr\lci.MI � to monutocw� � 

♦lf1'Qthtoebor.uNCll:t,eyahalN�-1ln9tathl 
mor,ufodlJNf'9�119. 

SILT FENCE PLAN 

rcnunw ... wn. "'°" 10 � llrn 
4Pw�l',.quifa4.CJ».) 

SECTION 8-8 

;" ___ .. _ ____ ... __ ----""-- � NRCS---
SILT FENCE 

----
� Step 2 

1fu_gi __ ......
...... 

f'fBlfTER COOBQ,' 

PIJL'E Sl.'IW3RM tRtllY OW Tc,. Cf ClU NI) CNEl!W' ENDS A ._MUN OF 
I", !liE � IS � Nil 110[ IS NO STAICtlG � � 
IEltMDEJttFCAGIWISlltOl21.lrllW«.Tl£Sl.TIORIIPERllrnlt 
CONTIQ. fl ,. WHt«R nw Ii N'R1D PElf9QCltNI m HIT nm oo.e: 
-"""""· 

"""" 

"" , .. ..., 
�o,AD• 

,w4Q:iiur,dulle 

• 
--. 

lrottro 
FAeRIC ANCHOR DETAIL 

1.T&mpor'DI)' � 1-. llholl bl lnnot� priot tg Gil)' qf"CdlnG � 
htN orM tu tiC1 protitet.4.Tt-.., n• bemdtrtAIMdit,� tr... 
construction � 111'>4 ,.,.,� ;,, ccnjunriorl •Ith lM t;nc,\ 9rad1r,g 
crndlllt..t.obmzQ\1� 

2.Fl-t.r foorir: 9holl mMt � ,-qllll� � mll'fwSo4 ..,oelfloatlon 
&92 o.at.m. ToWa t « 2. � wtttt flllM/Oi.nt oplfWl9 till• of 
at !eat 30 tor� 11Nf 50 for-. 

�.Fena9 po9l. ll'loll ba .;tt,« -.dord flNI poi,! • ..._,- pod. 111th i:i 
mintmum c,rou-eeotiongl or.a of ;,,0 1q, <!\, 

Step 3 

ATTACHING 1Vr'O SILT FENCES 

- ----=--1 
=-====== === �-... 

l-620 
-
- -------1 -------------- � NRCS

SIL]WORM INSTALLATION 
SPECIFICATIONS 

___ ,. __ 

SlllWORM HEIGlff'S INSTALLED 
MINIMUM SPECIFICATION FOR SILTWORM 

-

-· 

,· 
II" 
,r ... 

"51>llll)l8>ff NS""J.!JlD IO)fJ "'""" Of""""' - ...,, 
,.__ 91.- PH "' ,�· "" taSII.IIEC0<1111T XWOIO.tfl" BG5 ,,. ... 

14�· i,· 

"""""SZE ��CSElECltD 
"'51i"2t.lllll' _...., ,. . .,. 

Sl.TWOlill CAH BE PUaD N an:H:S M .&TT>£ TDf. c»t ll£ Fa. <I' M M: 
ro£ CK A SUH IS SElKNT TIUfflC oo«:E, SllWCflM CAN liSD UK 1Q 
� SDKJfT flKltil ilJNCff AK> RELfAS[ RlltRC> W.TER AS HrT nor. 
Sll� lrlSWJ.AnoH Otl ASUR 5l<JU BE JIUaD ill.ONG OR� nl CROllll 
tOk"IOl.fl lftlJI£ POSSll£ Sl.l1DRU N'PLG lO TJ£ � or 4 SlOPE S>Qlil 
E£ Pl.aD 10 Fm #IIA'f lllrM rn£ RE M OIUlt iO PAlMOC SPACE J1JR 
stl:NJ(TSJORAGE. WAXMN�ARCASWU.BEl!iACREPDI 100 LFCE 
SIL,-

F'OR 1r1at JfPUCUQIS, TIE 1iW111AA1 � � � B£ 15 IQl£S. Al 
SITTS MICH !XllT.«U to � � Oil SEDlillJT-ll'IIIRD � 
n£ IW'MN 0tNWZ NI£.>. SWil BE LllltD 1D II> otl:RES. 

st.TIQlY SIW.I. SC PV,C;[D PERPOllC1M JO Tl£ fl!M" fE MiER, Si.TWDIII 
swtl.COtflKElP lHC SllE SlCH5 TOTI£ l.f Of EW« OR A lili\"(,U Ol 3 
F££T MO{ Tl£ t6'TMJ.[D tDffl, st.Tirml 9Wl Ra.Ht N PvCE utm. .au. 
I.P$'IR&liU llff>S Mt f'{RIIWl)ltl.Y ST.taUZm. 

Sl.1W3111 IS SlFPI.Jll NIJ INSfMJlD � DWilETERS Of" ,-, 1r, !S- Oil 2-1• 
DWiC1U1 TCl.£IWll3 1M. 2•. 5!.TQM WlL n.AT1EH M TO � OJAI. lffM N 
PtN:t. T1IJS TtE IISrAIJ.£0 tmfT" IIU B£ l.lSS TIWI NDMlo"W. CliUEl. 

SUlQII 9WJ. BE tlSPtCJlll AfltR f.AClt JUaF M>fl >W> � Bt 
J9IMD N'KJ REPtACm r SIOHS" or � m 00Mt5TFQf sPo«:; 
lllU.$!REOllSOMD. 

!iU.ffl0IIW SHCl1D SE RSIMD fR:11 SUffS AFTER Sl1&WJl)N IS C0WWL 
lllS MAY IE AD:Xlll"UHO BY C'Jl"TIC TI£ Sl110m1 OPt"I Ml � 
1t£ R.L liWDl,l,I.. ON »£ Silt. stntORW lf'f'lll) JH 0fJ'Qi S>Wl. (I:: 
COll"\DD.Y IIDIMD, 

..... 
.. -

<20 

l)i"-:t-lDI 
FKS • 10:I ............ 

Silt%" 

------

51L"TWORM DITCH CHECK DAM ESTIMATED OUANTIT1E5 

•--11) '""""""Dfl'Cll(l) 

,.. 
1

12· , .. ,.. ,,. ,.. ... ,,.,.. '"'""" SLlW:1111 "'"""" ... _ ,._ 
(N$rNUD {l<STAlilD (1Nsr"1!D ('611UfD (IIIST>UE) (lm/,lllD 
l0Jff"l9") IDJfflij _,., IOJOI") tw.fTll") ID>lT ,,, 

l£Ml!H(Fl) ., " .. " n .. 
(I) �Tm QtWffllESBJ.5ED<JIA4:I SIIESlOflE.OlWfflYIESffl Wtt&\£1oN 

l£lUl,l 000! COJF.QR\Jlltf 
(2) ISTWJtDQlMIJJ(S8'.E<JfA◄f!80TTOltmH,◄ n 00'1t',. Wi4:ISIOCSLCPB. 

l>I.Mm'ESW11.1V#r&,S£l>ONN:n!}lootHmlFIGlP.A.roM 

-

L-6.lll 

-,..... -"':": =-, ...... �--.. _., 
--

. . ...... ., .. 
- SIF,HPE 6H1X8 SfCDONS 

w,...,_ • 

'"1l!JlWL 

.. 
\ .... ..., ............. * ...... .. ____ _,.., . ...,._ ... � ...... .... 
1 ..., ..................... -...--

TD!PORARY CQ,1:;RE1£ 
WISWUT FACIJTY - EMITHDI TVP£ 

FILTER FABRIC 
PLAN S't'M8DL: ® 

•"OOOtM.L"ORfDOO. st.TCOUf.t'Tl'JH 
1Wi HiDWD AT M.ET STllJCTUIIE PER 
MAJU,cn,m's �iQIS. 

l!!IIUt(Q<. 

sm.cne 1WE AS 5IOIH ..,..,..,..., 
Slm1CAlDIS 

Pt.N;t SlNORW PERPt1C:>1C1kM m �Dim®) n.aw. Sl'Ji([ 7t!t 
511.TltORW nm' 4' .fftD 0/fJtN' lliE Dm flt t INSTAWD ffllH A 
St.D{J"�Nl>ST.Ak!MR'l'4', 

SIL.WORM SPACING FOR DITCH 
APPLICATION 

_,.,.. ......, ... _ 
-"' ..,.,. ... .. ..."' JO' .. .,. 

OR[Al[RnW( 8l ,.. 
Bt.Sm ON »iSTAU.ED HEXiHT or 19"". 
SEE TA&! Dtf EC-!ilA-f: f0I OTlD 
>OJt1S 

I 
I

I OJ 
jji jji 

u 
� ll 
Iii " d 

w

(!) 

�
z 

�
C

<( 

z 
0 

i==z 
=> :3 
� IL 
IL Z 
0: 0 

I!!� 
;�
�f
� 
II) 

1a 

u 
l! 2 ::: �' 
- 0 

.. " 

,:: 
• .

. ; 
·, 

U) I
>:-

0::: \
w -. 
w 

� 
z .'. 

;;!!!!;'.· 
z 

(5 �;f 
�fI: z 

w 

<.!) 
-I \ ... ·-

z 
..- ·., .. 
!§�} i= CIJ'"'1" :•y _. 
t:l:l,..:.� ,;; ::, 

U) :I,:·" 
z �..,:;; 
0 z .-

(.) � 
·�� &l 

}· 

u, u, w- ' 
::E 0 ;, 
Oii!!: :.\ 

::c ...I 
z...1 � 

�-:, 
0W 
I-> u,o

'.'.3� 
...IZ 

-o> 1-
lll:: l:t:: 
DI:: 0 
f :5

JUNE 07 2022 

JOB: 22-019 

SHEET: 

SE2 
9 OF 21 



.,. 

j 

r 

SITE BENCHMARK 
! BONNET BOLT ON 
I FIRE HYDRANT 

I 
EL • 624.52 (NAVO 88)­
ELEVATIONS DETERMINED 
BY GPS METHOO 

-­

......,._.
RMto62l17' 
IH""'6H.li" 

.,. 

t 
0 10' ?fl 

EROSION CONTROL LEGEND 

@ "'8UlE)CO!IS11llC1llllDIIRNIC[ 

® DUSTCOllfflOl 

s """"'

@ _,sm,or: 

0 """""'""'°"

® N£J""'1mQj 

-D-SILT FDa � 5II.JlUIM 

EROSION CONTROL MQITS 
I. Ail. EROSD1 N6J SlDli8fJ tamQ. l,(.4R£S 5tW1 l!C N PUC[ PRICR lO 

SVJJT(FmtSTi!lJCIIOH. 

2. £Nmfl(ff( eotm.lCl'l)II 5HIU. MNHWt PRCF£R 91E Oi'lllW,[ � 

l. V.'fflflCR' � ll£SCICIHSll£ FOR W5T aJmll1.. 

4. tlRMJ«IIIC a»ll'lltlCT0ft llESPCl68.E FM 1,W1CW1N; n£ PtB.J: lilCWIIM'rS 
aDN »CJ FR[[ Of D"1 NIJ DE£RS Af Nl 1K$. 

S. an£R EH09JN C'0M7RC.l IE.GAl£S gw.i. BC IFWE(JID S10lD '-" 
JGltCllOW fX M SITE ,ocAl! " Dmel)a. 

rn rn
w-

z ::E 0 

0
:5 

0� 
::c ...J 

z 0. z...1 
< ..I 

;: -� z
o 

Q� 0W 

II) 0 I-� 
� (J rn a:: 
w I- � (!) ..J z
-w ...JZ 
0 :I! > 0
II) i5 

�� II) 
a:: 0 
,c( :!: a.

ti)� =

ffi a:: 
w >a.

z
wa:: 

a. ...J 
(!) 

a. 
°" 
a. 

JUNE 07 2022 
JOB: 22--019 

SHEET: 

SE3 

:? 

? ,. 
�; 
;,..-. ,, ',• 

'? 

�-
.,-

. �--

to ,...; l 202J Mvont e Cooiultin 10 OF 21 , 
;, ._;.:.r, . .,� .... -:0- :.:-...v, ,:-;.;.1, ... ;,:,.,•,...,:,,_ ;.,_.., ... ·"·/<�">- ., ·:;-;-./��-::,-.r:.-.. .;,,..,.:,;?f ·•• �:,,. ✓,.,,.,: .-........ ·/-� ........ :.._.::,:,..-. -:'.':• .. -;.::, .... :- ·.-:,_-;.:,.-� ... -. ..·.:.,_,_, ..... _;�, �·,,._ > ._,-,':_.1-r·: ;_'.;· 



MWRD TYPICAL GENERAL NOTES 

A. RU'ER(JQ. Sf'(Cf"DJKJNS 

El No;n:AlK)l'CS 
\. 

,. 

C """"'-NCm 

,. 
,. 
,. 

.. 

,. 
,. 
•.,.
10 

-

WRIF'E.10.AYPl"t 

9WJ. 11£ 1H � liml1 ;'Hf JrPf'UC,1,8'..£ stcl!OliS Of' lh[ fOLJ.DiWIHC, aCEPT .1iS )IOl>lAED HERDti OR OH 

rJ0NS FOR RO.ID�!) MDC£� (lAl'tST EDl':'JOt,I), S'r THE� OEP.t.ll'flEfT Of l!WISPOfrr.-TJON 
U'r.l',l(M(HlS Da:PT SNfTNl'I' SD'ER NfJ WAfER Wrn1 c� 

� �Tt:R AHO !'E'tlltR � (o,,&TAUCl'l(lf,/ MIi l.LHOtS. U,Ttsr fl)l1lCt,t (SSWS) 1'0R SA>ITIRr stWE1I NCI 

T�AW� � tiCTED. 1'Wt YORE" SEINCO'T'!i-.J.l.l.. TN([ �»KJ 9WJ. 

t.lS sn::r!Of; AnD OA=U WST EE NO'IJflEtl AT l£ASf TWO (2) W0ftffiO 1)4yS PRIOR TO n-<E 

�� M.o PU9JC MUST eE NCTl"flE!J 1,.T �, z, J-40:JRS PltroR to Ttt: Sl'Mr. Of 
Or WOfb(' COlfi!UCTOR SHAI.L ctr[RM!l'I£ ll'E\IS- R£!1U-.C IHSl'£COOk F.t1CR lO S!"Nff Of' 
toWP�ICS PftlOR TO BEQN�O COMS1ROCTION FOR T,E ElACT l.OC4T-ONS OF U1lUTICS 

. F DIS.rt!G lmutlES AA;,. � THAT � IH l�TIOl'I Wini NF"' 
OQM!:ER SO �T THE ca.-trucT C,IJ,,; BE lltt$0LVED. C,lr,lJ, J.UU£. J.l t-&00-892 ... 01U 

OH PIJrHS � TrlE � NilOICIH \l(flTICAl Ol.lUW' Cf' 1;)flll ("'W&). � f'ACTOA IS 

�-OWNER OR Oo\'H£R'S �AT!Vt � ttA'tlE THE 4IJTHORrTT TO rNSPCCJ, H'!"'flOv£. 'WO flE.rE"C'T 

Pft 'i'f'0fTAfPrC'i JOfflWCf]S!Tffl5 

-'C£N'!S. rn:., fJlOM � I.WlfL{Jy 
ASN'Pft:l\,l(])&f"""'°>HO'fliE" 

THE awsntuCT'iON D£TAU AS 
ED OH t1iE 1MPR!71/0lfN1S 

� COfilCRm. � 1¥[ 
001' lf'ION SW, PIP£ 

-.sTM C-700 
ASTMC-76 
,l,SDll>-74 
�A2U1 

AS1W C-42!5 
1-.STM C-+4J 
ASTMC-!IIM 
AHSl"21.l1 oocnu: "'°" -

�""fu��Pt?\c11 2e 
18�Qf TO 27-iNttf OIAl,C(fl' f/tlf•'46 
..aH Cl£NStJY POL't"Cllm0£ (HOPE) 
WA1'!11 w.t1 ou,,ur;' M: 
-4-11:Ct-l TC Je-�CH 
•-ttCH TD 1.2-tNCH 
t◄-tNCHlO 44-M>t 

� D-l0,,\,4 
ASfWF-'79 
"51'1,1 0-� 
� 0-.JOJS 
� D-2241 
-­
t,:,/f'lili,� 

A5TI,I 0-"'2 
ASTMb-J?:2 
ISfM t>-3Hll-2lll20(HE'A� NSl()lr,j) 
ASN D-3212.r-.+n(C&St<CrEO) 
"5TM D-3139 
ASfV 0-31.19 
ASTM D-3139 

T)£ F'OU.OWING M4l"� Nit AU.O'll'(O OH A� &IIS!S SOOJECT m otSTRC1 REV!� HiO � i"Rl'.>R TO PEHIJIT ISSl,,WQ 
;. SKCU.L CON'.Jlf,OH WU BE AOOCil TO nu: MR� llHOI T< PIPE IMTtl'IIAL SO..OW :S USO> rnA SF:...m\ COHSTIIUCTION Ofil A 
CONNECTION IS MADE 

-

���_m,�w,u 
30-ltCH TO 00-it«:H TRIPLE � 

ff'f $PfP£oC.\D9N$ 

MTM F-17Jfi 
ASTM F-27�4 

.PNI SPf&U'+DCl:G 

AS1M D-J:212..,-4n 
.t.Sl'M O -J212.f-♦17 

""'""'"" 
wrTH A lf'I'£ OR TU. 9RAHC'I stcTOt. 

OF' PROPER fflTIIG, USM: � 

4T 

SWU 8£ ABANOONct-. � TJ.HKS $:HAl,J B£ F1U£D WITH CfW,I� W.T[Fll,t,L OR REUO'JEO. 
$1'0RM W""'10U'.S Ji C0W9t(EO SDIDt AAtAS). Sh,I.Ll. H4'JE " LeilMW NStt OM.l,!ETER OF '6 tHtHES. 

.'-NO st'4U Bf' CASi' OR ?RC-� R9f,tf'OftCC) �. 

lS �Ji 5r2J
(
��PIP�����::5��0f � �T��r=

T
RueeER 

16. 
�

�ED 5,lr,UITAR'I' SEM:RS SH,lll BE PUJCCED llf 00TH EHDS WITH AT 1£.W 2 FUT t.OHV HOH-SHR:!f.;I< G0!'ICRE1i OR 1,KHfTiUI 

. !f't"OOT,NC CR,l,,llilS MiJYDED TO l"tOTECJ BLktHCS. DR P£JIFDRATED 00NiRC1. 
-- � 

CDtff'IOi_ PJ>N 5l'W.1. llt WJN.TA»ffll OH l};E S:Tf: �T Ml. fl.C:, 
0, .4.l A UINIUUlil: 

CO/lfTROl 1.1£A.S� PRIOO 10 � SOIi. DISTUltB-IM:E. 
24 HOURS Of � (hO Of ,t, STORM E\IEWT fl'l'Dt ORDTUI TrM O.S 1HCtt Of 

flltlW HYl>ROI..CQUU'V �£0 Al(EJ.S fO 
!£ iJSED /6 TtNPOIWn' Sf'DIUoa 8#.9l5, 

Ofl PD'll,II\Jil:i,rn.V CEASED SMLL BE STHW�12[D 

' BE PROTtcnD WITH A ooue;.£-RO'fl Of '11.T 

1,1£1&..'fl(S � 8C .,�NTAld"..O .lHJ RO'AIJIIED AS HfP.)£0 ON A 'f[.li.-�O B.\StS DURING 
CONSnn.lcrO. � LINTL �'Eff STASfJZAT-ON JS AQta['IE), 

22 
�� 

ERD5ION � S£D.'l>Em' cc»ITROl W£ASUR!:$ SHAU. 9£ Jt£\kMD 11111WN' TMft7Y (M) tl4T$ .IFlIA .D(IIMAN['WT 9r!t 
23. Di£ OICS'0'- NoD 5mM91l 0:)lrf":HOl lriE,l,Sl#i[S SHOIIN OH lilt F'I.NoS Jiff:. 'rtF- � w:E�H!'$. lrCOIJIOk,lit. HCASt.'Ra lfA'f 

et flEQUQftl, A& OIRE-=mt) 9'r M D,IG;!EEII:, SITE lt-'5P[Cf'OR, Oft lilW'Rl:I, 

EARTHWORK 

EXaM'.TOi OF TOPSCII. »tJ OTKER STRLCTIIIW.LY UHSlll'.IB.E IIAl!Rtl,lS WITtlN lJ,ll5£ II05 1l+'T ft.l Rt0lft £AATH �Tlltll llf!.O't 
$TilllCMtJ.l'! ll?Sffl'AElE WA� OR COIF?� fNttil FU.. U/ITE!a,\I,. NtD CUT ME.JS tF lHE loiON'-sJRIJC:tRM. 'lO(£S. TOPSCU �'f NOT 
ttlfVi iO BfAEllO,'[f) FFi!.115 TO IE' PIJCfD 1H NON-� Fll.L ME>S 5iJOl M rEAA YA(l)S. 

� tF EXt.WAltD MfJtill,l fOtt � USE lilffltf( NIUS ro BE � Nf) ru Pt T>€" MUS ll>t IIENRl!IC STRUC11JR,ll 
ru AA£ lO SClff'RCM'.D Elr(M(E'lt PRilil:� PIJC[),l!Xl', 

EXClSS lit,(�. f rt'JT Ull.lZS AS f'l!. 00 F t,OJ 70 El: 5roCKPl.fD Fm runq �. Sklil.. BE CC .. Pl£fll.Y � fflOt.l 1HE 
� SITE Nf) tJ9IOSE!J CF 00'-S/Jt BY Tti£ COhlf11tl'Oft 

loPU lll.SPfVD SIWJ. N:WX IWI.I� ia,M> SPRtAlllt,; it, lllttllll ('I' (i" r,; llPSOL aim >11£).S 1'0 BE � 'lnOE SliOilN � Ott: 
PlNt5 Cf!: D&C® 8r TIE OIJ6. 

�TE COlf'ACOOfj IS f1DJ111ED IN Jrl�SiRUCTURAl FU MOS. 

2. l'N!IH EXCA\\\iMllf 

D�IXJ( OF EAAl!-1 AHO Ol'IER l,IAIDIW,S 1MQ( NII. SJT,a.£ RlR USE � SlRUCTCk ru. n£ OCA,,D:J( 9VJ.l 8£ TO WliHN A 

�:J'
-
�M

OF'
�

U:
Of'���=� 

+/- ro.JJWiC£1f.Ttai �TN!FAS WU 9E SUCH Dlt.Tnt: £JJml 

PIACEWJfl' or i1£ CMTH A'Q Olll£R svrr.a.:: MA'itRI-\IS stWJ. BE 'Mtli-".11 TrOSE AArJS 1!£QOM/G STfU'MAi._ FU If ORlD TO 1C11M THE 
PUffSUICAM)(QFl/mlltS'JOl'mef ru�Slt.lU.BCPVIJmttUlOSCl!flS™TStWl.M>I' 

70 JOrnf R£0UREtl rtJIPll:l'-O!l fMi™ 
flffltN P'.JH Slll'M£ ElfYAOON. N MffJ,S 

OR OlliE1I IMSIJTHKr � lllE 

���������m
B
'\o

lD
��n£���MJ�� 

Q-SJROCiUW. fll 11![.1,S, 

��
SHALL US£ c:NtE' IN C9J.0fl. NEAA � 5HRl.8S. � BUSifJi MICH .W: m R0UiN SC: AS NOT TO� INJ.Ji\' TD 

'H <X1fWCTOR � US[ CA.l!f; tt � � o:t.WAtNi htNI AU. D0SfK' ms IMC.➔• TO BC Rr.WN�. Mi � rote ro 
ltlSE r.crsr.tt:i ITtMS BY M: oo,,,1R.liCTOR'S OPOWl)HS 9W.l IE R£Hf!ED AT NS <Mti EXPOCS[ .  

UHSUTlcU IIAJPW. !HU. 
Nll r n tS D«nlNTlREI! 
samc�w.lUIJi. 
BY A rots DefiEER W!11t 

IS HOT !U:'Ali EM 1ll SJPPOR1 OF PMMOO' twl: a,l,JJIW; COH511l!JCTIOH. 
M. PROPOSm � D.fVAllON fr SKllL 8£. R6lai'UI NII R£'FUCm "'1':f 

n£ OCC'SION TO flOOC WI Wt.Ti:RW.. Ml) TO 'fl'Kil,f 0000. stW.l. BC MAX 

4. 11£ GRADING CONTRACJal SIW.1.! 

� POS:lM � KAU.. nuts tuK Tt£CCUt:SE. Of� Nflf'll[Y[N'J SJllW P.?ER faw IPJlffl(l tcrO otSrlJC)NG 
lH EXCWATCD MC.� 

SPRf.tD NO (X)MPM:7 �v 10 Tl£ t(CRtt SPEC:HD FM J,I.L DXtSS tROfCH SPOIL JfTER COLIP:.ETD{ Of llE i.NDQmlMD 
-­

��c:"����TO�
"

��
<tn:t.

�
SUBGRl,OC�l(lk.WM.ll/£JS»t&TMA'I 

PRt'tU l'NER 1\5 DKCTID B'I' stll.SOOtE!RTO Cit"'� IDMUf.iflllE MOST\111: C0HJ00 f�11£ f'IJRPOS£.fFACtifVlj(jllfE 
SPCCllEDOOtilPACll)h, 

Blm1.l. l►.£ Wi8 A'CI c.mtR /R£R m a:w5IHUCJDI NfJ PflXlR 10 DE PlM:O.EHT Of Tll[ &5£ m.JRSE W.1Vl:W... 

BE RESPDWSal FDR iUP1.£MOIT.llOi 11' Tt£ "SOl.. EROSIQ.II AAD sctlMDITATION O'JK!1lll,. �- AS DESCBD II ll£SE AJ.HS. Ml. 
camw::l'ORS SklU. cowt" W!J1i SIPP? Nill HPDES �\IENTS. 

US£LII[ 5T"8IJZl.11)tjWlHE 5!,Bl;RAM w.um,lr,I. FRR'UJlfOE!'rnt: SQ:..S Etd1WI:. 

5. 15ltiC Mil F1IW. N:cfFINa. 

Tl£� SIW.L �ASA � A lAAWI .AJ:1.£ � l0l«D lO 11o lONS FOR f'AOCf ROJ.DtG IH( � � f'RIDri 
TO TI£ f'I.ACOINT OF h!£ a.ff. AHO GOTTDI NCD M 11'.SE liWERl,l,L M S.w.t. 11: "1llCSSED Nil N'ffl'.MD B'I' CAI. flfPRfSOflATM NCD 
'"""-

>Hf t.tf3UlTJaL Ii/EA OC<:UmJ!m AS A Jlt'.31ilT OF � ROWC StW.l 8£ ll:Ml).tD NI) REPUC£0 � 51.ffJetl .W.� AFPiP.MD BY 
ll£ SOLS L'tffllJLIMf, Nwll PflQ'.Jf" fQI.Nj SWil BE PORIRIEl I.M'li. Tr£ SlllG'W)£ 15 .tf'f'ROYED 8T nf CRa. REfflESOO'AlM: #() OWNER. 

n£ lfQ!I(. i\.::VS. SH,lll M POsnMI.Y � OORiHC COtiSTRUCTION. f'IW. GRAttS 9WJ. SE PR0lEC"£D ACHHSl" w.wa: Fm&.I DIOSIOH, 
smwffAl'Oi HJ llWAC. 

6. !Mf ll£S 

AMY' OIWK n.Q � stW.1. 6:: MARI(([), MN !WM TU.ES THII." ff D,trl,W;ED SW.U. Bl; RtP/ilRRI Off lfJIJTEJJ f"tlR POSlfl'I[ ()!Wkl,C[ TO 
N.OC HO' � DRAtP.OC Sf FOR ntE 1.FSJRElil,I PR0PERT'r CMN£1'$. 

STORM SEWER 

MJ. � stltR SHAU. BE' CO:'fS11U1fll JI .tlXOml"KX lfDt n£ k)ST ctMOO" � SPlCFCffl»!S f?lR 'WJUt 4lfJ SDO IMllf 
COltS1R!,:ro,; !N l!IKIS IHJ nt: 9.B-MSQ OONmOl � C$ Tl!( lL'NiCPMnY, 

2 'IN� OfiO'flSE NOTED OM ll£ Pi.HIS, NJ. STORM SE'l£IIS" StW.I. BE flElfORCED OOtGE1t CUW(A'T PIPE. AS1M C 76. Wl'IH -rt' RtlG fUIIER 
C,t.SXEl' JOlcTS C<H'OiMNG 10 AS1M C-4-13. 12" MD 15"10 � B£ Cll,SS f'I lMES'S JOr[D OOIERWISE_ AOS N-12. Cl! m'liO'JED Pie SOR 
26 PflE PR::s SHIU CMt:11:W iC A5TM SU..'IWmS- 1NE � SWU. IF. PfR liWllFAC1U!D'S R£CCIMIDO,l,lDI /tJ0 ASTU 51.llOlU "'1. 
UIURM,IM 9W.1.SE'/IIJSht-ll<JtJ¥.:S>R� 

J. IU. OOIJliP0IJT NIil rom«i OfWltS SrJt.1. fl: DISCHARGOl TO TI£ STIRI SEWER SrS1'Eltl 4• MtUJM Prt SM2IS UUSS tfJf£C OfHERfttSE 0fl; 
OHlOTIEGROUrr.D 

4 ll'ff«Xf. Wtlf � N(O IIC.EJ' OOTT0JIS. SIW.J. 8[ PRf.WT CQICRET[ sa:MNf,L '.N;S CR Ml).liKJJntC �E. I.WtttOCES N0 CATCff 
� � 8E 4' W � IMtESS OMJftltSE SP£Cf1li Cffn£ P\NiS. IMt,1Q,£ Q,115 9-.tU. k B;JTY1. IOI£�. A� or SX 
(II) liC..:s AOJJmr«"; Rl1CS SHAa oc user ro Ai).c'JS! nt,f,I[ �. K }.D.lSlt!C R1«:S SiW.L ec su ff FW. l!Oll"Ni em 

!I AU. STDfll,I SEWERS > OH An!PE !dllD ..... 1/4' l0 J/4" t4 92£, llllH I. WN1M T«:Kk£SS EOJ,11,. TO 1/4 TI£ OUTSIDE 
l£S$ lw.N 4•, f!tDCKltG OF ,Hf 00 FOR CilWl' IS NOT fltMll'lm. lHC CfWt..UR Uol.TERW. fOR 
StWJ. eot,:FQ!al: JO IDOr CRAl».'IICM C\11-lJ. ll£ GPJrMlAR MAlERW. n:R m:D!JflQ »rJ Nll,tl. 

JrtCN-NCLVif � IIW6MI.. � IO AS1111 b-2JH. CUSS L n£ COST or 1EX>Hi Mo\JmW. 
IJl FtlA M sns. nt: BCIXIIN) tM.lUMLS SJWJ.. 11£ C0W'ACJBJ JO m <X nc l«lDfO PRo=r.>R 

6. lt£ fJU.ME AHO GR,1,TE. 00. a.osm UC � 8£ AS SftCR:D. ON tmm' �- T-C IIW('O.£ LOS SfW.l 8E WC!f.NE SlS'ACED, fQI-ROt»fG 
OESIGt, THE ClOSt:O IIOS 5HAl.LKWE nE WORi) "STaN" All> f APtB.C LNE ii£ �IW'rKUE. El,l!OSS£D � Ill'. UO. M.r»IT 
8tJWEDI C0Na£.r SEtiDI Nrfl mMI£ 9Wl. BE SE>l£D 'llllrtt A Mo\SllC COWl).N). 

1. ALLSTORWSC"'ERS9Wl.1!:ntORCM::tl.'tC\f.llrl'.C-?fllfiTOFJW.16.'£COOHNii�l£Sttl!:. 
e. 'i1lR 'fl£ SltBI srm1 S'l'S1EII KiS' 8rot CXlHS1IUim ttlE COMffiltCT'OR StW.!. PVa: mos10H COMT1lal >if ux:Arots � c»i tlic: PlNIS 

<'-t AS � " THE f1EL.C Bl' r-£ EJQifE't. THE Nlfl05E rs 11£ DD5l)N cc»fTROl WILL 8( TO Mllrf\17£ n£ MfU1' Of' sinAT(IH, � 
�y \lOlUI Di1tR Tl£ SJCQI 50l£R SrslEW f'ROl,I Jol).I.IC[JIJ .AA]/M � � NOS. 

t, MN,U,f (:0./[R swtl B[ 3' lHl5:S SPfOt,I. M'CN.lOtS ltit SPR:fll), 

SIGNING AND PAVIMl!NT MARKING 

1. t.Ll sir;ie«; Hf) M'tl,l[lff � SHIU. S: II� llf"'-1 M: llWll5 IM.W. ()I( lWDrlW T1WR:: o:,tlflll. !IYq'S (11.nCD), M 
STIIOW> SP(a,IC.\OONS FIJI: MCW.I JWJ EMU � ('SSIE), IUQW. COOE NtJ n6 l'\.IJCS. 

Z. �St-AU. rn.t.Bi.&: LIX'J,T(lN Cf'� 91715 MID ll,IRJIH;S RllAPPR:IVlt.BYttCOl'liER �ro tt5fMJ.AOOll 

l �'S· Sli;Jt5 S>W.l. a: WG!U:1!D or o.r.ec IICtf nto: 1W M.� �5 F-t R!Jlr.alZm LEGO;O o,I (}( r,a; DI� l1fli 
(SSIIC)SECTOl'T.Xl. l!COl>�L&;N�'f!rN .. 'ICIINIJKSStQl!l'l'CJ(rl'EMS 

4. 11$11: QPOSTS�BEAtfEJNiMYSllll"u'Slilft1IQWMl.ifl(gKJ.DPOlllOS/rOOfsuc-il.SAJVPEBM£IM.POS1PER(�) 
!rnJOllm("'2",emJW111S11D.11.0EPfll(.-)stcoo,mJ 

5. 
=-

NuPClSJS9W.1.EEINSlAU.£DNJal:KJIN::f.¥1HD£Ji11if.{'S:SJllC)SCCJDCSNfJl:DJSWtWID1mllEXIVFASMCOJEDB1TI£ 

5 � IU.RQICS; MJ. PMlOT � � lK: RQt{lllltA.Y IJrffl, 9.D! I.S STtP U)6, C0:181..11'1€5. � NC OIR£COOtu,L. NlfD'i 
�EC�P(RS9D: DQnAS'I.XCDlltTl£RJJIS.. 

7
. 

��ag�f��,W)H!E���lffUNUc.SM.
1.

lli�".tmRWKt
r
.>(S

SJa:)st:TOI 

S. Gn.OR. WOIW. STnE, NW �Of N.L � SiWJ. lltl .taXR:Wa:lfflt (IIUJCD) D;:VJ,ISlilOOlf([) 8'f ?H( PUHS. 

11. �..src M.I.RkJICS WU. 8E l.iS!.tum Nit TI£ PA'iOIJfT Tal":R:l(IUIE IS Si F Nii IQiG. P,llf! liW!t:IIC;S 11,1,r K PIS1,IUJl! W,()j 
Tl€ NR �n,tf' 15 9T r N'll � 

SANITARY SEWER 

l.ft£SS hOltD O"'IICJMISE. M... 'SMf,Rf SOfJi 9w.i !IE -. rn: SY: {rot.lWM. tH.Of«)E) PVSTIC 'ff. Ml. Pl'£ SIWJ.. CONFOIIM 
TO "5l\l O-l034 MTH nASTDtiOC IISJ8a:JI ,..., � ans o:HtRaC ro ,sn, OJ2t2. nE swi:wm OilDSrM w,o (S{JQ 

f:.��:rln-�����[T�et:��������=� 
SE.al SHij,i. CONFORM TO ,:J/fJ, C900/C90S ¥.TH IUWI °'5KtT JaKl'S COltrOOMtl::: TO AWN}. C8al� 

i. COHJl:Cft.CS£1ER Pff Of'tl$SIIVfl �ISNOT.l,IJ..OIU>. 

3. Ali A.OOR 0AAlt,S SlYU COlffCf TD ill: SWT.-RT SEmt COfrlkECTDtS 10 OlStfl'. SNt,llrftT SOl£R S'rSTOI � »ar ti: IXW1E 
IMl1.. 1,./lHOIIIZ[I) 8' TIE� N<J/OR "'1>U<llll) "'8'<l, 

4. '-1.l. lffiU'IABI! MATfM 9u.u. f£ f!EMCMD � n£ Al'OPOSlD SUlilolRr SEU AtlO ff£PI.A=e:D wmt � UhS£& GR>WEl. 
� TO 00T GR.WTil:Jt rA11-1;, NfJ rGTAl.1£D PER l&JW [H321, Cl L 

5.. .COS, rtJR OOXIM SHAU. BE LIERGOl 1lftH nt: lNJ Plll!J: 8D fOR 0£ 5l'f9l 

6. tE0NG 9W1. :::atSl5T OF it, � CE 4" fS OOWPACT'EO Cl!US}El} CI\ML OR STONC FOR All. SWT.Jm SOERS. S£HITAR'I' SEv.ns 
StW! �TJ.Nffll CRIJS!G �Cf: ST::,,.CCCMR Mn'rTHE TOP N'ThE ?!PETO A� or 12� fO?. SliNl':'AA'I'� PIP[. 
M�NCllREHCI, 8I01li IM�SIW.LO'ltta!WTC IOOTC!l,l,MTION CAll-13WJlflSTAU£i)P£RAS111 D-2321 WSS t 

7. IWtR MN.16 S>Jill. BE S£P1,,WUi flQI s-HrM'I' sn.ERS l,,'Cl STORM SOOS It,! JCC0Rl'.WtCC lffli fEN. IIJXI•� AS sPEC:IAED 
ff.I "W>JER W.t.·srcro:. 

8. JrCIWERU!«StWl.8EPJN:ttllHllCSl6(TRDICtl>S,5£WE:RUC 

9. n£ Ti3TjjC Cl P!PE5' STR:W6hCSS, AM) mD TtsrJiC 94-IU. El IN � Willi l£w£l!A,E� CUI: CF T,£ U\N:FAU1Y. 

10. SNITMt' SOO lrlNKt£S SWU. B£ 4'-0" I.Q, Pfm'SI R£WOliCE OOt+:R(I( RNlS 00 LKN>Lm«- � CCN'O!!NN, TO "'5N 
0471! ANO ShM.l K'YE Hl IT.tOmlC CD€ IHST#ill£D TO IIN£ l!P f':TH TH£ W,KtKll.E SID'S. .lrlJ. tiWctn.E SID'S 9-W.1 BE !AST IRON 
N£DN'l R-1981-l M 111" o.c. 

11. AU SA.'CTAlh' $OIO MWa£ U!IS SfWl. BE WW6fit R-1772 Cfi AP9ffOl.{D EOI.W.. n£ UE5 SHW. kN,( IEESSlD {C0NC£.IUD) 
Po: ttOC[N«J 8[ mr !EtK IC,lH "t" - � r..,:ws StWJ. KM( Dif WORD "SNl'"iNl'I"' NCI nc WtCIPA:.liYOltSAlffJRf 
Oti'T'lr.'ftw.lEElil80SS£00HMu:l, 

12. 
���si:1������rPR(W1�-��cw�

TlNG 

SI.IDB �ASllil C-all M' a:nrou:<r�� 1-'AYE A COIOICTE"BEMCli POUREil 1iJ f.lCIJT� SMOOOt Ft0l'S. 

ll. 0RCP M,IJfflC)I£ ASSOll.'£5 SK,l,ll IE Pff'M:U AT 1'11'. .PCTIOII rl" .S,,lllr.\fl'I' SEWERS M£R[ Tl£ t>m:JlfJCE IN IMRf Cit«S 

�!':TH(��OGti� � Qt! 1>£ I\NtS. M EHTfif OOERICR IA)P ASSD181.Y $.-w..L Bf C,6ST ,c CUQEJ£ 

14, ltfiPECTDI Of LWKt£S: .W. liWtWS $Nl,U, BE TlOiO.Ol.'I' CWNrn fS [ff! Ni> COlil5 AHO ALL V!Slfl£ I.Urf,,IC£ ElMHltTCD 
8CTOII£ flV.I. HSJU:TDI ND J«!PTM.;£, 

1,. 1tSTlr«; FOi: MX:tPTNCE Of Sf.llT,lll"f' SOIIERS NE � AU. SAAlTAR'r' SE'IERS N:LIJ)t(; � ll�"'S SWil. IE TiSIID FtlR 
LOW PRESSURE� 1ST, � Wl.£Cil0tl TE'ST P[R stlKWIO Sf'EtlfV.OOHS MID SlllCM5IOO RBU.Aro!CS Of ntf IAI.IICl/1,1,J.,IJY N«i 
SIW!.BE. AfPRC1tEC BYnt£11� ElfOl!E HXCPTMCt. "-1. SHliJNfl' loWfiOl!5 StWL IIEWCJUN 1tSlt!> FOR L.£.Wt;E 1M 
ACQR»NC£ WIT'li WitF.lrl r.lllWIOS Nfl'J ASfll C 1244, 

16. >U.SMTJRt S[WERS:!fflUIIETRN.Sm#fJA COP'l'(Jf�OSKNt:> AWltTl£N lt£POftT SNM.l e£ Sl&m!DTO 'It£ 
� R)ll! ,lflf'f!Oi,l,I. M � S1W.l t4Clta. SM i.OCf.TKlrtS "'D DCSCfflDri Cf AU. ODETS. 'W£R lNl.. H(J 
tDJ<S.. EEHll'Y l,£IC;1'ttS f'ROM ltNftClE 10IIER SP£CFiD 0Jrl 11£ � PV,NS.. AU COSTS .9WL BE NDlIDL TO Tt!E WCR,:. 
1tSTJ'«l StWl. 8C �MC>N'f'R(M]'.) SYM WlHC.F.1.1,m' BLroRE f'MACCEPTAI«:£. 

n. f It( S,1,l•,UNh' S£WEff NSW!ATOI rM.S 10 lilE['J TlE fl:Sl' R(WID(.NTS $PtCRD. Tl< C(WW,CTCII: 9W.L 
Qf£ �ORt'M>Sei Of Tl£ LUE.Cl MJ StWJ,.. AT NSOt.-fDJ'£MSE JtDl� CftRU'I.ACEALL W.1£1blt.S, N¥:J 
'M'.JRK�,..SM(CE'SSARl'JOPil..'iSTiiCn:st�. 

16. �9WiSl.8JTCERtffDC(11('5 Of'H.1 �Oi"TESTSOJtDJCfED'fJfNilfiRJEPl14lOIT�Cffi' BffORE 
IJQ.t£.1>.Ta· CF M A.ASl1C Pft. TESTS StW.l El€ � II � 'ftl'H ST� M£TH00 <>r TEST FOO 
"OOETdW. L<W:INC PRJmf!ES Of PUSTC Pl'E 8'f fYR,,lU,[L PW£' UYD:lrli'.r, ASiU ST� 0-2412. ttm Sl'WL A3J El: 
G<»cX.IC1IO Jf � Wtlt AStV �l212 10 OElOlSWJE JOtC � Al 5,i; �II � � OF M 
SPIGOT. AS SF{(ftI) Ii� O-J212 9'EtflCAll>NS. 

11. AU. IWfiOLES AffJ Ffl£S !iH#il El: T;fX'J(H.Y QlVEI) (I 01:T !,MO DEBRIS, AM> Ml lolS8.( W.OCE 0000,mt, llflJI£ "-A.i. lfSf£CllCII 
NOit.e:m>TA"Kt, 

20. 1£ C(Jllll,.IClal 9Wl. � AU. �mt !ti PIIEPARl' �cam IRA.-.c(S) NI) SB,11 TO COIEJNlj NlJC l,CfMQf,S. f' fllM. ��J� it£� Af>IS OWN aJSt ti M>JJSTWJl!QlS NG/fR IDD.S lfi PRCRJi �llll6 MO 

SOIL EROSION AND IEDIMINf COfffllOL 

Tlil5 'IJORl( SWU. IIE PtRR'AlCl>t4 ACcce.i+ICE IWTli "'1.lff\r.la! PftOW5.IDt6 ()rn£ 5l8)M90fl D::lNlw.l, 0RDOltUa CE THE 
WO'.IUl'V, NII) 'i)£ ll.JIOS � IWIW.. 

2. errORC Cl.!NK MO Sil! GfWJtf(: �. THE OOHTMCTOR/lff'I.PH!' WtlST MOffY � Ar.O«:'I' 2 WOIOOI«: �'TS PR,.'.lR 10 
START\� � EHlM«'t N«J 51.J met � 5MAt.l ilE NS"iW.m AS StffllH Cit n£ P,J,NS, 

l :::.ir:����w���or:w-=�.::kOlf l'r£ �Th(� 

4 SIU fl.l(R ro,a: StW.l.8£ PJJaD AS 5MMo OH nE.PJ.HSIIC IS. DIIDmD BY'D1E �NCINl.llYS OONE611NG lll'SPt'.C!'OII 10 
�'ENI' stoo.lENT f'R0W' lD¥JNO THE SITC. 

5 SltT m«t SIW1 9E fG'l'Allill NfJ W.'tiTMiO> .AAOl.:flJ Tl£ sn&I S1RllC1l.mS SliOtlrH � M PI.NIS. 

'DE CXIH1lWlOR StWl. 8£ �£ n>9 Ti&' PRftl lt'SIAUA'OOtl NlJ � 0f' AC. � NI> f'CR!,W,01 EJl95l)H 
,x,m,o\.""""'5. 

1
. �����

c
iwf�=�� �� �1�,/�'l�f•�PC�g���"raf� 

--

5. AT ll£ CCMi'l.£OOff er M PAO.(CT, M.l Sf'Dll\4 S00 PA.--S H«J mo:ntlEi SIW.l B£ lllR'AOC,Y (UNEJ .WJ fl([ Of Dirr 
A)II c.ocas. SOJIIDITAOOM 9Wl, OCRD,ICMD A!(I.C TI£�� S'tSTEU � SiW.J. NCIT 8£ w.a&£D o.r.fil'O Tl€ 
\ll•'l/51\IS,JI"""' smR "1S19I,.."""""' ""'(SJ 

9, 'D£ � tROSiDi'I COliP!Cl. M£ASLRES 9IAll BE Pl fUC[ 00. AU. n£ PERWN£NT EROSICtt CXlWOO. iTnlS Ml£. flJU.Y 
ru«:1DW. 

ID. THE OJ.WHIG PDl0D StWJ. STMIT mER ALL Tt£ � � C0f«ROL l4ASlRS ME. llJLll' F\J4CUW. NE M:CEPTABlI 
fO OMER <lfl t1S REPRESOOArNt. 

II, l.sm:::tCPI.ESCFWQl>SJWJ.t«JFSEPl)(:GIISPEQ.\.�� 
B. SOI. STOO< Pl(S IIJST ll'. ST,WJZD) Oft a:MRED U THE 00 OF � Dn. 

C f ,. S?'OCJCPll tS to rE,11,ft " PV,:[ � � TIWI nm �YS. S£1Wt."1fl' ,,,.., tfKJ9JH (Q(lfQ. SfWJ. ec mown Fat SUCH 
SlOCl<acl 

12, 
�=-��

\IEHT
�.=�=N?���n:��=--���El!OSl()I. 

�Sfl)l('HJAfO,. 

13. SfCM! se..ER ft£l'S � Ii'. mJrtCTEt MTli SBM:!IT 'flWIPIHG OR Fl.l[R OJNTftOL OO')t{S Olm«.� 

14, STAl!UlN-oN Of' �SMIBED ARQS ..,_,'Sf at'. llffl\TOl "1rHN I M)Rl(INt. D,l,Y OF PERWIIM OR IDAIWfr CfSSAJl;Jt,I Cf' EARl'ti 
� ACTM'OCS NfJ SKU SE C0MPl.£TEtl AS SOON IS POS:m£ M l'OT �T[R n.tN 14 � FROU THE l!fflf.TlON Gf 
!IWllJlAT.Qf'IIOAl(Jlfi£� 

15. ""lER fUIPED M OMIN'ISE l)SCKIRC(O fROll fr£ Sill � CONSTIU:OOH OCMl'ERN., �fk)H, OF!: FIRE lil'tRAHJ Jl.Wfl't;i 
S>WJ. 8E FlT'RfO P1MR ro � PRO.l:CT Sli'E. 

l&
. =-� ���ot'��=��������l�� A 

f\8J: Ot1 PRJW.!E fl:IWIM1' 5hllL (IC ,aa.m IIIISWD.Y. 

17. NJ. CX'ltl'TFJICTOftS loll> S"8 wtT!llrCTIRi 9WJ. COW�'I' \llllfl.t SlllPPF' PLN, RID � fl(� le 5� � S'Jl'Pl'P ON fLE 
l'ffi1 OflN£R OR CF)E;R.lrl. C()tffRA:TOR. 

15. M £HTIRE S1£ IAIST SE 51A1Wm> US...C A �y 11.lDi I.AYER Cfi NilOTla 11::»-ro .Al !If. a.os.E Cf' 11£ �OON SE:ASOt,,, 

1i', 1EClfi(tlJ[S SIWJ. EE t\RO'l'R' ro PR('OT � ll1MK « MT OR S£C,O.IENT fJ!OU nl: Sill'. 

WATER MAIN 

I. mER � 5WiLl BE� ('F t<JC?lt.E IOI PIPE. QJSS 5l. Pl'£ OOkflRDWJ TO M'IM. t-1:;1 (NB A-21.!11) WITH ctANT 

=�i:>m�����it��y���Mr��mt&-
2. Tt£ J0fffS � El PllSH-Otl .l)l;l'S � TO A."151 A-21.lt (AINA C-111) JrkCI All. �Mo..C: ct.»l)S SIWJ. EE S£T SCIO OR 

�-1..UG 'M>E. lll.1ER UAlf r.nr«.S SHt.U. BE tf' DlCJllf l!O"I l!TY. a»NJ I01MI LNIC(CWPl.'I' � AICSI A21.4 tE M#,1,, ClDS, 
STIJ«Wli ThlOOESS} � stAI. Cll#.TltG (.s SPCcfKD f'OR WPA1. LOSE wt HISI l,Jl.51 OR� 00"1IIG PCR J.l"ll'A C-1SI) 'flffl 
�'5t�

"""1S NI> StWl � r., Al& A21.10 (AWWA C-ll0}.M£C!WIIC'l XWfS RETAKR WK:lS sa;.u COW'\.Y I!� MSl A2U0 

J. TlR1.iT El.OCkWi DR rdSlRlr,J.'tED ors St1'll. oc ltSTAU.Dl ON ,u �mr l,Wli'5 ,,., >J. 8El()S,. m:s, cLDOWS. m .. 

4, �In SfSl£W \IAL'tl'S 9Wl a; l,.'[SU>fl SW mw: � TO l:Jlf//A C-509 lAIE5T sr� .,,.'O $KIU 9E � BY 
M �- oat 'Ut.� Ml 6E ll'ifHJill IN" 'Ml� war OR BOX OF SQ! SlfCMN (1t lHC PVHS. nc LOS 5Klt.l !E MEDWi 
R-1m MN'm.MDOXW. k<J lf]l£RI«;: CJITtt:C>s.R\11 nLWC N<>WSkM! 111«:ATr 'iV.mr #On£ WtH:-FH/IYf41.M!. 

5. THE 1'l'PCM. IIIWM NPTH <F CGYER � S'-6"' SWU BE YAJHT/H:n 0¥ER lt£ "1.wt U!ES. 

6. f'RC � swu. f£ ICST.lil£D �Mt.� �'-'E 'fm cm m; Vl.t.W: 9lX. fR£ � 9W1. a'.HtRlil lO 1E1 #..l. 
1£(11.RMOOS 0l3Cl&Ii Of n£ � COlffRtl. l'.llDiNC£ UK' w«:l';IUlY. TI£ H'IO'W,T $W,lJ. FKS. 'DI£ lOK/IJ.Y. n£ ME 
lf!Ml'fl'S SIW1. EE PAl.'ID) PER l}£ .utt:FJIWY. THE VJt.\f. Im uo $t(H.L H,IY( WOf!O "lr.a.mr £18:JSS(O OH TH£ � SD: FRE 
t!YDR;t,Ht 00-'A. Qi £04. �-

1. � ocn.rtn()t AT AP£ XJIITS S'-wt B£ It Mr.MIWICf wtrli CtlftREJ,Jf IUIAF>C\JRER'S RGXIMEro.T!OHS NIO � SF(QfltA�. 

B. awt.r;swc.t aJICS1SfCf A a9Ml0t �• Of CCIPAC1D)CfMH?)CRIMl.OII st0HE FCli!MJ.tO' 1iWDi liN6. Sff"Mmt 1roWN 
IFM.otl.::na&.9m, 

Sl. IPA WA!EJI IWN PRamlON 

A.�WMIS: 

I.H0fiSZl'.»tULSCP>Al!Gl 

c
) = ��� t��� fttT hORIZCfllAU.Y FROM NfY EXIS'f:IC M � OPJ,IN, STORM SEWER.� 

11) "'-nA NS 1,1,,'r 9E IJC a.osa TIW4 m.· Fm TD A S(W{R lM ·,Mtt 

1) lOOIL. CllHOOONS PRO£Mf A U.TDW. SEP.W.T'O,' Of' T!N fEEJ; NI> 

2) nf:� WMN IIMR'f IS MUl,St 18 IQ£S � 1kt: CROWN Of'TH[ SE'VF.R; NCI 

J) TI£ 'A1tR Wli 15 IN ' SEPIIRAlE l'RDIOf. 

BOil! n£ WAn'R .'#tH NlO ORM,! OR saf'.Jt !iH.1tL 11£ COHSllllCTED or PR EIU/1,lD{J 10 'M'ER � sr..vo.,m (Jf 
�=��=���! 1«11£. ii£ DAMN a, SOOt SHlil.L BE PRmtr,i( TESlED 10 n£ 

l.VE!ODI.S(f',WTQt 

,) 

,, 

,1 

•l 

10. TtSTN.: 

Al¥ltRI.IAik SWU.9'.: utl SO ntt.T RS tMR1' IS Ir. l./0£5 M1Jli. a<� Ofn£ 0IWll Cl! Slffl ttENMR �TCR 
WINS CROSS stt4Wi SEfl'E.IIS, S,lffr� Sf'WDIS � S£l'91; stJMC£ COMUflOtfS, DE� SE?.W.TION mu, BE 
UA.t•fWIIED F� 001' POR10N 'X 111£ MlER MAIN l.OCATID -..ne; lEK Fm ttDRIZONT.UY Of Ml' 5E'ft'R OR 01Wil CROSSED. 
A LtNGTli U: WMDI l!MN PR'. !wW.LBE W.HtrED OVER M SE'fER JOB£ CIIOSSED MIH JOINTS �»flfR,,ii 'TH! 
SF1£R (M DRAIN. 

t�:���1.t1Cf�H£���:� 
1H (cl Cfi 0£ ""TEN W14 PASS[S utm1 A 

����::�or 'tt RfK; .N»IT5 ,ltll SIHJNti SfXR SH'LI, BE: CCiNS11lCfED WITH pff 

�:�� � �.: �� CIRS!lli PFf: � �TED ON 'H PUNS U() AS P£R T� SR:CW. 

1, ¥£ROO.I. �104 Of 18 �S l£T'KEN THE rNERT YtHE SFi£R OR� ANO n€ CffltlN Of THE WATER .MM1 
SIW1. 1£ IWk'IMlilD� AW,1,IER MlJft aOSS£S L� S[YIEJI, Sl.FPCMr Tl1E x'tlERM DRU! IMS lD Pfffl,00' smuwc 
"I> B'lt\lONC n€ 11/J!R ""' 

� StW.L £tTDiO ON £AO! m: OF lh£' aK."SSNC lMlL M HCflU.IJ... QISWICI: rR01.1 M WMDl \INN TO Tl-( 
SDltR ORDAA!lf LH.IS�1 l£ASTTEN ftfJ, 

#U IQlO Wll5 SIW1. ff � 1[518). fWSIE) A'Cl OISN[Cill) IN �t:r IIITTI � (I" M IPA. MJ K "SJ»aWI> 
� Ftlll W.lCR SE1EJl W.fl IN ll.� N<l IUCIP'ltl. SPECfDTIWS. rJOI "-:.'if. SEctm StW.!. 8£ PR£SSJIE T(SIUI F01 A MMlJlil OF ♦ 
lkUrS. N.l.tN.C I.EN'JIGE IS ro BE OM.l' 11'>\T 'lflk:H IS f'llftElERlftI) 8Y Ult SW(WI') SPCtffATIOIIS ™ 5El{R NCJ � 14,1.11 
o:Nr.la,tCTnNttW()G. ,,Jf(lJIICJSTlmlOBEJ«'�L!,WiGtna!fl£� 

PAVEMENT 

1, Fl'IE-

A. Pl1IOR ro lhEOlHSTRuctl&t orw: WU! ,WJ GIJTJERNfO n£ PIJiCEMOfT OflH( 8,1,St ""-:EIIIAI., KsmEETS 5W,U.BC FM tlRADCD 
TO 1171111 0.05 rnT Cf F'frC'l Sl.;OORJ« Cl.tYATION, 10 A NM ri«> {2J FtEf OOOICI 11£ BID( G" 0JRB. 

2. rulSNl>GUrnR 

>,, TltE n« or n£ W!B NICI Qftl'Ei:t � SE AS oruuc o.-t r-c DICIHRK PIJHS. 

B. TH£ Clli8S 9Wl.B£6'C'Vl.LED Jf;tR JlDtCOMST'Rl(.fklN Nil PRIOR 'IC lff[ PIJ£'.OE,il Offfl£ a.5E CW!& 

C: Df: S11:»E IJJCD O.HI IH1 wrrrR 9f.\U. BE c:a&OO@ M:ClE.NT,'L 

D. Tl£ ClN OEPRESSiOMS FOfl �'I'S NO � fWIFS 9WJ. 8E »fSINlEtl PU1 PIJH5 NII IJOT SflfCIAROS, 

3. PIMlEII' 

"- M P/ittllOfl M,t,l£tMI.$ � e£ AS Dr"tM.EO ott nt£ DfCK[RtlC PIMS. nt00£SS£S SPmT.fD SMl M CiHSIQ:RfD to Bl lHE 
IMIIA<"""""""H>l<35 

4. -

TJl(�it.COKTIW;TORWU.: 

A. �HI)'�� IHJ 8NU aJ.mE fM..lR£S m0R TO lll: WiTAWJDi (:K K llK. BilMHOOS � s.Rl'4 

8 WEP CI.U.-. THE DINOER COIi& PRIOR Ttl ThE tHST#l.lATIOlt Of M i't.:Ai. an:'9NOQS <XICR[1[ SR!FliC'E COl.'!15[. ,w CM1AGE 10 
n£ etaJI: cruAS£.SWoll 8f RmllRED 8'i'T1£ CONWrCTOflS.I\T NO �COS! TD TI1f OiWfR. 

C. 
��• 02'Nf5l0H. NI:> 00NJMCJ'Kltl .DnS Fnfi CLO AHO GVTltR, ,Ml P.C.C. SU.;J: P£R llOf SW.:OAADS NID 

O. IDIM: N.LElaSS IUJDll,U� OCBR1S #II)� OF'f-S<JI IJ tlOMDrUW.O'JST JO Of: OIJl'NCR. 

5. 1ESJIIGNl)ffill.MX8'1NtCE 

A. PRIIJRJOTH(flACDEHI .f'lll[ !ll'Sf.�. Tt£�MlJS':' BE �ll0U£0Nf>iW>Et'f£DAlt\JCSUT.e.£SlllGRMJC 
LOCAT!OMS. f ltCSUJl'I.Elf Sl.lBGll.a IS OIC:llii£R£D, IT StWl. EE RELOe) NI> f!EPl.aD '11ml GRAfM.NI t,U'Uill«. A)f)AQ'® £JI' nt: 
O'NJIOfftfS�T1\'£.1H�s.l!CiWJEStW.l.HR.tt.llN.lillBRVM.l!Ef$J.(I 

s. f'filOll lO AJQllEHr or f,£ Bm.lllNDl,'S tarccRm Slfif',I([ OOl,RS( flit.: COhTIW:n;>!t, MO REQUf!CD, Si:W.1 OBt�N SP[CKNS, or 
nt: SXXRCiX.RSE IIITHA t:OI£ DRtl. l'l<f£ DMCttD, r"' Jl£ rul10x CEl}tOqr£S.S �. I.I� Wffl{ Th£ 
"SfNOJtl SPEtfCK-XlJfS J0R fl(),I() A.Ill � �. 

C. f'M. �NG Of Tl£ TO:'AL PN.GElf "5TM.L>.�.»- stWJ.. BC S.!BJ[CT 10 M: TES!IIG HI) CH£acN. REOUIRDIOOS cn£O A8CM. 

6. ME!lllD CF ll£ASUREllEIIT 

A. COF.3 NCJ 3JTTIJl ...c> MSc: CQ.:.� 9""1 e£ taASl&,O ft t< f'nD Br nE' � M � SHAU 8£ Sl8l'1m TD 
Tl£ EJGND l'0'I \OWt::11,10( 'lf.Ot � E!Y' M OIH(R. 

S. WliUI Rf(IIJ[S!£D fJV Tl1t OtrlrltR. OOQlf..'(l.QJ)H fOR lH( fotST,u(D � CiJlmE.. flllMfJIJS CCN:RElE e.tt0£R. �U SIJi.FACE 
C0JRSE.. SW.U. BE 9J8llTTED TO TKE DQi;[fR IW'ttRRATJON./IS � B'l'M: IIJIICIPAUf't', THECCHTRACtOfl Sh'UOBTAIH 
SPEC'JLHS Of M ll"lA,WQ6 COflO,£tt Wll81, CDII£ DRU W!tUCf CffCTID. ft 0ROER TO CtlPl1l,I M PU,H ll1IC»ESS. DtfWIOES 
ltntiCIOISSShU8t'.A.11\151Ulftfilrl)£IC:)«Jl)mitlf«DIHM"SWIO,\QC,$PCCl'r...l'ID'Sml:fOIONCJBfflp,( 
-·-

7. 8IMCl«S 

IT stf.lU.JE rt£�S SClERfSPCtCSB.m'lO � f'ROP(R �. � 11:...:UM!) T� :wt 1,,1,YWJl!Oft � 
�Mm M>llfA��ltlSUCH fl:"IUSMJ nt!lffl6T4l.L'Th»ISHAti C31Kffl1 Jc,ffi£l1JOS )Wrl\iAI.. Df 
t;lf.� mm; wrnta.. � rC»I 5TRffiS � -tQHWtl\YS, U,T($: En:Qf"" .. KXXRNtC[ -.rt- Th( � CX)hlft:)'_ 
-..UQ'l>E.....,.,..,..,. 

w Cl) 

0:: 

C) LU 
w
z

z 
LU 

z (!) 
z 

i'.= 
_J 

0 
u 

Cl) 
z 

0 

0 

u:: 

u 
w 
a. 
Cl) 

ui'..J 
w-

�� 
W

W 

a. >
oz 0:: w
a. .J 
a. (.'J 

olS 

D. 

I 
� 
z

,. 

;;;1=i 

�I 

�� 
1il� 

tH! 
�� 

i 
::.3 

JU�£ 07 2022 
JOB: 22-019 

SHEET: 

S1 

11 Of 21 



·.<� -'.i· 
:� 

Cl/RB AND GUTTER TYPE 8-6./2 CONCRETE CURB. TYPE B 

1/1 £Kc.pt lttJlt6;ct1pt,N ,-,P6, 
SH $Id. C-4 

E•I.,, St S..t/oo (Ill. or RC.CJ 

11,· 

,,. 

.. ....._� �.,11. 
- S,,s«t{on 

Cl/RS AND GurrER n'1'E M·S.12 
l2Uli 

CONSrRVCTION DETAIL 

1• Afo
l
ar::�J::1.�: ==�cm0:1:::1'=7��:- •t.uidud a.,.ct.U.LoatJon.t lo r

J. All ,,our• aun N • .. ,u•t•- wo aono.&J.tAlo ,oan .-Jtll c:rurb and ggcur� 
ddt1aVay ,a,p_pnMcbHr and aJ:ih1r•lJta• 

J. .UZ ai11n:ut• an to h lull 4•Jlt.b• 

41. J'1M OMitraO'&:O&' aA&lJ 1JOtU7 cAe PJ.ll.p 4' • loun prJo.r eo �u,. ll'Od. 

I. lrot•etttn coa� llhuJ N .tanallN oa au Cl'Olllc:zwt■ WDZl:. 

1. ...u.u . .i ut.,;..,.7 ... cu.u.J.• .. .u M ••� by Cl.I• ".ill•P· 

CURB AND COMBINATION CURB AND GUTl'ER 

� 
V age o Qdorton grove· 

� CONSTRUCOON STANDARDS . C • 3

Eldatfng water maJn btlow PfOl)08ed •- 11na IOlth 11" minimum aapantfan. 

Eldatlng watar main btlow proposed aaww nna with , ... than the 11" 
minimum aapa,ation. 

Notes: 

1, Conltrud lladdlll porVillag1 .... ,,.,., T-11. T O IA. 

2. P- •doq-aup po� fore� -•main to 
pNvontdlmlgodueto-nt. 

J'. Point Jold1 lllll not be•� lleMttt ,ma, ma&Q 
�llld-. 

'-All11.Nlnpahdt,est11L 

... Con� 20' otproposed HW9t' wtlh w.ler fflMI 
rnate"'9f a/Ml pl'etHrl talt otj 

b. Use lD' of'ltNt cau,; for,ropOHd w.wr 
anduaJendsofe1dn9. 

--� (VERTICAL SEPARATION) 
< f--:=::--:-:==---:--...!..:..;:::===:....::=..:..::::::.:��y_ ______ ..J 

:; 
1--W

-::::::.
A

-;::
TE

:::
R_AND-'--�S�EWER

-;mi::-=::
SEP�A

,,:R
A

;.,:;:
T:.:;

IO
;.:
N�REQ�UIREMENT::::.:::=:::::.:� 

:� �-
Village o &orton grove 

-,, ...... �
,....,.

=
--:

--:---co_N_sm __ u_c_11_0N_s_r._"AN._-o_ARDS_·_--'S�EP�.:·..:::·4;.J 

112' E•pMSloa 
Joint of· IO' 
,poc;,,g (Mu,} 

PltOPERTY 
LINE 

-

,, 

I ,I'll; 
I /o $1 

SE'CrtON A-A 

J • �:-:::1.::.i:;: �=:�rM��.laJe:::":::J:,,�• •tudU"d ,,,.�UJr:aUcu rru: 

J. All ,ovr• auu M ••_puata. WO aoaolJ:tHc �u• Jtit:IJ crurb end ,attar, 
drJ...,.,ay approaohH, and eJ.d4h,aJJra. 

J • .&JJ •.ll'C'Vz:■ an to N .tul.t da peb. 

4. ffl• oa.a1tncccir �J.I oocJ.ty c.a. f'll.l.tp 41 - Aov.n prl.ar u oaaenc-t,,g won. 

J. .PnitK"C.tN caH:J.ng •1.J&JJ ,,. .tJJ,H...Zlff OD all G'QAOZWlta wrorl:. 

I. Zn.call .C"Olltr&cc.tN joUJu 1/f• .,,u • ..,..r, .14" (IJ lSnN.J. t'Ni. 

7. z.uu,U I/I· �.ton •t■.rJ&J ffffJ' tUc7 (10) JLDHl INr.. 

I. znu.u l/1" •ll'p,ando,i a.u ... .u.1 betvit� die ..tdfttaJM ant .Zl •t.ruoeon• nch 

::i.!!?:.•:�U::t.!�1���--=::!"J: .,o.lH1 �--•or·.,,,. 

t. aJdevall: R.to.b.••, :: 
��:

.;
�

t
�

=-
�

.t:;::r =-=�•.al.U. 

t• .-bar. �ul b:1...,.Tfl aroN •tdev&JU. 

SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION 

· Village of Qdorton grove · ·-· ·-·· 

CONSTRUCT/-ON STANDARDS C • 2 

sccr1DN A·A 
/ltl•I JJJ•lt H '""lflvffld .,·,n '41'111 Hil,1-JN; 
tonP"m •�1it,,,,1. 

(;utl•t IN 
grH� Lilt# 

j 
c.,,,,.,.. Hi,,nm, 

c=c=J-----\c='c,._...---lr,.,, /8 /IIUJ 
if IIHIH 

$ff ,,.. ,., ,,.,. 
--61-

u..•T-A"c.tdt __ ...,. ,,,._., 
•Tn,•A•lnlattJellHn:61n'NNwtr.,.._ 

WATER TIGHT no.rt£ ltl.llD 000T � 
N(£fK ASJU C92J 5lW1. lE IJ5m FOR ML � 
TOST-..cM!fCCNIEt:OOl6. 

-·

J, Cour:r:uccJ.o.a oz ato.rw • ..,.... -.h&J:J c�J7 r.ltl.l c.11• 11tula zd 
•�U:l.car.J.on.. lar ·lmd &D4 ad.tip• C'oaat:rlleUCJi - ZJJ1J:zc.ta 
O.parea.,,e U t'r&D.Spaf'UU:or.11 the ,htHt HiUoa. 

::!!'J.,�� .upe�J.ot•adaat fl AetUra 1>rlot to ur 

TYPE "A'' INL�T 

.. Village of Odorton grove 
CONSTRUCTION . ST.a.NDARDS. STS-5 

r 

( 

llir,. 
111'..o�,, 16'- ., 
llliR, M•r. 

klaolCIN ... _,� ....... N .... U'alft 
.......... � ... propll't)t.Mull ... tD 
.. _ ..... _ 

£ai1J. C11rb .,. 
�.,,,, lJ 6•llff 

rYPICAL RES/DcNrlAL ORIV{WAY 

l,lr,6, 

Porh,oJ'
� 

£xt11. CJJ1II « 
Cflr/J a Guflff 

[YPICAL COMMERCIAL DRIVE-WAY 
1. All aat:•r1al ancl WOZ'Jcau.dup �J CDRIOIW co t.M •eu4� •p•t:U:l.OAUOII• lar 

.Road Ufl /lrJ�p Co.ut.rvcrtAOIJ. lltHt •d.tUGD. 

a. ·.u1 'pacir• au•c be ••9U'•t•• Mo aonoJlC.U.o po1U• wJ:t/.1 QU.l'b uid pu-..-, 
dr�v.war ..,,,roaol.lH., .nd" dlftalb, 

I. All NM'\IU &re IO M ldJ h.Pd• 

,. n. ON:1tr�o.r uaJ.J rtot.Uy U. fJ.Jl• .. 4' .. boon prior co � ww.t. 

6. I.rot.CU•• oo aU-ni, ab&ll .ti. .tucallold an •.U �• lil'O.nt:, 

I. aaaua.at.it:•J •.r.tnwa, anaru.J:• abA1J ,._ ,.'CaftlbN � U. V.Ula,-. 

DRIVEWAY CONSTRUCTION 

C.lrA ._,,,. •Jt•II H 
tfltflt•d•� wlf/J ptttnl 
,�,°lllwt,t/ �,,, 
r,diM• 

:Village o ,:Morton grove 
CONSTRUCnON STANDARDS C-1 

•AlL 
TNJCJt. 

. 
.. 

·.:. 

·., 

-·

w,JVt 100 ruxtll.[ IUIBEl! £IX1t C0Mt£nW 
M£:.'111C ASN C9ll StW.L BE -:JSED FOR Ml PIPt 
lOST!l!l..cnMCDMCfllNS. 

l • Coa9t.ruecJ.o n of •to.nt •""9nl •h■Jl C!'C1411Pl)' v.fel:I �• •ec.and&ret 
lpet:JIJe■t.l.DIJ• lr>r �d aRd h'l.dg• Con■trv�uon - ZJltno.t• 
0.S-■...--taa.at ol frc.a•pon,e.to,,, &11• lata■t •tll.UOlla 

�. ::!!Zu!':L:�" au.,.r�ll:Manc ff booN pd.or to an, 

TYPE "A" CATCH BASIN 

• Village of c?dorton grove · 
CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS STS - 2 

11w 1'4le Xreente rat rer AMtmrttMa 
l, � D•.P&lli - � 'I• to Ui• � OI IUI'•• 

z
. 

�� !f.': �•
;:-

r
D1!!:t;.r�

J aanhn, Vlth .AXtt A1l.SJ (»JIA - t:lllJ 

1, rI.n •J'dranC q.aeJ.ag altalJ .aot � JtJll U.a•d L••t• 
I. ;...��>, ••QUtJ.l dalJ �J' co 'f.LJZ•� •t:� l>nvlag Wo, 

l
. 

�Jf�oJ:!:
e
:a -!:!: :;,':ft,=!;,�:� .. oA&n.tou :JobJt tJt:cU>f• .aad 

f, Ou• vu.,, .. ..,u H 1.ou . .i1w· ,at ••alJ Aruab a.la COA.Wot.loa u4 ..z� !!�a!� ta .Uow •d'avu•t. .tso.i.c.toa � bldJ-,.tdu aJ no-t.Jo.s,1 1oz 
' 

'7 • All H•t.tn" Ma ll .hi rlrma •�Jnn, buJ.tbN:lf• ta ,PNNnt poa,1.U,Je oo.nt&a.tiiu.ton 
!iz e.::.�1!;•c ... �.1.•�---. f'.ie Lato tb• 1".Ulao- i1.1n- v.UJ h d� Utu 

,. All UaUJ,g ahaJJ M #0.H U2 �UC. wJU, .S.CUoa fl-.2,U or t:lle nand'anl 
�=i!!�

•
!!��!IT :!

t
;!i:-U:a.r--:;

r J_.U
'"°-D

C:::!:�1on .ta ZJlUOU� letHC 

I• ,.·�AC .ta co be a awaat talJ 4•1>UA Hlore .n.,y&J hpJA•. 

.IO
. !!� �::hd'i,� .�u:.�r:ni::..� • rJn.11Jr.g Md c.aJouJat.tcan• a1g,Jff 

II• 'llot.U7 U• ••t..r �rbt�t O boa.r• F.Jor to t:Ollatndn9 ito.r.t. 

U • �!::e:::-.i.:: ����fo! ���� /.tt:.��'7lo&t1on• 1oz 

II. ¥or ... at•r ltdi, ci.,.La■ ... nud&l"d WI u4 .,. 

WATER MAIN CONSTR:UCTION 

�
Village o l'\forton Q-rove 

� CONSTRUCnON STANDARD$; 

......... 

NH-i:1tJ1dln; flllar 
tASTM 0•9 9•> ra,oHIH 

TYPICAL 
EXPANSIONJOINT DE,-,.IL 

W-1 

l. All aatuJ..i aod wor�•ll1Jp .sh■.Jl conton1 t:a Ua •cudard 
!�j:

�
�•Uon• LGr II.a.II .uict •r.J.dp eout:ruoc.t01.1., Jn••c 

:z. =:r:�� �le

�
�� 

�.ta
o;:�:::'

..:;
.t!:

;
r-

J
J;j

l
<IIJ 

.return radU tuid t..tn LHC dc:l»r •Jd• af tA• •tncrtein. 

J. 11/»r.var crurb an d gutt:ar J• pou�d adj&r::enc ca Cl:!:• ,..,, l'.c. 

:n::�::a.�� �ir.t!!,:
o
:;:�t �

• 
!"z--::!��=

Jdad 

:;;:4�• 11:�
J

::��..,,:
1
:�c. �n� ;:rv:..-:: :;"�! • .i� 

--�on 11::.ia i■nMGr• 1/1• Nall h .tn.c.■lld meco th 
,,.v..ani oz ha• c,ourn. 

CURB AND COMBINATION CURB AND GUTTER 

Cl) ...J 
w-

i= 3i 
cr::w 

�> 
oz 
cr;:W 

Q. ...J 

Q. C, 

o(I 
Q. 

JUNE 07 2022 
JOB: 22-019 

SHEET: 

D1 
12 Of 21 











CERTIFICATE OF CONFORMANCE OF CONSTRUCTED IMPROVEMENTS 

Development Legal Name: Townhome Development at Park Villas (North Side Hennings 
Court between Ferris Avenue and Narragansett Avenue) 

Developer: P&P Properties, LLC 
1625 N Milwaukee Avenue 
Glenview, Illinois 60025 

I, Chris Tomich, as Village Engineer of Morton Grove, certify all improvements required to be 
constructed or installed in, or upon, such streets or thoroughfares in connection with the approval 
of the plat of subdivision by the village board of trustees, have been fully completed and the 
construction or installation thereof has been approved by him, and that provisions regarding the 
performance and maintenance guarantees have been met. 

Signed 

Date 10/31/2025 

EXHIBIT F
Certificate of Conformance of Constructed Improvements



P&P Properties, LLC 
1625 Milwaukee Avenue 

Glenview, Il 60025 
 

October 22, 2025 

Chris Tomich 
Village Engineer 
Village of Morton Grove 
Public Works Department 
7840 Nagle Ave 
Morton Grove, IL 60053 
 
RE: Site Improvement Permit # JS122-0003 Park Villas, 6330,2,4,6,8 and 6340,2,4,6,8 
Hennings Court Acceptance 
 
Chris, 
 
Thank you for your email this morning informing us that above-referenced site 
improvements passed yesterday’s inspection. 
 
This letter is our formal request for the Village of Morton Grove to accept the site 
improvements. 
 
Please sign and return this letter to us so that we can submit to the surety bond company 
so that they can issue the maintenance agreement policy. 
 
Sincere thanks, 
 
 
Jenny Park, 
Managing Member, 
P&P Properties, LLC 
 
Accepted: 
 
__________________________________ 
Chris Tomich 
Village Engineer, 
Village of Morton Grove 


	11-12-25 Agenda Packet
	01 Agenda November 12, 2025
	Minutes_19_Oct 28-2025

	11a1a ORD 25-30 - LS Clean Up Ordinance
	11a1b ORD 25-30 - Clean Up Ordinance
	11a1a ORD 25-33 - LS Clean Up Ordinance
	11a2b ORD 25-33 - Liquor License Clean Up
	12a1a ORD 25-31 LS Budget Adoption Ordinance
	12a1b ORD 25-31 Budget Adoption Ordinance
	12a1c Legal Notice-Proposed Budget
	12a2a ORD 25-32 - LS Tax Levy Ordinance
	12a2b ORD 25-32 - Tax Levy Ordinance
	12d1a Res 25-76 LS Change Order R25-13 Traffic Signal Street Light Maintenance
	12d1b Res 25-76 Change Order R25-13 Traffic Signal Street Light Maintenance
	12d1c Res 25-76 Change Order R25-13 Traffic Signal Street Light MaintenanceEXHIBIT A_
	12e1a Ord 25-28 LS Animal Control Updates
	12e1b Ord 25-28 Animal Control Updates
	12e1c Ex A Ord 25-28 Animal Control Updates
	12e2a Ord 25-29 LS E-Bike Ordinance Fine Update
	12e2b Ord 25-29 E-Bike Ordinance Fine Update
	12f1a ORD 25-34 LS 6222 Lincoln + 8503-09 Fernald SUP
	12f1b ORD 25-34 6222 Lincoln + 8503-09 Fernald SUP+ EXHIBIT A
	12fc ORD 25-34 6222 Lincoln + 8503-09 Fernald SUP EXHIBIT B - PC 25-10 PLAN COMMISSION REPORT

	12f2a ORD 25-35 LS 6335 Dempster SUP Extension
	12f2b ORD 25-35 6335 Dempster SUP Extension + EXHIBIT A
	12f2c ORD 25-35 6335 Dempster SUP Extension- EXHIBIT B Letter
	12f3a ORD 25-36 LS Park Villas Final Plat Approval
	12f3b ORD 25-36 Park Villas Final Plat Approval + EXHIBIT A
	12f3c ORD 25-36 Park Villas Final Plat Approval -  EXHIBIT B - Plat of Survey
	12f3d ORD 25-36 Park Villas Final Plat Approval EXHIBIT C - Plat of Vacation.pdf
	12f3e ORD 25-36 Park Villas Final Plat Approval EXHIBIT D - Final Plat
	12f3fg ORD 25-36 Park Villas Final Plat Approval - EXHIBIT F- Conformance Certificate

	12f3ef ORD 25-36 Park Villas Final Plat Approval EXHIBIT E - Final Site Improvement Plans

	Button2: 


